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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Good morning.   

 

 2          We're about to get started.  I'm Helene  

 

 3          Weinstein, chair of the New York State  

 

 4          Assembly Ways and Means Committee and cochair  

 

 5          of today's hearing.   

 

 6                 Today we begin the 10th in a series of  

 

 7          hearings conducted by the joint fiscal  

 

 8          committees of the Legislature regarding the  

 

 9          Governor's proposed budget for fiscal year  

 

10          2020-2021.  The hearings are conducted  

 

11          pursuant to the Constitution and the  

 

12          Legislative Law. 

 

13                 Today the Assembly Ways and Means  

 

14          Committee and the Senate Finance Committee  

 

15          will hear testimony concerning the Governor's  

 

16          budget proposal for elementary education.   

 

17                 I'll introduce the members of my  

 

18          conference who are here, and then  

 

19          Senator Krueger, chair of Senate Finance,  

 

20          will introduce her conference. 

 

21                 We have with us Assemblyman Benedetto,  

 

22          chair of the Assembly Education Committee;  

 

23          Assemblyman Ryan, chair of our Libraries  

 

24          Committee; Assemblywoman Jaffee,  
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 1          Assemblywoman Lifton, Assemblyman Otis,  

 

 2          Assemblywoman Simon, Assemblyman Bronson, and  

 

 3          Assemblywoman Seawright. 

 

 4                 Senator Krueger?   

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 6                 Good morning again.  We have John Liu,  

 

 7          the chair of the New York City Education  

 

 8          Committee; Shelley Mayer, the chair of the  

 

 9          Education Committee; Senator Gounardes,  

 

10          Senator Jackson, Senator Metzger.   

 

11                 We also are joined by Senator Seward,  

 

12          my ranker on the Finance Committee, and  

 

13          Senator Betty Little, the ranker on the  

 

14          Education Committee. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  And now our  

 

16          ranker, Ed Ra, will introduce members of his  

 

17          conference. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  We're joined this  

 

19          morning by Assemblywoman Mary Beth Walsh, the  

 

20          ranking member on the Education Committee,  

 

21          and Assemblyman Mike Reilly.  And  

 

22          Assemblywoman Nicole Malliotakis as well. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  So  

 

24          just a couple of -- go ahead.   
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Sorry.  And we've  

 

 2          also been joined by Senator Ranzenhofer. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  A couple of  

 

 4          ground rules before we get started.   

 

 5                 I think a lot of the members have been  

 

 6          here before, but just for everybody's  

 

 7          attention, we have those clocks that count  

 

 8          down the amount of time both for the witness  

 

 9          and for the member to ask questions.  There's  

 

10          a green light when your time is starting.   

 

11          When the yellow light goes on, it's one  

 

12          minute.  And when the red light flashes, you  

 

13          should be finishing up. 

 

14                 And in terms of amount of time, the  

 

15          governmental witnesses will have 10 minutes.   

 

16          Then we go to the chairs of the respective  

 

17          relevant committee who have 10 minutes for  

 

18          questions and answers.  Only the chairs will  

 

19          have a second round of five minutes if they  

 

20          need it; all other members have five minutes.   

 

21                 And when we get to the nongovernmental  

 

22          witnesses, I'll just explain the time frames  

 

23          then, so we can get going. 

 

24                 So today we are happy to have with us  
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 1          as our first witness the Chancellor of the  

 

 2          New York City Department of Education,  

 

 3          Richard Carranza.   

 

 4                 Chancellor, please. 

 

 5                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Good morning,  

 

 6          Chair Krueger, Senate Education Chair Mayer,  

 

 7          Senate New York City Education  

 

 8          Subcommittee -- that's a mouthful -- Chair  

 

 9          Liu, Assembly Ways and Means Chair Weinstein,  

 

10          Assembly Education Chair Benedetto, and  

 

11          members of those respective committees.   

 

12                 Joining me today is Lindsey Oates, our  

 

13          chief financial officer for the New York City  

 

14          Department of Education.   

 

15                 It is my honor and distinct pleasure  

 

16          to come before you today to advocate for New  

 

17          York City's public schools and our  

 

18          1.1 million students and their families.   

 

19          Last year I testified before you and I had  

 

20          recently embarked on the amazing adventure of  

 

21          serving as the chancellor of the New York  

 

22          City public school system.  On this journey,  

 

23          every day presents me with new lessons to  

 

24          learn, new challenges to overcome, and new  
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 1          perspectives to consider.   

 

 2                 I am pleased to share some of the  

 

 3          major accomplishments our children are making  

 

 4          and the significant improvement in our  

 

 5          schools.   

 

 6                 Last month we announced that this year  

 

 7          New York City's graduation rate reached a new  

 

 8          record high of 77.3 percent, which  

 

 9          demonstrates progress for the fifth year in a  

 

10          row citywide.  Racial gaps are narrowing.   

 

11          More New York City public school students are  

 

12          enrolling in college.  And a new study by the  

 

13          RAND Corporation found that our ambitious  

 

14          Community Schools initiative has resulted in  

 

15          improved attendance, test scores, and school  

 

16          culture for thousands of children who attend  

 

17          our Community Schools.   

 

18                 When I visit schools across the city,  

 

19          I am hopeful for the future but reminded of  

 

20          the steep climb to overcome some stark  

 

21          disparities.  Our children are inspiring, and  

 

22          it is up to us to ensure that the opportunity  

 

23          gap continues to close.  Ours is the largest,  

 

24          most diverse public school system in the  
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 1          United States: 70 percent of our students are  

 

 2          economically disadvantaged, 20 percent are  

 

 3          students with disabilities, and 13 percent  

 

 4          are multilingual learners.  More than  

 

 5          80 percent of our children are children of  

 

 6          color, and that breaks down to 40 percent are  

 

 7          Latino, 25 percent are black, and 16 percent  

 

 8          are Asian.  Fifteen percent are white.   

 

 9                 We are proud that in all five boroughs  

 

10          our students are making great strides and our  

 

11          investments in our children are paying off.   

 

12          From our youngest learners through high  

 

13          school, our schools are launching more and  

 

14          more students to successful futures.  Pre-K  

 

15          for All is serving roughly 70,000 students,  

 

16          and this fall 3-K will serve up to 26,000  

 

17          students in 16 districts, more than ever  

 

18          before. Early childhood education is  

 

19          strengthening foundational skills and  

 

20          instruction earlier and earlier and helping  

 

21          us narrow the opportunity gap.   

 

22                 And now, for the first time, we know  

 

23          that Pre-K for All is improving academic  

 

24          achievement.  You see, third-grade students  
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 1          are the highest-performing grade on both  

 

 2          English language arts and math.  Students who  

 

 3          went through Pre-K for All are outperforming  

 

 4          students who didn't have that experience.   

 

 5          This is a promising sign for the hundreds of  

 

 6          thousands of students who have benefited from  

 

 7          this initiative.   

 

 8                 Through AP for All, the number of  

 

 9          students with access to Advanced Placement  

 

10          courses has increased from 160,000 to 226,000  

 

11          students, with 75 percent of high school  

 

12          students now having access to at least five  

 

13          Advanced Placement classes. We also recently  

 

14          announced that 81 percent of our high school  

 

15          graduates are enrolling in college.   

 

16                 As a strong believer in family  

 

17          empowerment, I'm also thrilled to say that we  

 

18          have elevated the importance of our parent  

 

19          leaders.  Starting in July, Community  

 

20          Education Council, or CEC, presidents will  

 

21          appoint a member to the Panel for Education  

 

22          Policy, or PEP.  This will give our elected  

 

23          parent leaders a greater voice in all of the  

 

24          decisions that come before the panel.  And  
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 1          that includes voting on contracts,  

 

 2          adjustments to school building utilization,  

 

 3          and changes to chancellor regulations.   

 

 4                 We recently altered our C-30 principal  

 

 5          selection process to include more parent  

 

 6          voices, because families are our most  

 

 7          important partners in creating strong and  

 

 8          supportive school communities.   

 

 9                 These policies build on the  

 

10          legislation to extend and strengthen mayoral  

 

11          accountability that you passed last year.  I  

 

12          thank the Legislature for your partnership  

 

13          and leadership on this incredibly important  

 

14          legislation.   

 

15                 Another important step we have taken  

 

16          is to get a head start in developing  

 

17          curriculum educating students on diversity  

 

18          and tolerance, consistent with the new  

 

19          statewide goals.  We are also sponsoring  

 

20          thousands of field trips to the Museum of  

 

21          Jewish Heritage, because understanding  

 

22          history is one of the best ways to create a  

 

23          better society today.  We continue to take it  

 

24          upon ourselves to support the enrichment and  
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 1          cultural competency of the children in New  

 

 2          York City.   

 

 3                 All of the unprecedented investments  

 

 4          we have made in our schools include citywide  

 

 5          initiatives under the Equity and Excellence  

 

 6          for All agenda, and support for every school  

 

 7          through the Fair Student Funding formula, or  

 

 8          FSF.  FSF distributes funds to schools  

 

 9          employing a weighted student funding formula.   

 

10          Simply put, this means that a school's  

 

11          student population -- and their needs --  

 

12          determine the majority of the school's  

 

13          budget.   

 

14                 I've long said that if you show me  

 

15          your budget, you've showed me your  

 

16          priorities.  FSF makes that real.  It is  

 

17          driven by equity, and the data shows that  

 

18          it's been successful in advancing both equity  

 

19          and excellence.  Per capita budgets are  

 

20          higher at schools with high concentrations of  

 

21          students in poverty, students with  

 

22          disabilities, and multilingual learners.   

 

23                 We have invested over $1 billion to  

 

24          make sure that every school has at least  
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 1          90 percent of its FSF funded each year, and  

 

 2          the neediest schools are receiving  

 

 3          100 percent.  But while the city has made  

 

 4          major new investments in FSF, we simply  

 

 5          cannot afford to close the FSF gap alone.   

 

 6                 In that context, and consistent with  

 

 7          our focus on equity and excellence for all, I  

 

 8          have concerns about the Executive's budget  

 

 9          proposal.  Our analysis of the Executive's  

 

10          language revealed that, as the proposal  

 

11          stands, the New York City Department of  

 

12          Education would face a $136 million shortfall  

 

13          against its fiscal year 2020-'21 operating  

 

14          budget.  That would seriously impact our  

 

15          ability to deliver results for students  

 

16          because state aid funding supports school  

 

17          budgets, mandates for specialized student  

 

18          populations, and charter school tuition.   

 

19                 It is crucial to remember that in the  

 

20          Executive's proposed budget, tuition for  

 

21          charter schools would increase next school  

 

22          year by over 5 percent.  Without additional  

 

23          state funding, DOE must assume the costs of  

 

24          these mandated increases.   
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 1                 Let me be clear.  All children deserve  

 

 2          the necessary resources to be successful in  

 

 3          school no matter what institution they  

 

 4          attend.  That said, shortchanging the system  

 

 5          that serves the vast majority of students,  

 

 6          many of whom are also the neediest of our  

 

 7          students, is not advancing equity and nothing  

 

 8          that I can support.   

 

 9                 Of course the biggest challenge of all  

 

10          continues to be the failure to fulfill the  

 

11          promise of the Campaign for Fiscal Equity.   

 

12          The Foundation Aid formula must be fully  

 

13          funded.  The landmark Campaign for Fiscal  

 

14          Equity decision in 2007 brought the promise  

 

15          of new state funding to provide all students  

 

16          with the resources they desperately need.  As  

 

17          you know, that promise remains unfulfilled,  

 

18          and New York City public school students are  

 

19          currently owed $1.1 billion in this fiscal  

 

20          year alone.   

 

21                 I'd like to thank Chairs Mayer, Liu  

 

22          and Benjamin for the leadership they showed  

 

23          this past fall when they hosted statewide  

 

24          roundtables as well as a hearing we  
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 1          participated in in New York City.  We were  

 

 2          encouraged to hear the united voices of so  

 

 3          many school leaders, parents and advocates  

 

 4          joining our call to fully fund the CFE.  We  

 

 5          look forward to continuing to work with each  

 

 6          of you and your colleagues to ensure the  

 

 7          promise to our students is finally fulfilled.   

 

 8                 In addition to my concerns about state  

 

 9          funding levels in the proposed budget,  

 

10          transparency is also a significant problem.   

 

11          The merging of state aid funding streams  

 

12          would make it more difficult to ensure  

 

13          compliance with state mandates. Consolidating  

 

14          existing support into Foundation Aid without  

 

15          increasing the amounts provided reduces the  

 

16          amount owed under the Campaign for Fiscal  

 

17          Equity ruling without providing any actual  

 

18          additional funding.   

 

19                 And finally, proposed caps and  

 

20          reformulations of essential support such as  

 

21          Building Aid and Transportation Aid would  

 

22          result in further budget hits to the DOE and  

 

23          the children that we serve.   

 

24                 Finally, we were disappointed to see  
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 1          that the Executive's budget does not provide  

 

 2          additional supports for pre-K special  

 

 3          education programs, particularly those known  

 

 4          as 4410 schools.  These private preschool  

 

 5          providers serve the special needs of some of  

 

 6          our youngest learners.  The continuity of  

 

 7          4410 services is essential to enriching those  

 

 8          students' academic futures.  

 

 9                 The mayor and I have been clear that  

 

10          we need to ensure every child has a strong  

 

11          start for kindergarten, so we need you, our  

 

12          partners in Albany, to increase the rate  

 

13          these providers receive to provide special  

 

14          education programs and services to 3- and  

 

15          4-year-olds.   

 

16                 The city is ready to deepen and expand  

 

17          our partnership with these 4410 providers to  

 

18          ensure students have access to the same  

 

19          high-quality programs and services that  

 

20          families across the city have come to rely on  

 

21          through our Pre-K for All program. But we  

 

22          cannot do this alone without your partnership  

 

23          in securing rates that 4410s need and are  

 

24          reflected in the increased cost of operating.   

 

 



                                                                   22 

 

 1          We hope to work with you to address this  

 

 2          issue in the State Budget.   

 

 3                 Beyond the budget, I want to reaffirm  

 

 4          that, as chancellor, my commitment to  

 

 5          inclusion and equity means that all students  

 

 6          should have access to the schools that best  

 

 7          meet their needs.  We still have much work to  

 

 8          do to ensure that school communities reflect  

 

 9          the unparalleled diversity of our city,  

 

10          including the specialized schools where, year  

 

11          after year, we see a troubling status quo.   

 

12                 Through mayoral accountability, the  

 

13          mayor and I take seriously our need to  

 

14          oversee each of our 1,800 public schools, yet  

 

15          because of Hecht-Calandra we cannot. For that  

 

16          reason, I continue to support the repeal of  

 

17          Hecht-Calandra and ask that in doing so we  

 

18          work together, alongside parents and students  

 

19          in our city, to ensure we can design an  

 

20          enrollment process that works for all of our  

 

21          children.   

 

22                 In my role as chancellor of New York  

 

23          City's public schools, the vision I pursue  

 

24          every day focuses on these priorities, and I  
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 1          continue to embrace your partnership as we  

 

 2          work together to provide the resources needed  

 

 3          for our children's future and to continue to  

 

 4          move our children's agenda forward.   

 

 5                 I thank you for your time and  

 

 6          consideration, and I look forward to your  

 

 7          questions. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you,  

 

 9          Chancellor.   

 

10                 We're going to go to the chair of the  

 

11          Assembly Education Committee, Assemblyman  

 

12          Benedetto. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Good morning,  

 

14          Mr. Chancellor.  Always a pleasure to see  

 

15          you, sir. 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Good morning,  

 

17          Mr. Chair. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Your  

 

19          introductory remarks are wonderfully  

 

20          well-timed, sir.  You didn't go over too  

 

21          much, and hopefully we won't either. 

 

22                 Listen.  A couple of things that you  

 

23          said in your remarks, okay?  First off, the  

 

24          shortfall, $136 million shortfall in the  
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 1          budget.  Tell me, what effect will that have,  

 

 2          to the furthest extent that you can explain  

 

 3          it, on a school-by-school basis?   

 

 4                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So Mr. Chair,  

 

 5          thank you for that question.   

 

 6                 A $136 million shortfall would have  

 

 7          real consequences for the students in the  

 

 8          New York City Department of Education.  That  

 

 9          would be the equivalent of losing 400 social  

 

10          workers and guidance counselors.  It would  

 

11          also have the effect of eliminating  

 

12          programming that has shown tremendous results  

 

13          in eliminating the need for suspensions.  It  

 

14          would affect our efforts in securing safe and  

 

15          secure learning environments for our  

 

16          students, creating positive behavioral  

 

17          supports for our students.  It would affect  

 

18          our ability where we've been inching towards  

 

19          adding enrichment programs and fine arts  

 

20          programs.  We've been inching towards  

 

21          tackling the issue of class size.  It would  

 

22          eliminate any progress.  But in real terms it  

 

23          would be 400 people -- that are social  

 

24          workers, guidance counselors -- that would be  
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 1          affected by that elimination alone. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  And at a time,  

 

 3          if you're talking guidance counselors, when  

 

 4          from my conversations with people in the city  

 

 5          itself and around the state, the importance  

 

 6          of guidance counselors today in our schools  

 

 7          for our students seems to be quite  

 

 8          heightened.  Can you expand on that? 

 

 9                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, sir.   

 

10          Mr. Chairman, it is not getting any easier to  

 

11          live in large urban cities, including New  

 

12          York City.  There are articles that have  

 

13          described living in a large urban environment  

 

14          as in some cases a traumatic experience for  

 

15          students.  In New York City, where one in 10  

 

16          of our students are homeless, the needs of  

 

17          our community are increasing, they're not  

 

18          decreasing. 

 

19                 So the ability to have guidance  

 

20          counselors and crisis social workers, the  

 

21          ability to have individuals that go into our  

 

22          shelters and provide services to our  

 

23          students, the ability to provide wraparound  

 

24          supports for our students, to provide  
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 1          transportation for our students, is not  

 

 2          decreasing, it's only increasing. 

 

 3                 And the gains that I spoke of in my  

 

 4          testimony around our increased graduation  

 

 5          rates, our increased attendance rates, the  

 

 6          decline in disciplinary matters, is all  

 

 7          because we have invested in making sure that  

 

 8          our students have the services that they  

 

 9          need.   

 

10                 So any kind of reduction in services,  

 

11          sir, would have a deleterious effect on the  

 

12          students and in, unfortunately, a climate in  

 

13          which it's only getting more and more  

 

14          difficult to live in large urban cities like  

 

15          New York City. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:   

 

17          Mr. Chancellor, I'm glad I don't have your  

 

18          job. 

 

19                 Listen, you touched upon 4410 schools.   

 

20          I was a former special education teacher, I  

 

21          taught in the city schools for some 30 years  

 

22          in special education.  We all know as  

 

23          educators that the earlier you get to a  

 

24          student and start their education process,  
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 1          the better it is for their learning.  And  

 

 2          certainly the results that you have gotten  

 

 3          with your pre-K initiatives and your 3-K  

 

 4          initiatives I certainly applaud.  And the  

 

 5          results seem to be bearing it out. 

 

 6                 However, the 4410 schools, they're  

 

 7          wonderful schools.  They deal with kids that  

 

 8          are challenged and need help.  They are --  

 

 9          the schools are -- have on staff a wonderful  

 

10          staff of dedicated teachers who are  

 

11          qualified, but they make -- and I've read  

 

12          such statistics that kind of say maybe 40  

 

13          percent less than a public school teacher. 

 

14                 How do you keep teachers in those  

 

15          schools if you're paying them so much less  

 

16          and they also work a 12-month year, as  

 

17          compared to a 10-month year for a teacher in  

 

18          the public school system?   

 

19                 I share your concern about the teacher  

 

20          pay inequities, but how can the city and  

 

21          state partner to somehow do away with these  

 

22          inequities?  Do you have any ideas on that?   

 

23                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So, Mr. Chair, I  

 

24          share your appreciation for our 4410  
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 1          partners.  It's impossible, in a large urban  

 

 2          system -- consider this fact, sir.  As of  

 

 3          last week when I checked the statistics,  

 

 4          there were 332 million people living in  

 

 5          America.  There are 1.1 million students in  

 

 6          New York City's public schools.  That means  

 

 7          on any given day when New York City's public  

 

 8          schools are in session, one out of 300  

 

 9          Americans -- not one out of 300 children, one  

 

10          out of 300 Americans is sitting in one of our  

 

11          classrooms.   

 

12                 And with that, we have launched the  

 

13          most expansive pre-K/3-K initiative in the  

 

14          country.  Now, that's something to feel good  

 

15          about.  Yet we have to be able to address the  

 

16          needs -- when students come to us earlier and  

 

17          are demonstrating special needs, we have to  

 

18          be able to address those needs.  It is  

 

19          impossible for any school system in and of  

 

20          itself to be able to address these needs.   

 

21          Which is why the 4410 partners are critical  

 

22          partners to us in making sure that we have a  

 

23          support network to meet their needs. 

 

24                 Unfortunately, what ends up happening  
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 1          is that because there hasn't been an increase  

 

 2          in the funding, in the reimbursement rate for  

 

 3          these 4410s, sometimes they just can't meet  

 

 4          the bottom line and they close.  And when  

 

 5          they close, that throws families and students  

 

 6          into tumult because they're in school one day  

 

 7          and there is no school the next day.  Which  

 

 8          leaves all of us in a situation where we  

 

 9          don't want to be, not serving students. 

 

10                 The good news is that under the  

 

11          leadership of Mayor de Blasio and our  

 

12          City Council, we have worked for pay parity  

 

13          where we've brought some of our  

 

14          community-based -- in fact, most of our  

 

15          community-based early education teachers on a  

 

16          plan for parity with our union teachers.   

 

17          This is good for New York City because it  

 

18          provides a stabilized environment for early  

 

19          education.   

 

20                 But this issue of increasing costs for  

 

21          operation with a delta of not having changed  

 

22          that reimbursement rate is creating a very  

 

23          tenuous situation in which unfortunately,  

 

24          unless addressed, we're going to see more and  
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 1          more of these 4410 partners, regardless of us  

 

 2          having pay parity now, close their doors  

 

 3          because they simply can't pay the bills. 

 

 4                 And one thing for you to also know,  

 

 5          Mr. Chairman, is in the last two years we've  

 

 6          opened a thousand more seats for students  

 

 7          with disabilities.  So this is not something  

 

 8          that's declining, this is something that's  

 

 9          only increasing.  And again, it's a perfect  

 

10          storm, 4410s closing with more students being  

 

11          identified for the support.  We have to do  

 

12          something around this particular issue. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  I have a 4410  

 

14          school in my district, and it's a fine  

 

15          organization.  It's been around for a goodly  

 

16          number of years, at least 45 that I know of.   

 

17          And one of the problems they're having is  

 

18          that they're losing teachers who are going to  

 

19          greener pastures and then the school gets  

 

20          cited for not having the qualified teachers  

 

21          in the classroom and they're threatened on  

 

22          being shut down.  It's a terrible situation. 

 

23                 Lastly -- our time is running out, and  

 

24          maybe I shouldn't bring it up because it's a  
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 1          touchy subject.  But Hecht-Calandra, okay,  

 

 2          with the specialized high schools, it's kind  

 

 3          of my view in this that we fell into a trap  

 

 4          some 50 years ago when this law was passed.   

 

 5          We entered an area that maybe we should not  

 

 6          have been involved in in the first place.   

 

 7          That in no other city in the state, as far as  

 

 8          I know, do we control how their admission  

 

 9          policies to their high schools on any level  

 

10          should be conducted.   

 

11                 I suspect, if you want to comment on  

 

12          that, am I making a statement that you might  

 

13          agree with and possibly the best solution  

 

14          would be just do away with Hecht-Calandra? 

 

15                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So, Mr. Chair,  

 

16          my feelings as an educator of over 30 years  

 

17          are not a secret on this matter.  There is no  

 

18          research that is peer-reviewed, no research  

 

19          that has been published in educational  

 

20          journals that show a single test is the best  

 

21          and most efficient way of identifying  

 

22          students for a specialized program.  It just  

 

23          doesn't happen.  So as an educator, I can't  

 

24          support a single test. 
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 1                 But I would take it one step further.   

 

 2          The Legislature, the Senate and the Assembly,  

 

 3          should not be a school board.  You should not  

 

 4          be in the business of admissions policies for  

 

 5          one city in the State of New York.   

 

 6                 And more so, I have now worked in five  

 

 7          states in five large urban school systems,  

 

 8          and I have never seen a legislature to that  

 

 9          extent be involved in the admissions process  

 

10          of a single school district in their state. 

 

11                 So as I mentioned in my testimony, I  

 

12          do support the fact -- I do support the  

 

13          repeal of Hecht-Calandra.  Just get out of  

 

14          the school board business.  You passed  

 

15          mayoral accountability; hold the mayor, hold  

 

16          the chancellor accountable for an enlightened  

 

17          policy.  And I look forward to working with  

 

18          the members of the Senate and the members of  

 

19          the Assembly in getting to a place where we  

 

20          do have an enlightened policy.  But get out  

 

21          of the school board business.  You have  

 

22          bigger fish to fry. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:   

 

24          Mr. Chancellor, thank you for your time and  
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 1          your answers. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 3          Before we go to the Senate, we've been joined  

 

 4          by Assemblywoman Buttenschon, Assemblyman  

 

 5          Weprin, and Assemblyman Carroll. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 7                 We have been joined by Senator Sue  

 

 8          Serino, Senator Joe Addabbo, and the first  

 

 9          questioner is Senator John Liu, with  

 

10          10 minutes, as the chair.  Thank you.   

 

11                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair.   

 

12                 Welcome, Chancellor. 

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

14          Senator. 

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  I like the new look.   

 

16          You shaved off the mustache.  I kind of liked  

 

17          the mustache.  They say in New York City when  

 

18          you shave your facial hair, you're getting  

 

19          ready to run for mayor. 

 

20                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Uh oh. 

 

21                 (Laughter.) 

 

22                 SENATOR LIU:  Are you running for  

 

23          mayor?   

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  I'm running for  
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 1          pope.   

 

 2                 (Laughter.)  

 

 3                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  I appreciate your  

 

 4          commentaries about not believing in a  

 

 5          single-test admissions process.  But you  

 

 6          still have five schools that you can  

 

 7          unilaterally eliminate that single test  

 

 8          admissions process for.  And yet two years  

 

 9          into your chancellorship, you haven't done  

 

10          so.  Why don't you just get rid of the  

 

11          single-test admissions for those five high  

 

12          schools?   

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you for  

 

14          the question, Senator.   

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  You're welcome. 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  As you recall,  

 

17          and I don't need to take a trip down memory  

 

18          lane, but there are eight specialized high  

 

19          schools in New York City.  At the time of  

 

20          Hecht-Calandra there were three.   

 

21                 But we consider those eight schools  

 

22          eight specialized schools.  And as I've  

 

23          worked with those communities, I've worked  

 

24          with those principals, they are eight  
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 1          specialized schools.  We are unsure and it is  

 

 2          still murky as to whether or not removing  

 

 3          admissions criteria from five versus three is  

 

 4          legally doable.  I'm not an attorney.   

 

 5                 But also it is very clear that those  

 

 6          schools do not want to -- don't want to be  

 

 7          created into a bifurcated group of schools,  

 

 8          one group with one admissions, another group  

 

 9          with another admissions.  There are eight  

 

10          specialized schools --  

 

11                 SENATOR LIU:  All right.  So you've  

 

12          said that many times -- 

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  -- and that's  

 

14          how they see themselves. 

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  -- and those --  

 

16          nonetheless, those five schools can be put  

 

17          onto a different admissions process.  And the  

 

18          Department of Education clearly can do it.   

 

19          There's no reference to those five schools in  

 

20          state law, so it's just a city matter.  So  

 

21          this nonsense, it's just a runaround that  

 

22          continues to obfuscate some of the real  

 

23          issues.   

 

24                 Let's talk about Fair Student Funding. 
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 1                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure. 

 

 2                 SENATOR LIU:  Right?  Because that was  

 

 3          supposed to be restructured last summer.  And  

 

 4          we asked you about it earlier -- well, not  

 

 5          you, but your chief fiscal officer -- who is,  

 

 6          by the way, superb.  She said back in  

 

 7          December that that report was going to be  

 

 8          done within the month.  We are now in  

 

 9          February.  Where is the Fair Student Funding  

 

10          restructuring?   

 

11                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  I'm going to ask  

 

12          our chief financial officer to address that  

 

13          question, sir. 

 

14                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  Brevity, please.   

 

15                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So you're right,  

 

16          of course, that I did indicate that we hoped  

 

17          it would be completed by the end of the year.   

 

18          Unfortunately, it wasn't.  And we hope it  

 

19          will be released very soon. 

 

20                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  Very soon.  I'm  

 

21          not even going to ask you how to define that. 

 

22                 There are lots of people in New York  

 

23          City who say that the Fair Student Funding  

 

24          formula is just not fair.  Now, I appreciate  
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 1          your advocacy for Foundation Aid.  I think  

 

 2          many of us here stand with the position that  

 

 3          we must increase Foundation Aid and we can't  

 

 4          shortchange any jurisdiction in the State of  

 

 5          New York, including New York City, with $136  

 

 6          million of shortfall.   

 

 7                 But even within the Foundation Aid  

 

 8          that New York City receives, the Fair Student  

 

 9          Funding formula provides different levels of  

 

10          funding by school.  And there is clearly a  

 

11          lack of transparency within -- by which the  

 

12          Department of Education allocates the Fair  

 

13          Student Funding.  That's something -- that's  

 

14          why people have called for it to be  

 

15          restructured.  And yet there's been delay  

 

16          after delay after delay. 

 

17                 Let me ask you one specific part of  

 

18          the Fair Student Funding formula.  The Fair  

 

19          Student Funding formula provides additional  

 

20          aid, additional funding for so-called  

 

21          portfolio schools.  These are the very same  

 

22          schools that you referenced in your testimony  

 

23          about giving high-quality, possibly advanced  

 

24          education to more students, not just fixating  
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 1          on those three specialized high schools.   

 

 2                 Why can't more schools be given  

 

 3          portfolio school status so that they can get  

 

 4          more funding under the Fair Student Funding  

 

 5          formula?   

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So I will start  

 

 7          the question, and I'm going to ask our chief  

 

 8          financial officer to give some more detail. 

 

 9                 You can't add more money to the Fair  

 

10          Student Funding formula if there isn't more  

 

11          money.  Which is why I also mentioned there's  

 

12          $1.1 billion owed this year to the students  

 

13          of New York City.  So if you're robbing from  

 

14          Peter to pay Paul, then no one thinks that's  

 

15          an enlightened way of going about it.  I know  

 

16          you don't either.   

 

17                 But giving portfolio status sounds  

 

18          really good, but if there's no funding to add  

 

19          to the pot for those new portfolio schools,  

 

20          then it has to come from somewhere.  And in  

 

21          addition to that, the Governor's proposal  

 

22          that will have a net effect of a $136 million  

 

23          deficit or a reduction in our funding only  

 

24          exacerbates the fact that we just don't have  
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 1          that money. 

 

 2                 SENATOR LIU:  Well, I agree with you  

 

 3          on that point, Mr. Chancellor.  But the  

 

 4          reality is that the City of New York, under  

 

 5          Mayor de Blasio's leadership, they've claimed  

 

 6          many years in a row that the city is, on its  

 

 7          own, going to increase the Fair Student  

 

 8          Funding amounts, and therefore more schools  

 

 9          have gotten additional funding.  Yet it's  

 

10          impossible for the people of New York City to  

 

11          understand how the Department of Education  

 

12          decides which schools get more money, other  

 

13          than for political purposes.   

 

14                 I would argue that if the Department  

 

15          of Education was really serious about  

 

16          increasing the quality of high schools all  

 

17          throughout the city, that many of those  

 

18          schools -- such as Bayside High School, by  

 

19          the way -- should have gotten that portfolio  

 

20          status and therefore gotten the additional  

 

21          funding so that their students can excel as  

 

22          well.   

 

23                 So there's been a lack of  

 

24          transparency.  No transparency means no  
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 1          accountability.  No accountability means no  

 

 2          fairness.  You've got to fix the Fair Student  

 

 3          Funding formula. 

 

 4                 Let's talk about diversity in the rest  

 

 5          of the school system, because you --  

 

 6          rightfully so -- point out that you're a  

 

 7          chancellor for all students, for all  

 

 8          families, and yet diversification and  

 

 9          integration efforts have largely failed.   

 

10                 In District 28 in Queens, the  

 

11          Department of Education had embarked on some  

 

12          kind of plan.  That plan completely fell  

 

13          apart, the parents completely rejected it.   

 

14          And now there's not even a timetable by which  

 

15          the Department of Education wants to pursue  

 

16          the integration efforts at District 28.   

 

17          What's going on there?   

 

18                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you for  

 

19          the opportunity to actually clarify and  

 

20          correct the record, sir. 

 

21                 So the Department of Education has  

 

22          provided planning grant money for Community  

 

23          Education Councils, the CECs, which are  

 

24          comprised of elected parent leaders, that  
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 1          wish to embark on a community engagement  

 

 2          process to develop a diversity plan for their  

 

 3          community.  It wasn't driven by the DOE, we  

 

 4          didn't direct CECs.  These are elected parent  

 

 5          leaders that said, We want to apply for some  

 

 6          funding to allow us to do community  

 

 7          engagement.   

 

 8                 District 28, that's exactly what  

 

 9          happened.  The CEC applied, they had the  

 

10          support of their superintendent, they  

 

11          embarked on exactly the process that they  

 

12          should embark on, having community  

 

13          conversations about how are we going to move  

 

14          forward in terms of a diversity plan.   

 

15                 In CEC 28 they've hit some troubling  

 

16          waters and there's some pushback.  But I will  

 

17          also remind -- 

 

18                 SENATOR LIU:  It wasn't just choppy  

 

19          waters.  The whole ship was sunk. 

 

20                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Well, I will  

 

21          also remind the Senator that in District 15  

 

22          that engaged in a similar diversity  

 

23          conversation, that led to District 15  

 

24          actually implementing a diversity plan, they  
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 1          actually led to removing screens and barriers  

 

 2          to student enrollment.  District 15 is more  

 

 3          diverse today than it's ever been.   

 

 4                 And the concern that was voiced around  

 

 5          this diversity implementation was that  

 

 6          parents are going to flee District 15. 

 

 7                 SENATOR LIU:  So the department -- 

 

 8                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  There has been  

 

 9          zero evidence that any parents have fleed --  

 

10                 SENATOR LIU:  Fled. 

 

11                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  -- from District  

 

12          15.  So we do have good, and we do have some  

 

13          challenge.  But that's the nature of public  

 

14          engagement.   

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  So it's up to the CEC.   

 

16          And you're saying that CEC 15 was  

 

17          successful -- meanwhile, CEC 28 failed? 

 

18                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  I didn't say  

 

19          they failed.  I said that they are having  

 

20          difficult -- 

 

21                 SENATOR LIU:  Well, you're saying it's  

 

22          not the Department of Education's fault, so  

 

23          therefore it's the CEC that failed. 

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  It's a community  
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 1          engagement process.  So that means the  

 

 2          community has the ability to have a  

 

 3          conversation about what should that look  

 

 4          like. 

 

 5                 SENATOR LIU:  But it's the DOE that  

 

 6          would set the schedule for these workshops,  

 

 7          correct?  

 

 8                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  We help  

 

 9          facilitate.  We help facilitate.  And we  

 

10          actually help bring third-party facilitators  

 

11          who do that for a living to help facilitate. 

 

12                 SENATOR LIU:  All right.  All right. 

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So it's not  

 

14          driven by the DOE.  We facilitate and we help  

 

15          them with their process. 

 

16                 SENATOR LIU:  Well, good job on  

 

17          District 15.  District 28, you've got some  

 

18          work to do. 

 

19                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  District 28 has  

 

20          some good work to do. 

 

21                 SENATOR LIU:  Chancellor, I think  

 

22          Chairman Benedetto said it right:  You've got  

 

23          a tough job.  You've got an absolutely tough  

 

24          job.  You've got a city of 8.5 million  
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 1          people, you've got 1.2 million schoolkids.   

 

 2          You've got to be a chancellor for everybody.   

 

 3          Do you think you're a chancellor for  

 

 4          everybody?   

 

 5                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Absolutely, sir. 

 

 6                 SENATOR LIU:  Do you think you might  

 

 7          have some issues in the Asian-American  

 

 8          community?   

 

 9                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  I'm working hard  

 

10          to bridge whatever issues that exist in any  

 

11          one of our communities.  I do know that there  

 

12          are individuals in lots of communities that  

 

13          do not like the equity agenda, do not like  

 

14          the chancellor for all agenda -- 

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  But do you recognize  

 

16          that you have additional work -- 

 

17                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  I'm sorry, sir.   

 

18          So absolutely there are -- there are voices  

 

19          that are working against that agenda.  And  

 

20          I'm going to continue to be chancellor for  

 

21          all students.  No matter how inconvenient it  

 

22          is for some of the adults, I'm going to fight  

 

23          for children.  I'm not running for office -- 

 

24                 SENATOR LIU:  But you can't -- 

 

 



                                                                   45 

 

 1                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  -- I'm not  

 

 2          elected to office -- 

 

 3                 SENATOR LIU:  It's hard for you to -- 

 

 4                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  -- I serve the  

 

 5          children. 

 

 6                 SENATOR LIU:  It's hard for you to get  

 

 7          to a meeting where there are significant  

 

 8          numbers of Asian-American parents where you  

 

 9          don't get booed out.  I mean, that's --  

 

10          that's the problem here.  You have to work  

 

11          better at being a chancellor for all parents,  

 

12          for all families in the City of New York.   

 

13                 It is a diversity program.  If you  

 

14          want to get at -- if you want to integrate  

 

15          our schools, you have to identify, you have  

 

16          to reach out to all of the families in the  

 

17          city.  And, you know, when you show up to  

 

18          Chinatown and have a town hall about  

 

19          desegregation and creating more diversity and  

 

20          you bring a translator and that translator  

 

21          only speaks Spanish, that's just one of the  

 

22          issues why you're not working hard enough to  

 

23          bridge the gap with the Asian-American  

 

24          community. 
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 1                 I'll talk with you a little bit later. 

 

 2                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Senator, as you  

 

 3          and I have discussed, I welcome your  

 

 4          assistance in helping me breach that gap.   

 

 5          Thank you for your commitment.   

 

 6                 SENATOR LIU:  I've offered it many  

 

 7          times you.  You haven't taken me up on it. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  All right, you  

 

 9          can continue this offline. 

 

10                 (Laughter.) 

 

11                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

14                 We've been joined by Assemblyman Ortiz  

 

15          and Assemblywoman Dickens.   

 

16                 And we go to Assemblywoman Simon.   

 

17                 Jo Anne?  You, yes. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Thank you.   

 

19                 So good morning, Chancellor.  My  

 

20          apologies for the delay. 

 

21                 I have a couple of questions for you.   

 

22          As you may expect, one of them is about  

 

23          reading.  We have talked in the past about  

 

24          identifying kids with dyslexia and related  

 

 



                                                                   47 

 

 1          learning disabilities.  As you know, we were  

 

 2          able to pass bill a few years ago requiring  

 

 3          that if a student had dyslexia, they would be  

 

 4          able to use those terms in IEP documents.   

 

 5          And in doing so, we had a big stakeholder  

 

 6          group process that identified a couple of  

 

 7          things very clearly.   

 

 8                 Number one, early identification,  

 

 9          screening.  Universal screening is a bill  

 

10          that I have to identify kids with dyslexia or  

 

11          related learning disabilities.  Through -- I  

 

12          know you know that there are a number of  

 

13          tools out there, some of which are very  

 

14          highly validated and also inexpensive and are  

 

15          being used now, piloted in two schools.  As  

 

16          you know, I've also talked about schools in  

 

17          my district that would be perfect sites for  

 

18          that.   

 

19                 But I'm concerned that two schools are  

 

20          not going to give us enough data, that if we  

 

21          are going to scale up and look at this, we  

 

22          need to do pilots in more than two schools in  

 

23          one district which may have very different  

 

24          demographics.   
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 1                 What can you do to assure me that  

 

 2          we're going to be able to increase the  

 

 3          piloting of early identification?  Because  

 

 4          early on is when we need to get our kids the  

 

 5          help they need, when we can identify their  

 

 6          problems and we can target instruction  

 

 7          appropriately.   

 

 8                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

 9          Assemblymember Simon.  So thanks to your  

 

10          efforts and Assemblymember Carroll, we  

 

11          launched these pilot programs.  And early  

 

12          identification of students that had  

 

13          difficulties in cognition, in reading, is  

 

14          critically important to get to early in a  

 

15          child's career.   

 

16                 This is an interrelated matter with  

 

17          the issue we were talking about with 4410s.   

 

18          If we have less environments in which we can  

 

19          actually do the assessment and then have a  

 

20          program that can start intervening early,  

 

21          then obviously more students will not be  

 

22          served.   

 

23                 The pilots are critically important.   

 

24          We have couched those pilots within the chief  
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 1          academic officer's division, which continues  

 

 2          to not only have teaching and learning,  

 

 3          multilingual learners, but also students with  

 

 4          disabilities.  The data that we're gathering  

 

 5          from this pilot is very important because we  

 

 6          don't want it to be a special education  

 

 7          initiative.  This has to be an instructional  

 

 8          initiative that dovetails with all of the  

 

 9          work that we're doing on reading instruction,  

 

10          on universal literacy, on the literacies for  

 

11          students.  So that data is really in the  

 

12          hands of all of those educators that comprise  

 

13          the chief academic officer's portfolio. 

 

14                 So we are committed in making sure  

 

15          that we will take the data and we're building  

 

16          what that would look like, and then  

 

17          geographically across the city what that  

 

18          would look like as well. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  So let me just  

 

20          share a concern I have with your answer, and  

 

21          that is that, you know, this is like  

 

22          unrelated to 4410 schools.  I mean, I was a  

 

23          teacher of deaf-blind students, I know what a  

 

24          4410 school does, it's a totally different  
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 1          population.  We're talking about pre-K to 2,  

 

 2          general ed, identifying kinds early on so we  

 

 3          can provide them with instruction.   

 

 4                 And we know that you need more than --  

 

 5          I'm worried about too small an N, right, so  

 

 6          that the data will be important, but it's not  

 

 7          going to be enough data to make good  

 

 8          decisions for how it would be structured.   

 

 9          Obviously there are administrative structural  

 

10          issues within the Department of Education.  I  

 

11          don't really care so much how you structure  

 

12          it, I care that it gets done. 

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  So that's what  

 

15          I'm looking for, is guidance on how you're  

 

16          going to get this done on a broader scale so  

 

17          that we can actually start making a  

 

18          difference. 

 

19                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Assemblymember  

 

20          Simon, thank you.  I agree with you.  But I  

 

21          will tell you that this is another reason why  

 

22          $1.1 billion owed to the children of New York  

 

23          City makes it difficult to scale towards the  

 

24          needs of students.   
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 1                 And I agree with you, it's more than  

 

 2          special education.  But again, if you're  

 

 3          talking about meeting needs of students,  

 

 4          there are increasing needs to students that  

 

 5          we do not have the resources to be able to  

 

 6          meet those needs. 

 

 7                 That being said, we are committed to  

 

 8          making sure that we are well on this path for  

 

 9          expanding the services for students with  

 

10          dyslexia because we recognize that that is a  

 

11          growing body of students. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  I have another  

 

13          quick question, if I -- 26 seconds.  We have  

 

14          a real problem with special education  

 

15          hearings and a real lack of impartial hearing  

 

16          officers.  How is the city going to address  

 

17          this?  We have, you know, like 1300  

 

18          complaints that are outstanding and pending.   

 

19          I'm very worried about the system imploding. 

 

20                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So we also have  

 

21          been very concerned about the impartial  

 

22          hearing officers and that issue.   

 

23                 I'm very happy to announce that just  

 

24          yesterday the State Education Department and  
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 1          the Department of Education announced a plan  

 

 2          for impartial hearing officers.  It  

 

 3          encompasses increasing the compensation for  

 

 4          the impartial hearing officers.  It also is  

 

 5          pursuing an alternate selection methodology   

 

 6          for impartial hearing officers with training  

 

 7          as well.   

 

 8                 We are also -- because the state hires  

 

 9          the impartial hearing officers and trains  

 

10          them, we believe this is going to give us an  

 

11          ability to bring more impartial hearing  

 

12          officers to the table.   

 

13                 But if we do have the situation where  

 

14          impartial hearing officers that are currently  

 

15          identified don't want to take any more cases,  

 

16          there is a provision in this agreement that  

 

17          will allow us to recruit impartial hearing  

 

18          officers from across the State of New York,  

 

19          with a compensation policy for travel and for  

 

20          hotel, et cetera.   

 

21                 So we wanted to have an immediate  

 

22          impact, but we also -- you know, longer-term  

 

23          impact, have agreed to a more robust  

 

24          compensation policy for IHOs, which we think  
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 1          is going to help us start filling that void. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Thank you. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to the  

 

 4          Senate.   

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 6                 And we've been joined by Senator Kevin  

 

 7          Thomas and Senator James Gaughran.   

 

 8                 And the next up is Education Chair  

 

 9          Shelley Mayer. 

 

10                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you, Madam  

 

11          Chair.   

 

12                 And nice to see you, Chancellor. 

 

13                 I want to focus on some of the  

 

14          financial issues you raised.  So you  

 

15          referenced a $136 million shortfall against  

 

16          an operating deficit.  Does that -- is that  

 

17          after the funds that appear to be in the  

 

18          Governor's proposal, after the Foundation Aid  

 

19          is applied?   

 

20                 And with respect to that, you  

 

21          mentioned 400 people.  Is that a fair number,  

 

22          400 people?  That seems low for the number of  

 

23          people who would lose their jobs if this cut  

 

24          was -- went forward. 
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 1                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So I'll answer  

 

 2          the second question first, and then I'm going  

 

 3          to ask our chief financial officer to give  

 

 4          you a little more detail on how it breaks  

 

 5          down. 

 

 6                 But that is a fair assessment, without  

 

 7          being alarmist, but that is a fair assessment  

 

 8          of the kinds of positions that would go away.   

 

 9          Obviously once the reality of the budget  

 

10          is -- is with us, there's an assessment of  

 

11          where do you do the least damage.   

 

12                 But that's an example of what that  

 

13          kind of a cut would look like. 

 

14                 Lindsey? 

 

15                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Yes, so you're  

 

16          exactly right, Senator Mayer, that after the  

 

17          increase of $224 million in Foundation Aid  

 

18          that we would receive under this Executive  

 

19          proposal, we are still $136 million short.   

 

20          The reference to 400 social workers or  

 

21          guidance counselors as well as really  

 

22          important restorative justice programs are  

 

23          merely an example of what that $136 million  

 

24          represents for us.  And it is meant to be  
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 1          representative of the really important need  

 

 2          for that funding in our school system. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  And, you know,  

 

 4          the Executive proposal to consolidate  

 

 5          expense-based aids into Foundation Aid which  

 

 6          you referenced, have you analyzed the dollar  

 

 7          impact that would have on the New York City  

 

 8          school system if it was to go forward?  Which  

 

 9          I certainly hope it doesn't.  But what would  

 

10          be the dollar impact on the City of New York? 

 

11                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So we're really  

 

12          concerned that -- thank you for this  

 

13          question.  We're really, really concerned  

 

14          about this proposal.   

 

15                 There are a lot of reasons why  

 

16          consolidating these expense-based aids into  

 

17          Foundation Aid is, from our opinion,  

 

18          troublesome.  There are a couple of things.   

 

19          We'd lose a lot of transparency that we get  

 

20          now from the individual allocations.  And so  

 

21          we want to make sure that when we  

 

22          operationalize instructional materials  

 

23          funding from the state that we have a clear  

 

24          allocation on the state runs from the state  
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 1          so that when we provide that funding to all  

 

 2          of our schools, that we have clear  

 

 3          accountability and transparency.   

 

 4                 That's very important to us.  If you  

 

 5          merge all of these funds into one bucket, we  

 

 6          lose that, and that's a real problem for us. 

 

 7                 In addition, basically the Executive's  

 

 8          proposal consolidating all of these aids just  

 

 9          sort of inflates the Foundation Aid base  

 

10          without adding new money.  And that's a trick  

 

11          for us.  That's a problem.  And we would  

 

12          love, rather, to have the Foundation Aid  

 

13          formula be increased through new money, not  

 

14          through consolidating existing funding  

 

15          streams.   

 

16                 SENATOR MAYER:  I think -- you know,  

 

17          many of us agree that the responsibility is  

 

18          to fully fund Foundation Aid.  That is what  

 

19          we are pushing for. 

 

20                 Would it be helpful if you gave us an  

 

21          itemized breakdown of the impact of  

 

22          consolidating these aids.  What about the --  

 

23          with respect to Building and Transportation  

 

24          Aid, the Executive's proposal to cap  
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 1          reimbursement going forward -- have you  

 

 2          itemized the dollar impact that would have on  

 

 3          the district? 

 

 4                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Yes.  So we  

 

 5          believe that the Transportation Aid change  

 

 6          would have an impact of approximately  

 

 7          $30 million less coming to the City of  

 

 8          New York, and that Building Aid would be  

 

 9          approximately $50 million over time.   

 

10                 So we're troubled by both of these  

 

11          proposed changes. 

 

12                 SENATOR MAYER:  When you say over  

 

13          time, do you mean over a one-year period? 

 

14                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  We believe that  

 

15          the cumulative impact for Building Aid over  

 

16          the next several years would be $50 million,  

 

17          and Transportation Aid would be cumulative as  

 

18          well over the next couple of years. 

 

19                 SENATOR MAYER:  I have another  

 

20          question about the -- and I don't think you  

 

21          referenced it -- the Community School  

 

22          set-aside in the Executive Budget.   

 

23                 New York City has a successful model  

 

24          of building on the Community School model.   
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 1          What would be the impact of the Executive's  

 

 2          proposal on the New York City Department of  

 

 3          Education if that were to go forward? 

 

 4                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So our strong  

 

 5          preference, of course, would be to have  

 

 6          Community School funding outside of  

 

 7          Foundation Aid, the formula, that it would be  

 

 8          new funding.  The Foundation Aid set-aside  

 

 9          will increase for us from about $118 million,  

 

10          what it is now, to 140.  We currently spend  

 

11          over $220 million on our Community School  

 

12          program.  So we still spend more resources on  

 

13          our Community School program now than the  

 

14          set-aside. 

 

15                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay, I will yield to  

 

16          my New York City colleagues.  Thank you. 

 

17                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We've been  

 

18          joined by Assemblyman Epstein.   

 

19                 And we go to Assemblyman Ryan. 

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  We've also been  

 

21          joined by Senator Brad Hoylman. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYMAN RYAN:  Thank you,  

 

23          Chancellor.   

 

24                 I have a question.  In your testimony  
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 1          you reference the Executive's proposed budget  

 

 2          for charter schools would increase by 5  

 

 3          percent for this year.  My question is,  

 

 4          what's the impact on your budget?  And where  

 

 5          does that 5 percent come from? 

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

 7          Assemblymember.   

 

 8                 So we -- that 5 percent comes from the  

 

 9          operation budget.  And I'm going to ask our  

 

10          chief financial officer to give you a little  

 

11          more detail about exactly where that comes  

 

12          from, but it does come from the operation  

 

13          budget. 

 

14                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Correct.  So thank  

 

15          you for the question.   

 

16                 Under current law, charter school  

 

17          tuition will increase by about 5.5 percent  

 

18          year over year, while education Foundation  

 

19          Aid is only growing by 3 percent under the  

 

20          Executive's proposal. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYMAN RYAN:  So is the state  

 

22          going to reimburse you for the 5 percent that  

 

23          we're asking you to shell out? 

 

24                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  No. 
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 1                 ASSEMBLYMAN RYAN:  Thank you. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 Senate?   

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 5                 Senator Robert Jackson. 

 

 6                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Good morning,  

 

 7          Chancellor. 

 

 8                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Good morning,  

 

 9          Senator. 

 

10                 SENATOR JACKSON:  So first let me  

 

11          thank you for your leadership in New York  

 

12          City.  Obviously we want you to stay.  But  

 

13          obviously, as with my colleague John Liu, the  

 

14          feeling is by some people that you're not as  

 

15          open and inclusive.   

 

16                 I disagree with that.  I think that  

 

17          everyone has -- the road is not always going  

 

18          up, the road goes up and down.  And so just  

 

19          hang in there and make sure that you listen  

 

20          to what people have to say overall.   

 

21                 But I think you're doing a great job,  

 

22          and I surely want you to stay.  We don't need  

 

23          a turnover of chancellors and chancellors and  

 

24          chancellors like I heard yesterday in  
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 1          Rochester, New York, with six chancellors in  

 

 2          about the past several years.  That we don't  

 

 3          need.   

 

 4                 And based on what you said,  

 

 5          statistically the graduation rate has  

 

 6          increased, and I'm very, very pleased about  

 

 7          that.  Obviously I'm concerned about the  

 

 8          money, the Foundation Aid.  Michael Rebell  

 

 9          has a lawsuit which goes to trial in the fall  

 

10          of this year in front of Supreme Court  

 

11          Justice Lucy Billings going after the  

 

12          $4 billion that is owed to the children of  

 

13          New York State.   

 

14                 And you said -- I've said before  

 

15          New York City is owed 1.5 billion, but now  

 

16          your financial director is saying 1.1.  Does  

 

17          that change year by year?  Or is it they owe  

 

18          us a lot more money, more than 1.1 billion? 

 

19                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Thank you for the  

 

20          question, Senator.   

 

21                 We believe that this year it will be  

 

22          1.1 billion that is owed under the Campaign  

 

23          for Fiscal Equity lawsuit.  That's a number  

 

24          that we calculate out of the state runs.   
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 1          That's the base aid versus the increase.   

 

 2                 And so we would love 1.5 billion, but  

 

 3          1.1 is the number that's calculated this  

 

 4          year. 

 

 5                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And that changes  

 

 6          year to year as to your calculation?  Am I  

 

 7          right or am I wrong? 

 

 8                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Yes. 

 

 9                 SENATOR JACKSON:  It does.  Okay.   

 

10                 So, Chancellor, you had mentioned that  

 

11          all of the schools in New York City are at at  

 

12          least 90 percent Fair Student Funding under  

 

13          the Fair Student Funding formula.  Foundation  

 

14          Aid comes down from the state to New York  

 

15          City, and New York City then changes that  

 

16          into Fair Student Funding formula. 

 

17                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  (Nodding.) 

 

18                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Right. 

 

19                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Are there any  

 

20          schools under 90 percent? 

 

21                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  No, sir, there's  

 

22          no schools under 90 percent. 

 

23                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And so how much  

 

24          money is missing from all of the schools if  
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 1          you brought them all up to 100 percent? 

 

 2                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So thank you,  

 

 3          Senator Jackson.  So I really want to take an  

 

 4          opportunity to talk about this. 

 

 5                 So this administration has invested  

 

 6          over a billion dollars in the Fair Student  

 

 7          Funding formula since Mayor de Blasio came  

 

 8          into office in 2014.  In 2014, schools were  

 

 9          at 81 percent of the Fair Student Funding  

 

10          formula.  And since that time we have  

 

11          invested, like I said, 1 billion to bring all  

 

12          schools up to that 90 percent.   

 

13                 Bayside High School, as Senator Liu  

 

14          mentioned, is an example of one of those  

 

15          schools that has received a floor raise as  

 

16          we've gotten the ability to invest our  

 

17          resources in that.  Right now the gap is $750  

 

18          million to raise all schools from 90 to 100. 

 

19                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And that's in  

 

20          Foundation Aid, that's in Fair --  

 

21                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  That would come  

 

22          directly from that $1.1 billion that we hope  

 

23          to receive. 

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Senator, if I  
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 1          could also just add a little more color to  

 

 2          this. 

 

 3                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Sure. 

 

 4                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So since 2002,  

 

 5          when mayoral accountability for schools began  

 

 6          in New York City, the city and the state each  

 

 7          approximately covered 45 percent of the cost  

 

 8          of education in New York City.  In fiscal  

 

 9          year 2020, the city will pay 58 percent of  

 

10          the cost, while the contribution of the state  

 

11          will decrease to 35 percent of the cost.   

 

12          It's shifting. 

 

13                 SENATOR JACKSON:  So it seems as  

 

14          though every year the City of New York is  

 

15          increasing the amount of money towards the  

 

16          whole pot of education dollars, is that  

 

17          correct? 

 

18                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, sir. 

 

19                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Now, I only have a  

 

20          minute left, and I can talk about this  

 

21          particular subject for hours.  But I want to  

 

22          make sure that every school, whether it's  

 

23          charter schools, public schools or nonpublic  

 

24          schools, are fulfilling its obligation under  
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 1          the law for transparency and accountability. 

 

 2                 And as you know, YAFFED, which is an  

 

 3          organization, said that some of the yeshivas  

 

 4          are not adhering to the requirements of the  

 

 5          state as far as the Education Law.  And it  

 

 6          took four years for the report to come out.   

 

 7                 I want to make sure as the chancellor  

 

 8          that you push forward and make sure that  

 

 9          every entity -- charter schools, New York  

 

10          City public schools, yeshiva schools -- are  

 

11          adhering to the Education Law and the  

 

12          requirements.  That's extremely important.   

 

13          No one gets a waiver on that.   

 

14                 Transparency and accountability is  

 

15          extremely important in the process, and I  

 

16          urge you to make sure that happens.  If in  

 

17          fact no one is transparent and adhering to  

 

18          the accountability, cut off the money.  They  

 

19          don't deserve it if they can't meet the  

 

20          standard.   

 

21                 Thank you. 

 

22                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you, sir.  

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you,  

 

24          Senator Jackson. 
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 1                 Assembly. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 3          Assemblywoman Jaffee.   

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Thank you.  I  

 

 5          absolutely agree -- 

 

 6                 (Mic not turned on.) 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Sorry, I  

 

 8          thought I did that.   

 

 9                 I agree.  If we're going to be  

 

10          providing funding for private schools, we  

 

11          need to assure that they are providing the  

 

12          high level of education that is required.   

 

13          And unfortunately, that is not being  

 

14          overviewed by the state, and we need to move  

 

15          forward with that so that all the children  

 

16          have the right to have a quality education. 

 

17                 I do want to ask -- I'm very impressed  

 

18          with your focus on -- as a former teacher,  

 

19          special education, grew up in Brooklyn, I  

 

20          went to Tilden High School --  

 

21                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Wonderful. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  -- I am very  

 

23          impressed with your focus on the pre-K, to  

 

24          assure that children when they're very, very  
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 1          young are being provided the education that  

 

 2          really gives them stability and provides them  

 

 3          the opportunity to move forward in a very  

 

 4          positive way both socially and academically  

 

 5          as well.  And that is very essential.   

 

 6                 Do you have sufficient funds to assure  

 

 7          that you have the pre-K programs that provide  

 

 8          special education for all the youth that are  

 

 9          in the district? 

 

10                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you,  

 

11          Assemblymember Jaffee.  I'm going to start,  

 

12          then I'm going to ask our chief financial  

 

13          officer to add some more color to it. 

 

14                 I'm about to say we don't.  Again, on  

 

15          the local tax levy we've been investing in  

 

16          our Pre-K for All, we've been investing in  

 

17          our 3-K for All, but what's critically  

 

18          important is that the earlier that students  

 

19          enter the system -- I recently gave a talk in  

 

20          another community across the country that  

 

21          wanted to know, how did you do this in  

 

22          New York City?  And one of the things that we  

 

23          talked about was that where other communities  

 

24          across the country don't even have full-day  
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 1          kindergarten, New York City has added two  

 

 2          grade levels:  4-K -- for our 4-year-olds --  

 

 3          pre-K, and 3-K.   

 

 4                 Now, the results are very clear, and  

 

 5          we don't have enough funding to continue to  

 

 6          have that kind of a robust program.  But I  

 

 7          will tell you that the first group of  

 

 8          students in pre-K sat last year as  

 

 9          third-graders for the state assessment.  And  

 

10          our third-graders had the greatest increase  

 

11          in academic achievement in the ELA and math  

 

12          compared to any other group that tested.  But  

 

13          even more exciting is that students that had  

 

14          the pre-K experience, versus the students in  

 

15          that initial year that did not have pre-K,  

 

16          showed significantly more achievement than  

 

17          the students that did not have pre-K.  And  

 

18          here's the really exciting news.  The  

 

19          students that traditionally encompass the  

 

20          opportunity gap -- black students, Latino  

 

21          students, students in temporary housing,  

 

22          students living in poverty, students that are  

 

23          multilingual learners -- the students that  

 

24          had pre-K in those subgroups had two to three  
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 1          times the achievement as compared to their  

 

 2          cohort that did not have pre-K. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Well, that's  

 

 4          definitely something -- I agree with you, and  

 

 5          I know that that has occurred.   

 

 6                 With the multilingual, with the  

 

 7          children of different languages, do you have  

 

 8          educators that can come in and work with them  

 

 9          on teaching them English?  There seems to be,  

 

10          in other areas, difficulty in terms of  

 

11          providing that significantly, in terms of the  

 

12          cost and also the access, you know, of  

 

13          teachers who can provide bilingual support.   

 

14                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So the wonderful  

 

15          asset we have in New York City is that we are  

 

16          a very multilingual city.  So we do have  

 

17          dual-language pre-K programs in a multitude  

 

18          of languages.   

 

19                 Our goal is not to have students  

 

20          forget their first language.  We want them to  

 

21          eventually graduate fully bilingual, with a  

 

22          bilingual certificate.  So we're very proud  

 

23          of the fact that we do have the ability to  

 

24          have those dual-language programs, starting  
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 1          in 3-K and pre-K.   

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Wonderful.   

 

 3          That's wonderful.  Because there are many  

 

 4          areas that have been struggling with that. 

 

 5                 And the other question I wanted to  

 

 6          ask, one of the other issues that seems to be  

 

 7          coming up also, the limited number of youth  

 

 8          going into the field of mental health.  And  

 

 9          so therefore the guidance counselors, a  

 

10          limited number of opportunity because there  

 

11          are a limited number of people going into the  

 

12          field of mental health.   

 

13                 Are you having that issue in terms of  

 

14          the numbers of access to guidance counselors?   

 

15                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  The heart wants  

 

16          to do it, so we have people that want to do  

 

17          it; the wallet can't afford it.   

 

18                 So again, this issue of the  

 

19          1.1 billion that's owed is significant  

 

20          because it affects our ability to add more  

 

21          guidance counselors, more crisis counselors,  

 

22          more social workers.   

 

23                 But in light of that, through the  

 

24          city's tax levy, we've been able to add  
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 1          100 new social workers that we've assigned as  

 

 2          crisis social workers.  They're deployed in a  

 

 3          myriad of different environments, but one of  

 

 4          them is working with our students in  

 

 5          temporary housing.  As I testified earlier,  

 

 6          one in 10 of our students are homeless.  So  

 

 7          the ability to get students and get the  

 

 8          services that they need, we've seen that our  

 

 9          students in temporary housing are outpacing  

 

10          in terms of increases in attendance students  

 

11          that are not in temporary housing.  So it has  

 

12          an effect, and we can demonstrate the effect. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  And one other  

 

14          question, I know I'm -- in terms of the  

 

15          access to educators -- 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:   

 

17          Assemblywoman -- 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  -- do you have  

 

19          significant access to educators?  Are there  

 

20          any areas in the state that that's a problem?   

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblywoman  

 

22          Jaffee, your time is up.  Perhaps you could  

 

23          have this discussion offline -- 

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  To the Senate. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 Senator Gounardes. 

 

 4                 SENATOR GOUNARDES:  Thank you, Senator  

 

 5          Krueger.   

 

 6                 Good morning, Chancellor.  I want to  

 

 7          pick up the theme of special education.  I  

 

 8          want to call your attention to the exchange  

 

 9          yesterday between Senator Felder and Mayor de  

 

10          Blasio over the crisis -- and I don't use  

 

11          that word lightly -- the crisis that we have  

 

12          in addressing the problems of special  

 

13          education in New York City.   

 

14                 As you know, we have 10,000 children  

 

15          on a waitlist waiting to get their cases  

 

16          adjudicated.  And until Assemblymember Simon  

 

17          asked you the question, you spent 10 minutes  

 

18          in your testimony not talking about it at  

 

19          all. 

 

20                 And, you know, it raises the question  

 

21          of how urgently is the department taking this  

 

22          issue and how urgently are we taking this  

 

23          seriously in addressing equity for all  

 

24          students?  I hear you talk about equity for  
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 1          all and the agenda constantly.  I don't hear  

 

 2          equity for special education students, and  

 

 3          that's very, very concerning.  I don't  

 

 4          understand why these students are still  

 

 5          invisible to the system.   

 

 6                 And if you guys make it a priority, we  

 

 7          should have heard something.  If the  

 

 8          settlement came out yesterday, why did we  

 

 9          have to wait to ask for you to give us the  

 

10          news that there's a resolution that's been  

 

11          announced and presented?  I mean, I don't  

 

12          understand that.  So can you please highlight  

 

13          a little bit?   

 

14                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yeah, I believe  

 

15          we did announce that, and SED will be here as  

 

16          well, they'll talk about that announcement. 

 

17                 Sir, I just -- with all due respect,  

 

18          students with disabilities are our students.   

 

19          We will serve students with disabilities.   

 

20          We've invested $33 million citywide investing  

 

21          in special education services.   

 

22                 As it pertains -- I'm assuming that  

 

23          the exchange yesterday with the mayor had to  

 

24          do with Carter cases, what we call Carter  
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 1          cases.  We are on track, we are working  

 

 2          hand-in-glove with SED on a CAP where we're  

 

 3          meeting regularly.  We are on track to clear  

 

 4          that backlog by the end of this school year.   

 

 5          We have daily updates on what's happening.   

 

 6          We've hired an additional 44 lawyers to be  

 

 7          able to take on that backlog and still keep  

 

 8          up with any new cases that come up.   

 

 9                 We've made significant investments in  

 

10          personnel around the budgeting and the  

 

11          process payment side of the house.  I've  

 

12          already talked about the impartial hearing  

 

13          officers and what we've done around that  

 

14          particular issue.  We also have a number of  

 

15          working groups that are not special education  

 

16          working groups but are a cross-section of  

 

17          every division of the DOE that is working to  

 

18          address how we are addressing the services to  

 

19          students with disabilities.   

 

20                 So I can assure you, sir, that this is  

 

21          a priority for us, that we are in the weeds  

 

22          really undoing and redoing what we need to do  

 

23          to serve our community. 

 

24                 SENATOR GOUNARDES:  Thank you.  I just  
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 1          think there needs to be a greater urgency by  

 

 2          the way we talk about this issue, because  

 

 3          this is -- now it's a national press story,  

 

 4          the failures of the New York City special  

 

 5          education system. 

 

 6                 My next question -- not so much a  

 

 7          question but a comment -- since last April  

 

 8          I've sent seven letters to your office.  I  

 

 9          have not received a single response to a  

 

10          single one.  I sent you a letter about  

 

11          special education reimbursements in July; no  

 

12          response other than a "We'll get back to you"  

 

13          from your staff.  I sent you two letters in  

 

14          September about an alleged sexual assault on  

 

15          a school bus.  Zero response.  Zero response.   

 

16          Which is unacceptable to me.   

 

17                 You talk about parental choice in the  

 

18          C-30 process.  I sent you a letter with  

 

19          Senator Myrie in November raising concerns  

 

20          about the C-30 process at Brooklyn Technical  

 

21          High School asking for clarification.  I was  

 

22          offered a phone call in March.  You've  

 

23          announced the principal last week.  That's  

 

24          insulting.  Honestly, that's very, very  
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 1          insulting.   

 

 2                 So my question to you is really  

 

 3          simple:  What does it take for a member of  

 

 4          the Senate New York City Education Committee  

 

 5          to get an answer from the department on these  

 

 6          issues?  It shouldn't have to come to a  

 

 7          hearing like this where I have to now shame  

 

 8          you and your staff here for not getting back  

 

 9          to me seven times in 10 months.  And I'm  

 

10          very, very disappointed in that, and I think  

 

11          that -- you know, we're all in the customer  

 

12          service business.  I respond to every phone  

 

13          call I get from my constituents, every email,  

 

14          every letter.  I think you all need to be  

 

15          doing the same. 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So, Senator,  

 

17          again, I will say that that's unacceptable to  

 

18          me as well.  And I will push in with my staff  

 

19          to find out why haven't you gotten a  

 

20          response.  So that's unacceptable to me.  And  

 

21          believe me, I'm not shamed.  I'm going to fix  

 

22          it.  But that's unacceptable, and I agree  

 

23          with you, that should never happen.  We'll  

 

24          fix that. 
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 1                 SENATOR GOUNARDES:   Thank you. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 Assembly. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 5          Assemblyman Reilly. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYMAN REILLY:  Good morning,  

 

 7          Chancellor. 

 

 8                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Good morning,  

 

 9          sir. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYMAN REILLY:  First I'd like to  

 

11          start off with once again thanking you for  

 

12          the My Brother's Keeper in District 31, which  

 

13          covers all of Staten Island.  For those of my  

 

14          colleagues that may not know it, Staten  

 

15          Island is the only borough that makes up one  

 

16          school district in New York City.  So back to  

 

17          my days when I was on the Community Education  

 

18          Council, I thank you for supporting that and  

 

19          our efforts with the district leadership  

 

20          team.  I think it's gone a long way, I'm  

 

21          seeing the project flourish, so thank you.  I  

 

22          really appreciate that. 

 

23                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN REILLY:  It's building on  
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 1          our equity, empathy and excellence theme that  

 

 2          we worked on.   

 

 3                 But I want to talk about that,  

 

 4          especially that today -- this week is Respect  

 

 5          for All Week in New York City schools.  And I  

 

 6          think some of the things that we focus on  

 

 7          about empowering our schools, empowering our  

 

 8          principals, I think we're having a shortfall  

 

 9          at the disciplinary aspect of it.   

 

10                 I've recently been contacted by  

 

11          several parents and community members about  

 

12          an incident that happened in a school in the  

 

13          district -- and, you know, of course we're  

 

14          not going to mention a specific school.  It  

 

15          involved a weapon, a knife, a threat to a  

 

16          staff member.   

 

17                 And I think the -- part of the process  

 

18          has been to shorten the number of suspension  

 

19          days a student can have for a disciplinary  

 

20          procedure.  And we're not having -- the look  

 

21          is that we're not giving principals enough  

 

22          input into the decision-making process when  

 

23          it comes to student discipline.  Some of the  

 

24          school community that's involved in this was  
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 1          -- they were taken aback because it was a  

 

 2          short consequence.  And I think that's some  

 

 3          of the issues that we have surrounding that.   

 

 4                 Would you be able to touch on that,  

 

 5          please?  Not specific to the school, but  

 

 6          overall. 

 

 7                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure. 

 

 8                 So, Assemblymember Reilly, thank you  

 

 9          for your support of My Brother's Keeper, and  

 

10          Speaker Heastie as well.  It's an incredibly  

 

11          important program for us, and thank you for  

 

12          being so actively involved.  

 

13                 So the issue of school discipline is  

 

14          one of those issues that everybody seems to  

 

15          have an opinion about.  But a child that  

 

16          commits an act that is a crime, we continue  

 

17          to treat that act as a crime.  So if somebody  

 

18          is assaulted, if somebody brandishes some  

 

19          kind of a weapon or any of those types of  

 

20          things, there is this pervasive notion that  

 

21          they get a pass.  They don't.  We work very  

 

22          closely with NYPD.  We will have safe and  

 

23          secure campus environments. 

 

24                 But a student that is mouthy, a  
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 1          student that is disrespectful, a student that  

 

 2          isn't paying attention, a student that isn't  

 

 3          sitting and being still, when you suspend  

 

 4          that kind of a student, you're treating the  

 

 5          symptom.  And what restorative practices,  

 

 6          what positive behavioral supports, what  

 

 7          social-emotional learning is all about is to  

 

 8          get to the root cause.  Why is that student  

 

 9          exhibiting that kind of behavior?   

 

10                 That comes with additional  

 

11          professional development for not only our  

 

12          counselors and our teachers but the entire  

 

13          school system community.  It also means that  

 

14          you have to go beyond just saying "Get out."   

 

15          And what ends up happening is that in that  

 

16          transition phase, we have to do a better job  

 

17          of explaining what is it that we're trying to  

 

18          do.  And if we are schools, I think it's  

 

19          important that we say we're trying to make  

 

20          sure that students understand the harm they  

 

21          cause when they don't follow the rules.  We  

 

22          want to make sure that students understand  

 

23          that when they become citizens of the bigger  

 

24          society, they have responsibilities. 
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 1                 ASSEMBLYMAN REILLY:  I appreciate it.   

 

 2          I've only got a minute left, so I want to  

 

 3          make sure I get to this point, and I  

 

 4          apologize for cutting you off.   

 

 5                 But I think some of the shortfalls  

 

 6          that we have when it comes to following --  

 

 7          and I believe in the restorative practice  

 

 8          model.  I think we have a shortfall when we  

 

 9          see kids transitioning from grade levels, so  

 

10          from elementary school system to  

 

11          middle school to high school.  So with the  

 

12          OORS report, the Online Occurrence Reporting  

 

13          System, I would like to see that we monitor  

 

14          and identify those students that, for lack of  

 

15          a better word, are the offender and those  

 

16          that are the victims.  It's not necessarily  

 

17          for punitive, but to offer support and  

 

18          guidance.   

 

19                 Right now there's a lack of that  

 

20          tracking with the Online Occurrence Reporting  

 

21          System, and I think that will go a long way  

 

22          to building empathy, equity and excellence  

 

23          throughout New York City.  And I'm hoping  

 

24          that we can move to that method.   
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 1                 And I also want to just acknowledge  

 

 2          that -- thank you for the online reporting  

 

 3          for bullying and harassment.  That's a  

 

 4          positive step, and I'm hoping we can build on  

 

 5          that. 

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you, sir. 

 

 7                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 8                 We've been joined by Assemblywoman  

 

 9          Hyndman. 

 

10                 Senate?   

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

12                 Our next questioner is Senator Jim  

 

13          Seward. 

 

14                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Thank you, Madam  

 

15          Chair.  And thank you, Chancellor, for being  

 

16          here and answering some questions from this  

 

17          upstater.   

 

18                 (Laughter.) 

 

19                 SENATOR SEWARD:  I noted in your  

 

20          testimony the very positive news you had  

 

21          regarding several years of consecutive  

 

22          increase in the graduation rates in the city  

 

23          schools.  Is there any one policy or  

 

24          procedure that you attribute this to, or is  
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 1          it a combination of factors?   

 

 2                 And the second part of my question  

 

 3          regarding this is even with the progress that  

 

 4          has been made, the city still lags behind the  

 

 5          statewide average when it comes to graduation  

 

 6          rates.  Is there more that can be done or  

 

 7          further steps that can be taken to close this  

 

 8          gap? 

 

 9                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So I really  

 

10          appreciate the question, Senator Seward. 

 

11                 So there's a number of conditions that  

 

12          we think are responsible for the increase in  

 

13          graduation rate.  Number one is this notion  

 

14          that we know who our students are.  So we  

 

15          know that if students are able to complete a  

 

16          certain number of credits their freshman  

 

17          year, we know that if they're able to  

 

18          demonstrate a certain attendance rate, those  

 

19          are early indicators of a positive trajectory  

 

20          towards graduation. 

 

21                 Conversely, students that aren't  

 

22          meeting those benchmarks, we're able to know  

 

23          who they are and intervene early with them to  

 

24          find out what is happening.  So this notion  
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 1          of knowing students well and then having the  

 

 2          data system to track who those students are  

 

 3          has been incredibly powerful at helping our  

 

 4          schools identify who those students are. 

 

 5                 In addition, the increased rigor that  

 

 6          is happening in our high schools in terms of  

 

 7          advanced placement classes, CTE classes,  

 

 8          gives students many more pathways to be  

 

 9          successful and earn a diploma, which is  

 

10          really, really important.   

 

11                 The wraparound services have also been  

 

12          really important for us in terms of, you  

 

13          know, not every student is going to go to  

 

14          college.  As much as we want them to go to  

 

15          college, not every student is going to go to  

 

16          college.  But if they have a pathway to  

 

17          college and career, then it gives students,  

 

18          instead of the binary way of thinking --  

 

19          either I go to college or there's nothing  

 

20          here for me -- another pathway towards  

 

21          graduation. 

 

22                 The fourth thing that I would say is  

 

23          our teachers have been very powerful,  

 

24          especially at the high school level, of  
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 1          making sure that the instruction that  

 

 2          students are receiving is relevant and it's  

 

 3          timely and it's -- we call it culturally  

 

 4          relevant and sustaining education.  That  

 

 5          students can see themselves in that subject  

 

 6          area.  They read books of people that look  

 

 7          like them, that come from them, but other  

 

 8          people as well.  It personalizes the  

 

 9          curriculum at the high school level.   

 

10                 All of those things work in concert to  

 

11          make sure that no student is falling through  

 

12          the cracks.  We know where everybody is and  

 

13          we're tracking how they're going and we're  

 

14          intervening where we need to. 

 

15                 SENATOR SEWARD:   Thank you.  You're  

 

16          obviously very pleased to talk about that  

 

17          topic.  It's great. 

 

18                 I would note that the Executive's  

 

19          budget would expand the powers and duties of  

 

20          the New York City chancellor to ensure that  

 

21          all students visit sites to educate them on  

 

22          the Holocaust. 

 

23                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, sir. 

 

24                 SENATOR SEWARD:  My question is, do  
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 1          you consider this a new mandate or simply an  

 

 2          enumeration of the powers of your office?   

 

 3                 And secondly, is there any indication  

 

 4          from the Governor's office that if this costs  

 

 5          additional monies for this transportation and  

 

 6          so on, that those dollars will flow to help  

 

 7          make this happen? 

 

 8                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

 9          Senator.   

 

10                 I'm going to ask our CFO to answer the  

 

11          unfunded mandate aspect, and then I'll talk  

 

12          about why morally we think this is really  

 

13          important. 

 

14                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So thank you for  

 

15          the question.  I think we are waiting to see  

 

16          if additional funding will become available  

 

17          for us.  But this is definitely a top  

 

18          priority. 

 

19                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes.  And we  

 

20          don't see this as -- we hope it's not an  

 

21          unfunded mandate, but we see this as a  

 

22          mandate for ourselves already.  So we are  

 

23          very fortunate in New York City to have a  

 

24          wealth of resources, including the Jewish  
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 1          History Museum, where we are going to have  

 

 2          every one of our middle-schoolers visit that  

 

 3          museum.  We have a deep partnership with them  

 

 4          where they are giving every middle-schooler  

 

 5          not only their ticket but a ticket for three  

 

 6          of their friends to come and visit for free.   

 

 7          It's a powerful experience.   

 

 8                 But we are also developing curricula  

 

 9          around genocide that is not just the  

 

10          Holocaust, but to really study what is hate  

 

11          crime, what are hate symbols, what is  

 

12          genocide throughout history in various  

 

13          continents across -- and various time periods  

 

14          across human history.  Because we want  

 

15          students to understand the significance of  

 

16          utilizing symbols and drawing symbols that  

 

17          they may not know what the historical context  

 

18          means and the deep pain that is associated  

 

19          with those historical figures or those  

 

20          historical symbols.   

 

21                 So we're very committed to doing this,  

 

22          and we hope that the Executive will look at  

 

23          what we're doing, as you said, as an example. 

 

24                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Thank you. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Assembly. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 3          Assemblyman Weprin. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  Thank you, Madam  

 

 5          Chair.   

 

 6                 Welcome, Chancellor.  I want to  

 

 7          congratulate you on your recent announcement  

 

 8          about the Community Schools and the success  

 

 9          of that program and the rise of graduation  

 

10          rates and math scores.  I think that's been a  

 

11          success, and I've been supportive in that  

 

12          effort. 

 

13                 I want to follow up on the discipline  

 

14          question and funding.  I never would have  

 

15          expected in a school like MS-158 that we'd  

 

16          have the couple of incidents that we've  

 

17          had -- one of the best schools in the  

 

18          city, constantly -- there's a perception, I  

 

19          guess, among parents, you know, that there is  

 

20          somewhat of a crisis on discipline in the  

 

21          schools and suspensions and policies.  We'd  

 

22          like to see more. 

 

23                 I started an initiative, and I paid  

 

24          for it with my own Assembly funds, to have  
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 1          motivational speakers against bullying --  

 

 2          John Pritikin, a national renowned speaker  

 

 3          against bullying in schools.  I think it's  

 

 4          been successful in the schools that I brought  

 

 5          him to. 

 

 6                 I'd love to see more funding  

 

 7          systemwide -- statewide, even -- for  

 

 8          anti-bullying, and that might go a long way  

 

 9          to prevent -- you talked about treating the  

 

10          underlying issues and trying to deal with it.   

 

11          The incident at MS-158 and many others might  

 

12          never have occurred if it wasn't for, you  

 

13          know, the bullying that's been taking place  

 

14          and in my opinion has not been successfully  

 

15          dealt with.   

 

16                 Would you like to comment on that?   

 

17                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure.   

 

18                 So, Assemblymember Weprin, I want to  

 

19          thank you for your long-time support of our  

 

20          Community Schools initiative.  You've been at  

 

21          the forefront, so thank you.  Part of that  

 

22          success is your success because you've  

 

23          invested as well. 

 

24                 So, look, young people will make bad  

 

 



                                                                   90 

 

 1          decisions, and schools are a microcosm of the  

 

 2          larger society.  So from time to time -- and  

 

 3          I think it's very on point that you mentioned  

 

 4          a widely considered good school -- so even in  

 

 5          a good school {using air quotes} you will  

 

 6          have incidences.  What's important is how  

 

 7          those are addressed.   

 

 8                 And when incidences like at MS-158  

 

 9          were brought to our attention, we responded  

 

10          very, very robustly.  Our superintendent is  

 

11          very involved on a day-to-day basis there.   

 

12          Our executive superintendent has pushed in,  

 

13          has spoken to not only the parents of the  

 

14          victims and the parents of the perpetrators,  

 

15          he's working very closely with the principal.   

 

16          Teachers and administrators are all mandatory  

 

17          reporters, so there was a question of who  

 

18          knew what when.  We've referred that to SCI  

 

19          for investigation because we want to get to  

 

20          the bottom of that.   

 

21                 We've deployed an additional school  

 

22          safety agent because there are some coverage  

 

23          issues there.  We've deployed a guidance  

 

24          counselor, an additional guidance counselor  

 

 



                                                                   91 

 

 1          and a Thrive social worker that is working  

 

 2          with groups of specific students. 

 

 3                 I can definitively say that the  

 

 4          situation at MS-158 is much better than what  

 

 5          was initially reported.  And we're  

 

 6          monitoring, and we're there. 

 

 7                 That being said, that's the kind of  

 

 8          robust response that we want to have whenever  

 

 9          something happens.  But the whole point is to  

 

10          not have anything happen.  Which is why it's  

 

11          critically important that we have guidance  

 

12          counselors and social workers and lower class  

 

13          sizes and wraparound services as a precursor  

 

14          to prohibit and prevent that from ever  

 

15          happening. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  What about  

 

17          additional funding for anti-bullying  

 

18          campaigns or, you know --  

 

19                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure.  So  

 

20          anti-bullying campaigns are good, but I think  

 

21          that within -- an anti-bullying campaign in  

 

22          and of itself, if it's disconnected to a  

 

23          broader social-emotional learning initiative,  

 

24          then it becomes a one-off.   

 

 



                                                                   92 

 

 1                 So what I love about what you've done  

 

 2          is you've always made that part of what the  

 

 3          schools are doing in terms of creating a  

 

 4          positive learning environment, a positive  

 

 5          social-emotional learning environment,  

 

 6          positive behavioral supports.  It has to be a  

 

 7          unified approach.  And I think it's always  

 

 8          good for students to have speakers that can  

 

 9          speak to "I used to be in your spot, now look  

 

10          at where I am, if I can do it, you can do it  

 

11          too, and you can be part of an anti-bullying  

 

12          initiative."   

 

13                 And then having practical tools for  

 

14          parents if their children are experiencing  

 

15          bullying.  We have a reporting portal that is  

 

16          working exceedingly well.  It's anonymous,  

 

17          but we get that information and we follow up.   

 

18                 So it's really an ecosystem of  

 

19          teaching students but also an ecosystem of  

 

20          having processes where parents can report if  

 

21          there is a concern as well. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  Okay.  Thank you,  

 

23          Chancellor.  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you, sir.  
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senate. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 Our next questioner is Senator Joe  

 

 4          Addabbo. 

 

 5                 SENATOR ADDABBO:  Good morning,  

 

 6          Chancellor.  Thank you very much for your  

 

 7          time and testimony. 

 

 8                 I also want to thank your team as well  

 

 9          for listening to the concerns of my parents  

 

10          in District 28 and continue on that path.  So  

 

11          thank you very much. 

 

12                 I want to bring up an issue that has  

 

13          not been discussed yet, nor in your four-page  

 

14          testimony, nothing here.  No matter what  

 

15          school we go to, no matter what grade a  

 

16          student should sit in, no matter what student  

 

17          that person might be, the issue of school  

 

18          safety is of concern to my parents and me as  

 

19          a parent as well.   

 

20                 So within the jurisdiction of the  

 

21          Department of Ed, what measures might you  

 

22          take fiscally to improve the school safety  

 

23          for our students throughout the city? 

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you,  
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 1          Senator.  And I look forward to visiting some  

 

 2          schools with you again, thank you. 

 

 3                 So we have a robust partnership --  

 

 4          there's multiple facets to school safety, but  

 

 5          we have a robust partnership with the  

 

 6          New York City Police Department, NYPD.   

 

 7          Commissioner Shea and I have already met  

 

 8          several times.  We have an initiative on  

 

 9          youth crime prevention that we're working on  

 

10          very closely together.  We are training our  

 

11          school safety agents, who work for NYPD but  

 

12          are assigned in our schools, around  

 

13          restorative practices, around implicit bias,  

 

14          so that there isn't an implicit bias in terms  

 

15          of how they work with students.  We're doing  

 

16          all of that.   

 

17                 But there is research that was done,  

 

18          interestingly enough, by the Secret Service  

 

19          that shows that the most important thing that  

 

20          a school system can do is to make sure that  

 

21          they are investing in the wraparound  

 

22          services, positive behavioral supports,  

 

23          creating the social-emotional learning  

 

24          environment so that when young people see or  
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 1          hear something, they know that there's a  

 

 2          trusted adult that they can go to and make a  

 

 3          report and it will be kept anonymous but it  

 

 4          will be followed up on.   

 

 5                 And part of that study was they did a  

 

 6          study on school shootings, unfortunately.   

 

 7          And I can tell you that in that study they  

 

 8          knew that in every one of those school  

 

 9          shootings somebody knew that there was an  

 

10          issue yet failed to report that there was an  

 

11          issue, and it led to a school shooting. 

 

12                 My experience as well is that you can  

 

13          harden, quote, unquote, school buildings as  

 

14          much as you want -- fences, sally ports,  

 

15          guards -- but if you do not have an  

 

16          environment where students feel safe and  

 

17          secure and can go to adults, then it doesn't  

 

18          matter because the students will not be able  

 

19          to bring that -- or won't bring that  

 

20          information forward. 

 

21                 We're investing in all of those  

 

22          things.  And I'm really happy to tell you  

 

23          that NYPD released statistics that showed in  

 

24          the last quarter, October 1, 2019, through  
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 1          December 31, 2019, incidents of -- major  

 

 2          crime incidents were down 19 percent as  

 

 3          compared to the previous year.   

 

 4                 What that does is it tells us that  

 

 5          NYPD is verifying that these interventions,  

 

 6          these positive behavioral supports, are  

 

 7          changing the culture of some of the young  

 

 8          adults so that they're not even engaging in  

 

 9          any of these kind of major crime incidences.   

 

10                 So we have good data to show that  

 

11          we're on the right path.  We want to continue  

 

12          to invest.  And I will say once again, the  

 

13          $1.1 billion that are owed to the children of  

 

14          New York City will help us do that in a much  

 

15          more robust way. 

 

16                 SENATOR ADDABBO:  Thank you,  

 

17          Chancellor.   

 

18                 And I just want to be clear -- and I  

 

19          again appreciate the efforts of the NYPD  

 

20          working with you and school safety agents as  

 

21          well.  But just to be clear, the intervention  

 

22          with adults, that's an ongoing program?  And  

 

23          if so, you have data to show that it's  

 

24          successful?   
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 1                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  It is ongoing,  

 

 2          and we'll get that data to you. 

 

 3                 SENATOR ADDABBO:  Please.  I  

 

 4          appreciate it.   

 

 5                 As you know, we've spoken in the past  

 

 6          about locking the doors of the schools --  

 

 7          it's a discussion for a different day, but to  

 

 8          certainly lock the doors, like they do in  

 

 9          private schools, yeshivas and others, to lock  

 

10          the doors of our public schools, their front  

 

11          doors.  I'd like to have that conversation  

 

12          with you. 

 

13                 Thank you very much, Chancellor. 

 

14                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

15          Senator. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

17                 Assembly. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

19          Assemblyman Ortiz.  Thank you.   

 

20                 ASSEMBLYMAN ORTIZ:  That was fast.   

 

21                 Good morning, Chancellor. 

 

22                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Good morning,  

 

23          sir. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN ORTIZ:  I do have a quick  
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 1          few seconds, so I want to pose my questions  

 

 2          one after another.  You take good notes.   

 

 3          Probably my Spanglish will be able to help  

 

 4          you.   

 

 5                 (Laughter.) 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYMAN ORTIZ:  So on your  

 

 7          testimony, and I quote:  "Pre-K for All is  

 

 8          serving roughly 70,000 students and this fall  

 

 9          3-K will serve up to 26,000 students," and  

 

10          blah, blah, blah, close quote.   

 

11                 And the first question regarding that  

 

12          is after the six years UPK, what has been the  

 

13          result for New York City students and the  

 

14          progress on that program?   

 

15                 The second question goes back to "The  

 

16          biggest challenge," and I quote from your  

 

17          testimony, "of all continues to be the  

 

18          failure to fulfill the promise of the  

 

19          Campaign for Fiscal Equity," and I close  

 

20          quote, with the Foundation Aid. 

 

21                 Many years ago one of the Senators  

 

22          here who brought a lawsuit -- I happened to  

 

23          witness this lawsuit when I was a bailiff in  

 

24          the court system back in the high 1980s.  My  
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 1          question to that one is, how does your  

 

 2          administration respond to the Governor's  

 

 3          claim that New York City does not equitably  

 

 4          spend its school aid on the neediest schools?   

 

 5                 So those are two quick questions.  And  

 

 6          last, I would like just to continue to  

 

 7          reemphasize that I do have legislation  

 

 8          mandating psychology social workers and  

 

 9          guidance counselors since I've been in  

 

10          office, to make sure that every school will  

 

11          fulfill the need to receive these services.   

 

12                 And I thank you because I know you  

 

13          have moved forward to do some social workers  

 

14          that could be put in the schools.  As you  

 

15          know, every Friday I visit my schools, and  

 

16          you've been with me in some of the schools in  

 

17          my district, and I thank you for visiting  

 

18          PS-676 and also for visiting PS-15, some of  

 

19          the special programs that we have there.   

 

20                 And talking about diversity, I would  

 

21          like to say that School District 15 probably  

 

22          can be used as a model throughout the city to  

 

23          continue to fulfill the dream of diversity  

 

24          throughout the City of New York.   
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 1                 And thank you for your work. 

 

 2                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

 3          Assemblymember Ortiz.   

 

 4                 I'm going to answer the first one on  

 

 5          pre-K, and I'm going to ask our chief  

 

 6          financial officer to address the second claim  

 

 7          on CFE.   

 

 8                 I just want to say thank you for all  

 

 9          the visits we do and to all the members and  

 

10          Senators who visit schools with me.  My motto  

 

11          is that one chancellor in the field is worth  

 

12          two in the seat back at the office.  So I do  

 

13          enjoy those visits, and I learn tremendous  

 

14          amounts from those visits. 

 

15                 As I mentioned earlier, our Pre-K for  

 

16          All, our universal pre-K, is showing some  

 

17          real signs of transformative success.  And  

 

18          across the country, one of the challenges has  

 

19          been the opportunity gap, sometimes referred  

 

20          to as the achievement gap.  It's an  

 

21          opportunity gap where you have groups of  

 

22          students that have disparate outcomes  

 

23          academically as compared to other groups of  

 

24          students.   

 

 



                                                                   101 

 

 1                 This past year, when the first cohort  

 

 2          of universal pre-K students sat for the  

 

 3          third-grade assessment for the very first  

 

 4          time, students that had the pre-K experience  

 

 5          versus students that didn't showed  

 

 6          significant gains in English language arts  

 

 7          and mathematics versus students that had not  

 

 8          had that experience. 

 

 9                 But even more hopeful was the fact  

 

10          that students in what traditionally would  

 

11          compose the opportunity gap -- black  

 

12          students, Latino students, students in  

 

13          temporary housing, students in poverty,  

 

14          multilingual learner students -- those  

 

15          students that had Pre-K for All as compared  

 

16          to those students -- the other students that  

 

17          did not have Pre-K for All, showed two to  

 

18          three times the academic achievement than  

 

19          students that did not have Pre-K for All.   

 

20                 That's a game changer.  That means  

 

21          that we're narrowing the achievement gap  

 

22          based on this initial result of that initial  

 

23          cohort of students.  So the evidence is  

 

24          looking very good.  We're very excited about  
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 1          that. 

 

 2                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Thank you for the  

 

 3          question about the -- our funding for  

 

 4          high-needs students. 

 

 5                 So we would respectfully disagree with  

 

 6          the Executive.  The data that we report  

 

 7          directly to the state through their State  

 

 8          Budget transparency reporting requirement  

 

 9          shows that we do in fact spend over  

 

10          20 percent more on our high-needs students in  

 

11          New York City.  And this is largely a result  

 

12          of what we call the Fair Student Funding  

 

13          formula, which is designed to fund students  

 

14          and their needs, and that shows clearly in  

 

15          the data. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN ORTIZ:  Let me just -- I  

 

17          only have 20 seconds left.  Let me just say  

 

18          that back in 1989 I used to work in the  

 

19          Office of Management and Budget, and one of  

 

20          the agencies used to be Education.  And since  

 

21          that time we've been trying to figure out how  

 

22          can we change the aid formula.  And on the  

 

23          Koch administration, we tried hard; on the  

 

24          Dinkins, we tried very hard.  And I hope that  
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 1          the day will come where our kids will get  

 

 2          what they deserve from the state.   

 

 3                 Thank you very much, chancellor. 

 

 4                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you.   

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 6                 Before we go to the Senate, we've been  

 

 7          joined by Assemblyman Lavine and  

 

 8          Assemblywoman Fahy.   

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  And we've been  

 

10          joined by Senators Anna Kaplan and  

 

11          John Brooks.   

 

12                 And our next questioner is Senator  

 

13          Brad Hoylman. 

 

14                 SENATOR HOYLMAN:  Thank you,  

 

15          Commissioner.  Good to see you.  And thank  

 

16          you for all your work.  I mean, if they say  

 

17          that the mayor of the City of New York is the  

 

18          second-hardest job in the country, I think  

 

19          chancellor is probably a close Number 3.  And  

 

20          I appreciate you taking all these questions. 

 

21                 I wanted to talk to you about  

 

22          something that was raised yesterday with the  

 

23          mayor by one of my colleagues, Assemblymember  

 

24          Carroll, and that's dyslexia and dyslexia  
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 1          identification.  You probably know this, but  

 

 2          there's a screening device available that  

 

 3          takes about five minutes for a teacher to use  

 

 4          where they could effectively screen over  

 

 5          90 percent -- with a 90 percent effective  

 

 6          rate of children K-3 who are potentially  

 

 7          dyslexic.  And the numbers are so large.   

 

 8          According to recent studies at Yale  

 

 9          University, they say up to 20 percent of  

 

10          New York City public school children may have  

 

11          some degree of dyslexia.   

 

12                 What is the public school system  

 

13          contemplating doing, thinking about  

 

14          addressing this enormous problem in reading?   

 

15          Because I know as a parent when a child  

 

16          starts to learn to read, by the time they hit  

 

17          around third or fourth grade, they're reading  

 

18          to learn and it may be too late in terms of  

 

19          early intervention. 

 

20                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you for  

 

21          the question, Senator. 

 

22                 So we are very committed, we've been  

 

23          working very closely with Assemblymember  

 

24          Carroll and others, Assemblymember Simon.  We  
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 1          absolutely understand the need for early  

 

 2          intervention, especially as dyslexia is  

 

 3          becoming much more prevalent because of the  

 

 4          diagnosis of dyslexia. 

 

 5                 So we're familiar with the assessment  

 

 6          tool that you reference.  It is part of our  

 

 7          pilot programs that we have in the DOE.  But  

 

 8          the additional work that we're doing is that  

 

 9          we have a number of students that come to us  

 

10          early in their educational career that read  

 

11          in other languages other than English.   

 

12                 So part of what we're doing is how do  

 

13          we adapt that tool in multiple languages.   

 

14          The good news is that there is an ability to  

 

15          do that.  But then how do you fold that into  

 

16          the professional development that all of our  

 

17          teachers are receiving, especially in early  

 

18          education settings, and then how are we able  

 

19          to then create those programs once we have  

 

20          the data, to make sure that we have, I would  

 

21          say, a portfolio of services for students  

 

22          that are identified in that regard.   

 

23                 So we are taking it very seriously.  I  

 

24          think one of the things that -- and I know  
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 1          it's not lost on you.  By no means do I mean  

 

 2          to make it sound like it is.  But when you're  

 

 3          thinking about implementing at the scale of  

 

 4          New York City, there are other just  

 

 5          logistical considerations that we also have  

 

 6          to take into account as well. 

 

 7                 All of that is what we're doing right  

 

 8          now.  And we do have 400 coaches -- just in  

 

 9          time, data for me.  We do have 400 coaches.   

 

10          We're training teachers already.  And again,  

 

11          we are also incorporating this into the  

 

12          portfolio of U-lit, universal literacy  

 

13          coaches that we have, so that they're able to  

 

14          then help train teachers as well as part of  

 

15          the universal literacy initiative as well.   

 

16                 So again, all of these pieces are what  

 

17          we're putting in place to be able to take  

 

18          that to scale. 

 

19                 SENATOR HOYLMAN:  Is it -- is the  

 

20          possibility of screening all children like  

 

21          you do for eyesight -- and thank you, my  

 

22          9-year-old now wears glasses, thanks to  

 

23          intervention by the New York City Department  

 

24          of Education.  Are they -- she would not  
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 1          thank you, though, but I will.   

 

 2                 (Laughter.) 

 

 3                 SENATOR HOYLMAN:  Are you looking at a  

 

 4          universal screening program?   

 

 5                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  We're actually  

 

 6          looking at what that would look like.  We are  

 

 7          looking at what would a universal program  

 

 8          look like and how would that fundamentally --  

 

 9          actually, just strategically and  

 

10          practically -- be implemented.   

 

11                 And again, it's one of those things  

 

12          where you have to have a process whereby it  

 

13          takes into account what parents are thinking,  

 

14          what the educators are training on, and what  

 

15          that program looks like for implementation.   

 

16                 But we are taking into account all of  

 

17          those facets in terms of the implementation  

 

18          of a program.   

 

19                 SENATOR HOYLMAN:  Thank you.  And I  

 

20          want to thank Assemblymembers Simon and  

 

21          Carroll and Senator Brooks for their work on  

 

22          this issue so far.  I look forward to  

 

23          discussing it further.  Thanks. 

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you, sir. 

 

 



                                                                   108 

 

 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Assembly.   

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblywoman  

 

 3          Seawright. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  Thank you.   

 

 5                 I'm a proud parent of two children who  

 

 6          attended and graduated from New York City  

 

 7          public schools, so I can appreciate strongly  

 

 8          the need to support our staff and teachers. 

 

 9                 Last week I toured the Julia Richman  

 

10          Education Complex High School on the Upper  

 

11          East Side in both mine and Senator Krueger's  

 

12          district.  And it houses six schools, over  

 

13          3,000 students.  It's open every day till  

 

14          11:30 p.m. at night.  And the swimming pool  

 

15          is crystal clear and ready to be functioning  

 

16          and opened, but it can't because of other  

 

17          construction issues.  When I saw the locker  

 

18          room, my staff member that was with me said  

 

19          that her 90-year-old grandmother had attended  

 

20          this school and there were the same blow  

 

21          dryers in the locker room that looked like  

 

22          pipes, like something out of a movie from the  

 

23          1950s.  Some of the rooms are not wired for  

 

24          air-conditioning, and the school was used  
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 1          this past summer in 100-degree heat.   

 

 2                 So my question is, what plan is in  

 

 3          place to modernize and upgrade some of our  

 

 4          very old school buildings?   

 

 5                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

 6          Assemblymember Seawright.  And as one of our  

 

 7          constituents, thank you for sending your  

 

 8          children to New York City public schools.   

 

 9                 I often describe the portfolio of  

 

10          schools in New York City as a historical  

 

11          portfolio of schools, which is  

 

12          euphemistically -- we have a lot of old  

 

13          schools.  And that's a perfect example of  

 

14          what I'm talking about.  The good news is  

 

15          that we have passed a five-year capital plan,  

 

16          $6 billion in our capital plan.  Of that,  

 

17          there are significant investments around AC  

 

18          for All, which is one of the issues that you  

 

19          just raised.  Interestingly enough, it's not  

 

20          necessarily the issue of buying  

 

21          air-conditioning units, it's the wiring,  

 

22          which you also mentioned -- wiring the  

 

23          buildings for those units, which is a cost as  

 

24          well.  But we've built in money for that. 
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 1                 We've also built money in to modernize  

 

 2          and to make accessible many of our older  

 

 3          buildings as well.  What we can do is get  

 

 4          back to your office specifically around Julia  

 

 5          Richman High School and where are we with the  

 

 6          particular issues that you've identified, and  

 

 7          what the comprehensive plan is for that  

 

 8          school as well. 

 

 9                 But we do have a capital plan.  We  

 

10          have been, I think, very thoughtful about  

 

11          making sure we're meeting a number of needs  

 

12          that we are seeing in schools.  But we'll get  

 

13          you specific information. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  Thank you.   

 

15                 And one other question.  What plan is  

 

16          in place to utilize graduates of the public  

 

17          school system as mentors and tutors to help  

 

18          students who could benefit from such?   

 

19                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  That's a great  

 

20          question.  I've been absolutely impressed  

 

21          with how this happens in a number of schools.   

 

22          I think that there -- there isn't a  

 

23          comprehensive mentoring program that is  

 

24          district-wide, but there are a number of  
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 1          schools that I have seen, high schools, that  

 

 2          have formed their own kind of alumni group  

 

 3          that they bring students back and they  

 

 4          mentor.   

 

 5                 But that's a great idea I'm going to  

 

 6          take back to the team.  Let's create  

 

 7          something and let's do something citywide. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  Thank you. 

 

 9                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senate?   

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

12                 I think we're up to me.  Almost, all  

 

13          right.  So just a few things that didn't seem  

 

14          to get touched on yet. 

 

15                 In 2014 we had the Smart Schools Bond  

 

16          Act with $2 billion intended to upgrade the  

 

17          technology in our schools.  New York City was  

 

18          allocated $783 million, but not until fall of  

 

19          2018, to the great frustration of me that it  

 

20          took so long.   

 

21                 So how are you doing?  And how have  

 

22          you moved forward with your $783 million now,  

 

23          six years after the bond act was passed?   

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So, Senator  
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 1          Krueger, I just want to say thank you.   

 

 2          Better late than never.  But thank you for  

 

 3          your advocacy in making it happen.   

 

 4                 I'm going to ask our chief financial  

 

 5          officer to give you some details. 

 

 6                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Yeah, thank you  

 

 7          for the question, Senator Krueger.   

 

 8                 We are very excited to finally have  

 

 9          the ability to move forward with this  

 

10          funding.  What we are most excited about is  

 

11          the Smart Schools Bond Act funding that will  

 

12          support the purchasing of devices -- so  

 

13          iPads, laptops, smartboards in schools, in  

 

14          public schools and nonpublic schools.   

 

15                 One hundred and six million dollars of  

 

16          that allocation was received by New York City  

 

17          for public schools.  We've been working very  

 

18          closely with the State Education Department  

 

19          to ensure that we allocate these resources  

 

20          and comply with all of the rules of this  

 

21          complex program.   

 

22                 I'm happy to say that we rolled out  

 

23          that funding to the first cohort of public  

 

24          schools last week.  We are rolling this out  

 

 



                                                                   113 

 

 1          in phases based on the needs of the schools.   

 

 2          And so the first cohort to receive this  

 

 3          funding was the Bronx Plan schools.  Those 50  

 

 4          schools placed orders for Chromebooks and  

 

 5          smartboards, and they will have those devices  

 

 6          in their schools soon.   

 

 7                 Phase 2 of this rollout will include  

 

 8          another 500 schools, which will include our  

 

 9          districts -- all of our District 75 schools,  

 

10          the Cohort 2 for our Bronx Plan schools and  

 

11          other high-need districts.  And so on we will  

 

12          go until we have reached every school. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.  Now  

 

14          it should be five, actually, because I was  

 

15          supposed to be 10 originally.  Thank you,  

 

16          just getting a little clock confusion.   

 

17                 Thank you.  So some of the money is  

 

18          also intended for the connectivity for  

 

19          classrooms.  So -- 

 

20                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Correct.  Correct. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  -- just following  

 

22          up on Assemblymember Seawright's questions,  

 

23          in theory, when you talk about electricity,  

 

24          whether it's for air-conditioning or  
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 1          connectivity for the technology, hopefully  

 

 2          all these things can move forward together. 

 

 3                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Yes, they can.  In  

 

 4          fact we -- the -- what you're referencing is  

 

 5          the great strides that we have made in  

 

 6          bandwidth growth in our public schools.  And  

 

 7          so the timing is absolutely right.  More  

 

 8          schools have increased bandwidth right now  

 

 9          which will be able to support these devices. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Great.  And also  

 

11          just, Chancellor, if you have not yet  

 

12          attended the Julia Richman Complex in Rebecca  

 

13          and my districts, please do.  Everyone says  

 

14          six schools can't work under one roof.  Yes,  

 

15          they can.  Everyone says you can't put  

 

16          elementary, special needs and high schools in  

 

17          the same school.  Yes, you can.  It's one of  

 

18          the most diverse buildings in the City of  

 

19          New York's school system.  It was supposed to  

 

20          be for those kids who weren't going to make  

 

21          it through.  They all make it through.   

 

22          They're almost all going to college.  It's a  

 

23          model we should be duplicating.   

 

24                 So I'm not really interested when  
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 1          people say it doesn't work.  It works there,  

 

 2          and we've had to fight several  

 

 3          administrations who tried to close that  

 

 4          building.  So you won't be closing that  

 

 5          building.  You'll just get new hair dryers  

 

 6          that will solve a problem. 

 

 7                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Senator, I would  

 

 8          just say I've made a quick visit there, but  

 

 9          let's do this.  Let's have a joint visit.   

 

10          Let's all go walk that campus together, and  

 

11          we'll reach out to your office.  I'd love to  

 

12          go visit with you. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Great.  Great.  I  

 

14          appreciate that.   

 

15                 So zombie charters.  It's a term I  

 

16          didn't know about until this budget.  So what  

 

17          does it mean for the City of New York that  

 

18          the Governor has now said we're bringing back  

 

19          the zombie charters or we're, I guess, adding  

 

20          to the number of charter schools but it's not  

 

21          clear whether it's in the old buildings, new  

 

22          buildings, who, what, where, why.  What does  

 

23          it mean for you?   

 

24                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes.  So as the  
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 1          title implies, it's not pretty.  And there's  

 

 2          no free lunch.  But I'm going to ask our  

 

 3          chief financial officer to give you some  

 

 4          details about what that would be in terms of  

 

 5          the fiscal impact to us. 

 

 6                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So thank you for  

 

 7          the question.  So essentially zombie charters  

 

 8          would be charters that closed after July 1st  

 

 9          of 2015 and allowing them to be reissued.   

 

10          There are 17 of these charter schools  

 

11          statewide.  If all of those charter schools  

 

12          were to be opened in New York City, the  

 

13          cumulative impact we think would be  

 

14          $150 million. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Okay.  And you  

 

16          did mention homeless students in an answer to  

 

17          somebody's question before.  But is there  

 

18          something else that you're doing with the  

 

19          huge number of children who unfortunately  

 

20          wander from shelter to shelter in our city  

 

21          and seem to have some of the worst school  

 

22          outcomes of any children? 

 

23                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes.  So,  

 

24          Senator, we -- we see this as a crisis.  And  
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 1          as a crisis, we've invested resources and  

 

 2          attention into this issue. 

 

 3                 Interestingly and sadly enough, that  

 

 4          most of the students that are in temporary  

 

 5          housing are not in shelters.  They're couch  

 

 6          surfing, they're going from family to family,  

 

 7          and it's even more destabilizing.  Which is  

 

 8          why it's so important that we've invested in  

 

 9          social workers and guidance counselors that  

 

10          can track those students to where they are.   

 

11                 If they're in a shelter, we push in,  

 

12          we make sure that they are getting the  

 

13          supports and the homework supports, the  

 

14          social-emotional learning supports that they  

 

15          need.  Oftentimes there's additional  

 

16          issues -- intergenerational poverty, domestic  

 

17          violence that's associated with that.   

 

18                 As you can imagine, a student that is  

 

19          destabilized and is going to a school -- I'm  

 

20          just going to use this as an example -- a  

 

21          school in the Bronx and yet ends up in a  

 

22          shelter that's in Brooklyn, we don't want to  

 

23          further destabilize that student by then  

 

24          moving them from the school and the community  
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 1          that knows him or her into another school.   

 

 2          So that's where transportation kicks in.  So  

 

 3          we are doing all of those things.   

 

 4                 What I can tell you is that I moved  

 

 5          the Division of Students in Temporary Housing  

 

 6          under our Community Schools initiative, and I  

 

 7          can tell you that the attendance for our  

 

 8          students in temporary housing is surpassing  

 

 9          the increase in attendance systemwide.  So  

 

10          those supports are actually having a robust  

 

11          effect on our students, some of our most  

 

12          vulnerable students currently. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  So we used to  

 

14          have a problem, who knows what they -- every  

 

15          mayor changes the names -- where it was  

 

16          Beacon Schools -- not the Beacon School in  

 

17          Lower Manhattan, but direct services within  

 

18          the schools to work with the families of kids  

 

19          in the communities, disproportionately in  

 

20          low-income communities where the services  

 

21          were needed and not easy to find.   

 

22                 Do we still have those models running?   

 

23                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, ma'am, we  

 

24          do.  In fact I'm very familiar with the  
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 1          Beacon approach.  I was superintendent of  

 

 2          schools in San Francisco when I came with a  

 

 3          team to look at the Beacon initiative in  

 

 4          New York City.   

 

 5                 The good news is that's also now been  

 

 6          folded in as part of our broader Community  

 

 7          Schools initiative, and it's working  

 

 8          wonderfully. 

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Glad to hear  

 

10          that. 

 

11                 Thank you, my time's up.  Assembly? 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

13          Assemblywoman Malliotakis. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MALLIOTAKIS:  Good  

 

15          morning, Chancellor. 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Good morning. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MALLIOTAKIS:  Thank you  

 

18          for coming today.   

 

19                 We're hearing a recurring theme; a  

 

20          couple of my colleagues had already discussed  

 

21          the issue of school safety.  And I understand  

 

22          that the administration would like to focus  

 

23          on intervention and restorative justice, and  

 

24          that's okay.  But it's not okay when you have  
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 1          parents and teachers and administrators from  

 

 2          around the city saying that they don't feel  

 

 3          safe. 

 

 4                 And that's exactly what I'm hearing.   

 

 5          And as you heard from other legislators here  

 

 6          today, that's what they're hearing in their  

 

 7          community.  On Staten Island there were a  

 

 8          number of incidents; my colleague Mike Reilly  

 

 9          explained one in which a student brought a  

 

10          knife.  There was a hearing, students  

 

11          testified, and then the kid just returned to  

 

12          the school five days later. 

 

13                 Same situation in one of our high  

 

14          schools where there was repeated students who  

 

15          were threatening teachers, administrators,  

 

16          they beat up a delivery man.  Kid returns to  

 

17          school a couple of days later, and everyone  

 

18          is scared and terrified in the school. 

 

19                 There are incidents of sex crimes that  

 

20          have increased a third year in a row.  Staten  

 

21          Island alone, forcible sex crimes, there are  

 

22          about 29 in the last calendar year that was  

 

23          reported, which was -- this came out in the  

 

24          spring, so it would have been for the  
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 1          2017-2018 year. 

 

 2                 But I think there is a concern here  

 

 3          that I don't think the administration is  

 

 4          taking seriously.  I mean, when you have  

 

 5          parents that are pleading -- and as you went  

 

 6          to that hearing in Queens, I mean, to say  

 

 7          that they were grandstanding, I thought that  

 

 8          was very offensive, because these are serious  

 

 9          concerns that parents are saying that they  

 

10          don't feel safe, their kids don't feel safe. 

 

11                 Kids are having items stolen from  

 

12          them.  Those aren't being reported.  I don't  

 

13          think that's reflected in these statistics.   

 

14          And even certain incidents like, you know,  

 

15          pot or disorderly conduct or harassment,  

 

16          disrespecting teachers, bullying other  

 

17          students -- they're not included in -- you  

 

18          know, they're considered noncriminal by the  

 

19          DOE.  And so I don't know if they're really  

 

20          reflected in any statistics. 

 

21                 But the council of school supervisors  

 

22          and administrators wrote to you recently even  

 

23          in a letter.  So even the unions are saying  

 

24          that there are serious issues that their  
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 1          members have concerns about.  In fact, I  

 

 2          think they took a survey here.  And the  

 

 3          numbers that I have, 20 percent of principals  

 

 4          only said that they were satisfied with the  

 

 5          resources that their schools are receiving  

 

 6          for safety.  And that they also said that  

 

 7          changes to school discipline have had a  

 

 8          detrimental effect on school climate. 

 

 9                 And teachers that I'm hearing from are  

 

10          saying the same thing, that they feel they  

 

11          can't control their classroom.  And when you  

 

12          can't control your classroom, children can't  

 

13          get a good education. 

 

14                 And so I guess my question for you  

 

15          is -- you know, I understand that you're  

 

16          doing these things, you say restorative  

 

17          justice or some type of interventions.  But  

 

18          at the end of the day, people don't feel safe  

 

19          in the schools.  And you're hearing it from  

 

20          all levels.  Again, these are parents, these  

 

21          are students, these are teachers, these are  

 

22          administrators, all saying the same thing. 

 

23                 So what can you do, as the chancellor,  

 

24          to ensure that we address this issue of  
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 1          school safety and that we do restore some  

 

 2          type of school discipline back to the  

 

 3          classroom and give some more autonomy to the  

 

 4          teachers and the principals to be able to  

 

 5          control their classrooms?   

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you for  

 

 7          the question.   

 

 8                 I would very respectfully disagree  

 

 9          that it's all parents, all students, all  

 

10          administrators.   

 

11                 Absolutely there are concerns.  We  

 

12          listen to those concerns.  And my message to  

 

13          the community is that we take student safety  

 

14          very seriously.  We work hand-in-glove with  

 

15          NYPD around serious issues.  We have a  

 

16          protocol where we assess every single school,  

 

17          we look at statistics and we make adjustments  

 

18          according to what we see. 

 

19                 But I will also share with you,  

 

20          Assemblymember Malliotakis, recently -- prior  

 

21          to coming to New York City, I was  

 

22          superintendent in Houston, the largest school  

 

23          system in Texas.  Thirty miles south for me  

 

24          was a school that had armed police officers,  
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 1          they locked their doors, they had metal  

 

 2          detectors, they had a fence around their  

 

 3          school, and that school suffered a school  

 

 4          shooting.  All of the hardening that you can  

 

 5          do to a school is just hardening unless you  

 

 6          create an environment within that school  

 

 7          where students have an environment where they  

 

 8          feel safe and they can report the crime.  And  

 

 9          as educators, part of what we want to do is  

 

10          to make sure students understand and we  

 

11          understand what the underlying issues are so  

 

12          that we can address it through some of the  

 

13          things we've already talked about:  Have a  

 

14          guidance counselor, a social worker, an  

 

15          intervention.   

 

16                 So again, we want to assure and ensure  

 

17          that our schools are safe.  And as we get  

 

18          those reports, I'll tell you, Staten Island  

 

19          has an incredible executive superintendent,  

 

20          Anthony Lodico, who takes it very seriously,  

 

21          a superintendent named Vinnie Gallassio, who  

 

22          takes it very seriously.  I would encourage  

 

23          parents on Staten Island to continue to work  

 

24          with them, because they will get to the  
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 1          bottom of those issues and make sure that  

 

 2          their needs are addressed. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MALLIOTAKIS:  I agree  

 

 4          that they do great work -- 

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Great.  Thank  

 

 6          you. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MALLIOTAKIS:  -- but  

 

 8          there needs to be consequences for bad  

 

 9          behavior in schools. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

11                 Chair John Liu for a follow-up. 

 

12                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair.   

 

13                 Mr. Chancellor, I think you might  

 

14          almost be done. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  No, the Assembly  

 

16          still has a -- 

 

17                 SENATOR LIU:  The Assembly still has  

 

18          one.  But still, the light seems to be at the  

 

19          end of the tunnel.  So thanks for your  

 

20          patience.   

 

21                 As you heard from Assemblymember  

 

22          Malliotakis and many of our other colleagues,  

 

23          bullying and harassment and feeling safe is a  

 

24          problem.  And as chancellor, I think you do a  
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 1          great job of expressing a vision, which is  

 

 2          what leaders should do.  But as chancellor,  

 

 3          you have to be a manager as well and you have  

 

 4          to be on top of the situation.   

 

 5                 And earlier you mentioned the bullying  

 

 6          reporting portal.  Is that up and running?   

 

 7          Because there are reports that it's not fully  

 

 8          operational. 

 

 9                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So, Senator, the  

 

10          bully portal is operational.  I was made  

 

11          aware that there were some issues with how  

 

12          reports were then categorized for follow-up.   

 

13          We've identified those specific incidences,  

 

14          and it involved just a couple of schools or a  

 

15          few schools, and they're being dealt -- I  

 

16          think they've already been dealt with.   

 

17                 But it is up and operational.  And I  

 

18          would encourage any parent to feel confident  

 

19          in using that portal. 

 

20                 SENATOR LIU:  So parents can report  

 

21          something, but nothing is necessarily done  

 

22          with it. 

 

23                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  That's not  

 

24          correct, sir.   
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 1                 So once parents report that, that  

 

 2          information is taken and given directly to  

 

 3          the school.  There's a way to track and  

 

 4          follow up on what's been done.  So it is a  

 

 5          mechanism that holds us accountable as a  

 

 6          system to make sure that those reports are  

 

 7          actually followed up on. 

 

 8                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  Well, look, on  

 

 9          the issue of safety -- and this is likely to  

 

10          be the topic of additional discussions,  

 

11          but -- you know, I remember the days, which I  

 

12          hope we never go back to, where 7-year-olds  

 

13          were being handcuffed in school bathrooms.   

 

14          The police were regularly called upon.  We  

 

15          don't want to get into a situation that's  

 

16          similar to that school 30 miles south of  

 

17          where you used to work. 

 

18                 But it is still of paramount  

 

19          importance that students, parents, teachers  

 

20          and other staff feel safe in schools.  And  

 

21          that is clearly an issue in the City of  

 

22          New York right now.  I mean, would you agree  

 

23          that that's a problem that needs to be  

 

24          addressed head-on? 
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 1                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So, Senator, I  

 

 2          agree that there should always be vigilance  

 

 3          on safe schools and keeping our schools safe,  

 

 4          keeping our students safe.  We will continue  

 

 5          to have vigilance to make sure that is  

 

 6          happening.  We will continue to work with  

 

 7          both of our unions, UFT and CSA, around the  

 

 8          concerns that they have around training and  

 

 9          some of the regulations and some of the  

 

10          protocols.  We will continue to work with  

 

11          NYPD on making sure that -- you know, they  

 

12          have data that we don't have, they have  

 

13          expertise that we don't have.  It's  

 

14          triangulating all of the information that we  

 

15          get.   

 

16                 We will continue to make that a  

 

17          priority because parents need to be sure that  

 

18          when they send their babies to us, they're  

 

19          going to come home safe and they're going to  

 

20          come home learning something they didn't know  

 

21          when they came the first time. 

 

22                 SENATOR LIU:  All right.  But they're  

 

23          far from sure of that right now. 

 

24                 On the issue of charter schools, our  
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 1          chairperson -- both Chairperson Shelley Mayer  

 

 2          and Chairperson Liz Krueger, they had  

 

 3          questions about the impact of the zombie  

 

 4          charters.  What about the state of  

 

 5          accountability from our charter schools in  

 

 6          New York City?  Does the administration feel  

 

 7          that they are fully accountable or are there  

 

 8          measures that are still needed to make them  

 

 9          more accountable?  They call themselves  

 

10          public schools, but many people would call  

 

11          charter schools private schools that are  

 

12          publicly funded. 

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, so we have  

 

14          a district charter partnership in which we  

 

15          have DOE schools that work with charter  

 

16          schools, they pick a problem of practice,  

 

17          they share best practices.  That's a really  

 

18          good practice.  We're learning from each  

 

19          other.   

 

20                 And I think that's the space that we  

 

21          want to continue to work in.  Obviously there  

 

22          is some more work that we're doing around  

 

23          serving students with disabilities and making  

 

24          sure that students with disabilities in all  
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 1          of our schools, including our charter  

 

 2          schools, are being served to the greatest  

 

 3          degree possible.  We continue to work through  

 

 4          that.   

 

 5                 We have also really ramped up the work  

 

 6          that we're doing around the issue of English  

 

 7          language learners in charter schools as well. 

 

 8                 So we are engaging in a much more  

 

 9          robust way than we ever had with charters,  

 

10          we're holding each other accountable but  

 

11          being very clear about how we will work  

 

12          together. 

 

13                 SENATOR LIU:  Well, there are efforts  

 

14          within our legislative bodies to enhance the  

 

15          accountability with charter schools. 

 

16                 My last quick question would be what  

 

17          is the status of the School Diversity  

 

18          Advisory Group and its recommendations to  

 

19          essentially get rid of gifted and talented  

 

20          programs? 

 

21                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So the School  

 

22          Diversity Advisory Committee, Senator, gave  

 

23          us two groups of recommendations, the  

 

24          first -- I will call it the first tranche,  
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 1          and then the second tranche.  The first  

 

 2          tranche I can tell you we've adopted 63 of  

 

 3          their recommendations, 63 out of 65, 66 --  

 

 4          the vast majority.   

 

 5                 But the second group are the group of  

 

 6          recommendations that are much more weighty in  

 

 7          terms of policy.  You reference gifted and  

 

 8          talented, which is true, but also there are  

 

 9          recommendations around screens and admissions  

 

10          policies.   

 

11                 So obviously, when you start pulling  

 

12          that string, there are a number of connected  

 

13          places where those policy recommendations  

 

14          touch.  So we are in the process right now of  

 

15          actually understanding, if you do this, what  

 

16          is the impact on that.  Again, lessons  

 

17          learned from the earlier conversations around  

 

18          the specialized high school admissions test.   

 

19          We want to make sure that we're engaging with  

 

20          constituents so that it's not a surprise and  

 

21          we've had conversations about what the impact  

 

22          is. 

 

23                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Chancellor.   

 

24          Good luck in your campaign for pope.   
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 1                 (Laughter.) 

 

 2                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair.   

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 4          Assemblywoman Dickens. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  Thank you,  

 

 6          Madam Chair.   

 

 7                 And good morning and thank you for  

 

 8          your testimony, Mr. Chancellor.  And as  

 

 9          always, I want to thank you about Wadleigh,  

 

10          for the help that you've given.  And I want  

 

11          to acknowledge your staff.  And I'm sorry  

 

12          that my colleague had so much difficulty, but  

 

13          Joyce Elly {ph} was very instrumental in  

 

14          getting me an appointment at your office with  

 

15          your deputy chancellor rather quickly, so I'm  

 

16          very grateful for that.  And I'll share with  

 

17          my colleague what is possible to happen. 

 

18                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  But I want to  

 

20          know a couple of things quickly.  What's the  

 

21          formula on school district allocation of  

 

22          funds to the individual schools?  And does  

 

23          DOE have to approve that formula or the  

 

24          allocation? 
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 1                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  So thank you,  

 

 2          Assemblywoman, for the question. 

 

 3                 We receive funding from the state as  

 

 4          well as from the city.  And we invest most of  

 

 5          that money for schools in what we call the  

 

 6          Fair Student Funding formula.  That's about a  

 

 7          $10 billion allocation.   

 

 8                 The money flows directly to schools  

 

 9          based on the needs of the students in that  

 

10          school building in that given year.  So we  

 

11          try to be as responsive to the needs of --  

 

12          the academic needs of the students.  We have  

 

13          different weights that we associate with  

 

14          special education needs, multilingual-learner  

 

15          needs, academic intervention needs, different  

 

16          grade bands, and so on.  And we adjust that  

 

17          formula once a year to account for register  

 

18          changes in those schools, and that's how we  

 

19          allocate -- most schools, the Fair Student  

 

20          Funding formula represents about two-thirds  

 

21          of their annual budget. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  Is that a  

 

23          standardized formula throughout the entire  

 

24          city, all the school districts? 
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 1                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Correct, yes.  All  

 

 2          of the community school district schools  

 

 3          receive Fair Student Funding. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  On special ed,  

 

 5          I know that we're all happy about the  

 

 6          $104 million for private schools for the deaf  

 

 7          and blind, including a base funding.   

 

 8          However, I want to know what's going on with  

 

 9          the New York School for the Deaf.  I prefer  

 

10          hearing impaired, but ... 

 

11                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Schools for -- 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  There was a  

 

13          discontinuance of $903,000 for the New York  

 

14          School for the Deaf, so I'm wondering what's  

 

15          going on there. 

 

16                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Thank you for the  

 

17          question.  I think we'll have to get back to  

 

18          you on the specifics and how that impacts. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  You'll get  

 

20          back with me on it. 

 

21                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Yes, we will. 

 

22                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  We'll get back  

 

23          to you. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  All right,  
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 1          that's some information. 

 

 2                 Also I wanted to double back on what  

 

 3          my colleague Senator Jackson said, the  

 

 4          enforcement of educational requirements has  

 

 5          not been a consistent standard.  I recognize  

 

 6          that you have attempted to try to reverse  

 

 7          some of that, and for that I wanted to thank  

 

 8          you. 

 

 9                 I want to ask you about the special ed  

 

10          waivers for certain school districts, private  

 

11          schools, BOCES, et cetera.  Why would such a  

 

12          waiver be needed? 

 

13                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  There's a myriad  

 

14          of reasons that are presented as part of the  

 

15          application for a waiver.  What we are  

 

16          actually doing is working with those schools  

 

17          to actually reduce or eliminate the waivers.   

 

18          We think all students should get the services  

 

19          that they need. 

 

20                 And part of, you know, the opportunity  

 

21          is when we engage with whether it's charters  

 

22          or private schools, they have a fundamentally  

 

23          different way of organizing instruction, so  

 

24          it's not a one-size-fits-all.  But we do  
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 1          believe that all students should receive the  

 

 2          services that are due to them, and that's  

 

 3          part of what we're doing in terms of working  

 

 4          with our colleagues. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DICKENS:  And I want to  

 

 6          thank you for trying to implement changes  

 

 7          that were badly needed and long overdue on  

 

 8          insisting that all students are able to avail  

 

 9          themselves of special ed schools. 

 

10                 Last question, zombie schools.  I know  

 

11          that there's discussion that there's a  

 

12          proposal in the Executive Budget in order to  

 

13          reissue the licenses.  However, it doesn't in  

 

14          any way really protect the zombie schools,  

 

15          and what's going to happen, I'm afraid of, is  

 

16          that these licenses will be given to the  

 

17          large charter schools that sometimes we have  

 

18          problems with.  And the zombie schools  

 

19          frequently tend to be minority-owned schools  

 

20          that actually can provide the service, the  

 

21          quality education, would have to comply with  

 

22          all standards and yet understand the cultural  

 

23          differences that are sometimes inherent in  

 

24          various districts. 
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 1                 So I'm asking that that be taken into  

 

 2          consideration, because I am very afraid that  

 

 3          the minority charters that have applied will  

 

 4          be excluded from consideration.   

 

 5                 So thank you very much. 

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you. 

 

 7                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  The Senate has  

 

 8          no more questions, so we're going to go to  

 

 9          Assemblyman Otis. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Hello, Chancellor.   

 

11          Thank you for all the testimony.   

 

12                 I want to focus in on one issue, go  

 

13          back to the Foundation Aid issue and just get  

 

14          the number that you're using for what would  

 

15          be if you were to get 100 percent Foundation  

 

16          Aid in this year, what the New York City  

 

17          schools would be getting.  And, related to  

 

18          that, what your shortfall is, what it would  

 

19          take to make up that difference.  And if you  

 

20          don't have the exact decimals, you can get  

 

21          that to us, but --  

 

22                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yeah.  It's  

 

23          $1.1 billion. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  One-point-one  
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 1          billion is what you're short. 

 

 2                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, sir. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Okay. 

 

 4                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Under the Campaign  

 

 5          for Fiscal Equity, just to clarify, that's  

 

 6          what we're owed this year. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Okay.  Okay, thank  

 

 8          you. 

 

 9                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you.   

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

11                 We go to Assemblyman Epstein.  I think  

 

12          he had to go to a committee meeting.  So  

 

13          Assemblyman Benedetto. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you,  

 

15          Chancellor, for your stamina here.  We're  

 

16          closing in on the two-hour mark.  But  

 

17          hopefully I might be the caboose here, I  

 

18          don't know.   

 

19                 (Laughter.) 

 

20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Listen, I have  

 

21          two quick questions for you.  One, I'm  

 

22          channeling the voice of one of my colleagues  

 

23          from Brooklyn, Assemblyman Bobby Carroll.  As  

 

24          you know, he has a major concern with  
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 1          dyslexia and students with dyslexia.  And  

 

 2          apparently last month there was a pilot  

 

 3          program going on in Brooklyn, in District 15,  

 

 4          where first-, second-graders, they were  

 

 5          screened for dyslexia. 

 

 6                 I guess what we're trying to find out  

 

 7          is, number one, how did that go and was it  

 

 8          done efficiently and quickly, and can that be  

 

 9          used as a template for the future?  And  

 

10          secondly, what plan does the DOE have to  

 

11          screen -- no, not screen all students, that's  

 

12          not the question.  But what plan do you have  

 

13          to use evidence-based curriculum to remediate  

 

14          these students who are at the risk of being  

 

15          dyslexic? 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So -- great  

 

17          question.  So I don't have the specifics on  

 

18          that particular aspect of the pilot, but it  

 

19          is part of our pilot.  So we will get back  

 

20          and give you an update, both to  

 

21          Assemblymember Carroll and to you, Chairman  

 

22          Benedetto, on how did that go.   

 

23                 But it's also an example of what I was  

 

24          talking about in the pilot, that we want to  
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 1          be able to test and try out and figure how  

 

 2          does this then scale at school. 

 

 3                 That being said, we're absolutely  

 

 4          committed to taking those best practices and  

 

 5          then applying them in the widest possible way  

 

 6          so that we're not letting any students fall  

 

 7          through the cracks.   

 

 8                 Also, I think it's important that as  

 

 9          I've mentioned several times during my  

 

10          testimony on a number of issues, opinion is  

 

11          opinion.  And that's okay.  But I want facts.   

 

12          So we are very committed to evidence-based  

 

13          interventions, evidence-based practices that  

 

14          are replicable.  So part of the pilot is to  

 

15          actually kick the tires on the evidence-based  

 

16          practices so that they work here in New York  

 

17          City with our students in our boroughs, so  

 

18          that when we go to the field, it makes sense  

 

19          and it's also a systemic way of solidifying  

 

20          the practice. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you. 

 

22                 Lastly, Perkins money.  I understand  

 

23          that might be a problem, that some funds were  

 

24          cut from different CTE classes throughout the  
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 1          city.  What's the status with that?  How do  

 

 2          we get back this money?  How do we comply  

 

 3          with the new regulations from the state?  And  

 

 4          I'll be asking the state themselves about how  

 

 5          we {inaudible}. 

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you, sir.   

 

 7                 I will say I'm going to ask our chief  

 

 8          financial officer to give you more detail on  

 

 9          that.  But I will tell you that we have been  

 

10          working very closely with the United  

 

11          Federation of Teachers.  They have been  

 

12          incredible partners.  And we have been  

 

13          looking to shore up our process as well so  

 

14          that we are as ready to go as possible.   

 

15                 But we will welcome your support, and  

 

16          I'll ask our chief financial officer to give  

 

17          you some detail. 

 

18                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Thank you for the  

 

19          question on this topic, sir.   

 

20                 So as you may know, the Perkins Act  

 

21          was reauthorized in 2018.  It took effect in  

 

22          2019.  The major change here that's impacting  

 

23          the amount of money coming to New York City  

 

24          is only New York State Education  
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 1          Department-approved CTE programs are now  

 

 2          eligible for this funding.   

 

 3                 So there were some schools that didn't  

 

 4          have approved programs that unfortunately  

 

 5          lost money through this grant.  Year over  

 

 6          year, the allocation that we lost is roughly  

 

 7          around $200,000.  And we are working with the  

 

 8          State Education Department to try to make  

 

 9          sure more of our schools' programs are  

 

10          approved going forward. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you.   

 

12                 Thank you very much, Ms. Chairman. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

14                 I also have a question on behalf of a  

 

15          colleague and myself, actually.  First, I  

 

16          just want to reiterate yesterday I had asked  

 

17          the mayor questions about the homeless youth  

 

18          and services in schools.  And I just want  

 

19          to -- you know, we keep hearing the service  

 

20          is provided.  I guess we'd like a little bit  

 

21          more detail on some of the services.  Because  

 

22          I do hear from my schools that when students  

 

23          come in after October, that the money doesn't  

 

24          necessarily flow to them.  Or when a new  
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 1          shelter opens, all of a sudden there's a very  

 

 2          large influx of students.   

 

 3                 So I don't know if you want to do that  

 

 4          now or, you know, at a later date because  

 

 5          it's --  

 

 6                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure, Madam  

 

 7          Chair.  So I'm going to say a couple of  

 

 8          things and I'm going to ask our CFO to give  

 

 9          you a little more detail. 

 

10                 One of the interventions that are one  

 

11          of the things that we're doing, which I'm  

 

12          very proud of and I was remiss in not  

 

13          mentioning it, is that we've made a  

 

14          $12 million additional investment in  

 

15          school-based coordinators, which we're in the  

 

16          process of hiring 107 of these school-based  

 

17          coordinators.   

 

18                 And these are in schools, they will be  

 

19          deployed in schools with the highest rates of  

 

20          homelessness.  These coordinators will  

 

21          coordinate and leverage existing DOE, city  

 

22          and community supports to address the needs  

 

23          of the students.  So this is a real direct  

 

24          intervention. 
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 1                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Thank you.  Yeah,  

 

 2          I just want to add -- happy to talk offline  

 

 3          in more detail on this topic, but both  

 

 4          students in temporary housing as well as  

 

 5          students with an IEP, the schools that serve  

 

 6          them receive a variety of different  

 

 7          allocations directly in response to their  

 

 8          specific needs.   

 

 9                 Special education funding is provided  

 

10          to schools through direct allocations, but  

 

11          also through the Fair Student Funding  

 

12          formula.  We look at the incoming registers  

 

13          for those schools every single year, make  

 

14          adjustments up or down based on their  

 

15          particular needs.  Special education is one  

 

16          of them.   

 

17                 As I mentioned earlier, we make  

 

18          adjustments midyear to schools' budgets to  

 

19          account for changes in special education  

 

20          need, multilingual learners are up and down,  

 

21          and registers in general.  We do that in  

 

22          midyear.  And that, I think, is about as  

 

23          responsive as we can get to the real-time  

 

24          change of students' needs in schools.   
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 1                 And again, very happy -- this is a  

 

 2          complicated topic.  Very happy to go into  

 

 3          detail with you offline. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Is the midyear  

 

 5          readjustment something that's relatively new?   

 

 6                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  No, ma'am, that's  

 

 7          a process that's been going on for quite some  

 

 8          time.  It's part of our Fair Student Funding  

 

 9          formula. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Because one of  

 

11          my local principals had said that when you  

 

12          get new students from a homeless shelter  

 

13          after October -- now, this is going back two  

 

14          years ago that we had this conversation --  

 

15          the funding -- he doesn't get additional  

 

16          funding for those students, and they do have  

 

17          special needs and attentions. 

 

18                 So I'm very happy to hear about the  

 

19          new coordinators that will be placed in those  

 

20          schools.  It should help that. 

 

21                 And then a question that both  

 

22          Assemblywoman Simon and I and others are  

 

23          interested in -- and again, we had these  

 

24          conversations with the mayor, and there has  
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 1          been some conversations relating to Carter  

 

 2          cases.  I guess the basic question is, why is  

 

 3          DOE still fighting Carter cases after the  

 

 4          mayor announced six years ago the city would  

 

 5          stop fighting these?  Each year it drives up  

 

 6          costs of litigation, impartial hearing  

 

 7          officer times the hiring of the new lawyers  

 

 8          in funds, and it takes -- can take a long  

 

 9          time to repay the parents.  And according to  

 

10          my colleague, specialized schools are  

 

11          refusing to take children who need DOE  

 

12          funding because the process takes up so much  

 

13          time.  And my understanding is that Churchill  

 

14          just announced this policy.   

 

15                 So I know you mentioned there's  

 

16          additional lawyers.  The mayor talked  

 

17          yesterday about the large amount of special  

 

18          ed funding.  But it's really the process  

 

19          we're talking about to get from the beginning  

 

20          to the end and how we can resolve some of  

 

21          these delays. 

 

22                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So I appreciate  

 

23          the question, Madam Chair.  So as an  

 

24          educator, as the chancellor of the New York  
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 1          City Department of Education, I don't want my  

 

 2          students shipped anywhere else to be served.   

 

 3          We should serve our students in our system. 

 

 4                 So what we're attempting to do is to  

 

 5          create the system, to reinvent the system, to  

 

 6          reengineer the system so that the services  

 

 7          that families feel they need outside of the  

 

 8          system, they don't need to go outside of the  

 

 9          system. 

 

10                 Concomitantly, we are also then  

 

11          working on this backlog of families that have  

 

12          felt they needed their services outside of  

 

13          the system.  So there are two parts of the  

 

14          same whole.  And we're working on both of  

 

15          those at the same time. 

 

16                 So the Carter case issue is -- I would  

 

17          love to get to a point one day where our  

 

18          families in New York City say, I don't need  

 

19          to go outside of the DOE, I can get what I  

 

20          need in my community without a long bus ride,  

 

21          and I feel confident my student's getting  

 

22          what they need.  That's the North Star for  

 

23          us. 

 

24                 In the meantime, as we work to make  
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 1          that a reality, there are these backlogs.   

 

 2          And there are this -- we will engage in the  

 

 3          IEP process of what is the best for the  

 

 4          student and what are the services for the  

 

 5          students.  So they're two parts of the same  

 

 6          whole, and it's the best way I can describe  

 

 7          what we're trying to accomplish.  But the  

 

 8          North Star would be that parents would not  

 

 9          have to see the need of going outside of the  

 

10          school system -- the DOE -- to get the  

 

11          services that they need for their students. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

13                 And during the time we've spoken,  

 

14          Assemblyman Epstein has returned from his  

 

15          committee obligation, so we go to him for a  

 

16          question. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN EPSTEIN:  Thank you, Madam  

 

18          Chair.   

 

19                 Thank you, Chancellor, for being here  

 

20          and for all you do.   

 

21                 I want to talk to you briefly, a  

 

22          question about after-school and diversity  

 

23          admissions.  Like we've seen in some of our  

 

24          schools when we're trying to create diversity  
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 1          in our schools, when they don't have full,  

 

 2          free after-school programs, it really  

 

 3          inhibits the opportunity to promote  

 

 4          diversity.   

 

 5                 I'm wondering about ensuring that all  

 

 6          kids who are Title I families have access to  

 

 7          free after-school programs and how we're  

 

 8          going to ensure that happens in all our  

 

 9          schools across the system. 

 

10                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  So thank you,  

 

11          Assemblymember Epstein, and thank you for  

 

12          that question. 

 

13                 And I hope you don't think that I'm  

 

14          being facetious, but it's just a matter of  

 

15          money.  That's been a recurring theme all  

 

16          morning.   

 

17                 The children of New York City are owed  

 

18          $1.1 billion.  With that $1.1 billion, we've  

 

19          talked about the number of adults that we  

 

20          could hire, the class sizes that we could  

 

21          reduce, the wraparound services we could  

 

22          provide.  But one of the other things that we  

 

23          could do is to have much more robust  

 

24          after-school programming, enrichment  
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 1          programming.  We could also have fine arts in  

 

 2          every one of our schools.  Imagine that, fine  

 

 3          arts in every school by the virtue of you go  

 

 4          to an elementary or middle school in New York  

 

 5          City.   

 

 6                 We currently, under the current  

 

 7          funding structure, do not have the ability to  

 

 8          offer that, ubiquitously.  So what ends up  

 

 9          happening is that parent communities come  

 

10          together and through PTA funding or through  

 

11          other resources, are able to then fund that.   

 

12          I think that that's not okay.  I think that  

 

13          that should be just the basic part of the  

 

14          essential experiences that every student has,  

 

15          including a very robust enrichment  

 

16          after-school experience.   

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN EPSTEIN:  So you're saying  

 

18          if there were more resources, every child who  

 

19          wanted free after-school could get it if they  

 

20          were income-eligible for a free after-school  

 

21          program? 

 

22                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Yes, sir. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN EPSTEIN:  That's good to  

 

24          hear.   
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 1                 I want to talk to you about students  

 

 2          who opt out of standardized testing.  And  

 

 3          we've seen in some of my schools in my  

 

 4          district have a high percentage of opt-outs,  

 

 5          and then the school is considered potentially  

 

 6          a failing school who gets extra support and  

 

 7          monitoring.  And I'm wondering how you allow  

 

 8          parents to support their decision to opt out  

 

 9          from standardized testing, but then you  

 

10          punish the school when high numbers of  

 

11          schools are doing that.  And what solutions  

 

12          can we have to ensure that those parents who  

 

13          are making, you know, educational decisions  

 

14          for their children aren't really punishing  

 

15          the students at school as a whole? 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you,  

 

17          Mr. Epstein.   

 

18                 So again, I fundamentally believe that  

 

19          parents have the right to make decisions that  

 

20          they feel are good for their students --  

 

21          except when it comes to the public health.   

 

22          Then if you're going to be with other  

 

23          students, we need to take care of that social  

 

24          compact:  Everybody's safe. 
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 1                 But I will say we do not issue  

 

 2          those -- and I want to be really clear here  

 

 3          because I don't want this to seem like it's a  

 

 4          dig at the State Education Department.  We  

 

 5          have an exceptional relationship with Interim  

 

 6          Commissioner Tahoe and her staff, an  

 

 7          exceptional relationship with Chancellor  

 

 8          Rosa.  We are working hand-in-glove with  

 

 9          them.   

 

10                 But the state, by its responsibility,  

 

11          issues those CSI/TSI designations.  Now, when  

 

12          a school has an inordinate or over a certain  

 

13          amount of students that opt out, they fall  

 

14          into that category.  What I can say, though,  

 

15          is working closely with the SED, we have  

 

16          appealed on behalf of a number of those  

 

17          schools, and they have granted our appeal.   

 

18          Because it doesn't make sense that a school  

 

19          that is functioning at a very high level all  

 

20          of a sudden has this added layer of scrutiny  

 

21          because parents exercise their right to opt  

 

22          out. 

 

23                 Now, while I respect the right, I will  

 

24          also say to parents it's, I think -- if  
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 1          students must master standards over the  

 

 2          course of the year and the state says that  

 

 3          this is what students will learn in the 3rd,  

 

 4          4th, 5th, 6th, 7th, 8th grade, then why  

 

 5          wouldn't a parent want to know, did my child  

 

 6          actually master those standards over the  

 

 7          course of the year?  It's good information.   

 

 8                 But again, I respect the right of  

 

 9          parents, but I also encourage parents to --  

 

10          this is good information for you to have,  

 

11          it's good information for us to have as well. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYMAN EPSTEIN:  And I appreciate  

 

13          that, Chancellor.  We will probably agree to  

 

14          disagree on that provision, knowing that  

 

15          testing 7-, 8-, and 9-year-olds on  

 

16          high-stakes tests really does, you know,  

 

17          social and emotional damage, I believe, to  

 

18          children.  And I saw it with both my kids  

 

19          when we opted them out of standardized  

 

20          testing.   

 

21                 So I appreciate your concern and  

 

22          understand the system-wide issues, but we may  

 

23          have a longer conversation offline about  

 

24          that. 
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 1                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Sure. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYMAN EPSTEIN:  The last  

 

 3          question is around transportation issues for  

 

 4          high school.  I know I only have 20 seconds  

 

 5          left, but we've seen a lot of students and  

 

 6          I've heard from a lot of students who have  

 

 7          after-school programs, evening programs, and  

 

 8          8:30 -- when they have their MetroCard, 8:30  

 

 9          isn't really the appropriate time.  I've  

 

10          heard from students who say, I can't join a  

 

11          club, can't go to after-school because I  

 

12          can't afford to come home on my own.  I wish  

 

13          we could resolve that for all those thousands  

 

14          of students who need transportation justice  

 

15          in New York City. 

 

16                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Let's work  

 

17          together, sir.  Happy to do that. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN EPSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  So I think  

 

20          class is dismissed.   

 

21                 (Laughter.)  

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  You are -- you  

 

23          know, thank you for spending the time with us  

 

24          answering questions.  To the extent that  
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 1          there's any follow-up, we'd be happy -- you  

 

 2          know, we'll be sure to circulate it with the  

 

 3          members.  Thank you.   

 

 4                 CHANCELLOR CARRANZA:  Thank you very  

 

 5          much.  Thank you. 

 

 6                 NYC DOE CFO OATES:  Thank you. 

 

 7                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  After the  

 

 9          chancellor leaves, we'll be hearing from the  

 

10          New York State Education Department, Interim  

 

11          Commissioner Shannon Tahoe. 

 

12                 (Pause.) 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Just everybody  

 

14          settle down.   

 

15                 Feel free to begin. 

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Good  

 

17          morning, Chairs Krueger, Weinstein, Mayer and  

 

18          Benedetto, and members of the Senate and  

 

19          Assembly here today.  My name is Shannon  

 

20          Tahoe, and I am the Interim Commissioner of  

 

21          Education.  I am joined at the table today by  

 

22          Senior Deputy Commissioner of P-20 John  

 

23          D'Agati; Chief Financial Officer Phyllis  

 

24          Morris; Deputy Commissioner for the Office of  
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 1          P-12 Kim Wilkins, and Assistant Commissioner  

 

 2          for the Office of Special Education  

 

 3          Christopher Suriano. 

 

 4                 I want to welcome Chancellor Rosa and  

 

 5          other members of the Board of Regents who are  

 

 6          here today.   

 

 7                 You have my full testimony before you.   

 

 8                 Our 2020-2021 state aid proposal would  

 

 9          provide much-needed resources for school  

 

10          districts to maintain their base operations  

 

11          and educational programs while allowing for  

 

12          expansions in priority areas.  To foster  

 

13          education and equity for all students, as you  

 

14          can see on Slide 2, the Board of Regents  

 

15          continues to advocate for the full phase-in  

 

16          of the Foundation Aid formula over a  

 

17          three-year period, with a $1.9 billion  

 

18          increase this year. 

 

19                 The Regents' state aid proposal would  

 

20          also provide an increase of $82 million for  

 

21          reimbursement-based aids such as Building,  

 

22          BOCES, and Transportation Aids, and most  

 

23          important, would maintain the current  

 

24          reimbursement formulas. 

 

 



                                                                   157 

 

 1                 We were once again happy to see the  

 

 2          Executive's proposed $15 million for pre-K in  

 

 3          the budget.  As you can see on Slide 3,  

 

 4          consistent with our recommendations of the  

 

 5          Regents Early Childhood Blue Ribbon  

 

 6          Committee, our state aid proposal seeks to  

 

 7          further expand pre-K programs by a total of  

 

 8          $26 million.  This additional funding would  

 

 9          add 2,000 new slots for 4-year-olds statewide  

 

10          and start pilot programs to create a single  

 

11          reimbursement structure for pre-K inclusion  

 

12          programs serving preschool students with  

 

13          disabilities in classrooms with their peers. 

 

14                 We ask the Legislature to actively  

 

15          support the department's priority funding  

 

16          request to be able to continue Phase 2 of  

 

17          modernizing our state aid data system, on  

 

18          Slide 17.  As many of you know, our state aid  

 

19          staff use this antiquated and labor-intensive  

 

20          system to produce the state aid runs which  

 

21          everyone here, as well as your school  

 

22          districts, depend on. 

 

23                 Slides 6 through 29 provide you with  

 

24          an overview of our Regents' budget and  
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 1          legislative priorities to ensure equity in  

 

 2          education for all children.  I will highlight  

 

 3          a few of the Regents' priorities.   

 

 4                 Building upon the critical $2 million  

 

 5          investment in the Supportive Schools Grant  

 

 6          Program, on Slide 8, our $3.4 million  

 

 7          proposal would build healthy, supportive and  

 

 8          safe learning environments for students and  

 

 9          educators, encourage strong social-emotional  

 

10          learning skills, provide mental health  

 

11          support for all students by increasing the  

 

12          capacity of our department staff and  

 

13          Technical Assistance Center to provide  

 

14          training and support for schools, and  

 

15          increase the Supportive Schools Grant Program  

 

16          to provide resources and assistance to a  

 

17          total of 32 schools. 

 

18                 Another top priority area of our  

 

19          Regents and the department continues to be  

 

20          ensuring that students with disabilities are  

 

21          provided with a free, appropriate public  

 

22          education in the least restrictive  

 

23          environment.  We are working closely with  

 

24          school districts such as New York City to  
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 1          ensure they are working toward meeting the  

 

 2          requirements in their compliance assurance  

 

 3          plans to better serve these students.   

 

 4                 On Slides 11 and 12, we propose  

 

 5          increases in funding and special education  

 

 6          rate-setting reforms, as well as expanding  

 

 7          resources to promote teacher recruitment and  

 

 8          retention.  The department also continues to  

 

 9          work on a multiyear plan to create a special  

 

10          education provider data system that will  

 

11          better track student needs, program  

 

12          availability, and provider reimbursement. 

 

13                 Another top priority of our Regents is  

 

14          to support our English language learners, or  

 

15          ELLs, by increasing school district capacity  

 

16          to serve and support these students, as well  

 

17          as enhancing communication with ELL students,  

 

18          their families, and professionals.  As found  

 

19          on Slide 13, $15 million in proposed grant  

 

20          funding would supplement and increase the  

 

21          ability of our school districts to provide  

 

22          quality instruction, support and services to  

 

23          New York State's approximately 270,000 ELLs. 

 

24                 On Slide 14, the department requests  
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 1          $1.6 million to expand the department's  

 

 2          Regional Bilingual Education Resource  

 

 3          Network, our RBERNs, and Statewide Language  

 

 4          Support Center. 

 

 5                 Finally, due to resource constraints,  

 

 6          the department is not currently able to  

 

 7          translate certain documents into languages  

 

 8          other than English.  This limits the  

 

 9          educational awareness of families and their  

 

10          students who do not speak English as their  

 

11          primary language.  To address this critical  

 

12          need, on Slide 28, the Regents have requested  

 

13          $1.5 million in additional funding to  

 

14          translate informational and guidance  

 

15          documents into multiple languages, to better  

 

16          support and serve ELLs and their families in  

 

17          the languages that they best understand. 

 

18                 These ELL-related funding requests  

 

19          would help the department and districts  

 

20          increase English language proficiency and  

 

21          academic content gains of ELL students, as  

 

22          well as reduce dropout rates and increase  

 

23          graduation rates.   

 

24                 Restoration of the Governor's  
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 1          $1.5 million cut to adult literacy aid is  

 

 2          also so very critical.  Adult literacy  

 

 3          programs assist individuals in becoming  

 

 4          literate and obtaining the knowledge and  

 

 5          skills necessary for employment and  

 

 6          self-sufficiency.  These adults are often  

 

 7          parents and guardians themselves and need to  

 

 8          obtain the skills necessary to become full  

 

 9          partners in the educational development of  

 

10          their children.   

 

11                 Our ability to enhance educational  

 

12          opportunities goes beyond traditional  

 

13          education settings.  The department's Office  

 

14          of Cultural Education oversees museums, the  

 

15          State Archives and libraries.  On Slide 24,  

 

16          we request that you enact the Museum  

 

17          Education Act and provide $5 million to  

 

18          support students living in low-income  

 

19          communities in urban, suburban and rural  

 

20          settings to access these rich resources in  

 

21          museums and cultural institutions across this  

 

22          great state. 

 

23                 Support of our libraries benefits  

 

24          New Yorkers of all ages through  
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 1          state-of-the-state technology, book and  

 

 2          material delivery, shared e-resources and  

 

 3          community engagement, including supporting  

 

 4          the 2020 Census efforts.   

 

 5                 As you can see on Slide 25, your  

 

 6          investment in the Library Construction  

 

 7          Program over the years has improved public  

 

 8          library facilities throughout the state so  

 

 9          that they are safe, accessible and efficient.   

 

10          Restoring the proposed $20 million cut is  

 

11          essential.  The Regents' proposal goes even  

 

12          further and requests an additional  

 

13          $11 million over last year's funding level. 

 

14                 Finally, on Slide 26, we again ask  

 

15          that you implement a 5 percent set-aside for  

 

16          the department to administer and oversee any  

 

17          new education-related proposals.  An  

 

18          administrative set-aside is common practice  

 

19          at the federal level and in many other  

 

20          states.   

 

21                 This set-aside provision, or  

 

22          additional funding for the department, is  

 

23          needed to allow us to keep our growing  

 

24          responsibilities and support your school  
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 1          districts.  This includes the review and  

 

 2          approval of Smart Schools investment plans or  

 

 3          providing the department with the Technical  

 

 4          Assistance Center needed to oversee our  

 

 5          ever-expanding P-TECH and Early College  

 

 6          High School programs. 

 

 7                 Additional staff and resources are  

 

 8          also needed to successfully implement the  

 

 9          monitor legislation that was just enacted for  

 

10          Wyandanch and Hempstead, as well as proposed  

 

11          for Rochester, and to implement Erin's Law  

 

12          and other needed health-related requirements  

 

13          and regulatory updates. 

 

14                 The agenda that I have laid out today  

 

15          includes proposals to provide resources to  

 

16          our high-needs school districts to ensure  

 

17          equity and education for all students, fund  

 

18          critical investments in early childhood  

 

19          education, build healthy, supportive and safe  

 

20          learning environments for our students and  

 

21          their educators, enhance programming and  

 

22          services for our students with disabilities,  

 

23          support ELL students, invest in our adult  

 

24          education programs, and ensure our libraries,  
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 1          which are often the hub of a community, are  

 

 2          safe, accessible and efficient. 

 

 3                 We want to thank you again, especially  

 

 4          Speaker Heastie, for the investments made in  

 

 5          the My Brother's Keeper program.  Our  

 

 6          educators and students can continue to rise  

 

 7          to the challenge.  However, they need your  

 

 8          help to do so, especially in these  

 

 9          financially challenging times.  Our P-12  

 

10          programs are the most important  

 

11          infrastructure to develop our workforce and  

 

12          workforce pipeline, and ultimately it is our  

 

13          best economic development investment. 

 

14                 Let's work together to make sure this  

 

15          budget provides the resources necessary for  

 

16          all New York State students to succeed.   

 

17                 Thank you, and I look forward to your  

 

18          questions. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

20          your testimony and your prepared remarks. 

 

21                 And we'd like to go to Assemblyman  

 

22          Benedetto, chair of our Education Committee. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  I think I'm  

 

24          on.  Thank you. 
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 1                 Commissioner, Acting Interim  

 

 2          Commissioner, welcome.  And I've only heard  

 

 3          very good things.  And I know it's not an  

 

 4          easy job to have, especially as an acting  

 

 5          commissioner, and we thank you for your  

 

 6          service in this area.  

 

 7                 A few questions, though.  Please, I  

 

 8          asked the chancellor -- perhaps you heard --  

 

 9          about Perkins funding.  Now, as I understand  

 

10          it, and correct me if I'm wrong, some new  

 

11          regulations came down from the federal  

 

12          government just within the past year, the  

 

13          state tried to implement them and  

 

14          consequently, because of that, New York City  

 

15          is losing a couple of million dollars in  

 

16          Perkins funding -- a small amount when you  

 

17          take into the larger budget, but not for the  

 

18          classes and the students that this affects. 

 

19                 Is there any way that we can solve  

 

20          this problem with New York City and get them  

 

21          back into the scheme of getting those  

 

22          $2 million and saving a lot of these  

 

23          problems, that can be done fairly easily?  I  

 

24          don't know.  And that's the question. 
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 1                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Our  

 

 2          Perkins funding, one of the things that we  

 

 3          had to ensure is that we are only receiving  

 

 4          and approving approved programs, and that's  

 

 5          because we want to ensure accountability,  

 

 6          make sure they meet the federal Perkins loan  

 

 7          requirements.  And this is something we've  

 

 8          been working with the city on. 

 

 9                 I'll turn it over to our deputy  

 

10          commissioner for P-12, Kim Wilkins, to talk  

 

11          specifically about what happened in New York  

 

12          City. 

 

13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  Thank  

 

14          you for the question. 

 

15                 We actually are not losing any money  

 

16          for Perkins as it pertains to the Department  

 

17          of Education in New York City.  So at this  

 

18          point we actually invoke the deadline to get  

 

19          your Perkins V applications in as of  

 

20          November 1st.  So what ends up happening, if  

 

21          you miss the deadline, you have to then go  

 

22          into the next year, which would be 2020. 

 

23                 So there is no losing of money for any  

 

24          of our districts.  They have a pot that  
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 1          they're actually going to be secured with.   

 

 2          This is a matter of getting your application  

 

 3          in for the Perkins V. 

 

 4                 Now, for CTE programs, they're  

 

 5          rolling.  So whenever you send the  

 

 6          application in, we get the application and  

 

 7          the application is processed.  Again, you  

 

 8          have to make sure the application is complete  

 

 9          and all the I's are dotted and the T's are  

 

10          crossed.  But at this point there is no  

 

11          funding loss. 

 

12                 But we can get more information to you  

 

13          about Perkins V at this point.  But there's  

 

14          two tracks, again, CTE programs being  

 

15          approved and then there's Perkins V.  But  

 

16          there is a federal deadline because all  

 

17          Perkins V must do a needs assessment that  

 

18          takes around four to five months, so you have  

 

19          to have it done by April.  So that's why  

 

20          there's a November 1st deadline for that.  So  

 

21          we can get more information for you on that,  

 

22          though. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  So you can  

 

24          approve those programs in about four to five  
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 1          months, you say? 

 

 2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  No, no,  

 

 3          no, I'm so sorry.  The four to five months is  

 

 4          for the needs assessment.  And then once that  

 

 5          needs assessment goes through, you go ahead  

 

 6          into the next line. 

 

 7                 The bottom line is that the  

 

 8          November 1, 2019, deadline, we're trying to  

 

 9          release the money by July 1st of 2020.  So  

 

10          there's all kind of steps that you have to do  

 

11          in between there.  But all applications must  

 

12          be to us, and we're actually approving them  

 

13          in usually less than 45 days.  Once they get  

 

14          through that application process. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Okay, thank  

 

16          you. 

 

17                 I also asked the chancellor this  

 

18          morning, in regards to our 4410 schools,  

 

19          4201 schools, our 853 schools and the pay  

 

20          parity that's just not there, and they're  

 

21          losing teachers left and right.  Can we offer  

 

22          any hope to these schools?  Because so many  

 

23          of them are hanging by a thread right now,  

 

24          you know, surviving, because of the loss of  
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 1          teachers and so on. 

 

 2                 So please, enlighten me. 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So we  

 

 4          agree with you.  The 4410 schools need  

 

 5          additional funding to support their students.   

 

 6          That's why we're asking for parity in funding  

 

 7          to our school-age programs.  That's one of  

 

 8          the Regents' priority bills.  We're also  

 

 9          asking for an additional $6 million to  

 

10          support preschool inclusion programs.   

 

11                 We're also asking for additional  

 

12          funding for teacher forgiveness programs and  

 

13          teacher pipeline programs to ensure that  

 

14          students with disabilities are able to have,  

 

15          you know, some teacher loan forgiveness or  

 

16          provide pipelines so that they -- for them to  

 

17          go in those special ed schools, the 853s, the  

 

18          state-supported schools. 

 

19                 We're also asking for a tuition  

 

20          rate-setting -- we're asking for an  

 

21          additional funding of $1.2 million to have --  

 

22          to take another look at our tuition  

 

23          rate-setting for our 853s, our Special Acts  

 

24          and our special ed schools. 
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 1                 So we agree with you, additional  

 

 2          funding is needed for those programs. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you on  

 

 4          that. 

 

 5                 I have a bill out there, it's a  

 

 6          wellness bill, okay, to bring a unified,  

 

 7          coordinated wellness program in the State of  

 

 8          New York to all school districts and  

 

 9          consequently to all schools.  As I understand  

 

10          it -- and I'm just searching for answers  

 

11          here -- there should be a wellness officer on  

 

12          the State Education Department level.  Do we  

 

13          have a line for that?  As I understand that,  

 

14          we do, but it hasn't been filled in 10 years. 

 

15                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

16          right. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Am I getting  

 

18          correct information there? 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

20          correct.  We are in deep need of a health  

 

21          associate or a health advisor.  We have been  

 

22          asking for this for a number of years.  We've  

 

23          been getting a lot of health-related bills  

 

24          from the Legislature, and we really need  

 

 



                                                                   171 

 

 1          someone to support those, including like our  

 

 2          comprehensive sex ed policies and things of  

 

 3          that nature.  To move forward with some of  

 

 4          these things, we really need a health  

 

 5          associate.  So thank you. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  So what's the  

 

 7          problem in getting it? 

 

 8                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We  

 

 9          haven't had the ability for the funding for  

 

10          the position. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Money is the  

 

12          problem. 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes,  

 

14          money is the problem.  Thank you. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  It's a  

 

16          universal cry. 

 

17                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

18          it's everyone's problem. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Yes indeed. 

 

20                 And of course my last question has to  

 

21          do with curriculum mandates.  I have an awful  

 

22          lot of curriculum bills in my committee, and  

 

23          to tell you the truth, I generally hold them  

 

24          up because it's my contention that underneath  
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 1          the state regulations, the state description  

 

 2          of what curriculum should be taught in the  

 

 3          schools, most of these concerns that people  

 

 4          have, for instance with civics education,  

 

 5          wellness, like I just brought up -- but  

 

 6          almost anything else -- is probably included  

 

 7          within the state guidelines as it is. 

 

 8                 Would you agree on that? 

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I would  

 

10          have to take a look at the specific bill.   

 

11          But as you know, curriculum decisions rest  

 

12          with the local school districts.  The  

 

13          department is responsible for developing the  

 

14          standards, and then we defer to the local  

 

15          school districts to develop the curriculum to  

 

16          meet the needs of the standards. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  And so  

 

18          ultimately I should be advising my committee  

 

19          members and my colleagues who do put these  

 

20          bills in, to go see their local  

 

21          superintendents and plead their case with  

 

22          them to enhance their curriculum in these  

 

23          particular areas to include this curriculum  

 

24          mandate that they wish. 
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 1                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

 2          correct.  The only thing I would say with  

 

 3          respect to civic education and the Governor's  

 

 4          proposal on civic education, that's something  

 

 5          that we and the Board of Regents support,  

 

 6          civic education for kids from grade K to 12,  

 

 7          and ensuring that they know what their  

 

 8          responsibilities are in society, including  

 

 9          providing community service, the right to  

 

10          vote, ensuring that they know and they  

 

11          celebrate and tolerate diversity.  These are  

 

12          things that we also embrace by the Board of  

 

13          Regents and the department.  We just believe  

 

14          that the -- we would develop the standards  

 

15          for civic education, but then it would be the  

 

16          responsibility of the local school districts  

 

17          to develop the curriculum for that. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Exactly.  And  

 

19          the standards -- I used to be a social  

 

20          studies teacher before I became special  

 

21          education, and I would think today it would  

 

22          be particularly important that there be put  

 

23          into the standards in some fashion some sort  

 

24          of critical thinking for students, to better  
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 1          analyze newspapers, better analyze the social  

 

 2          media that is out there so they can come up  

 

 3          with sane decisions on what they should do in  

 

 4          the civic-political process.   

 

 5                 Do you believe that there should be  

 

 6          maybe new curriculum standards being put out? 

 

 7                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

 8          that we would revise our social studies  

 

 9          standards to essentially develop what you're  

 

10          saying and incorporate our civic education  

 

11          into those social studies standards.   

 

12                 And I agree with you completely on  

 

13          making sure that addresses the social media,  

 

14          all the newspaper -- things of civic  

 

15          engagement, including the right to vote,  

 

16          community -- and making sure that they do  

 

17          community service and know that they're  

 

18          supposed to give back to their communities.   

 

19          These are things that we believe that  

 

20          children of today are missing or that they  

 

21          really need from right when they start  

 

22          kindergarten all the way through. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Yeah.  And if  

 

24          you're going to revise the standards, be it  
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 1          in what we just mentioned or any other --  

 

 2          health and so on -- what would the cost be,  

 

 3          approximately, to the state?  Because I  

 

 4          assume there will be a cost. 

 

 5                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I would  

 

 6          have to get back to you on the cost for that,  

 

 7          Assemblymember.  But yes, there would  

 

 8          definitely be a cost. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Okay.  It  

 

10          would help us if we want to put together a  

 

11          budget and include certain ideas where it has  

 

12          to be revised, so we know how much to throw  

 

13          into the budget kitty. 

 

14                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I have my  

 

15          chief financial officer here, and she's  

 

16          writing this down right now. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Cool.  Thank  

 

18          you very much for your time and your answers. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

20                 We've been joined by Assemblywoman  

 

21          Nolan and Assemblywoman Jean-Pierre. 

 

22                 We go to the Senate. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  I think we  

 

24          already listed all the Senators here, but our  

 

 



                                                                   176 

 

 1          first will be Senator Shelley Mayer, chair of  

 

 2          Education. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  Good morning. 

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Good  

 

 5          morning. 

 

 6                 SENATOR MAYER:  Or good afternoon.   

 

 7          And thank you, Interim Commissioner, for  

 

 8          jumping in with both feet into this  

 

 9          complicated world of education.  Thank you  

 

10          for your leadership already -- very much  

 

11          appreciated. 

 

12                 I want to focus on Foundation Aid.   

 

13          The Regents made a proposal, $1.9 billion  

 

14          should have been the add for this year.  The  

 

15          Executive proposal is $504 million in  

 

16          Foundation Aid.  As you know, with my  

 

17          colleagues, we've been around the state  

 

18          talking to school districts not only about  

 

19          what they're owed but what they need in order  

 

20          to provide beyond a sound, basic education --  

 

21          a quality education to these students  

 

22          throughout the state. 

 

23                 What do you believe -- have you  

 

24          quantified the impact, were the Executive  
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 1          proposal to be adopted, of what would  

 

 2          actually be the impact in districts  

 

 3          throughout the state, both urban, suburban  

 

 4          and rural, of the failure to fully fund and  

 

 5          phase in the Foundation Aid formula? 

 

 6                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We're  

 

 7          very concerned with the Executive proposal.   

 

 8          One of the things we're concerned with is the  

 

 9          recategorization of the expense-based aids  

 

10          into the Foundation Aid formula, particularly  

 

11          when we're, you know, inserting things like  

 

12          BOCES Aid and Special Services Aid.  We're  

 

13          worried about our CTE program and the effect  

 

14          that's going to have on our CTE programs  

 

15          across the state, for example, when you start  

 

16          to reduce the amount of reimbursable aids.   

 

17          If those costs go up, you know, they won't be  

 

18          reimbursed for those, they will essentially  

 

19          be held flat as part of their Foundation Aid  

 

20          formulas. 

 

21                 We're also concerned, obviously, with  

 

22          the 504 as opposed to our $1.9 billion.   

 

23          That's a great disparity as well.  We're also  

 

24          concerned with the reductions in Building Aid  
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 1          and Transportation Aid.  This is going to  

 

 2          greatly impact our school districts.   

 

 3                 So we're advocating, again, for the  

 

 4          $1.9 billion increase with a three-year  

 

 5          phase-in of the Foundation Aid formula. 

 

 6                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you. 

 

 7                 You know, some people have suggested  

 

 8          that these reimbursable aids amount to a  

 

 9          credit card for districts.  My experience,  

 

10          certainly representing Yonkers and many other  

 

11          districts, is that SED actively reviews,  

 

12          challenges and then does not fully reimburse  

 

13          for many expenses -- it's based both on a  

 

14          formula and also what your staff agrees is  

 

15          appropriate for these reimbursable aids. 

 

16                 Am I correct in saying that these  

 

17          reimbursable aids, in the first place, have  

 

18          to be paid first by the district -- that's  

 

19          the nature of reimbursement -- 

 

20                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

21          right. 

 

22                 SENATOR MAYER:  -- they have to have  

 

23          the cash to pay it -- and, secondly, that  

 

24          your department is very assiduous in making  

 

 



                                                                   179 

 

 1          sure that these are legitimate expenses that  

 

 2          are authorized under the law? 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

 4          correct, Senator. 

 

 5                 SENATOR MAYER:  The next thing is you  

 

 6          mentioned the consolidation of expense-based  

 

 7          aids into the formula as proposed by the  

 

 8          Executive, and particularly the impact on  

 

 9          BOCES and CTE, which are among the top  

 

10          concerns of many districts. 

 

11                 Has SED quantified what would be the  

 

12          potential loss to districts if these aids  

 

13          were consolidated under Foundation Aid? 

 

14                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I don't  

 

15          think we've quantified that yet, since the  

 

16          budget just came out.  But that's something  

 

17          that we can certainly try to do for your  

 

18          office. 

 

19                 SENATOR MAYER:  That would be very  

 

20          helpful.  Because I think it's very important  

 

21          for districts to understand the real-life  

 

22          consequences if these aids were included  

 

23          within Foundation Aid.   

 

24                 Then you mentioned the cap that the  
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 1          executive proposed on Building Aid and  

 

 2          Transportation Aid.  Could you explain what  

 

 3          you think without, obviously, doing all the  

 

 4          detailed analysis, of what that would mean, a  

 

 5          cap for, for example, a district that has  

 

 6          already issued a bond and is paying back and  

 

 7          has budgeted the expense of paying back that  

 

 8          bond, or expenses related to Building Aid, or  

 

 9          entered into a contract with a bus company  

 

10          that is multiple years going forward? 

 

11                 What is the impact of capping that aid  

 

12          going to be on districts? 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Without  

 

14          doing a detailed analysis, I mean, with a  

 

15          cap, obviously, it reduces the amount that  

 

16          they can claim reimbursement for, which will  

 

17          provide an overall reduction for those  

 

18          districts. 

 

19                 SENATOR MAYER:  Let me switch to the  

 

20          issue of full-day pre-K, which again, you  

 

21          know, I think many of us are very pleased  

 

22          with the commitment of SED to fully funding  

 

23          full-day pre-K. 

 

24                 What is your estimate of what it would  
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 1          cost to fully fund full-day pre-K for  

 

 2          4-year-olds for districts that choose?   

 

 3          Obviously the funding we have given so far  

 

 4          has been inadequate.  Many districts that  

 

 5          want it have not been successful in obtaining  

 

 6          it, and other districts have it only for a  

 

 7          limited number of students. 

 

 8                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Well,  

 

 9          we're asking for an additional $20 million,  

 

10          which would get us to 70 percent of the pre-K  

 

11          slots filled.  So I don't know what the  

 

12          additional 30 percent would be, but we can  

 

13          certainly get those numbers for your office. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  So your ask is for  

 

15          70 percent of what you think the capacity or  

 

16          the need is? 

 

17                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Correct. 

 

18                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  One issue that  

 

19          doesn't fall squarely in SED but is very  

 

20          important to school districts is the  

 

21          Governor's or the Executive proposal to  

 

22          basically no longer pay for the cost of  

 

23          residential placements for students with IEPs  

 

24          who are not able to be educated in a school  
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 1          and need to be in a residential placement. 

 

 2                 I realize this has traditionally not  

 

 3          been in your bailiwick, but the fact is from  

 

 4          a school district's perspective, this is an  

 

 5          absolute crisis they're extremely concerned  

 

 6          about, and they have made their voices heard. 

 

 7                 Have you analyzed the impact of that? 

 

 8                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, and  

 

 9          I'll turn this over to Phyllis Morris, our  

 

10          chief financial officer, on that. 

 

11                 SED CFO MORRIS:  Thank you. 

 

12                 Yes, we have taken a look at that.   

 

13          And our estimates are -- the Executive Budget  

 

14          assumes 26 million statewide outside New York  

 

15          City for this change.  It's basically a cost  

 

16          shift to school districts, and it would  

 

17          negatively impact the Big 4.  Yonkers, it  

 

18          would be over a $500,000 annual cost shift;  

 

19          Syracuse, about $140,000 annually; Rochester,  

 

20          over $300,000 annually; and Buffalo, close to  

 

21          $270,000 annually. 

 

22                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  It would  

 

23          be great if you could share that. 

 

24                 And for districts outside of the Big  
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 1          4, there are many districts, certainly  

 

 2          suburban districts in my community that have  

 

 3          come to me that have three or four children  

 

 4          in these expensive programs -- that are  

 

 5          appropriate, that we should not back away  

 

 6          from, that are what these children need --  

 

 7          that they do not have the resources to pay  

 

 8          that share. 

 

 9                 Have you identified that by -- on a  

 

10          district basis? 

 

11                 SED CFO MORRIS:  We have, and we can  

 

12          share that information with you. 

 

13                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  I  

 

14          appreciate that.   

 

15                 In the past, prior to your being  

 

16          interim commissioner, one of the challenges  

 

17          that has been faced by districts is because  

 

18          of staffing shortfalls at SED.  Matters that  

 

19          districts need a quick response on, whether  

 

20          it's reimbursement issues, other kinds of  

 

21          challenges, have had to wait because you  

 

22          don't have sufficient staff. 

 

23                 I wonder if you, as interim  

 

24          commissioner, have identified what are the  
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 1          staffing needs, and what do they cost, for  

 

 2          SED to continue to be a very effective  

 

 3          partner for us as legislators and for our  

 

 4          districts.   

 

 5                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We can --  

 

 6          we have done an analysis such as that, and we  

 

 7          can definitely get you those numbers with  

 

 8          specific positions and where we need  

 

 9          positions or funding additional resources in  

 

10          certain areas to fulfill those needs. 

 

11                 SENATOR MAYER:  But have you  

 

12          identified the dollar number you are  

 

13          requesting to fill that shortfall? 

 

14                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I don't  

 

15          have that before me, but we can certainly get  

 

16          that to you. 

 

17                 SENATOR MAYER:  Well, I just would  

 

18          respectfully encourage that you do so.   

 

19          Because it's one thing to hear from our  

 

20          districts that they can't get an answer --  

 

21          and I think you have many willing partners  

 

22          here to ensure that the department and the  

 

23          Regents have the resources they need in order  

 

24          to do the work that we need them to do. 
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 1                 So it would be helpful if you could  

 

 2          provide that. 

 

 3                 I appreciated seeing in your  

 

 4          presentation your recommendation for another  

 

 5          15 million for ELLs statewide.  What is your  

 

 6          proposal for how that would be allocated? 

 

 7                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So that  

 

 8          15 million would be for the department to  

 

 9          provide resources to school districts and  

 

10          assist school districts with essentially the  

 

11          identification and supports and services for  

 

12          our ELL populations.  Helping them with  

 

13          curriculum and instruction for that  

 

14          population of students, essentially. 

 

15                 SENATOR MAYER:  So that funding would  

 

16          not go directly to districts, it would go to  

 

17          SED to provide a support to the ELL providers  

 

18          at the district level? 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  It would  

 

20          be grants to districts to help them, assist  

 

21          them with their curriculum instruction. 

 

22                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  Have you made  

 

23          any proposal of direct resources beyond the  

 

24          Foundation Aid formula to help districts that  
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 1          are dealing with an extensively growing  

 

 2          number of ELLs?  Particularly in suburban  

 

 3          communities outside of New York City, such as  

 

 4          mine and on Long Island and upstate, where  

 

 5          many of these traditionally suburban  

 

 6          communities -- the world has changed since  

 

 7          the Foundation Aid formula was adopted, and  

 

 8          they frankly need additional resources. 

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We have  

 

10          four legislative proposals targeted at the  

 

11          ELL population.  One is the 15 million for  

 

12          grants to districts to help support their  

 

13          curriculum instruction needs. 

 

14                 We also have an additional request for  

 

15          our Technical Assistance Center, which is the  

 

16          RBERNs, which are used, and they're  

 

17          throughout the state, to assist and answer  

 

18          any questions and provide guidance to  

 

19          districts around ELL instruction, the  

 

20          identification of ELLs, supports and systems  

 

21          for ELLs.   

 

22                 We're also asking for a $3.5 million  

 

23          request for -- we have to create a new  

 

24          examination under ESSA to support ELLs with  
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 1          severe cognitive disabilities.  That test  

 

 2          itself will be determining where an ELL child  

 

 3          is in their proficiency level, so that we can  

 

 4          provide appropriate supports and targets to  

 

 5          those school districts. 

 

 6                 We're also requesting an additional  

 

 7          $1.5 million for translation services so that  

 

 8          we can help ELL students and so their parents  

 

 9          and the students can understand the guidance  

 

10          that's on our website and the instructional  

 

11          materials, because we're constantly being  

 

12          asked to provide translated documents and  

 

13          unfortunately the department doesn't have the  

 

14          resources to translate all of the documents  

 

15          on its website into various languages. 

 

16                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  Thank you  

 

17          very much. 

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

19          you. 

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  We  

 

21          go to our ranker on Education, Assemblywoman  

 

22          Walsh. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Thank you. 

 

24                 First of all, as a follow-up to last  
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 1          year, I wanted to just take the time to thank  

 

 2          you and your staff.  We had expressed  

 

 3          concerns last year about response time when  

 

 4          we've had inquiries and we have seen --  

 

 5          through your Legislative Affairs Office.  And  

 

 6          since then we just want to say that your  

 

 7          staff has been extremely responsive and  

 

 8          timely, so we do really very much appreciate  

 

 9          that, on behalf of ourselves and our  

 

10          constituents. 

 

11                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

12          you. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Every year the  

 

14          Governor and Legislature create tiers within  

 

15          Foundation Aid -- you know, essentially  

 

16          complex formulas that drive money to various  

 

17          districts to meet the specific criteria of  

 

18          each tier.  However, year-to-year changes in  

 

19          these formulas create unpredictability for  

 

20          school districts who are trying to finalize  

 

21          their budgets. 

 

22                 So given the potential financial  

 

23          hardships our state is facing, do you see any  

 

24          better method of providing school districts  

 

 



                                                                   189 

 

 1          with proper funding without creating new  

 

 2          formulas each year? 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

 4          one of the things that we're requesting, is  

 

 5          we're requesting an additional funding  

 

 6          resource request to take a look at the  

 

 7          Foundation Aid formula.  It hasn't been  

 

 8          updated since 2007, and so we all know that  

 

 9          updates need to be made to it, you know, for  

 

10          inflation, take another look at the  

 

11          weightings, to try to really take a deep dive  

 

12          into the formula and see what changes need to  

 

13          be reflected in the formula to address the  

 

14          needs of our districts.  So that's something  

 

15          that we're requesting in our Regents priority  

 

16          requests. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  And once that  

 

18          deep dive is done, do you think that there  

 

19          will be able to be achieved a predictability  

 

20          for our school districts with a formula,  

 

21          whatever that formula turns out to be?   

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

23          that's one of the things that we should  

 

24          really look at when we're reevaluating the  
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 1          formula, is really looking at it from the  

 

 2          sense of how can we provide predictability in  

 

 3          our formula.   

 

 4                 And that would be something that our  

 

 5          State Aid staff would essentially review when  

 

 6          they're undertaking this review.  Because I  

 

 7          think you're absolutely right, districts need  

 

 8          to be able to rely on a bottom-line number  

 

 9          year to year so that they can, you know,  

 

10          project their budgets. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Yeah.  So  

 

12          just -- thank you.   

 

13                 And moving on, the Executive Budget --  

 

14          and I know that there have been some earlier  

 

15          questions on this, so I apologize if this  

 

16          appears to be redundant at all.  But I do  

 

17          want to ask it again.  The Executive Budget  

 

18          intends to consolidate 10 aid categories into  

 

19          Foundation Aid, including funding for BOCES.   

 

20                 So do you think that the Governor's  

 

21          proposal to consolidate BOCES Aid into  

 

22          Foundation Aid will be a hindrance to the  

 

23          expansion of these programs? 

 

24                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We  
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 1          absolutely do.  We believe that this is going  

 

 2          to create reductions in possibly CTE programs  

 

 3          throughout the state, because CTE is  

 

 4          reimbursed through our Special Services Aid  

 

 5          and our BOCES Aid, and so they won't be  

 

 6          reimbursed for their actual expenses incurred  

 

 7          for those costs, and it will be held flat as  

 

 8          part of Foundation Aid, which can be used for  

 

 9          multiple purposes and not necessarily CTE.   

 

10                 So that was targeted funding separate  

 

11          and apart from Foundation Aid, and now all  

 

12          that's happening is it's being put into the  

 

13          Foundation Aid formula without actually  

 

14          increasing the amount of the Foundation Aid  

 

15          formula, it's just dumping those  

 

16          expense-based aids into it. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Right.  So --  

 

18          and as a follow-up to that, how can we ensure  

 

19          that the salaries for BOCES employees remain  

 

20          stable if there isn't a defined amount of  

 

21          funding provided to BOCES? 

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  You're  

 

23          exactly right, we can't.  So thank you.   

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Moving on, I  
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 1          think I have time to -- your answers are so  

 

 2          quick that I think -- which is great -- that  

 

 3          I think I might be able to squeeze in one  

 

 4          more. 

 

 5                 So the Executive Budget proposes to  

 

 6          cap future increases in Transportation Aid to  

 

 7          an inflation enrollment factor based on the  

 

 8          Consumer Price Index, the CPI, while  

 

 9          districts struggle to maintain their  

 

10          transportation services due to driver  

 

11          shortages and also, you know, having to go  

 

12          sometimes far out of district, which is an  

 

13          unpredictable cost to go and bring kids into  

 

14          the district for the day. 

 

15                 So does the State Education Department  

 

16          intend to introduce any legislation or reduce  

 

17          regulations that would help rein in  

 

18          uncontrollable transportation costs and  

 

19          offset the proposed cap? 

 

20                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I mean,  

 

21          we already look at transportation costs in  

 

22          our Transportation Department.  Christina  

 

23          Coughlin heads that department.  They do a  

 

24          review of the transportation costs and they  
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 1          make sure that it's according to the formula. 

 

 2                 But this is something, you know, we  

 

 3          can definitely -- we're always looking at  

 

 4          ways to reduce mandates for districts with  

 

 5          respect to transportation in all of our --  

 

 6          across the board at the department, so this  

 

 7          is something we can definitely consider  

 

 8          moving forward, if we need to. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  That would be  

 

10          great.  Thank you so much. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senate? 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

13                 Senator John Liu. 

 

14                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

15                 And thank you, Commissioner, for being  

 

16          here.  I especially appreciate your very  

 

17          succinct and direct answers, so thank you  

 

18          very much. 

 

19                 (Laughter.) 

 

20                 SENATOR LIU:  You know, there -- I  

 

21          know you've already answered a few questions  

 

22          about the budget at your department and the  

 

23          staffing shortages, or the unfilled  

 

24          positions.  I mean, I get lots of reports,  
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 1          along with our chairperson, Shelley Mayer,  

 

 2          about unfilled positions at SED. 

 

 3                 Are those unfilled positions just a  

 

 4          matter of lack of budget?  Or is there an  

 

 5          approval process that might be taking a  

 

 6          little too long? 

 

 7                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Actually,  

 

 8          what's interesting is that about a year ago  

 

 9          we had several waivers pending before the  

 

10          Division of Budget.  But I have to say and  

 

11          give acknowledgement that the Division of  

 

12          Budget has been wonderful in the past year in  

 

13          approving our budget requests and our waiver  

 

14          requests.  So the positions that -- we're  

 

15          receiving approvals pretty quickly.  I think  

 

16          we only have about 25 positions outstanding  

 

17          at this point from the Division of Budget,  

 

18          which is amazing compared to last year.  So I  

 

19          would like to thank, publicly, the Division  

 

20          of Budget and the Governor's office for their  

 

21          quick approvals. 

 

22                 However, what's happening is that the  

 

23          department is receiving an enormous amount of  

 

24          responsibilities from the Legislature and the  
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 1          Governor through the budget, and outside the  

 

 2          budgetary process, for new either mandates or  

 

 3          things that -- we're responsible for  

 

 4          overseeing the school districts, but we're  

 

 5          not receiving any funding with those  

 

 6          legislative requests. 

 

 7                 And so what we would respectfully  

 

 8          request is an additional 5 percent set-aside  

 

 9          for any new programs that move forward.  This  

 

10          is typical at the federal level, and other  

 

11          states have these set-asides for various  

 

12          programs that are being required to be  

 

13          implemented. 

 

14                 SENATOR LIU:  You don't like  

 

15          unfunded -- 

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  And I  

 

17          want you to know, we want to implement all  

 

18          your programs -- some of them are wonderful  

 

19          programs -- and we want to do so thoughtfully  

 

20          and carefully.  But in order to do that, we  

 

21          need the staff with those legislative  

 

22          initiatives. 

 

23                 So we would just respectfully request  

 

24          the set-aside. 
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 1                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Commissioner.   

 

 2                 I appreciate your efforts to help the  

 

 3          New York City school system get rid of its  

 

 4          backlog on the special education cases.  On  

 

 5          the issue of the impartial hearing officers,  

 

 6          though, is there anything that SED would  

 

 7          recommend or perhaps do on your own to expand  

 

 8          the eligibility of -- or expand the universe  

 

 9          of people who could become impartial hearing  

 

10          officers? 

 

11                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes.  In  

 

12          fact -- yes, Senator Liu, you're absolutely  

 

13          right, and thank you for bringing that up.   

 

14          That is actually something that we will be  

 

15          presenting to the Board of Regents at our  

 

16          March meeting.   

 

17                 We currently have approximately 60  

 

18          hearing officers available in New York City  

 

19          for the over 10,000 cases that are currently  

 

20          outstanding in the city.  That isn't enough  

 

21          hearing officers, and we've done an extensive  

 

22          outreach -- right now hearing officers are  

 

23          required to be attorneys in New York City,  

 

24          and we've done an extensive outreach, you  
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 1          know, to the Bar Association, the various  

 

 2          legal organizations throughout the city to  

 

 3          retain and obtain more hearing officers.   

 

 4                 Unfortunately, we're not getting the  

 

 5          willingness because, you know, the pay in the  

 

 6          city is -- you know, isn't sufficient.  And  

 

 7          we're working on New York City to address  

 

 8          that issue as well.  We've come up with a new  

 

 9          compensation policy for the hearing officers  

 

10          which should help and hopefully entice  

 

11          additional hearing officers to come in. 

 

12                 In addition to those efforts, at our  

 

13          March meeting we will also be presenting a  

 

14          regulation to the Regents to try to expand  

 

15          the number of hearing officers by allowing  

 

16          non-attorneys who meet other credentials or  

 

17          experience or have other educational  

 

18          credentials or special ed experience,  

 

19          administrative law experience, to allow them  

 

20          to become hearing officers.   

 

21                 SENATOR LIU:  That's great. 

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  And this  

 

23          might be, you know, time-limited while we  

 

24          have the backlog, but to address the issue. 
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 1                 SENATOR LIU:  That's great.  Thank  

 

 2          you, Commissioner.  That's great news.  We'll  

 

 3          look forward to seeing the results from the  

 

 4          March meeting. 

 

 5                 Speaking of Board of Regents, you  

 

 6          know, we have some distinguished Regents in  

 

 7          the audience with us.  I don't want to try to  

 

 8          name all of them, but certainly our  

 

 9          chancellor is here, and I have to mention my  

 

10          Queens Regent.  Chancellor Rosa is here, and  

 

11          Judith Chin is here.  Judith Chin is our  

 

12          Queens Regent and also my wife's former  

 

13          elementary school principal.  

 

14                 (Laughter; "Aww" from audience.)  

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  In any event, my last  

 

16          question for you is, is there anything -- any  

 

17          progress being made on the deliberation about  

 

18          whether Regents exams should still be  

 

19          required for high school diplomas in New York  

 

20          State? 

 

21                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  This is  

 

22          something we're involved in and this has been  

 

23          such an interesting and fun project.  The  

 

24          Regents -- Chancellor Rosa announced earlier  
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 1          this year that we were going to be  

 

 2          re-engaging the field to really reexamine the  

 

 3          graduation measures in New York State. 

 

 4                 You've probably heard about it by now;  

 

 5          we have 30 regional convenings on this very  

 

 6          issue right now to look at five guiding  

 

 7          questions, you know, essentially revolving  

 

 8          around what do children need to know to have  

 

 9          a meaningful high school diploma?  What  

 

10          skills are necessary to be college- and  

 

11          career-ready and civic-ready as they leave  

 

12          those doors?  And what measures, including  

 

13          the Regents exams or other pathways or other  

 

14          measures are indicative of ensuring that  

 

15          children receive a meaningful high school  

 

16          diploma? 

 

17                 So we are reevaluating, you know,  

 

18          everything in the context of a meaningful  

 

19          high school diploma.  But this is not to say  

 

20          that we're getting rid of our Regents exams.   

 

21          That is not the purpose of these convenings.   

 

22          The convenings are really to take a look at  

 

23          what does the labor market think are  

 

24          important skills for our children?  This  
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 1          hasn't been reevaluated in decades, so we  

 

 2          really need to take a look at -- the skills  

 

 3          that are needed today are much different than  

 

 4          they were 20 years ago, so we need to take  

 

 5          another look and see, you know, what do we  

 

 6          really -- what do children really need to  

 

 7          know and how do we measure that they have  

 

 8          those skills when they're leaving high  

 

 9          school?   

 

10                 So yes, we've been engaged in a very  

 

11          thoughtful project on this. 

 

12                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Commissioner. 

 

13                 Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

15                 We go to Assemblywoman Buttenschon. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Thank you.   

 

17          You had discussed the pre-K programs.  And as  

 

18          I've met with -- I'm from the Utica-Rome  

 

19          area, so as I had met with superintendents in  

 

20          my area, they don't even consider it because  

 

21          the grant funding -- there's such a gap  

 

22          between trying to support a program.  And you  

 

23          had stated that you were looking at  

 

24          supporting 70 percent of -- 

 

 



                                                                   201 

 

 1                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes,  

 

 2          we're asking for an additional $20 million,  

 

 3          and I think it's 2,000 pre-K slots -- 4,000  

 

 4          pre-K slots.  And an additional $6 million  

 

 5          for a preschool pilot inclusion program. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Okay.  So  

 

 7          those would include who?  And do you think it  

 

 8          would fill those gaps?  It is very disturbing  

 

 9          to hear that they can't even consider it  

 

10          because financially it's something that they  

 

11          could never afford the gap of those grants  

 

12          that they currently receive at this point. 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes.  So  

 

14          yes, I think that would help.  I think it  

 

15          would help provide an additional 4,000 pre-K  

 

16          slots and also help with our special ed  

 

17          issues with our preschool programming. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Okay.  And  

 

19          how is that being decided, I guess is my  

 

20          question, of where it would be placed, the  

 

21          funding, and what programs you're looking to  

 

22          support in what areas of the state? 

 

23                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Phyllis,  

 

24          do you know if the -- is this through a  
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 1          competitive grant process for the 20 million? 

 

 2                 SED CFO MORRIS:  That's correct.   

 

 3                 So the Executive Budget has an  

 

 4          additional 15 million for expanded  

 

 5          prekindergarten.  The Regents had asked for  

 

 6          20 million.  So it would be -- the Regents  

 

 7          request is similar to what the Executive has  

 

 8          proposed and what's been in the enacted  

 

 9          budget for a number of years.   

 

10                 And we do allocate those fundings  

 

11          through a competitive request for RFP. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  So have  

 

13          you worked with these districts to determine  

 

14          exactly what they do need to ensure that they  

 

15          can fulfill them?  Is that how you're coming  

 

16          up with this amount or -- 

 

17                 SED CFO MORRIS:  So we follow the  

 

18          appropriation language.  So whatever winds up  

 

19          being enacted -- I think the Executive Budget  

 

20          wants to focus on high-need areas and  

 

21          underserved areas.  So whatever the  

 

22          appropriation language winds up being in the  

 

23          enacted budget would be what we would write  

 

24          into the RFP. 
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 1                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Okay.  And  

 

 2          the data that Senator Mayer had asked for, I  

 

 3          would be very interested in receiving that. 

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  In regards  

 

 6          to -- I appreciate in your presentation you  

 

 7          discuss the importance of a teacher shortage.   

 

 8          Well, I receive many calls in regards to the  

 

 9          TEACH data collection and how it's difficult  

 

10          to ensure that it's updated in a timely  

 

11          manner, as well as for many business  

 

12          officials that talk within the school  

 

13          districts in regards to the timely manners  

 

14          that my colleagues had talked about in  

 

15          regards to receiving bid processes back and  

 

16          things of that nature.   

 

17                 You stated you have 25 positions that  

 

18          are not filled at this point. 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

20          correct. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  And is  

 

22          that reflecting those concerns as you fill  

 

23          those positions?   

 

24                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Those  
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 1          are -- the 25 positions are positions that we  

 

 2          currently have funding for and funding  

 

 3          approval for.  So what we would need is  

 

 4          additional funding if we were going to  

 

 5          support additional funds for our teacher  

 

 6          certification program or in additional areas  

 

 7          throughout the department.   

 

 8                 Which is why we're asking for the  

 

 9          5 percent set-aside for new programs or  

 

10          additional funding to support the department.   

 

11          Because like I said, we've been given several  

 

12          programs in recent years without additional  

 

13          funding.  So either an additional funding  

 

14          request and/or an additional 5 percent  

 

15          set-aside for any new programs.   

 

16                 But that 24 positions doesn't -- those  

 

17          are existing -- existing funding that we have  

 

18          at the department.  We would need additional  

 

19          funding to support additional areas in the  

 

20          department. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Okay.  And  

 

22          do you think that would address the issues  

 

23          that I'm receiving from constituents in  

 

24          regards -- as well as business officials at  
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 1          the school districts, through the slow return  

 

 2          on a bid process?   

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, I  

 

 4          think it definitely would.   

 

 5                 And I know we have a new director in  

 

 6          our Office of Teaching Initiatives, and she's  

 

 7          been really looking at this area in our TEACH  

 

 8          system in trying to streamline our process  

 

 9          for teacher certification applications and  

 

10          the process for approval of those.  We're  

 

11          well aware of this issue, and we are trying  

 

12          to do a better job in our Teaching  

 

13          Certification Office.   

 

14                 So that's something that I'm -- you  

 

15          know, I have as a priority and, you know,  

 

16          we're really looking at this area and trying  

 

17          to ensure improvements in our processes and  

 

18          our timeliness on those issues. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  How about  

 

20          the bid process that you receive from our  

 

21          business officials at our local school  

 

22          districts?  They claim that the process  

 

23          through SED is slow also.  Is this something  

 

24          you're aware of? 
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 1                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  John, are  

 

 2          you aware of it? 

 

 3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER D'AGATI:  What in  

 

 4          particular -- 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Just  

 

 6          basically looking for approval, once they  

 

 7          have received bids and they're putting them  

 

 8          forward through the state SED for approval.   

 

 9          They claim the approval process coming back  

 

10          is slow. 

 

11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER D'AGATI:  Okay.  I  

 

12          can check and find out what the -- try to  

 

13          find out specifically what is the delay. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUTTENSCHON:  Okay,  

 

15          thank you.   

 

16                 And in regards to the Foundation Aid,  

 

17          I appreciate you looking into those aspects  

 

18          of separating the expense-based.   

 

19                 Thank you. 

 

20                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

21          you. 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

23                 Senate?   

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   
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 1                 Senator Betty Little, ranker for  

 

 2          Education. 

 

 3                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Thank you.  And thank  

 

 4          you, Commissioner.  {Mic not on.}   

 

 5                 Now?  Good.  Okay, thank you very  

 

 6          much.  Very impressed with your answers and  

 

 7          the clearness of your answers.  I hope I can  

 

 8          be as clear in my questions, though. 

 

 9                 (Laughter.) 

 

10                 SENATOR LITTLE:  I have a very large  

 

11          district, 6800 square miles.  I represent 47  

 

12          school districts.  We did have a merger of  

 

13          Westport and Elizabethtown this year, and I  

 

14          thank you very much for your help and your  

 

15          staff's help with that program. 

 

16                 Concerned about adding -- including  

 

17          BOCES in the Foundation Aid, which you  

 

18          mentioned.  More and more of our rural  

 

19          schools have to rely upon BOCES, some for  

 

20          administration, some for extra programs.  New  

 

21          Visions has been a big program.  The career  

 

22          programs, the P-TECH, the Early College -- so  

 

23          many of those are really, really helpful.   

 

24          How could they possibly be put in a cap?   

 

 



                                                                   208 

 

 1          Especially when your boards of education are  

 

 2          directed to make sure that you have access  

 

 3          for students to career education.   

 

 4                 So hopefully we can solve that, and I  

 

 5          was glad to hear that you agree.   

 

 6                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We hope  

 

 7          you can solve that as well.  It's something  

 

 8          that's so important to all of our  

 

 9          communities.  Our BOCES are essential  

 

10          partners in ensuring kids receive a  

 

11          high-quality education, and we cannot let  

 

12          those reimbursement aids be capsulated into  

 

13          Foundation Aid, because I think it will --  

 

14                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Right.  More and more  

 

15          so for our rural schools.  And the  

 

16          transportation, there's no way to really cap  

 

17          transportation in rural schools.  You have  

 

18          fuel costs that fluctuate, you need new  

 

19          school buses, you have problems with them.   

 

20          We don't have more students, but we still  

 

21          have students who are far apart and the  

 

22          distance is there. 

 

23                 So the second thing is that Senator  

 

24          Mayer had some wonderful roundtables around  
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 1          the state this year about the Foundation Aid,  

 

 2          and the poverty data is old.  And most of the  

 

 3          school districts said, We have more children  

 

 4          in poverty than we're being given money for,  

 

 5          recorded, as far as we feel in the formula.   

 

 6                 Has anyone at State Ed thought about  

 

 7          doing the ALICE methodology for poverty, the  

 

 8          Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed?   

 

 9          It's like for the working poor.  More and  

 

10          more people are working, but they don't seem  

 

11          to have the dollars to go any farther than  

 

12          what they had. 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  And I  

 

14          think that's part of our analysis, is part of  

 

15          the additional funding that we're asking to  

 

16          look at and reevaluate the Foundation Aid  

 

17          formula.  As you indicated, so many  

 

18          benchmarks, including poverty, the  

 

19          weightings, the inflationary factors, they  

 

20          need to be updated.  This hasn't been  

 

21          relooked at since 2007, so we really need to  

 

22          take a better look. 

 

23                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Okay.  And a number  

 

24          of my school districts are save harmless  

 

 



                                                                   210 

 

 1          because we have not had growth in student  

 

 2          enrollment.  So in some, they have just gone  

 

 3          into save harmless, so we've had an increase.   

 

 4                 And my question is, is the increase in  

 

 5          the number of save harmless districts a  

 

 6          positive or a negative in the formula?  Is  

 

 7          that what it's attributed to or -- 

 

 8                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I would  

 

 9          defer to Phyllis Morris, our chief financial  

 

10          officer, on that one. 

 

11                 SED CFO MORRIS:  I don't know if it's  

 

12          necessarily a positive or a negative, I think  

 

13          it's just an indication that the formula  

 

14          needs to be relooked at.   

 

15                 And again, as Commissioner Tahoe said,  

 

16          the Regents have proposed a $1.2 million  

 

17          staffing request so that the department staff  

 

18          can engage with consultant resources to  

 

19          assist in the Legislature's efforts to look  

 

20          at a formula that would be more responsive to  

 

21          individual school district needs. 

 

22                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Okay, thank you.  The  

 

23          substantially equivalent, I'm one of the ones  

 

24          who wrote a letter.  I really feel that  
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 1          State Ed should be the ones doing the  

 

 2          analysis, if there has to be an analysis.  We  

 

 3          should not be putting this on local boards of  

 

 4          education.  Number one, it's an unfunded  

 

 5          mandate.  And number two, it's really a  

 

 6          conflict of interest because you're asking  

 

 7          them to judge their competitors in many  

 

 8          cases.   

 

 9                 So I would ask that -- glad to see  

 

10          that that's being held off for a little bit. 

 

11                 And then I was glad to see you're  

 

12          asking for money for the Museum Education  

 

13          Act.  That's been something I've tried to get  

 

14          for a couple of years.  Very important to our  

 

15          museums, but also to our students. 

 

16                 And the other one is a quick one.   

 

17          There is a line item in the budget, and it's  

 

18          for the SED buildings.  I had a meeting with  

 

19          SED recently, but SED owns the buildings in  

 

20          the Onondaga, St. Regis and Tuscarora  

 

21          Elementary Schools on the reservations, as  

 

22          well as the School for the Blind and the  

 

23          Deaf.   

 

24                 The money has been at $3.4 million for  
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 1          capital for the last nine years, and we're  

 

 2          hoping that we could get that increased. 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

 4                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Our schools, the  

 

 5          one -- the Mohawk, that I'm particularly  

 

 6          interested in, needs a new building. 

 

 7                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, we  

 

 8          agree.  We're supportive of the increase as  

 

 9          well.  Thank you.   

 

10                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Okay.  Thank you. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

13                 We go to Assemblyman Ortiz. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYMAN ORTIZ:  Thank you, Madam  

 

15          Chair.   

 

16                 Thank you, Commissioner.  Good  

 

17          afternoon.  And to my friends in the Regents,  

 

18          Chancellor Rosa and Luis, thank you for being  

 

19          here and thank you for your friendship.   

 

20                 First of all, I would like to commend  

 

21          you about the bullying prevention program,  

 

22          because I addressed that last year at the  

 

23          hearing, which I put in legislation to create  

 

24          1-800-BULLY, where people can call.  And I'm  
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 1          happy to see a request of $3.4 million to be  

 

 2          more money.   

 

 3                 We have a lot of issues in the schools  

 

 4          as we speak, which brings me to my question  

 

 5          regarding the partnership that you have with  

 

 6          the New York City DOE about how are you guys  

 

 7          addressing to make sure that every school in  

 

 8          the State of New York will be able to have  

 

 9          finally their own psychology social worker to  

 

10          address the needs of our school community.   

 

11                 As you probably know, I do have  

 

12          legislation mandating that we should have a  

 

13          social worker psychology in every school in  

 

14          the State of New York from pre-K all the way  

 

15          to high school.  Because it's a big  

 

16          necessity.  Especially we live in a very  

 

17          diverse community these days.  My district is  

 

18          probably one of the most diverse districts in  

 

19          the State of New York.  I represent Sunset  

 

20          Park, Red Hook, and I have District 15 and  

 

21          District 20 on the other side.   

 

22                 And, you know, we'd like to know what  

 

23          SED is doing to address the shortfall of  

 

24          social workers and guidance counselors of  
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 1          psychology in every school, because our  

 

 2          teachers have got to now be the psychology  

 

 3          and the social workers.  We need to let our  

 

 4          teachers to continue to teach, and we need to  

 

 5          strengthen our teachers to make sure that  

 

 6          they continue to do what they're doing. 

 

 7                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  You're  

 

 8          absolutely right.  And you're bringing up a  

 

 9          very important point.  I mean, all school  

 

10          districts -- the department is very  

 

11          supportive of all school districts in the  

 

12          state having licensed school counselors,  

 

13          licensed psychologists.   

 

14                 As you know, this is a huge funding  

 

15          barrier for school districts, and that's why  

 

16          we're asking for an additional $1.9 billion  

 

17          in the three-year phase-in of the Foundation  

 

18          Aid formula, in order to require school  

 

19          districts to have all of these personnel on  

 

20          staff.  This is something that would, you  

 

21          know, be a huge increase or a cost shift to  

 

22          school districts.  And so one of the things  

 

23          we need is additional funding so that they  

 

24          can use that money for these services. 
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 1                 However, the department is doing a  

 

 2          number of things in mental education, mental  

 

 3          health education.  We have a guidance that  

 

 4          was just released to our districts.  We also  

 

 5          encourage school districts and help school  

 

 6          districts work with their local community to  

 

 7          identify different resources that they can  

 

 8          use for school counselors and school  

 

 9          psychologists, to bring them into the school  

 

10          district or help students who may need those  

 

11          services that may not otherwise be able to  

 

12          get them.   

 

13                 So this is something that our  

 

14          Technical Assistance Center, with MHANYS, is  

 

15          working with school districts on currently  

 

16          and engaging those other community-based  

 

17          resources to help support school districts in  

 

18          this area where they may not have sufficient  

 

19          resources.   

 

20                 So thank you for bringing up very -- 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYMAN ORTIZ:  I do have another  

 

22          question that has to do with your comments on  

 

23          your testimony, and I quote, enhanced  

 

24          communication with multilingual parents,  
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 1          students and professionals, close quote, has  

 

 2          been a struggle in order to have information  

 

 3          translated in other languages.   

 

 4                 Well, let me just say this to you.  I  

 

 5          only have five staff in my own district  

 

 6          office.  Every single one of them speaks more  

 

 7          than three languages, including myself.  And  

 

 8          it's just -- it's just really dismaying that  

 

 9          this statement is put in your testimony when  

 

10          you have an agency so huge -- bigger than my  

 

11          budget -- and you are saying that it's very  

 

12          challenging to have translation.   

 

13                 I will mention to you that my office  

 

14          even gets phone calls from Rochester and  

 

15          Syracuse districts because Hispanics  

 

16          sometimes get denied services for translation  

 

17          and they don't have sometimes staff available  

 

18          to speak just Spanish for the moment --  

 

19          forget about the Vietnamese in Utica, forget  

 

20          about the Chinese -- Mandarin, Cantonese and  

 

21          Fujianese -- which is another conversation we  

 

22          can have altogether, because those are the  

 

23          people that I represent in my district.   

 

24                 So sometimes I use my staff to help  
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 1          those districts to translating Fujianese, for  

 

 2          example, Shanghainese is another Chinese  

 

 3          dialect, and Mandarin and Cantonese, and  

 

 4          English and also, to some extent, French.   

 

 5                 So I would encourage that -- go back  

 

 6          to the budget and go back to figure out how  

 

 7          can we better serve our community throughout  

 

 8          the State of New York, especially today with  

 

 9          the environment that we have about ICE  

 

10          knocking on doors in Sunset Park in my  

 

11          district, and also forget about what is  

 

12          happening in Rochester and Syracuse and  

 

13          Buffalo when it's come down to these ICE  

 

14          agents being around the schools.   

 

15                 So I encourage you to work together  

 

16          with me to ensure that we can do the best we  

 

17          can to serve our state.   

 

18                 Thank you very much. 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

20          you. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

22                 Senator John Brooks. 

 

23                 SENATOR BROOKS:  Thank you,  

 

24          Commissioner.  And thank you, Madam Chair. 
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 1                 First let me thank you for the  

 

 2          assistance you gave us in the monitor  

 

 3          situation in Wyandanch.  You know, it's a  

 

 4          district that needs attention.  A wise man I  

 

 5          know, I was trying to get some additional  

 

 6          attention for a very long time.  But I think  

 

 7          as we along at Wyandanch, we really have to  

 

 8          examine what happened there.  It's a district  

 

 9          that saw tremendous, tremendous growth all of  

 

10          a sudden, a lot of it midyear.  The students  

 

11          that were coming in were students from other  

 

12          countries, they didn't understand the English  

 

13          language, we had a bad situation. 

 

14                 We're dealing with a community with an  

 

15          excessive amount of poverty, probably the  

 

16          poorest district in the county, a district  

 

17          with no commercial property growth, a  

 

18          district with an exceptionally high tax  

 

19          burden on the community itself.  It's a  

 

20          school district that wasn't well maintained  

 

21          in terms of the physical plants, as you know.   

 

22          It is a district that was in a situation  

 

23          where the long-term mismanagement of the  

 

24          total operation, the change in the  
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 1          demographics of the students and their  

 

 2          needs -- many of the students, their age and  

 

 3          their educational level, very far apart. 

 

 4                 We're in a situation now where that  

 

 5          district has schools in a total state of  

 

 6          disrepair.  You understand the septic system  

 

 7          problems.  We've got a whole school out of  

 

 8          the district that's housing those students. 

 

 9                 So we're in a situation where a  

 

10          district, ill-prepared for growth, because of  

 

11          the dynamics of what's happening in our  

 

12          country now and how students are placed in  

 

13          communities, was effectively overrun. 

 

14                 You know, we have some programs in  

 

15          place right now to assist where -- an  

 

16          English-learning student and some other  

 

17          things.  But I don't know that we really  

 

18          recognize the compounding effect of what's  

 

19          happening here when immigration is almost  

 

20          taking over a school district in that point. 

 

21                 They're at a point right now,  

 

22          realistically, where they're going to have to  

 

23          build several new schools.  They're going to  

 

24          have to invest a significant amount of money  

 

 



                                                                   220 

 

 1          into repairs of the building.  But they don't  

 

 2          have the money.  They don't have the  

 

 3          financial resources.  They're going to see a  

 

 4          significant growth in apartment-building in  

 

 5          that area -- I think a total of eight  

 

 6          apartment buildings are going to end up in  

 

 7          that district.   

 

 8                 So my question is not totally just to  

 

 9          Wyandanch, but on a statewide basis, do we  

 

10          really understand the impact that immigration  

 

11          is having on our educational system, the  

 

12          needs of those students and the district  

 

13          between what happens for transportation,  

 

14          mental health issues, and the whole  

 

15          situation?  You know, I sometimes wonder if  

 

16          we shouldn't have a separate section in the  

 

17          budget just to address that issue.   

 

18                 This is a district that grew at a rate  

 

19          of 28 percent over a five-year period.  This  

 

20          is a district, if you go to visit, there are  

 

21          no desks in the classroom, there are tables,  

 

22          because more kids can get around it.   

 

23                 I just -- this is an incredible  

 

24          challenge that's being placed on a district.   
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 1          Effectively, it's a mandate from Washington  

 

 2          with no funding, and then a penalty from  

 

 3          Washington because we fund education  

 

 4          basically through property taxes.  With the  

 

 5          SALT cap, those communities are being  

 

 6          punished for that. 

 

 7                 So my question to you -- and we look  

 

 8          forward to working with you on the monitor  

 

 9          itself -- but is the state prepared to manage  

 

10          the challenges we're seeing in education, the  

 

11          total challenges we're seeing in education as  

 

12          a result of immigration growth when it's  

 

13          concentrated in certain districts, generally  

 

14          poorer districts? 

 

15                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Two  

 

16          things.  On Wyandanch, I just want to say  

 

17          that we're a hundred percent supportive of  

 

18          that district, and we will do everything we  

 

19          can to implement the monitor legislation with  

 

20          fidelity. 

 

21                 I would ask for these monitor  

 

22          legislations, one thing we are asking as part  

 

23          of our budget proposal is to please provide  

 

24          funding to assist us with the monitor  
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 1          legislation, because we do want to do it  

 

 2          right.  And we want to do it thoughtfully and  

 

 3          make sure that that monitor is supported by  

 

 4          State Ed as well.  With three new monitors  

 

 5          being put into place in Wyandanch and  

 

 6          Hempstead and Rochester, this is something we  

 

 7          really need additional resources to support. 

 

 8                 And secondly, on your question  

 

 9          regarding immigration, I think you're exactly  

 

10          right.  I think there are so many impacts on  

 

11          education throughout the educational system  

 

12          based on immigration and the fact that  

 

13          New York probably takes in more immigrants  

 

14          than, you know, many other states.  And  

 

15          that's one of the things that we want to look  

 

16          at. 

 

17                 In the last 10 years, the population  

 

18          in number of immigrants has increased in  

 

19          New York, and so we really need to  

 

20          thoughtfully review our formula to make sure  

 

21          that districts that are taking those children  

 

22          in are getting the necessary funding they  

 

23          need to support those children at the outset.   

 

24                 So I think you're absolutely right,  
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 1          this is something that we need additional  

 

 2          staffing resources to do that analysis, to  

 

 3          figure out how much additional costs are  

 

 4          needed to support that child as they go  

 

 5          through K-12.  And it might be different in  

 

 6          elementary through high school, and these are  

 

 7          the things that need to be evaluated so we  

 

 8          can actually have a funding formula that  

 

 9          supports the needs of the various children  

 

10          that we have in this state.  So thank you. 

 

11                 SENATOR BROOKS:  Thank you. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

13          Assemblyman Bronson. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Good afternoon,  

 

15          Commissioner.  Thank you for being here. 

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Good  

 

17          morning. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  And I also want  

 

19          to thank you and your staff at SED, as well  

 

20          as the Board of Regents, for the numerous  

 

21          conversations, the hours of conversations  

 

22          about Rochester.  We clearly need  

 

23          transformative change in that district.  We  

 

24          need that change both from an academic  
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 1          standpoint as well as a financial management  

 

 2          standpoint. 

 

 3                 I'm on record of supporting a  

 

 4          monitoring approach both for educational and  

 

 5          financial.  I think that monitor needs to be  

 

 6          an independent monitor.  And that monitor is  

 

 7          there to have oversight and accountability of  

 

 8          the district while partnering with the  

 

 9          district through the folks that you're going  

 

10          to be involved in this through SED. 

 

11                 My question is this.  We talked a lot  

 

12          about money and we talked about, you know,  

 

13          the consolidation of the expense-based  

 

14          reimbursable aid.  And in the context of the  

 

15          Rochester City School District, if we don't  

 

16          do the $2 billion total increase, what's the  

 

17          impact going to be in the classroom for these  

 

18          students? 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

20          it's going to be significant.  I mean, as we  

 

21          all know, Rochester has severe financial  

 

22          challenges.  The department has been  

 

23          supportive of helping, and we're working with  

 

24          the Legislature and we will work with all of  
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 1          you.  I think they need severe financial  

 

 2          assistance in these distressed times that  

 

 3          they're having. 

 

 4                 We're also working with the Rochester  

 

 5          City School District -- almost every day we  

 

 6          are in contact in some way or fashion with  

 

 7          that school district, helping them with boots  

 

 8          on the ground.  Regarding their academic  

 

 9          affairs, we have -- as you know, we had a  

 

10          Distinguished Educator in there who issued a  

 

11          report, and it was a comprehensive report for  

 

12          academic support throughout all areas  

 

13          throughout the Rochester City School  

 

14          District.   

 

15                 We have been having staff going there  

 

16          biweekly, they're on the phone or in person  

 

17          where we are trying to support them in each  

 

18          aspect of that academic plan.  The  

 

19          superintendent, Terry Dade, has been  

 

20          enormously helpful, very supportive of our  

 

21          staff coming in, helping his staff with this  

 

22          work.  We have a wonderful partnership with  

 

23          the school district.  We think that they're  

 

24          on the right path.  We're really trying to do  
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 1          the right thing for those children. 

 

 2                 So this is something that we feel very  

 

 3          committed to.  We will do everything in our  

 

 4          power to support that monitor legislation.   

 

 5          So -- but you're right, without more funding,  

 

 6          Rochester is going to have a severe problem. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you.  And,  

 

 8          you know, some would say we don't need an  

 

 9          academic monitor because we've had the  

 

10          Distinguished Educator there, we've put  

 

11          together a strategic plan back and forth  

 

12          between the district and your office over a  

 

13          number of months.  Superintendent Dade has  

 

14          come in, he's added his six objectives that  

 

15          he wants to meet that are consistent with the  

 

16          Distinguished Educator's report.  I say we  

 

17          still need a monitor.  We need a monitor to  

 

18          make sure that we implement those strategies  

 

19          that have been identified as a result of the  

 

20          DE's report. 

 

21                 Some say we need a total state  

 

22          takeover of the school district, SED running  

 

23          the school in one form or another.  Yet I  

 

24          heard your testimony earlier about a shortage  
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 1          of staffing, a shortage of finances.  Is SED  

 

 2          prepared to do a total state takeover of the  

 

 3          Rochester City School District? 

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

 5          the department is supportive of the monitor  

 

 6          concept and having the monitor in there.  And  

 

 7          we will assist them, as we're doing right  

 

 8          now, in their academic affairs. 

 

 9                 Our real, you know, forte is the  

 

10          academic affairs of a district, and that's  

 

11          what we're doing every day.  And I think the  

 

12          monitor would be in place in Rochester on the  

 

13          academic side to ensure that they're, as you  

 

14          said, implementing the plan that we have in  

 

15          place.   

 

16                 And we're also implementing an ELL cap  

 

17          and a special ed cap.  So putting those all  

 

18          together and making it one plan, so that  

 

19          Rochester has to follow one academic plan.   

 

20          And then that monitor would be in place to  

 

21          make sure they're actually implementing and  

 

22          taking the steps to meet that plan. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Excellent.  I  

 

24          totally am supportive of that. 
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 1                 The last question is a very general  

 

 2          question, but one I know you're very  

 

 3          knowledgeable about.  You know, City of  

 

 4          Rochester children, 50 percent -- 50  

 

 5          percent -- are living in poverty.  Most of  

 

 6          those have suffered some form of trauma in  

 

 7          addition to the trauma of poverty.   

 

 8                 How does the funding in this budget,  

 

 9          as you recommend, with the $2 billion  

 

10          increase, how does that translate in meeting  

 

11          the barriers that are created because of  

 

12          poverty and trauma? 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

14          with poverty and trauma, I think there are  

 

15          additional resources needed to address  

 

16          children in poverty.  I mean, I think it's  

 

17          just a fact when, you know, there's more  

 

18          supports that are needed throughout their  

 

19          entire educational system.  So those children  

 

20          will need additional funding.   

 

21                 Poverty is taken into consideration in  

 

22          the Foundation Aid formula.  But as I said  

 

23          before, the poverty factors that are used in  

 

24          the Foundation Aid formula need to be  
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 1          updated.  And I think that that's something,  

 

 2          you know, that hasn't been really looked at  

 

 3          in many years.  And so we really need to take  

 

 4          a good look in how to update those figures to  

 

 5          take into consideration not only  

 

 6          disadvantaged students but our immigrants  

 

 7          that are coming in, all the various types of  

 

 8          populations of students that are coming in  

 

 9          the state.  And is there an aggregated  

 

10          weighting for someone who's disadvantaged and  

 

11          who's special ed and ELL.   

 

12                 Like, you know, all those things  

 

13          are -- you could have multiple indicators for  

 

14          one child.  And making sure that the  

 

15          weightings are appropriate for those types of  

 

16          children.  So I think a total relook is  

 

17          necessary. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you so  

 

20          much for your partnership and for your  

 

21          testimony today.  I appreciate it. 

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

23          you, Assemblyman. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   
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 1                 Senator Robert Jackson. 

 

 2                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 Good afternoon, everyone. 

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Good  

 

 5          afternoon. 

 

 6                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you,  

 

 7          Commissioner.  And the chancellor and all of  

 

 8          the Board of Regents, thank you. 

 

 9                 So $1.9 billion, that's what you're  

 

10          asking for. 

 

11                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

12                 SENATOR JACKSON:  I've said that I'm  

 

13          hoping that both the Senate conference  

 

14          one-house bill and the Assembly one-house  

 

15          bill come in with 1.9 billion.  In essence,  

 

16          united together with the State Board of  

 

17          Regents and Education.   

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We are  

 

19          united. 

 

20                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Huh? 

 

21                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We are a  

 

22          hundred percent united. 

 

23                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Okay.  Well, we have  

 

24          to -- I think that you and others have to  
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 1          speak to them so we are all in this together.   

 

 2          Because basically we're trying to fight for  

 

 3          the -- all of the children of New York State.   

 

 4                 But I've got a couple of specific  

 

 5          questions.  And I'm glad the member asked  

 

 6          about Rochester.  I'm extremely upset about  

 

 7          Rochester, because I've adopted all of the  

 

 8          children in New York State.  They belong to  

 

 9          me, all of them.  But Rochester is owed about  

 

10          $85 million under the Foundation Aid formula.   

 

11                 Now, they ran a deficit and overspent  

 

12          by 27 million, and they laid off about  

 

13          100 teachers and paraprofessionals and, you  

 

14          know, they had to go to other places to keep  

 

15          their job.  But the children are the ones  

 

16          that are suffering the most.  And so we have  

 

17          to make sure that districts are spending  

 

18          their money, but we have to make sure the  

 

19          State of New York gives our children what  

 

20          they're entitled to under the broken  

 

21          Foundation Aid formula.  And I say broken  

 

22          because if you factor in now, there are more  

 

23          needs than there were back then.  Okay?   

 

24                 But let me ask you a couple of quick  
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 1          questions because I only have three and a  

 

 2          half minutes.  Regarding CSI schools, does a  

 

 3          school with a significant number of opt-outs  

 

 4          risk being identified as a CSI school?  And  

 

 5          if yes, how?  What are the fiscal and  

 

 6          programmatic impacts, if any, regarding a  

 

 7          school that has many, many children that  

 

 8          opted out? 

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  The sole  

 

10          indicator for opting out would not be an  

 

11          indicator for our CSI schools.  There's many  

 

12          different factors that are taken into  

 

13          consideration when an accountability  

 

14          determination is made for a CSI school.  For  

 

15          elementary schools, it's student performance  

 

16          on the state assessments, but there's also  

 

17          English language proficiency, chronic  

 

18          absenteeism.  And in high school they also  

 

19          account for graduation rates.   

 

20                 However, if there is a school  

 

21          district -- as you know, the federal  

 

22          government requires a 95 participation rate  

 

23          on our state assessments.  That's not a state  

 

24          law, that's a federal law.  If somebody  
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 1          doesn't meet that 95 percent participation  

 

 2          rate, or a school district doesn't meet that  

 

 3          rate, they are required to develop a  

 

 4          participation rate improvement plan.  And  

 

 5          then those plans are submitted to the  

 

 6          Education Department. 

 

 7                 SENATOR JACKSON:  If a school is doing  

 

 8          very well on all of those factors, why do you  

 

 9          give opt-out students a 1 instead of a 3 or a  

 

10          2 or a 4?  Why?  Why a 1?  One means you're  

 

11          not doing well at all.  Come on. 

 

12                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  The  

 

13          student -- I'm confused by the question. 

 

14                 SENATOR JACKSON:  The State Education  

 

15          Department gives students that opt out a 1. 

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Kim,  

 

17          could you help answer this question? 

 

18                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Somebody address  

 

19          that. 

 

20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  Thank  

 

21          you, Senator Jackson.   

 

22                 Within the ESSA plan, there's very --  

 

23          very strategic, and it's very aligned to the  

 

24          federal government mandate under ESSA.  So  
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 1          when the child does have an opt-out -- and I  

 

 2          will have to get more information for you on  

 

 3          that -- they are designated to have -- as a  

 

 4          Level 1.  So unfortunately --  

 

 5                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Designated by whom?   

 

 6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  That's  

 

 7          with our ESSA plan with the USDE. 

 

 8                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Designated by whom? 

 

 9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  The U.S.  

 

10          Department of Education. 

 

11                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Well, you should  

 

12          challenge that, because the opt-out students  

 

13          are the ones that their parents are more  

 

14          involved than anything else. 

 

15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  

 

16          Absolutely, sir. 

 

17                 SENATOR JACKSON:  I -- that's  

 

18          unacceptable to me. 

 

19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  Yes. 

 

20                 SENATOR JACKSON:  But when you give  

 

21          them a 1, then that school will be looked at  

 

22          as a school in need.  And that school may not  

 

23          be in need, and you're giving them resources  

 

24          they don't really need.  So what are we doing  
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 1          here?   

 

 2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  Sir,  

 

 3          also -- thank you for that -- no school has  

 

 4          been designated with a CSI designation based  

 

 5          on opt-out.  When you have a CSI designation,  

 

 6          it really is due to the performance, it's due  

 

 7          to -- with your chronic absenteeism.  It's  

 

 8          not due to just greatly -- 

 

 9                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And you know what I  

 

10          want to do?  I'm going to give you some  

 

11          citations at a later date so we can look into  

 

12          that.  Okay? 

 

13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WILKINS:  All  

 

14          right.  All right. 

 

15                 SENATOR JACKSON:  But I want to ask  

 

16          you about the Amistad bill, making the  

 

17          New York State Education Department  

 

18          commissioner in charge instead of the  

 

19          Department of State.  In light of it being  

 

20          Black History Month, what are your thoughts  

 

21          about the Amistad bill and where we are with  

 

22          that?   

 

23                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We can  

 

24          certainly review that bill and get you our  
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 1          comments on that bill. 

 

 2                 SENATOR JACKSON:  It's very important,  

 

 3          especially during Black History Month. 

 

 4                 And I just say to you and the Regents,  

 

 5          let's work and fight together.  Michael  

 

 6          Rebell is going to trial in the New Yorkers  

 

 7          for Educational -- Students for Educational  

 

 8          Rights versus The State of New York.  The  

 

 9          State of New York owes children $4 billion  

 

10          statewide.  I would expect to see you and  

 

11          other members of the Board of Regents and the  

 

12          commissioner's office at that trial  

 

13          supporting Michael Rebell in the fight to get  

 

14          $4 billion for our students.   

 

15                 Can I ask you to be there?   

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Since the  

 

17          state is involved in litigation on that  

 

18          issue, we are -- we can't take a position on  

 

19          that.  That's a -- the state's involved in  

 

20          litigation on that issue, so I can't comment  

 

21          on that. 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

23          that. 

 

24                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you.  Send  
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 1          anybody you know, though, okay?   

 

 2                 (Laughter.) 

 

 3                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you.   

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you,  

 

 5          Senator. 

 

 6                 We go now to Assemblywoman  

 

 7          Jean-Pierre. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  Good  

 

 9          afternoon, and thank you for being here.  I  

 

10          represent -- right here.  I represent Suffolk  

 

11          County, Town of Babylon.  I share a district  

 

12          with Senator Brooks, and so I wanted to thank  

 

13          you again for working with us for the  

 

14          monitors.   

 

15                 One thing I do ask is that when we  

 

16          select these monitors, we think about the  

 

17          cultural competency of the monitors for  

 

18          districts like Wyandanch, to ensure that  

 

19          there's someone that the districts can work  

 

20          with that emulates the students.  So that's  

 

21          one thing. 

 

22                 And I just have a list of things.  So  

 

23          you mentioned -- Shelley Mayer, Senator,  

 

24          mentioned the ELL, the grant process.  Is  
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 1          that out the door or in the door with SED? 

 

 2                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

 3          $15 million that we're asking for, for  

 

 4          additional supports for our ELL population  

 

 5          for curriculum and instruction.  So that's  

 

 6          something that we're waiting for an  

 

 7          appropriation for, and then those grants  

 

 8          would go out. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  So would  

 

10          that go out the door to districts?  And are  

 

11          we looking --    

 

12                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:   

 

13          Districts, yes. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  So for the  

 

15          grant requirements, are we looking at the  

 

16          number of undocumented students that some of  

 

17          the districts get?   

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We  

 

19          haven't developed the competitive RFP for  

 

20          that because that's funding that we're  

 

21          currently requesting from the Legislature.   

 

22                 Once the Legislature provides the  

 

23          15 million, that money will be used to help  

 

24          districts with curriculum and instructional  
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 1          supports for our ELL population.  However, we  

 

 2          haven't determined yet how the competitive  

 

 3          process will work since we don't have the  

 

 4          funding yet. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  So what  

 

 6          I'm asking is, one of the eligibility  

 

 7          requirements, I ask that it be districts that  

 

 8          have an influx of undocumented students that  

 

 9          actually don't receive the services for those  

 

10          students, or I ask that it be one of the  

 

11          eligibility requirements.  And looking at the  

 

12          district's financial needs be another  

 

13          eligibility requirement for those ELL  

 

14          services.   

 

15                 And the second thing is I know that  

 

16          the Governor mentioned security grants for  

 

17          school districts to apply for.  Has your  

 

18          department taken a look at analysis of what  

 

19          that will -- a possible grant where districts  

 

20          can actually apply to?  Because I've actually  

 

21          met with a few of my districts and they've  

 

22          spent well over $1 million just on  

 

23          infrastructure for security systems.   

 

24                 So what -- has your agency looked at a  
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 1          proposed number on what that would look like  

 

 2          where it's not 500,000 or $2 million?  That  

 

 3          won't be a real grant where districts across  

 

 4          the state can apply for -- for  

 

 5          infrastructure. 

 

 6                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So I'll  

 

 7          refer to our chief financial officer, Phyllis  

 

 8          Morris, on that one. 

 

 9                 SED CFO MORRIS:  I just want to make  

 

10          sure, are you referring to Smart School Bond  

 

11          Act or are you referring to the Safety and  

 

12          Security for At-Risk Facilities?  I think  

 

13          it's the latter. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  The  

 

15          safety.   

 

16                 SED CFO MORRIS:  Okay.  That's what I  

 

17          thought.  I just wanted to make sure I was  

 

18          answering the question correctly. 

 

19                 So those funds are in -- there was  

 

20          $45 million in the current year, 2020,  

 

21          enacted budget for those projects.  They're  

 

22          being administered by the Department of  

 

23          Homeland Security and Emergency Services.   

 

24          They issue requests for proposals that go  
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 1          out, and then we're the funding mechanism.   

 

 2                 So once DHSES asks us for funding,  

 

 3          based on the results of their RFP, we  

 

 4          transfer the funding.  So we really -- we  

 

 5          provide technical assistance and guidance,  

 

 6          but it's really up to DHSES to determine how  

 

 7          it's --  

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  So is that  

 

 9          just for school districts?  Or is that just  

 

10          for -- 

 

11                 SED CFO MORRIS:  So those are for  

 

12          nonpublic schools, those funds that I'm  

 

13          referring to that I believe you're asking  

 

14          about. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  Gotcha.   

 

16          Okay. 

 

17                 And the next thing is so some of my  

 

18          school districts are half-day pre-K.  And  

 

19          will there be any funding available for  

 

20          districts that want to apply for full-day  

 

21          pre-K and districts that are in need?   

 

22                 One of the proposals I've asked for is  

 

23          not make the pre-K a competitive grant  

 

24          process, but to look at 50 percent reduced  
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 1          lunch, districts that have 50 percent reduced  

 

 2          lunch, to start with those districts. 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes.  And  

 

 4          that's one of our Regents priority bills, is  

 

 5          for an additional $26 million for our  

 

 6          pre-K -- $20 million which will support an  

 

 7          additional 4,000 slots for pre-K, and $6  

 

 8          million for our pre-K inclusion program. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  Gotcha.   

 

10          And that will include -- so that's a yes,  

 

11          from part-time to -- 

 

12                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  Okay.  And  

 

14          my last question is mental health services. 

 

15                 What are we doing -- I represent a  

 

16          district that has a high number of opioids,  

 

17          and we have one of the highest fatalities in  

 

18          Suffolk County throughout the state.  And we  

 

19          have our coalition to have been proactive in  

 

20          the schools, but some of our school districts  

 

21          have not opened that door for some of those  

 

22          grassroots organizations.  But what is the  

 

23          agency doing to provide resources for mental  

 

24          health services in our schools, additional --  
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 1                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So we've  

 

 2          done a number of things.  We've actually  

 

 3          recently issued mental health guidance and  

 

 4          been nationally recognized for our work in  

 

 5          this area.  We've also -- we have a Technical  

 

 6          Assistance Center with MHANYS and we work  

 

 7          with MHANYS to support school districts if  

 

 8          they have questions on mental health, if they  

 

 9          need our support services.   

 

10                 We also -- our program staff in that  

 

11          area are working with local community-based  

 

12          organizations to help them bring in mental  

 

13          health professionals to help districts where  

 

14          they don't have somebody on staff to assist. 

 

15                 We are also -- one of the things that  

 

16          we know is that school climate affects  

 

17          everything.  And when a child walks into a  

 

18          building, if they feel safe and supported,  

 

19          this also helps with mental health issues in  

 

20          schools.  And so we're asking for an  

 

21          additional $3.4 million as well to help  

 

22          support our school climate in our schools as  

 

23          well. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JEAN-PIERRE:  Thank you. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 2                 We go to Senator Seward. 

 

 3                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Thank you very much,  

 

 4          Commissioner and your team, as well as the  

 

 5          chancellor and the Regents who are with us  

 

 6          today. 

 

 7                 I just want to say I really  

 

 8          appreciated your presentation on the state  

 

 9          aid request, emphasis on additional  

 

10          Foundation Aid for our districts, and keeping  

 

11          the expense-driven aids separate from  

 

12          Foundation Aid and allowing the current  

 

13          reimbursement formulas to flow, as well as  

 

14          your support for libraries, particularly in  

 

15          the construction area. 

 

16                 I did have two or three questions for  

 

17          you.  As you know, the Executive would  

 

18          continue the requirement and actually would  

 

19          expand the number of districts involved with  

 

20          the requirement for school-level reporting on  

 

21          expenditures.  Is there anything being done  

 

22          to reduce the administrative burdens by  

 

23          consolidating reporting requirements on both  

 

24          the state and now we have federal  

 

 



                                                                   245 

 

 1          requirements as well?  Is there anything  

 

 2          being done to help with the administrative  

 

 3          burdens of that?   

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, I  

 

 5          think even with our ESSA financial  

 

 6          transparency form -- which is what we're  

 

 7          required to have and what you're referring  

 

 8          to, our school-based-funding transparency  

 

 9          reports, those reports -- we've tried to make  

 

10          it as easy as possible for districts so that  

 

11          they can just use what they're reporting on,  

 

12          their ST-3 reports, to basically upload that  

 

13          data into our financial transparency report.   

 

14                 Also, the demographics and the  

 

15          information that are also contained there  

 

16          come from our school report card.  So we've  

 

17          tried to streamline the process as much as  

 

18          possible for districts.  It's also a way for  

 

19          districts to take a look at and make sure  

 

20          that the two align -- what's reported on our  

 

21          ST-3 is aligned with what's reported in their  

 

22          ESSA financial transparency report.   

 

23                 But our requirements for our financial  

 

24          transparency report are required at the  
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 1          federal level, and DOB has their own  

 

 2          reporting requirement for financial  

 

 3          transparency.  That was a state law that was  

 

 4          enacted, so -- which was based on projected  

 

 5          expenses at DOB, where ours is actual  

 

 6          expenses. 

 

 7                 SENATOR SEWARD:  We appreciate those  

 

 8          efforts.  We need to do more to help with  

 

 9          those administrative burdens all the way  

 

10          around. 

 

11                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, we  

 

12          agree. 

 

13                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Shifting gears, the  

 

14          2018-2019 budget created an incentive for  

 

15          school districts to purchase more  

 

16          school-lunch ingredients from our state  

 

17          farmers.  And the question is, is that  

 

18          benefiting our growers as well as our school  

 

19          districts?  I mean, do you know offhand how  

 

20          many schools have met the minimum requirement  

 

21          of the Farm-to-School Program to receive that  

 

22          25-cent school-lunch reimbursement?  And is  

 

23          there enough in the appropriation to fully  

 

24          fund the need that's out there?   
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 1                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, I  

 

 2          think when we had around 40 applications, and  

 

 3          we had seven that were actually eligible for  

 

 4          the program.   

 

 5                 This is something that we are working  

 

 6          with the Department of Agriculture on.  I  

 

 7          think what needs to be done is there might  

 

 8          need to be a list of available growers on the  

 

 9          Ag & Markets website so that school districts  

 

10          can easily see like who can they buy these  

 

11          products from.   

 

12                 Another suggestion to increase  

 

13          participation in that program would be to  

 

14          have breakfast included, essentially, or  

 

15          school breakfast included.  Right now it's  

 

16          just school lunch.  And it's causing concerns  

 

17          with school districts, and they're afraid to  

 

18          apply because it's hard to allocate how these  

 

19          local products are just being used for lunch.   

 

20          We think if breakfast was included, and  

 

21          lunch, then it would be easier for school  

 

22          districts to apply for the grants so they  

 

23          wouldn't have to like suballocate, you know,  

 

24          where the resources are going.   
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 1                 So there's a couple of improvements  

 

 2          that we could suggest to the program. 

 

 3                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Would that require  

 

 4          legislation to --  

 

 5                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

 6          it would, yes.  I'd have to look back myself  

 

 7          at -- 

 

 8                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Is there anything  

 

 9          else that you think the Legislature could do  

 

10          to increase participation in this program?   

 

11          Because it's good for the growers in  

 

12          New York -- 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, it  

 

14          is. 

 

15                 SENATOR SEWARD:  -- and our  

 

16          schoolchildren would be getting, you know,  

 

17          great food as well.   

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We agree.   

 

19          Let me take that back and talk to our program  

 

20          office that does this every day.  Those are  

 

21          the two that I can think of off the top of my  

 

22          head, but we can certainly come back with an  

 

23          additional list of things that would help.   

 

24                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Any recommendations  
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 1          you have would be greatly appreciated. 

 

 2                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

 3                 SENATOR SEWARD:  I know we discussed  

 

 4          with previous questioners the process that's  

 

 5          underway in terms of graduation requirements  

 

 6          and whether or not we're going to have  

 

 7          Regents exams going forward. 

 

 8                 I know it's been approximately a year  

 

 9          since SED first announced that it's  

 

10          conducting this top-to-bottom review.  As you  

 

11          go out for the public hearings and so on, are  

 

12          there any preliminary findings that you can  

 

13          share with us? 

 

14                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I can say  

 

15          that I sat in on a couple so far.  And what  

 

16          I'm hearing -- and it's been amazing,  

 

17          actually.  I actually really enjoy going to  

 

18          these because people are so engaged.  You can  

 

19          hear the community.  The people in the room,  

 

20          you've got students, you've got parents,  

 

21          educators.  Everybody is there.  We're having  

 

22          a great participation.  Like some of them  

 

23          have almost 200 participants.   

 

24                 And one of the things we're hearing is  
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 1          that there needs to be additional pathways.   

 

 2          I've heard that routinely.  And when I read  

 

 3          the notes from these other regional  

 

 4          workgroups, everyone is saying not every  

 

 5          child can past a test or is successful with  

 

 6          testing, or some kids are better at Career  

 

 7          and Technical Education skills, and they  

 

 8          might be able to show their work through  

 

 9          performance-based activities versus, you  

 

10          know, just simply taking a test.  Where other  

 

11          students were telling me that they are really  

 

12          good at oral presentations and they're more  

 

13          of an oral type of person.   

 

14                 And so these are the kind of things  

 

15          that we're hearing throughout these  

 

16          presentations, that there needs to be  

 

17          alternative ways to getting to the end, and  

 

18          finding things that interest kids so that  

 

19          they actually stay in school and they don't  

 

20          drop out.  Really making sure that we're  

 

21          thinking about this, but also, at the same  

 

22          time, the hard part, as we all know, is  

 

23          ensuring rigor and that we actually know if a  

 

24          kid is going to be successful at the end of  
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 1          the road.   

 

 2                 And so that's where, you know, the  

 

 3          hard part of this is.  How do you ensure you  

 

 4          have alternate pathways that are also very  

 

 5          rigorous and ensure that they're getting a  

 

 6          meaningful high school diploma so that  

 

 7          employers know if they're ready for the  

 

 8          workforce or if they're civically engaged. 

 

 9                 SENATOR SEWARD:  As a Regents student  

 

10          many decades ago, I thank you for your  

 

11          answers. 

 

12                 (Laughter.) 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

14          you.  Thank you.   

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

16                 We go to Assemblywoman Jaffee. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Good afternoon.   

 

18          Thank you so much.  Former teacher, yes. 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank you  

 

20          for your service. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  I taught in  

 

22          East Ramapo for many years, special  

 

23          education. 

 

24                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  
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 1          you. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  And thank you  

 

 3          so much for your leadership and your  

 

 4          engagement in public education. 

 

 5                 I'm hearing, I've been hearing that  

 

 6          there are very real issues in terms of the  

 

 7          number of our young adults, youth, going into  

 

 8          the field of education.  That is something  

 

 9          that I've been hearing about, as well as my  

 

10          concern that we also don't have enough  

 

11          diversity in our education groups.   

 

12                 And so is that something that you've  

 

13          been working on?  Is it something perhaps we  

 

14          can do some action together, put together  

 

15          something?  But teacher salaries may be part  

 

16          of the issue, but there may be other concerns  

 

17          that you might be aware of. 

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So that's  

 

19          a two-part question.   

 

20                 So why aren't we getting enough  

 

21          teachers in the teaching profession?  I think  

 

22          about this all the time.  And I think to  

 

23          myself, even with my little one, every person  

 

24          in education, whether it be a parent, a  
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 1          teacher, an administrator, a superintendent,  

 

 2          we all have an impact on who enters the  

 

 3          teaching profession.  And we really need to  

 

 4          think about this.   

 

 5                 Even as a parent -- I have three  

 

 6          little girls -- and I think to myself all the  

 

 7          time -- I see my little one, she just has a  

 

 8          tendency.  I can see that she would be a  

 

 9          beautiful teacher.  And so it's encouraging,  

 

10          it's parents encouraging their kids to go  

 

11          into the teaching profession.  It's us  

 

12          reminding ourselves every day about -- and  

 

13          our administrators -- about making sure  

 

14          teachers feel respected in their classroom.   

 

15          That when they go in every day, they feel  

 

16          supported.  Making sure they have the  

 

17          appropriate professional development they  

 

18          need to succeed.   

 

19                 I think this goes at so many levels.   

 

20          I think this is a conversation that needs to  

 

21          happen statewide.  We've talked about this in  

 

22          partnering with the teachers association  

 

23          about, you know, really making teaching a  

 

24          well-respected position that everybody wants  
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 1          to go into.  It's certainly one of the most  

 

 2          important professions there is, is ensuring  

 

 3          our young people have the -- you know, are  

 

 4          taught in a way that's going to make them  

 

 5          meaningful contributors to society.   

 

 6                 So this is something we're having  

 

 7          conversations with at our -- with our  

 

 8          stakeholders all the time, and how we can  

 

 9          enhance, you know, the value of the teaching  

 

10          profession. 

 

11                 On your issue of teacher diversity, as  

 

12          you know, we just issued a report to the  

 

13          Legislature in December on teacher diversity.   

 

14          Eighty percent of teachers in this state are  

 

15          white.  Two hundred school districts in the  

 

16          state don't have any teachers of color.  This  

 

17          is a serious problem.   

 

18                 This is something we're looking at  

 

19          very deeply at State ED, and it's something  

 

20          you're going to see I think in the next  

 

21          coming year.  It's one of our biggest  

 

22          initiatives, coupled with the teacher  

 

23          shortages and our graduation measures  

 

24          project.   
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 1                 We need to do more, and we know --  

 

 2          we're working, you know, looking at our own  

 

 3          internal regs to say what regulations can we  

 

 4          change to help with teacher diversity.  We're  

 

 5          working with our stakeholder partners to say,  

 

 6          really think about your hiring needs and how  

 

 7          to best recruit those underrepresented  

 

 8          persons.  Look at the school districts you're  

 

 9          serving.  Try to encourage children to  

 

10          actually want to go in the teaching  

 

11          profession. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Right.  Yeah,  

 

13          when I meet with the youth, juniors and  

 

14          seniors in high school, I raise this as one  

 

15          issue.  Also mental health.  We need more of  

 

16          our youth going into mental health  

 

17          counseling, into psychology, because that's  

 

18          another area of high need that is not  

 

19          happening.   

 

20                 I spoke to the chancellor of higher  

 

21          education about this, and she indicated to me  

 

22          what I -- what I assume, but that there  

 

23          really were not enough of our youth going  

 

24          into mental health either in the colleges.   
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 1          So it's -- maybe we can provide some  

 

 2          scholarships, you know, to expand their  

 

 3          opportunities. 

 

 4                 But it is a major issue, and we need  

 

 5          both.  We need more of our youth to go into  

 

 6          education as well as mental health, and we  

 

 7          need that diversity.  It's essential.  How do  

 

 8          we encourage all of our youth to be able to  

 

 9          do this?  Maybe it's something we need to  

 

10          work together on and find a path. 

 

11                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We would  

 

12          love to be collaborative on that project. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Yes.   

 

14                 I also wanted to talk about the school  

 

15          boards and your engagement with the school  

 

16          board, and the dialogue that perhaps, you  

 

17          know, could -- moving forward in terms of  

 

18          assuring the school boards are acting in  

 

19          appropriate ways.   

 

20                 I represent the East Ramapo School  

 

21          District.  I used to teach there.  And that  

 

22          is a challenge that we need to continue to  

 

23          have a dialogue about, because of the  

 

24          difficulty in that school district.   
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 1                 So, you know, dealing with the  

 

 2          decision-making.  We need more monitors,  

 

 3          perhaps, in various areas.  And monitors with  

 

 4          perhaps veto power to be able to make those  

 

 5          kinds of decisions. 

 

 6                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We would  

 

 7          agree with you.  And in East Ramapo,  

 

 8          actually, a bunch of our team here sitting at  

 

 9          the table has been involved in interviewing  

 

10          monitors for East Ramapo.  We're in the  

 

11          process now, and we're hoping to have an  

 

12          additional monitor in there very shortly.   

 

13                 This is something we're committed to.   

 

14          We do agree with you on there are serious  

 

15          issues that need to be addressed.  We have  

 

16          one monitor in there now; we're looking for a  

 

17          second.   

 

18                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  We need you to  

 

19          appoint another monitor.  That's essential. 

 

20                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes.  We  

 

21          should have one in the next couple of weeks. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Yes.  Well,  

 

23          thank you.  And I appreciate that.  And we  

 

24          need to continue to have that dialogue.   
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 1          Because the youth in East Ramapo, the  

 

 2          diversity and the poverty also are areas --  

 

 3          it's an area that truly needs our support. 

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  As you  

 

 5          know, our late Judith Johnson was a big  

 

 6          supporter of our East Ramapo City School  

 

 7          District, and I will not let it go.  So I am  

 

 8          here to help. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAFFEE:  Well, I  

 

10          nominated her.  I nominated Judith.  She was  

 

11          a good friend, an extraordinary woman.  And I  

 

12          nominated her to be, you know, a Regent, and  

 

13          she was amazing.  But we need to move forward  

 

14          in her memory. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

16                 Senate. 

 

17                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

18                 Senator Shelley Mayer for her second  

 

19          round. 

 

20                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you very much.   

 

21                 And I apologize for stepping out.  I  

 

22          just would note that there were hundreds of  

 

23          students from the Yonkers public schools that  

 

24          were here today, and I missed their rally to  
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 1          be here, but I felt the need to go out.   

 

 2                 And I want to thank the department for  

 

 3          continuing to be a partner on the very  

 

 4          special challenges that Yonkers has --  

 

 5          particularly our new building, which we hope  

 

 6          we get the double MCA and work closely with  

 

 7          you -- but in general, facing a tremendous  

 

 8          operating shortfall and frankly not getting  

 

 9          the funding it needs.  You've been a partner.   

 

10          I hope you will continue to be a partner in  

 

11          pressing the Executive to ensure that Yonkers  

 

12          has the resources it needs.   

 

13                 I just asked the students outside, if  

 

14          we had had sports in every school, how many  

 

15          of them would have participated in a sports  

 

16          team.  And I would say it was 80-20:  80 of  

 

17          those that were there would have participated  

 

18          if we could.  I asked if they would be in a  

 

19          play or a performance if we had such things  

 

20          in our high schools -- all of them said yes. 

 

21                 It's absolutely unfair that we have a  

 

22          district that borders some of New York  

 

23          State's most affluent districts that cannot  

 

24          afford the basics.  And I know you'll  
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 1          continue to work with us on that. 

 

 2                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  I do want to ask about  

 

 4          mental health needs in school districts.   

 

 5          Across the state, superintendents have  

 

 6          identified mental health needs, particularly  

 

 7          of their younger students, as a profound  

 

 8          problem they do not have the resources to  

 

 9          address.   

 

10                 They have asked for additional funding  

 

11          outside of Foundation Aid or supplementary to  

 

12          it to ensure they can hire the appropriate  

 

13          staff.  I'm sure you have heard, but we heard  

 

14          in our roundtables from principals with 6-  

 

15          and 7-year-olds with behavior that disrupts  

 

16          the entire school day after day, and they are  

 

17          left to their own devices to try to deal with  

 

18          it the best they can.  And they are. 

 

19                 You didn't make a particular request,  

 

20          SED, for mental health support staff at the  

 

21          district-wide level.  I know you have your  

 

22          own mental health sort of approach.  I wonder  

 

23          if you could address the need of these  

 

24          districts to have additional staff for these  

 

 



                                                                   261 

 

 1          issues. 

 

 2                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes.  I  

 

 3          think you're absolutely right.  I mean,  

 

 4          teachers can't be left by themselves to deal  

 

 5          with all these problems.  They do need the  

 

 6          professionals in there to help them and guide  

 

 7          them on these issues.   

 

 8                 We've done a number of things in  

 

 9          mental health.  As I've said, we've issued  

 

10          guidance recently to the field to help  

 

11          address -- and we've been nationally  

 

12          recognized for the guidance that we put out  

 

13          to districts to help them with some of the  

 

14          mental health issues that are occurring in  

 

15          schools.   

 

16                 We also have a Technical Assistance  

 

17          Center that's available for schools where  

 

18          they can tap into asking questions about how  

 

19          to address certain situations that are  

 

20          happening in their schools.  We work with  

 

21          MHANYS on that technical assistance center.   

 

22                 We also work with our community-based  

 

23          organizations that surround those areas, and  

 

24          we encourage school districts to work --  
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 1          because there's a lot of community-based  

 

 2          organizations out there that are willing to  

 

 3          help with these needs, and they just need to  

 

 4          tap in sometimes to those community-based  

 

 5          organizations.   

 

 6                 Optimally, you're absolutely correct,  

 

 7          we need more mental health professionals in  

 

 8          schools.  But we all know that's more  

 

 9          funding, and that's why we're seeking an  

 

10          additional $1.9 billion.  These districts  

 

11          need more funding if we're going to ask them  

 

12          and expect them to not only deal with the  

 

13          educational needs of their students but also  

 

14          the social needs, the mental health needs.  I  

 

15          mean, kids now, there's so many different  

 

16          needs for these children, and we need to  

 

17          support them with resources if our  

 

18          expectations are going to be for them to  

 

19          address all these needs. 

 

20                 I would also say that we're asking for  

 

21          an additional $3.4 million to help with our  

 

22          school climate.  I think school climate is a  

 

23          big factor in a kid's mental health status at  

 

24          school.  They need to walk in the building  
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 1          and see, you know, that they feel supported  

 

 2          and safe when they're walking into school,  

 

 3          and that they feel cared about.   

 

 4                 I think the social and emotional  

 

 5          well-being of a child is essential.  And so  

 

 6          some of our supports with our Safe and  

 

 7          Supportive Schools Grants helps districts to  

 

 8          make it more of a safe and supportive school  

 

 9          for children.   

 

10                 So I think all of those things coupled  

 

11          together are going to be what it takes to  

 

12          make districts be able to provide for these  

 

13          children. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  I have a number of  

 

15          other questions which I won't get to.   

 

16                 But on Building Aid forgiveness, you  

 

17          know, the Governor signed several bills that  

 

18          we passed last year in both houses, and  

 

19          vetoed certain other ones.  Do you know how  

 

20          many districts have these late final cost  

 

21          report building penalties?   

 

22                 And as you know, we are again moving a  

 

23          blanket forgiveness bill.  We believe that  

 

24          districts should not be penalized for really  
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 1          very modest errors in date filing.  Is SED  

 

 2          prepared to work with us to move towards  

 

 3          universal forgiveness?  And can you give me  

 

 4          the data on how many districts have the late  

 

 5          penalties?   

 

 6                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, we  

 

 7          can get you data on the late -- how many  

 

 8          districts have the late penalties.   

 

 9                 But we -- as part of our mandate  

 

10          relief bill, we actually proposed similar  

 

11          legislation for blanket forgiveness for late  

 

12          cost reports.  It doesn't make sense to pass  

 

13          bills one at a time for different districts.   

 

14          We believe all districts should be treated  

 

15          equally and have the same blanket forgiveness  

 

16          on those late cost reports. 

 

17                 SENATOR MAYER:  We agree with you. 

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

19          you. 

 

20                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

22                 Assembly.   

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

24          Assemblywoman Simon. 
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 1                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Thank you.   

 

 2                 Thank you, Commissioner, for -- you've  

 

 3          been here now a couple of hours, and I  

 

 4          appreciate your responsiveness to everyone's  

 

 5          questions.   

 

 6                 I have a couple of things I'd like to  

 

 7          discuss with you today, centered around  

 

 8          reading, the preschool special education seat  

 

 9          shortage that is pervasive in the city as  

 

10          well as the state, and impartial hearing  

 

11          officers, briefly.   

 

12                 A couple of years ago a stakeholder  

 

13          group was gathered by SED to implement my  

 

14          bill permitting the use of such words as  

 

15          "dyslexia," "dysgraphia," "dyscalculia" in  

 

16          IEP documents, and it showed two great gaps  

 

17          in New York:  The crying need for early  

 

18          identification or screening for dyslexia --  

 

19          and thank you; Mr. Suriano was there for part  

 

20          of this -- and the utter failure of most  

 

21          Schools of Education to prepare their  

 

22          teachers in the science of reading, with  

 

23          evidence-based methods of teaching reading,  

 

24          structured multisensory language-based direct  
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 1          instruction.   

 

 2                 Twenty percent of kids in New York  

 

 3          have dyslexia, and we're failing them from  

 

 4          the get-go when they are most able to benefit  

 

 5          because their brains are primed for this, but  

 

 6          unfortunately their teachers are not.  The  

 

 7          kids who get attention in New York are those  

 

 8          whose parents have money or moxie.  And it is  

 

 9          no way to run an airline.  It's a real social  

 

10          and educational justice issue. 

 

11                 I'd like to know why SED is not  

 

12          mandating universal screening with  

 

13          inexpensive research-validated screening  

 

14          tools -- by the way, I have a bill for that.   

 

15          And also I'm concerned that they have  

 

16          traditionally relied on the expertise of some  

 

17          people who are a little out of step with the  

 

18          current research and science.   

 

19                 And I'd like you to -- I'm happy to  

 

20          address that with you separately.  But if you  

 

21          could do just the screening.   

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So we've  

 

23          done a lot in the dyslexia area.  I'm going  

 

24          to turn to Chris Suriano, from our office,  
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 1          who's director of special education, to talk  

 

 2          about some of the efforts that the State  

 

 3          Education Department has taken on this very  

 

 4          issue. 

 

 5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SURIANO:  And  

 

 6          as a result of Chapter 216 of the Laws of  

 

 7          2017, you know we had the stakeholder  

 

 8          forums -- 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  It was a great  

 

10          one.  It was great. 

 

11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SURIANO:  Yep,  

 

12          it was.  And we developed that guidance  

 

13          document and released that to the field.  And  

 

14          the follow-up to that was to then work  

 

15          regionally through our special education  

 

16          quality assurance offices regionally to  

 

17          ensure that districts understood that  

 

18          dyslexia, dysgraphia, dyscalculia could all  

 

19          be included on an IEP because that was  

 

20          something that we did find through those  

 

21          forums, that there was misunderstanding  

 

22          statewide that those conditions could not be  

 

23          included on an IEP.   

 

24                 While they're not one of our  

 

 



                                                                   268 

 

 1          classification categories, as you know, they  

 

 2          are conditions that have unique needs for  

 

 3          those students that we need to be able to  

 

 4          ensure that the teachers and the  

 

 5          professionals working with them in the  

 

 6          classroom understand that, and we need to  

 

 7          better articulate that on IEPs.  So that's  

 

 8          the technical assistance we've been providing  

 

 9          statewide.   

 

10                 Again, we are also looking at how do  

 

11          we ensure that schools as a whole understand  

 

12          this.  So through our state systemic  

 

13          improvement plan, we are looking at right now  

 

14          we have 13 pilot sites where we're working  

 

15          with students with disabilities and those  

 

16          schools on how you develop high-quality,  

 

17          inclusive classrooms, built on multi-tiered  

 

18          systems of support, to support students that  

 

19          have dyslexia, dysgraphia, dyscalculia as  

 

20          part of their learning disability  

 

21          classification, and working with staff on how  

 

22          you address those needs -- not just through  

 

23          an IEP, but also through the services you  

 

24          provide.   
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 1                 As well as then looking at how we  

 

 2          better prepare teachers at the teacher  

 

 3          preparation level to come out to the field  

 

 4          with those skill sets, and working very  

 

 5          closely with leader and teacher preparation  

 

 6          recommendations to how we can change those  

 

 7          teacher preparation requirements to ensure  

 

 8          that not just with dyslexia, dysgraphia and  

 

 9          dyscalculia, but with the multiple needs that  

 

10          come with many of our 13 disability  

 

11          classifications, so that teachers are better  

 

12          prepared coming out to the field to be ready  

 

13          to deal with those populations. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Well, as you  

 

15          know, the research has been indicating that  

 

16          the methods that are used to teach kids with  

 

17          dyslexia are methods that in fact are  

 

18          recommended by the National Reading Panel and  

 

19          broadly work for all students.   

 

20                 And so one of the concerns I have is  

 

21          we sometimes pigeonhole this into special ed.   

 

22          And by the time they're in special ed,  

 

23          they're already behind the eight ball.  And  

 

24          the idea of screening early on is to get them  
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 1          before they're in special ed, to get them the  

 

 2          direct instruction they need and make better  

 

 3          referrals and not have the kids suffer for  

 

 4          years before they actually get picked up and  

 

 5          end up in the special ed system.   

 

 6                 So I'd like to encourage you to look  

 

 7          at it from that vantage point so that we can  

 

 8          make more progress on it.  And I'm happy to  

 

 9          work with you to get the word out more.  I  

 

10          think it's very important that we work  

 

11          together on that. 

 

12                 And then the other thing, if you could  

 

13          address the issue of the special ed seat  

 

14          shortage, which is -- there's like 1900 seats  

 

15          short in New York City.  I know Rochester has  

 

16          a big problem as well, and many other  

 

17          locations in the state. 

 

18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SURIANO:  Yes.   

 

19          And as we pointed out earlier, there are the  

 

20          fiscal asks that I believe Commissioner Tahoe  

 

21          went through, looking at how we can support  

 

22          the teaching pipeline and funding the loan  

 

23          forgiveness, to pay parity and these programs  

 

24          that serve preschool students with  
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 1          disabilities.   

 

 2                 Very excited about the ask for the  

 

 3          $6 million inclusion pilot program.  Again,  

 

 4          would be funding to look at how you support  

 

 5          students within an inclusive setting and  

 

 6          build multi-tiered systems of support in an  

 

 7          early learning setting to ensure that you are  

 

 8          doing those early screenings, that you are  

 

 9          providing the services up-front, to avoid the  

 

10          development of a gap by the time that student  

 

11          reaches kindergarten.   

 

12                 So ensuring that even at the preschool  

 

13          level, in our early learning settings, we  

 

14          have classrooms, high-quality, inclusive  

 

15          classrooms, that are not just designed to  

 

16          meet the needs of students with disabilities,  

 

17          but they're designed to meet the needs of all  

 

18          students.  So that student that you may not  

 

19          initially identify as a potential need,  

 

20          you -- through a multi-tiered system of  

 

21          supports framework, you are constantly  

 

22          evaluating, both academically and  

 

23          behaviorally, the needs of all the students  

 

24          in that classroom.   
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 1                 And through that process, I'm  

 

 2          confident we're going to start to see  

 

 3          inclusive settings that better, early on,  

 

 4          identify students.   

 

 5                 And back to the seat need, we need to  

 

 6          really look at how we ensure that our private  

 

 7          programs have the funding they need to be  

 

 8          fiscally viable, and that we look and  

 

 9          continue to work, particularly in New York  

 

10          City, where we're seeing the shortages that  

 

11          there are for available seats, that we  

 

12          continue to work with the city on ways of  

 

13          early identification and better projection  

 

14          methods of the need going into it, so they  

 

15          can work with us to get the seats they need  

 

16          to expand their own programming as well as  

 

17          work with the private sector to see where we  

 

18          also need to expand programs there. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Thank you.   

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

21                 Senate?   

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.  I  

 

23          think I'm the closer today for us. 

 

24                 The Smart Bond money, 2014, is it all  
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 1          out now or awarded now? 

 

 2                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Not yet.   

 

 3          There's still additional funding that's out  

 

 4          there right now.   

 

 5                 We have currently approved 100 Smart  

 

 6          Bond plans currently that have been approved  

 

 7          by State Ed that are waiting to go before the  

 

 8          Smart Bonds Review Board.  Unfortunately, the  

 

 9          date for the Smart Schools Review Board is  

 

10          set by the Division of Budget.  We've just  

 

11          recently been advised that the meeting is  

 

12          going to be later this month.  So we're  

 

13          hoping for those hundred applications to be  

 

14          processed hopefully sometime this month. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  And will that  

 

16          complete the assignment, or will you still  

 

17          have more?   

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  No, I  

 

19          believe there's additional applications as  

 

20          well.   

 

21                 John, you may have a better indication  

 

22          of how many are out there. 

 

23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER D'AGATI:  There's  

 

24          still more money.  And there's -- I think  
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 1          there's still another 75 that are -- 75  

 

 2          applications that are coming in.  I think  

 

 3          that out of the 2 billion, we've spent about  

 

 4          1.2 billion. 

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Can you help me  

 

 6          understand why it would take school districts  

 

 7          five, six years to just get an application  

 

 8          through for money?  I would think they all  

 

 9          would really want it. 

 

10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER D'AGATI:  So  

 

11          there's various steps in the process that  

 

12          they have to meet.  And the reviews sometimes  

 

13          require that they go back and do some of the  

 

14          work again -- the applications don't come in  

 

15          complete or they're not meeting the  

 

16          requirements.  So that is some of the reason  

 

17          why some of these things take much longer  

 

18          than we would hope. 

 

19                 But we are making better progress.   

 

20          And again, this is a little bit of a staffing  

 

21          issue also.  We don't have enough staff to  

 

22          process all of the applications as quickly as  

 

23          possible. 

 

24                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  And I  
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 1          would just add to that, it's 1.4 billion  

 

 2          that's gone out the door.  So we'd have an  

 

 3          additional 600,000.  But like I said, there's  

 

 4          100 applications waiting to be processed  

 

 5          before the review board, which will be a  

 

 6          substantial portion of that.  So there will  

 

 7          be a couple -- a few remaining applications  

 

 8          after that. 

 

 9                 I would also say that our staff -- and  

 

10          I just want to remind everyone, this is one  

 

11          of the new programs that I discussed earlier  

 

12          where we received a $2 billion proposal for  

 

13          us to review these Smart Bonds approval  

 

14          applications, and we've reviewed over 800 of  

 

15          them.  However, the issue is we have not  

 

16          received any funding to administer this  

 

17          program.   

 

18                 So we have three staff currently  

 

19          working on this.  But 800 plans is a lot --  

 

20          and this isn't all they do -- 800 plans is a  

 

21          lot of plans for them to review.  And then we  

 

22          also have to wait for them to go to the Smart  

 

23          Bonds Review because there's a smartboard  

 

24          that's responsible, it was someone from our  
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 1          office, the Division of Budget, and other  

 

 2          state agencies on the board.   

 

 3                 So this is something that is a  

 

 4          laborious process, and we would just again  

 

 5          ask for that 5 percent set-aside for any  

 

 6          additional new programs. 

 

 7                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  I think your  

 

 8          proposal for a 5 percent set-aside is  

 

 9          excellent.  I've been here quite a few years,  

 

10          and SED always seems to be literally  

 

11          desperate for the staff to do the work that  

 

12          we have the expectation that you'll do.   

 

13                 But I will again just point out that I  

 

14          feel getting money out to school districts  

 

15          once the public has voted a bond act through,  

 

16          and having to sit here and say 600 million  

 

17          has still not been awarded or allocated to be  

 

18          used -- again, over five years in -- is sort  

 

19          of a study in how you shouldn't do bond acts,  

 

20          versus how perhaps we should learn what to do  

 

21          before we make that kind of mistake again. 

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Agreed. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Because it's a  

 

24          lot of years for kids not to get the new  
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 1          improved technology and get out of -- get  

 

 2          back into classrooms, et cetera, et cetera,  

 

 3          et cetera. 

 

 4                 My colleague Senator Jackson had a   

 

 5          question he didn't -- he ran out of time for.   

 

 6          The Governor recently signed into law a bill  

 

 7          convening a commission to study education and  

 

 8          outcomes for students with English -- I guess  

 

 9          who are English language learners.   

 

10                 Do you have any opinions about how  

 

11          that's going to operate or what you hope this  

 

12          will accomplish? 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

14          that's something that we're still currently  

 

15          reviewing.  And we can -- we will work with  

 

16          the Legislature on forward steps on that,  

 

17          thank you. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Great. 

 

19                 And then, just finally, at some point  

 

20          today or tonight the Citizens Budget  

 

21          Commission will be testifying, and they put  

 

22          out a report today that says we have enough  

 

23          Foundation Aid money to meet everyone's  

 

24          requirement for a sound, basic education,  
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 1          we're just divvying it up wrong.   

 

 2                 And I'm -- it's an unfair question,  

 

 3          because I don't think you've read their  

 

 4          testimony.  But do you think it is possible  

 

 5          that it is maldistribution of Foundation Aid  

 

 6          and not just inadequate funding for our  

 

 7          schools?   

 

 8                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So I  

 

 9          can't attest to what -- for a sound, basic  

 

10          education, because obviously that's an issue  

 

11          in the litigation.   

 

12                 However, what I can say is some school  

 

13          districts do a brilliant job of allocating  

 

14          their resources in certain areas, and others  

 

15          don't.  We're seeing this even with our  

 

16          federal funds.  What we're noticing in our  

 

17          federal -- or title persons in our program  

 

18          office that operate the title funds is some  

 

19          districts just literally roll over their  

 

20          federal funding from one year to the next  

 

21          year to the next year without even looking at  

 

22          how they can allocate those resources to the  

 

23          needs of their districts.   

 

24                 So there are several districts that  
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 1          literally really need help in really managing  

 

 2          their fiscal affairs and figuring out how to  

 

 3          put their money where their needs are.  And I  

 

 4          think that's something that we're hoping that  

 

 5          districts see through our ESSA financial  

 

 6          transparency forms, is where they're spending  

 

 7          money, where schools are receiving more --  

 

 8          like if there's a school that has a lot of  

 

 9          ELL children or special needs populations,  

 

10          maybe really looking at your resources to say  

 

11          where should that funding go, where should --  

 

12          you know, where are the most needs in my  

 

13          district, and having a better understanding  

 

14          of how to allocate their resources according  

 

15          to their needs.   

 

16                 So I think it's both.  I think it's  

 

17          additional funding -- I would agree, I  

 

18          believe that additional funding is needed to  

 

19          provide high-quality education.  However, I  

 

20          do think districts need to do a better job  

 

21          allocating their resources to where their  

 

22          needs are. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  I have one more  

 

24          question from Senator Jackson.  I'm sure  
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 1          that's not true.  That sentence has never  

 

 2          been uttered and will never be uttered again,  

 

 3          excuse me.  But for me, one more question. 

 

 4                 How long do you think it should take  

 

 5          for New York City to rectify the backlog for  

 

 6          special ed cases.  As the State SED, what  

 

 7          kind of timeline is realistic if they have  

 

 8          10,000 open and 6,000 of them are now late?   

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So we're  

 

10          taking a multifaceted approach to this  

 

11          problem.  This is an extraordinary problem.   

 

12          New York City has 10,000 outstanding due  

 

13          process complaints, compared to 230 which we  

 

14          have in the rest of the state.  Meaning every  

 

15          other district in the state has 230 combined,  

 

16          where New York City has 10,000.   

 

17                 So there's an issue with how we're  

 

18          getting to 10,000 in the city.  So we are  

 

19          working with New York City to find out why  

 

20          are we receiving so many due process  

 

21          complaints?  Why do we have the 10,000 number  

 

22          in the first place?  Looking at ensuring that  

 

23          they provide a free, appropriate public  

 

24          education up-front, we're taking a systematic  
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 1          approach through our CAP, our Compliance  

 

 2          Assurance Plan, with the city.   

 

 3                 We also are taking a look and saying,  

 

 4          Take out anything that's an undisputed  

 

 5          pendency.  You know, take those out and don't  

 

 6          bring them to hearing.  Use mediation,  

 

 7          alternative dispute resolution.  Use other  

 

 8          methods besides just going -- taking  

 

 9          everything to a hearing, to try to reduce the  

 

10          10,000 number.   

 

11                 New York City has employed -- I think  

 

12          they said 40 additional attorneys in their  

 

13          hearing officer office to help support this  

 

14          work.  We've been working with them, we have  

 

15          a staff member that's in the city now that  

 

16          we've employed in that office to watch what's  

 

17          going on and make sure that these cases are  

 

18          being handled appropriately.  The city has  

 

19          been great with us in allowing her to come in  

 

20          and sit with them to try to figure out how to  

 

21          make this process smoother going forward.   

 

22                 We're also expanding the number of  

 

23          hearing officers, the board.  I'm hoping that  

 

24          we take action in March to expand the pool of  
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 1          hearing officers that are available to hear  

 

 2          these cases to reduce that backlog.   

 

 3                 So this is a multi-tiered approach.   

 

 4          And it isn't -- the hard part is this isn't  

 

 5          going to get fixed overnight, because it's  

 

 6          going to take multiple, you know, mechanisms  

 

 7          in place to reduce the number.  But we're  

 

 8          hoping and we're making -- we already see  

 

 9          improvements with the backlog.  It's just  

 

10          that we're -- it's -- you know, we're working  

 

11          on them right this second.   

 

12                 And this is the most -- and I just  

 

13          want to reiterate, the State Education  

 

14          Department has never done more in this area  

 

15          than they have over the past year.  We have  

 

16          issued the most comprehensive Compliance  

 

17          Assurance Plan to any other school district  

 

18          in the State of New York.  We have 150  

 

19          compliance areas for the New York City DOE  

 

20          throughout our CAP.  This is -- make no  

 

21          mistake, that we are taking this very  

 

22          seriously.  We have staff down there all the  

 

23          time on all phases of our CAP.   

 

24                 But this is the New York City  
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 1          Department of Education, serving over a third  

 

 2          of the students of our state.  So this is a  

 

 3          humongous problem that isn't going to happen  

 

 4          overnight, but we are doing everything we  

 

 5          can.  And the city has been collaborative  

 

 6          with the State Education Department at this  

 

 7          point on this effort.   

 

 8                 But this is something we care deeply  

 

 9          about.  I mean, Chris has done everything in  

 

10          his power, with his team, to help turn this  

 

11          around.  And we're hoping with the revised  

 

12          compensation policy, the additional hearing  

 

13          officers, reducing the 10,000 and taking out  

 

14          the mediation and using dispute resolution,  

 

15          that we can greatly reduce those numbers. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

17                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Oh, Chris  

 

18          has something to add. 

 

19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SURIANO:  I  

 

20          just wanted to add to that.  You know, to  

 

21          answer your question how long, what would be  

 

22          the time frame, we'll know in the next couple  

 

23          of months as we roll out a new compensation  

 

24          policy.   
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 1                 In the immediate, we need to have a  

 

 2          compensation policy that's going to bring  

 

 3          existing impartial hearing officers back into  

 

 4          rotation as well as we have just gone through  

 

 5          the interview process, we have about 40  

 

 6          candidates that we will be -- 40 new  

 

 7          candidates that we will be sending to  

 

 8          training to get certified as IHOs.   

 

 9                 So adding to the rotation in New York  

 

10          City, bringing back existing into rotation,  

 

11          adding into the new -- adding new IHOs into  

 

12          the rotation, then we'll start to be able to  

 

13          gauge how long, what would be a reasonable  

 

14          estimate to get rid of the backlog and then  

 

15          also start to take on those new cases. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

17                 Thank you, Assembly.   

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

19                 We go to Assemblywoman Hyndman. 

 

20                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you,  

 

21          Madam Chair.  I just got a text, my daughter  

 

22          forgot her lunch, so --  

 

23                 (Laughter.) 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  -- her  
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 1          teachers are always at work, and so -- 

 

 2                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  They are. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  So to the  

 

 4          commissioner, thank you.  I think -- like I  

 

 5          said last week, I think you're doing a great  

 

 6          job.  And I'm in a hundred percent alignment  

 

 7          with the Board of Regents' ask.  I think it  

 

 8          should be more, because we know they deserve  

 

 9          more, especially for the areas that expand  

 

10          teacher preparedness. 

 

11                 So I have a couple of questions, I'm  

 

12          going to try and get through them very  

 

13          quickly.  You said you have 25 vacancies in  

 

14          the teacher certification area? 

 

15                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  No,  

 

16          that's 24 that are open that we have waivers  

 

17          across the state for DOE throughout the  

 

18          entire department.   

 

19                 So this is a huge improvement, I want  

 

20          to reiterate that.  We used to have 200  

 

21          waivers sitting at the Division of Budget  

 

22          where we were waiting for approval, and  

 

23          they've done an enormous job and been really  

 

24          working collaboratively with State Ed on  
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 1          getting our approvals approved.   

 

 2                 So we're down to 24 to the -- that's  

 

 3          the entire department. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  The waivers. 

 

 5                 How many vacancies do you have in the  

 

 6          SED? 

 

 7                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I would  

 

 8          defer to Phyllis on that. 

 

 9                 SED CFO MORRIS:  So the 24, that's the  

 

10          number of vacancies that we've asked for  

 

11          approval to fill.   

 

12                 I think the point we've been making,  

 

13          though, is that we have staffing needs that  

 

14          we don't have funding for.  So if we don't  

 

15          have the funding, we can't make a request to  

 

16          the Division of Budget to fill the position  

 

17          because we would have no way to pay for it.   

 

18                 So then what we're looking for is when  

 

19          there's new mandates and new requirements,  

 

20          that that come with funding for staff so that  

 

21          we can then support and implement those  

 

22          programs with fidelity. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  So new  

 

24          mandates when you receive our study bills, is  
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 1          that what you mean? 

 

 2                 SED CFO MORRIS:  Anything where you're  

 

 3          looking for us to do additional work, we  

 

 4          would appreciate the resources. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Okay.  When it  

 

 6          comes to TASC -- I know we haven't talked  

 

 7          about that -- which area of SED does that  

 

 8          fall under?   

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

10          access, for adult --  

 

11                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Oh, it falls  

 

12          under the access, okay.   

 

13                 And of the -- how many charter schools  

 

14          do you still supervise in New York City that  

 

15          fell under SED jurisdiction?   

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  In  

 

17          New York City there was the cap of 50, for  

 

18          the New York City cap.  

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  It was 50? 

 

20                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  So you're at  

 

22          50 still? 

 

23                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  No --  

 

24          well, we're -- 
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 1                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  You lost --  

 

 2          some of those are now in the zombie category?   

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

 4          there's 18 that are the zombie schools, yes,  

 

 5          the ones that have closed or -- yes. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  And how much  

 

 7          staff do you have that does the oversight or  

 

 8          making sure that those schools are in  

 

 9          compliance and so forth?   

 

10                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Again, I  

 

11          think we have a pretty good staff in our  

 

12          Charter School Office to ensure that those  

 

13          charter schools are being operated with  

 

14          fidelity.   

 

15                 However, additional staff is always  

 

16          needed.  But again I think our Charter School  

 

17          Office is running pretty smoothly at this  

 

18          point. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Okay.  When it  

 

20          comes to safety and security of schools  

 

21          throughout the State of New York, how do you  

 

22          address that?  Is it -- and I went to the  

 

23          website a couple of months ago.  Is that  

 

24          through self-reporting that you ask the  
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 1          schools to give you their numbers, or are  

 

 2          there any state mandates that you send out to  

 

 3          districts throughout the State of New York  

 

 4          about what safety should look like or what  

 

 5          those standards are? 

 

 6                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, I  

 

 7          think that's something that we're actually  

 

 8          looking at right now, in light of the OSC  

 

 9          audit on our school safety issues.  We are  

 

10          working with our School Safety Task Force on  

 

11          these issues, and we've just issued -- we're  

 

12          trying to issue guidance right now on what  

 

13          the school building and plan requirements are  

 

14          district-wide plan requirements are, what you  

 

15          can do to ensure, you know, school safety.  

 

16                 Another thing we're looking at with  

 

17          school safety is that the Secret Service  

 

18          indicated that the biggest indicator or the  

 

19          way to prevent school safety issues is school  

 

20          climate.  And so we -- again, we're asking  

 

21          for an additional $3.4 million to support the  

 

22          school climate in our schools to ensure that  

 

23          they're safe and supportive. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Is that enough  
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 1          to make sure that our schools -- 3.4 million  

 

 2          is the ask?   

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  The  

 

 4          3.4 million would be -- that would provide  

 

 5          the department with additional staff and  

 

 6          resources to help our Technical Assistance  

 

 7          Center and the department, and to assist 16  

 

 8          additional schools in receiving safe and  

 

 9          supportive school grants.  So that's  

 

10          something we think will definitely help with  

 

11          this issue. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  I know that we  

 

13          recently passed a bill for a study of the  

 

14          facial recognition software.  Where -- are  

 

15          you seeing more requests from school  

 

16          districts for software of that nature or any  

 

17          kind of asks? 

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  We  

 

19          haven't seen additional requests for the --  

 

20          we know that there's a couple of districts  

 

21          that are interested in it, but we haven't  

 

22          seen additional requests.   

 

23                 In fact, as part of our Smart Bonds  

 

24          application, we're having school districts  
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 1          sign a disclaimer saying that they will not  

 

 2          be providing any PII, or personally  

 

 3          identifiable information, in order to receive  

 

 4          the monies.  So we've actually added the  

 

 5          disclaimer onto our Smart Bonds applications  

 

 6          before approving any facial recognition  

 

 7          technology or anything like that, that they  

 

 8          will not be providing any personally  

 

 9          identifiable information. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Is this the  

 

11          same Smart Bonds where money hasn't left that  

 

12          office yet?  Is this the same thing -- 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  1.4  

 

14          billion has left the office.  It's just an  

 

15          additional 600,000 that's left to go out the  

 

16          door.  Or 600 million, rather. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Oh, okay.  All  

 

18          right.  Thank you.   

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

20                 We go to Assemblywoman Nolan. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN NOLAN:  Thank you very  

 

22          much.  Old habits die hard, so I had to come.   

 

23          I want to thank Helene and Liz for their  

 

24          leadership.  I love being able to say that  
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 1          two women lead the financial committees of  

 

 2          the Legislature.  I want to thank Mike and  

 

 3          Shelley for their great leadership as a new  

 

 4          team. 

 

 5                 So just -- but three quick comments  

 

 6          and a question.  One, I'm happy to see that  

 

 7          the Regents put the state aid proposal  

 

 8          number-one priority.  But I do hope that  

 

 9          you'll continue to focus on the CFE decision  

 

10          itself and get into the issues of equity and  

 

11          finally coming to some fruition on that  

 

12          issue. 

 

13                 Two, and I should have said this  

 

14          first, I want to thank -- so many Regents are  

 

15          in the room, but I want to thank you for that  

 

16          wonderful tribute to Regent Johnson last  

 

17          night and the marvelous exhibit over at the  

 

18          State Museum on this priceless document, the  

 

19          Emancipation Proclamation first draft in  

 

20          Lincoln's own handwriting.  And I would urge  

 

21          every colleague and everybody here, and  

 

22          everyone watching, to see it.  It's very,  

 

23          very moving. 

 

24                 But I do want to -- by way of that, I  
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 1          don't see any mention in the proposal about  

 

 2          the My Brother's Keeper program.  And I know  

 

 3          Chancellor Carranza mentioned it, but that is  

 

 4          the signature accomplishment for me and  

 

 5          Speaker Heastie.  You know, we pushed for  

 

 6          that money.  We're the only state that has  

 

 7          answered the call by former President Barack  

 

 8          Obama to do that.  And we'd like to see a  

 

 9          little more emphasis -- I was surprised it  

 

10          wasn't in the document.   

 

11                 The third thing I want to say -- I see  

 

12          them sitting together, our brothers in the  

 

13          labor movement.  But you have a couple of  

 

14          proposals here about teacher opportunities  

 

15          and teacher training.  You can't train  

 

16          teachers without mentioning the word  

 

17          "principal," which I don't see in the  

 

18          document at all.  And I think even the  

 

19          teachers will understand that if we don't  

 

20          have our principals where they need to be --  

 

21          I could tell you from the dozens and dozens,  

 

22          maybe hundreds of schools I visited over 12  

 

23          years, if the principal is not on the ball,  

 

24          you could have the greatest teachers in the  
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 1          world -- the principal is very key.  I was  

 

 2          surprised not to see that in the document.   

 

 3                 And then the fourth thing is a  

 

 4          question -- I just don't understand why we  

 

 5          can't get it done.  We've been talking about  

 

 6          Career and Technical Education for a long  

 

 7          time.  And credentialed programs are moving  

 

 8          towards being associate degree programs.   

 

 9          Assemblywoman Deborah Glick, if she was here,  

 

10          would tell you all professions want  

 

11          additional certifications and licensures.   

 

12                 We've been trying to get the support  

 

13          of the department and the city to make a  

 

14          school like Aviation High School, in my  

 

15          district -- you know, I can be a little more  

 

16          local now because I'm not chairing the  

 

17          committee, so I can put my local issue out  

 

18          there as a member of the Legislature.  We  

 

19          have been trying -- and Regent Chin has  

 

20          certainly helped us, as Regent Young has done  

 

21          locally.   

 

22                 But honestly, I don't understand why  

 

23          we have a community college literally on the  

 

24          next block, everyone is on board, but somehow  
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 1          it never happens.  And what I'm afraid of is  

 

 2          that one day, at a school like Aviation,  

 

 3          which has two FAA licenses, the FAA is going  

 

 4          to say you need an associate's degree, and we  

 

 5          will not have put that program in place,  

 

 6          whether it's early college or whatever the  

 

 7          name is -- you know, there's so many State Ed  

 

 8          programs.  Every name has "education" in it.   

 

 9          You know, so difficult to figure out how you  

 

10          get the funding.   

 

11                 You must do that.  It's not just  

 

12          Aviation, it's Queens Vocational, it's many  

 

13          other schools in -- some of them happen to be  

 

14          in my district, but they're throughout the  

 

15          state.  You must begin to move credentialed  

 

16          CTE programs to partnerships with  

 

17          associate-degree programs in our community  

 

18          colleges.  And it's very frustrating to me  

 

19          that even though I served 12 years as the  

 

20          chair and begged and begged and begged, I  

 

21          don't even see any mention of it in the  

 

22          document.   

 

23                 So those are the four.  CFE is  

 

24          important, My Brother's Keeper is important,  
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 1          our teachers and our principals are  

 

 2          important -- and then can you help us on  

 

 3          that?   

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So I'll  

 

 5          just take a little second to say principals  

 

 6          are essential.  All of our educators --  

 

 7          teachers, principals, administrators.  We did  

 

 8          mention in our documents the transferring  

 

 9          teacher and leader preparation programs from  

 

10          birth to Grade 3.  This is something that our  

 

11          blue ribbon committee recommended for birth  

 

12          to Grade 3, improving our principal  

 

13          preparation programs in those areas.   

 

14                 So our principals are very important  

 

15          to us.  You're right, I should have probably  

 

16          reflected that even more in my presentation,  

 

17          I will do so next year. 

 

18                 With respect to Campaign for Fiscal  

 

19          Equity, we are in support of additional  

 

20          funding for equity for all children in the  

 

21          state, so let me just be clear about that.   

 

22                 With respect to My Brother's Keeper,  

 

23          that was mentioned in my proposal.  The  

 

24          reason I didn't mention it even further is  
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 1          the Executive proposal contains the  

 

 2          $18 million in funding and continues our  

 

 3          funding for My Brother's Keeper.  So in my  

 

 4          testimony I just noted that we support that  

 

 5          and we would like to continue that  

 

 6          $18 million funding for My Brother's Keeper,  

 

 7          because this is a nationally recognized  

 

 8          program and one we're very proud of.  So  

 

 9          thank you for mentioning that.   

 

10                 On the Aviation School, that is  

 

11          something I'm not personally aware of, but I  

 

12          will go back and confer with our staff on  

 

13          this and try to figure out what's going on  

 

14          with that. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN NOLAN:  It's not just  

 

16          that school, it's CTE schools generally and  

 

17          not getting the certification programs -- the  

 

18          associate degree programs that they need.   

 

19                 Could you comment on that, or anybody? 

 

20                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I will  

 

21          bring that back and look into that -- unless,  

 

22          John, unless you know additional information  

 

23          on that. 

 

24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER D'AGATI:  No.  I  
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 1          would just comment that with our review of  

 

 2          graduation requirements, graduation measures  

 

 3          for high school, maybe this is an opportunity  

 

 4          to look at the kind of -- build that kind of  

 

 5          layering of certification.  Because I was  

 

 6          there, and they do a great job. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN NOLAN:  My time is up,  

 

 8          but I'd like a -- maybe we can pursue that.   

 

 9          That's not really the answer we were hoping  

 

10          for. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

12                 Assemblywoman Seawright. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  Thank you,  

 

14          Commissioner, for your testimony today.  In  

 

15          your role as president of the University of  

 

16          the State of New York, you work with all  

 

17          sectors of higher education, including their  

 

18          teacher training programs.   

 

19                 So what is being done or should be  

 

20          done to foster greater partnerships and  

 

21          sharing of best practices between CUNY, SUNY  

 

22          and the private colleges, to assure that  

 

23          New York produces the best teachers? 

 

24                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I'm going  
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 1          to ask John to respond to that, as our former  

 

 2          deputy commissioner for higher education. 

 

 3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER D'AGATI:  So we do  

 

 4          work and -- in terms of we look at the  

 

 5          preparation and the various ways in which  

 

 6          programs change their preparation.  And we do  

 

 7          try to share that out.  We make other  

 

 8          institutions aware of the way they're doing  

 

 9          things. 

 

10                 I know that there have been a lot of  

 

11          efforts to build stronger partnerships  

 

12          between the preparation programs and the  

 

13          P-12, to get input into what it is that the  

 

14          P-12 community needs from teachers, to also  

 

15          build into the preparation an understanding  

 

16          of cultural responsiveness.  And so we've  

 

17          built that in.  We also work with the  

 

18          preparation programs to make sure that  

 

19          they're aware of changes in the standards and  

 

20          the learning standards so that as they  

 

21          prepare teachers, teachers know what it is  

 

22          they're supposed to be doing going in. 

 

23                 So there's ongoing work to try to  

 

24          ensure that they are staying current with the  
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 1          new standards and new requirements. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 Also, Chairman Benedetto and you,  

 

 4          Commissioner, talked earlier about curriculum  

 

 5          bills.  Senator Hoylman and I both have a  

 

 6          bill that we're carrying for LGBTQ  

 

 7          curriculum.  And last year being the  

 

 8          anniversary of the Stonewall Riots, my  

 

 9          district being the -- parts of the Upper East  

 

10          Side of Manhattan and Roosevelt Island, I  

 

11          feel very strongly that we need to  

 

12          incorporate that. 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  And I  

 

14          think that's something that we even -- might  

 

15          even consider as part of our civic education  

 

16          in celebrating tolerance for diversity.  This  

 

17          might be something that we might want to  

 

18          partner with, you know, with the civic  

 

19          education piece of the changes that we think  

 

20          need to be made to our social studies  

 

21          curriculum.   

 

22                 So we would be willing to collaborate  

 

23          with the Legislature on this.  So thank you. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  And the  
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 1          State of New Jersey also passed this  

 

 2          statewide. 

 

 3                 Thank you. 

 

 4                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

 5          you.   

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  I'm sorry, we  

 

 7          go to Assemblyman Otis. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Thank you.   

 

 9                 And thank you for your long service to  

 

10          the State Education Department.  You're  

 

11          getting to enjoy being commissioner, but you  

 

12          bring a lot of experience to the job, so  

 

13          thank you for all of that. 

 

14                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

15          you.  Thank you. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  I wanted to focus  

 

17          in -- you've heard a number of questions  

 

18          about staffing levels in a lot of categories.   

 

19          I wanted to focus in on the staffing levels  

 

20          on the unit that does the Smarts Schools Bond  

 

21          Act.  But is that also the same crew that is  

 

22          doing all the construction approvals?   

 

23                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  And that is also  
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 1          the same number of people that are doing the  

 

 2          approvals for security -- 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  That's  

 

 4          exactly right.  All of those issues are with  

 

 5          our three people that we have that do Smart  

 

 6          Bonds work.   

 

 7                 As I indicated, those three people do  

 

 8          multiple -- serve multiple capacities, one of  

 

 9          which is to review our Smart Bonds  

 

10          applications.  So as I said before, we really  

 

11          do need additional resources at the  

 

12          department.   

 

13                 If you think of the breadth of what  

 

14          the State Education Department does, it  

 

15          surely is vast and significant.  And I think  

 

16          we need the resources to do the work which  

 

17          we're obligated to do.  And we want to do it  

 

18          with fidelity, thoughtfully, carefully.  And  

 

19          to do that, we need additional resources.   

 

20          And I can't emphasize that enough. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  And so I think  

 

22          everyone here is sympathetic, and I think  

 

23          that in retrospect, when the Smart Schools  

 

24          Bond Act was approved, we probably should  
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 1          have dedicated some separate people to do  

 

 2          that, and that would have sped things up. 

 

 3                 But you have, I believe, instituted --  

 

 4          there is an option for districts to  

 

 5          self-certify for some construction.  Is there  

 

 6          some -- could you describe that so people can  

 

 7          hear that you have tried to do something to  

 

 8          provide some end-arounds to speed things up?   

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes,  

 

10          thank you for mentioning that.   

 

11                 Actually, with our facilities work,  

 

12          because of the concerns that we heard from  

 

13          you all last year -- in the last couple of  

 

14          years, I should say -- we have implemented a  

 

15          process where essentially school districts  

 

16          can go through -- you know, they can go  

 

17          through us or they can pay an additional fee  

 

18          and go through our BOCES or a third-party  

 

19          contractor to have those approved as well,  

 

20          their facilities projects can have an  

 

21          expedited review.  So we are using, you  

 

22          know, -- you know, we have streamlined the  

 

23          process in some ways.  So they have the  

 

24          option of either going to State Ed or paying  
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 1          an additional fee for an expedited review. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  And is that  

 

 3          available for security projects as well, or  

 

 4          just general big projects? 

 

 5                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I believe  

 

 6          it's just facilities, but I will have to  

 

 7          clarify that for you.  And we can certainly  

 

 8          get back to you on that. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  And they're  

 

10          probably not available for Smart School ones. 

 

11                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  No. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Oh, okay.  So --  

 

13          but I think probably sharing more information  

 

14          back with the Legislature in terms of some of  

 

15          the nitty-gritty on how we could work towards  

 

16          trying to speed all this up.   

 

17                 For school districts, when it comes to  

 

18          the capital construction things, the delay in  

 

19          getting approvals can be costly, especially  

 

20          if we're in an environment where there are  

 

21          changes in the Building Aid reimbursement.   

 

22                 And so one thing we're hearing from  

 

23          districts is we've lost time in terms of  

 

24          getting approvals, and now there's a  
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 1          possibility that some of our reimbursement  

 

 2          levels for Building Aid might go down, and  

 

 3          then what do we say to people that approved a  

 

 4          referendum in a certain amount and it's going  

 

 5          to cost us more because our reimbursement is  

 

 6          less?   

 

 7                 These are some of the nuts-and-bolts  

 

 8          problems that school districts and school  

 

 9          district finance people have to deal with.   

 

10          And I think all of us in state government  

 

11          need to find ways to sort of buffer that kind  

 

12          of uncertainty. 

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes.  And  

 

14          actually we'll take a look too at our process  

 

15          and see if there's any other additional ways  

 

16          to streamline that.   

 

17                 One additional thing that I forgot to  

 

18          mention is that we need architects for these  

 

19          projects.  And so, you know, we're working  

 

20          with Civil Service on figuring out different  

 

21          ways in which we can classify these  

 

22          architects and figuring out additional  

 

23          ways -- right now the monies that they're  

 

24          receiving, or the payment for, you know, the  
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 1          state position, it isn't enough.  And so  

 

 2          we're having a hard time recruiting and  

 

 3          retaining architects to review these  

 

 4          projects, because we need architects to make  

 

 5          sure that they're safe and sound school  

 

 6          districts.   

 

 7                 So this is another challenge that  

 

 8          we're facing.  So we're working on that issue  

 

 9          as well.  But we are doing multiple things to  

 

10          try to address this issue, and thank you for  

 

11          bringing it up.  We do know we need to do  

 

12          better, and we will work to do better. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Well, thank you,  

 

14          and thank you all for the great work that you  

 

15          do. 

 

16                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

17          you.   

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

19                 We go to Assemblywoman Walsh. 

 

20                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Thank you.   

 

21                 My question is -- I don't believe it's  

 

22          been asked yet today, but with the  

 

23          elimination of the religious exemption and  

 

24          the tightening up of the medical exception  
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 1          for vaccinations, I'm wondering your thoughts  

 

 2          on what impact it's had on the New York State  

 

 3          schools.  I mean, certainly it's had an  

 

 4          impact on parents who are -- some of whom are  

 

 5          in a position where they're home-schooling  

 

 6          now, are being forced to home-school where  

 

 7          they hadn't before.   

 

 8                 So is there any specific ask in SED's  

 

 9          budget request?  Or what do you see is the  

 

10          role, if any, that SED plays in trying to  

 

11          help families out here? 

 

12                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Well, it  

 

13          was a little bit crazy at first when the  

 

14          legislation first went through -- I'm going  

 

15          to be honest.  It was enormous.  We had phone  

 

16          calls coming out of the -- I mean, it was  

 

17          just -- the amount of questions we had,  

 

18          concerns, it was resounding at the  

 

19          department.   

 

20                 But to be frankly honest, it has  

 

21          calmed down a lot.  You know, we don't have  

 

22          anywhere near as many calls or issues with  

 

23          this any longer.  And I think the idea is  

 

24          either people -- by now the 14 days and the  
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 1          30 days have passed, so people are finding  

 

 2          placements -- either they're home-schooling  

 

 3          their children or they're getting them  

 

 4          vaccinated in accordance with the schedule  

 

 5          that was outlined in the ACIP schedule.  So  

 

 6          thankfully, I think that the pressure on this  

 

 7          has gone way down. 

 

 8                 We are trying to figure out right  

 

 9          now -- trying to get a handle on the data  

 

10          collection, because we don't have data on the  

 

11          number that held religious exemptions, there  

 

12          was no way to tie it to how many kids have  

 

13          been home-schooled.  So we're trying to  

 

14          figure out how many of the 26,000 -- which is  

 

15          the approximate number that we were given by  

 

16          DOH -- how many of those 26,000 kids ended up  

 

17          getting home-schooled, how many got the  

 

18          vaccinations. 

 

19                 So we're working through how we can  

 

20          try to quantify that, because there was no  

 

21          way to tie the two numbers.  So this is  

 

22          something we're looking at internally at the  

 

23          department.   

 

24                 But our School Health Office has been  
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 1          amazing.  And DOH was an amazing partner on  

 

 2          this.  And it's one of the things I feel very  

 

 3          proud of:  The Department of Health and State  

 

 4          Ed worked, you know, tirelessly on this  

 

 5          project, and we can't thank them enough.  It  

 

 6          really -- together we, you know, figured out  

 

 7          ways to address the challenges that -- I  

 

 8          mean, the field was -- it was unbelievable  

 

 9          the amount of questions we were getting.  And  

 

10          we were able to answer them.  And I think  

 

11          both agencies did a great job in trying to  

 

12          get this issue resolved. 

 

13                 So, I mean, there's still questions,  

 

14          but it's nothing like what we were facing  

 

15          before.   

 

16                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Well, I can say  

 

17          for myself that pretty much my whole summer  

 

18          was spent meeting with families, almost --  

 

19          well, certainly every week.  Lots of calls.   

 

20          It had a big impact in my district.  And I  

 

21          think that the way that it all kind of came  

 

22          down, it did come very, very suddenly and  

 

23          created a lot of -- a lot of -- you know,  

 

24          unhappiness would be a mild term to use.  And  
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 1          the catch-up schedule, which I know is not  

 

 2          your responsibility, but the catch-up  

 

 3          schedule is very, you know, aggressive. 

 

 4                 So I guess the last question I've  

 

 5          got in just the little bit of remaining time  

 

 6          I have, is a really big global question, not  

 

 7          really so much tied to a specific budget  

 

 8          request.  But as I've been looking at  

 

 9          New York's education spending compared to  

 

10          other states, we have -- don't we have the  

 

11          highest per-pupil spending out of all  

 

12          50 states?   

 

13                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, we  

 

14          do.  It's almost 20,000 -- I think it's  

 

15          20,000 a student.  So yes -- 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Twenty-two  

 

17          thousand and --  

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes,  

 

19          22,000.  

 

20                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  -- 231 dollars  

 

21          per student. 

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  What -- and yet  

 

24          at least some of the reports I've looked at  
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 1          doesn't rank New York number one.  I think  

 

 2          the one ranking I was looking at was saying  

 

 3          that Arizona was number one.  And their  

 

 4          per-pupil spending is around $7,700 per  

 

 5          student. 

 

 6                 So how do you -- how do you account  

 

 7          for that?  And how do -- I mean, these budget  

 

 8          requests are so large.  What unique  

 

 9          challenges does New York have that perhaps  

 

10          can explain to people why the costs are so  

 

11          high? 

 

12                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  I think  

 

13          New York has many unique needs.  And I think  

 

14          our student population is much more diverse.   

 

15          I think we probably have, you know, many more  

 

16          English language learners and students with  

 

17          disabilities than any other state.  I think  

 

18          we also have -- you know, there's high  

 

19          pension costs, health benefit costs for these  

 

20          teachers.  I think that's a large component  

 

21          of a school district's budget is their  

 

22          pension and benefit costs.   

 

23                 And so, you know, that's some of the  

 

24          challenges that we face in New York State.   
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 1          And I think too, you know, some districts do  

 

 2          a really great job of spending their money in  

 

 3          appropriate places, and others maybe don't.   

 

 4                 I think some of the other issues are  

 

 5          that we expect more in New York State for our  

 

 6          school districts.  Our expectations are a lot  

 

 7          higher with respect to how much we expect not  

 

 8          just on the educational needs of the student,  

 

 9          but the whole social-emotional aspect of a  

 

10          child and what our expectations are, you  

 

11          know, on the whole child in New York.  And I  

 

12          think that's something that we celebrate, but  

 

13          it does cost more money too.   

 

14                 So I think that all of those things  

 

15          together are, you know, part of the reason  

 

16          that we have an increased cost in the State  

 

17          of New York. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

19                 We go to Senator Betty Little. 

 

20                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Thank you very much.   

 

21                 I just had a question in regard to  

 

22          pre-K.  And some of my schools have it --  

 

23          they got into it at the beginning -- and some  

 

24          don't.  And the ones that have it, you know,  
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 1          are restricted.  There really is not the room  

 

 2          to grow their program unless they put money  

 

 3          in from the taxpayers and up their property  

 

 4          tax and their levy, which they have a  

 

 5          restriction on. 

 

 6                 So when they see that now we're doing  

 

 7          3-year-olds in other parts of the state and  

 

 8          they have waiting lists to come into their  

 

 9          existing 4-year-old program, and other  

 

10          schools don't even have the 4-year-old  

 

11          program, it's very difficult.   

 

12                 And I know you said there's more money  

 

13          for 4,000 more slots.  But do you consider  

 

14          those that are in need of growing a little  

 

15          bit or being able to do more because they  

 

16          are -- they can't fund it themselves any more  

 

17          than they already are, and yet they have  

 

18          waiting lists full. 

 

19                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So I'll  

 

20          first take your statements on the  

 

21          3-year-olds.  One of the things that the  

 

22          Board of Regents have always said is we  

 

23          should fully fund our 4-year-olds before we  

 

24          start getting into 3-year-olds, because we  
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 1          need --  

 

 2                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Amen. 

 

 3                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  -- to  

 

 4          make sure we get that population of children,  

 

 5          all students in the state, covered for our  

 

 6          4-year-old programs, and then think about our  

 

 7          3-year-old population.   

 

 8                 So I think that's something that we've  

 

 9          always felt strongly about, is that you've  

 

10          got to ensure your 4-year-old program is  

 

11          strong enough before you can add additional  

 

12          slots for 3-year-olds. 

 

13                 Secondly, with respect to supporting  

 

14          existing programs, our funding request would  

 

15          be for additional slots.  But I think you're  

 

16          right, there are many preschool programs who  

 

17          aren't adequately being funded for the  

 

18          children that they are currently serving, and  

 

19          that would be an additional request on top of  

 

20          our $20 million request for additional slots.   

 

21                 But you're right, they can be limited  

 

22          in what they -- you know, the funding that's  

 

23          provided at the state level, so they may not  

 

24          be able to serve their current population in  
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 1          the way they would like without additional  

 

 2          supports and resources.   

 

 3                 So thank you. 

 

 4                 SENATOR LITTLE:  And in rural areas,  

 

 5          transportation is a big thing.  And I don't  

 

 6          know why you can't fund -- reimburse for  

 

 7          transportation of pre-K children.  Many  

 

 8          schools are transporting them, because these  

 

 9          children would not be able to get to the  

 

10          program and get back home without it.  And  

 

11          yet they don't get funded for it. 

 

12                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes, I  

 

13          think this is something we should look into  

 

14          as well. 

 

15                 SENATOR LITTLE:  All right.  Thank you  

 

16          very much. 

 

17                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We now go for  

 

18          Assemblyman Ra. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Good afternoon.   

 

20                 So I have a question on behalf of a  

 

21          number of my colleagues.  And I know this  

 

22          isn't the State Education Department's fault  

 

23          that this happens, but as I'm sure the  

 

24          department is aware, each year school  
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 1          districts miss deadlines, for whatever  

 

 2          reason -- sometimes it's on building issues,  

 

 3          transportation contracts -- and they come to  

 

 4          members of the Legislature that represent  

 

 5          them and ask them to introduce legislation so  

 

 6          that they don't end up being penalized.   

 

 7                 And the Governor has oftentimes vetoed  

 

 8          those bills which, you know, would have given  

 

 9          the department the opportunity to forgive  

 

10          what sometimes is as simple as, you know, a  

 

11          clerical mistake or something that got mailed  

 

12          that maybe didn't get received for whatever  

 

13          reason.  And the Governor cites budgetary  

 

14          issues with it but doesn't actually -- you  

 

15          know, there haven't been proposals to put  

 

16          that information in the budget.   

 

17                 Is there any communication between the  

 

18          department and the Executive to find a way to  

 

19          address those?  Some of them have been  

 

20          introduced, passed by the Legislature  

 

21          multiple times, and then vetoed. 

 

22                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Yes,  

 

23          we've actually been in contact with the  

 

24          Executive on these issues.   
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 1                 It's one -- our Regents priority  

 

 2          mandate relief bill does two things.  It  

 

 3          requests blanket forgiveness for all final  

 

 4          late cost reports.  That's something we feel  

 

 5          strongly.  These one-off bills allowing some  

 

 6          districts to get forgiveness and not others  

 

 7          is, again, an equity issue.  If we believe  

 

 8          it's okay for one, let's make all -- let's  

 

 9          allow all districts to be forgiven.   

 

10                 On late transportation contracts,  

 

11          that's something else we're asking for.  It  

 

12          needs a legislative change.  It's not a  

 

13          monetary ask, it's a legislative change, a  

 

14          statutory change to allow, you know,  

 

15          inadvertent errors in submissions where they  

 

16          just filed their transportation contract  

 

17          late -- not because they didn't enter into a  

 

18          contract or do it with fidelity, but just  

 

19          because they inadvertently, you know, didn't  

 

20          submit it on time -- that those also be  

 

21          forgiven.   

 

22                 So these are things that we are in  

 

23          communication with the Executive on. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Okay.  Thank you. 
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 1                 On a totally separate topic, last year  

 

 2          the Legislature passed some changes again to  

 

 3          the teacher evaluation, with the eye towards  

 

 4          decoupling from the state exams.  You know,  

 

 5          many of us were looking for that for years,  

 

 6          from the time when the Governor had pushed  

 

 7          forward that policy.   

 

 8                 But there were concerns that were  

 

 9          raised that it could -- because they would  

 

10          have to use some other state-approved rubric  

 

11          or exam, that it could actually increase the  

 

12          use of other tests, when we know the state  

 

13          exams are going to be given regardless,  

 

14          because they're federally mandated. 

 

15                 What has the department's experience  

 

16          been thus far with implementing those  

 

17          changes?   

 

18                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  So those  

 

19          regulations were just recently implemented,  

 

20          and we're revising the regulations actually  

 

21          this month, today -- actually, the Board of  

 

22          Regents just revised those regulations to  

 

23          implement the new law.  We had received  

 

24          comment during the first public comment  
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 1          period, so we were revising the regs to allow  

 

 2          for some additional options for  

 

 3          administrative or principals to -- based on  

 

 4          the comments we received from the  

 

 5          administrative associations.   

 

 6                 So those regulations will hopefully be  

 

 7          finalized sometime later in the -- probably  

 

 8          May of June of this year.  But we haven't,  

 

 9          you know, had a chance to look at the impact  

 

10          yet of those.  But one of the things that  

 

11          legislation left districts with the option  

 

12          they can use state assessments.  They're not  

 

13          forced to use third-party contractors.  So  

 

14          districts have the option of either using the  

 

15          state assessment or assessment through a  

 

16          third-party contractor.  So it allows them  

 

17          the option.   

 

18                 So districts can weigh their financial  

 

19          needs.  So it has tried to address that. 

 

20                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  And just lastly, a  

 

21          comment.  I just want to thank you for the  

 

22          focus in your testimony and your submission  

 

23          regarding preschool special education.  As  

 

24          Chair Benedetto had mentioned, you know, we  
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 1          know that the 4410s and those staff and  

 

 2          teachers are paid far less than what they  

 

 3          would otherwise, and it leads to huge issues  

 

 4          with maintaining staff.   

 

 5                 And I'm glad to see the department has  

 

 6          focused on trying to help push for changes in  

 

 7          those rates so that we can address that  

 

 8          issue. 

 

 9                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  They  

 

10          really do need to be redone, they're way  

 

11          outdated.  So we have been looking forward to  

 

12          this for years now, and we really need to  

 

13          look at the funding formula. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

15          That concludes all of the questions members  

 

16          have for you. 

 

17                 INTERIM COMMISSIONER TAHOE:  Thank  

 

18          you.  Thank you. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

20          being here.  Thank you for the number of the  

 

21          Regents who have joined us today.   

 

22                 This ends the government portion of  

 

23          the Elementary/Secondary Education hearing. 

 

24                 As I mentioned at the beginning of the  
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 1          hearing, for the nongovernmental witnesses,  

 

 2          each witness has five minutes.  Your  

 

 3          testimony has already been circulated to the  

 

 4          members.  So to the extent you can summarize  

 

 5          and not read verbatim, you will have  

 

 6          opportunity to make your main points heard,  

 

 7          and opportunity for the people at the end of  

 

 8          the witness list to be able to have an  

 

 9          opportunity to speak before the members of  

 

10          the Legislature. 

 

11                 So as State Ed leaves, we're next  

 

12          going to hear from a panel of UFT, United  

 

13          Federation of Teachers, Michael Mulgrew and  

 

14          Cassie Prugh, to be joined with the New York  

 

15          State United Teachers, NYSUT, Andrew  

 

16          Pallotta, Alithia Rolon. 

 

17                 (Discussion off the record.) 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We had UFT  

 

19          first, but whichever -- Andrew, proceed.  So  

 

20          you have five minutes to share for NYSUT,  

 

21          five minutes for UFT. 

 

22                 MR. MULGREW:  Okay, got it.  Very  

 

23          good. 

 

24                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Chairperson Weinstein,  
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 1          members of the Legislature, thank you for  

 

 2          having us today.  I am Andy Pallotta,  

 

 3          president of New York State United Teachers,  

 

 4          representing over 600,000 members in  

 

 5          education and healthcare.   

 

 6                 I'm joined today by Michael Mulgrew,  

 

 7          president of UFT, Cassie Prugh, assistant to  

 

 8          the president, and Alithia Rodriguez Rolon,  

 

 9          the director of legislation. 

 

10                 You have copies of my written  

 

11          testimony, but I'm going to follow a  

 

12          different path today.  I would love to talk  

 

13          about some of the things that have been  

 

14          circulating, we've heard here today.  Don't  

 

15          get me wrong, I would love to go very deep  

 

16          into the $3.4 billion that is owed to  

 

17          schools around the state, I'd love to talk  

 

18          about that.  I'd also be happy to talk about  

 

19          the 1.8 percent tax cap that is also giving  

 

20          school districts a very hard time.  I'd be  

 

21          happy to talk about the Executive Budget's  

 

22          14 percent increase in funding for the  

 

23          charter industry at a time when we should be  

 

24          addressing the inequality in our public  
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 1          schools.  But let's face it, talking about  

 

 2          numbers is only part of the story, and I want  

 

 3          to share something about our members. 

 

 4                 And many of you have been with us as  

 

 5          we've done this bus tour around this great  

 

 6          state, and we've been calling out the message  

 

 7          of funding schools properly.  We have had  

 

 8          some beautiful stories from our members, from  

 

 9          parents, from superintendents, school board  

 

10          members.   

 

11                 When we were in White Plains, we heard  

 

12          stories of having only two guidance  

 

13          counselors instead of six in one school.  And  

 

14          in all the years that the guidance counselor  

 

15          had been in the school, she said they had  

 

16          never had so many students coming from  

 

17          homeless shelters and that the standards and  

 

18          benchmarks are increasing at the same time  

 

19          that the students' needs are.  So what they  

 

20          were asking for are speech therapists,  

 

21          reading intervention teachers. 

 

22                 We also went to Long Island,  

 

23          Port Washington, where we heard from the  

 

24          psychologist there, who told us that if the  
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 1          children aren't emotionally ready to learn,  

 

 2          it makes that so much harder, and they need  

 

 3          to be provided with the high-quality  

 

 4          education.   

 

 5                 We spent time in Schenevus; they have  

 

 6          cut their AP courses and increased class  

 

 7          sizes.  While the visit was going on, it was  

 

 8          raining in the classroom, and they had black  

 

 9          mold growing on the walls. 

 

10                 And I think the saddest story that we  

 

11          have been witness to is the simply egregious  

 

12          problems in Rochester, where we know that the  

 

13          schools had to lay off 100 teachers and  

 

14          support staff in December, and these midyear  

 

15          cuts were very, very disruptive to all of the  

 

16          students and the programs that were in the  

 

17          schools at the time.  We looked at the  

 

18          students and the staff at the Board of  

 

19          Education meeting there while they spoke  

 

20          about the issues at hand and then were  

 

21          sobbing when the Board of Education said:   

 

22          "We must lay off these folks." 

 

23                 When we visited Rochester again last  

 

24          week, we heard from Dujuane Spencer, a  
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 1          teaching assistant, who said "We feel  

 

 2          abandoned by state government, and it seems  

 

 3          like we're in Hurricane Katrina, where there  

 

 4          are no helicopters, there are no rescue  

 

 5          vehicles coming to us, but yet we had to lay  

 

 6          off a hundred educators." 

 

 7                 These stories are everywhere in the  

 

 8          state -- social workers, mental health needs,  

 

 9          these are what we're hearing.  These are  

 

10          necessities.  We're not talking about  

 

11          luxuries, and luxuries would be ridiculous at  

 

12          this time.  We know that folks want to tinker  

 

13          with the formula.  We don't think it's a good  

 

14          thing now to tinker and play around with the  

 

15          formula.  It is time to fund the formula.   

 

16          Playing shell games with different pots of  

 

17          school aid by collapsing them into  

 

18          Foundation Aid is just wrong.  And robbing  

 

19          Peter to pay Paul, again, is just wrong:   

 

20          It's shifting money from one place to  

 

21          another. 

 

22                 From Brooklyn to Buffalo, Plattsburgh  

 

23          to Patchogue, they've been talking about the  

 

24          basic education needs.  We've talked about  
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 1          revenue and that $2.1 billion increase we are  

 

 2          asking for in state aid.  We talk about  

 

 3          revenue with 112 billionaires in this state,  

 

 4          with half a trillion in wealth, and 46,000  

 

 5          multimillionaires.   

 

 6                 The money is there.  We know that this  

 

 7          is something that we can do.  We know that  

 

 8          it's difficult to raise taxes during an  

 

 9          election year, but I also say during an  

 

10          election year and anytime, it is difficult to  

 

11          teach with conditions that don't support the  

 

12          students, where we can't see this happening  

 

13          going into the future.  And we talk about a  

 

14          pie and a big pie, and that's why -- that's  

 

15          why I brought our pizza by, because we're  

 

16          talking about -- and there's no food in it, I  

 

17          apologize for that {shows empty pizza box}.   

 

18          We couldn't bring food into the hearing room.   

 

19          But we would love to fill this and not have  

 

20          our folks, the students, fighting about the  

 

21          same pie around the state. 

 

22                 And I know my time is up, but what we  

 

23          need is a bigger pie.  Thank you. 

 

24                 Now I'll turn it over to Michael  
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 1          Mulgrew. 

 

 2                 MR. MULGREW:  I'm sorry, I have no  

 

 3          food props. 

 

 4                 (Laughter.) 

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Okay.  We don't  

 

 6          allow props, but the food was enticing.  The  

 

 7          potential for food was enticing. 

 

 8                 (Laughter.) 

 

 9                 MR. MULGREW:  First I want to thank  

 

10          all the members of the Assembly and the  

 

11          Senate, and to the chairs, for being here  

 

12          today.   

 

13                 I want to first thank you also for  

 

14          what you've done in the past -- funding the  

 

15          Teacher Centers.  The award-winning,  

 

16          recognized Teacher Centers have now become  

 

17          pivotal as we move forward.  As we change our  

 

18          standards in New York State, it will be the  

 

19          Teacher Centers that will be driving this  

 

20          change.   

 

21                 We will not make the same mistake that  

 

22          was made with the Common Core, as many of  

 

23          you -- if you do not remember, we changed  

 

24          standards, we did change curriculum, we did  
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 1          not change professional development, and then  

 

 2          we had a debacle on our hands.  And it was  

 

 3          myself and Mr. Pallotta standing here for  

 

 4          years telling you that was coming. 

 

 5                 This time we are working with the  

 

 6          State Education Department and with the  

 

 7          Teacher Centers to make sure that it is being  

 

 8          done properly. 

 

 9                 The United Community Schools, I want  

 

10          to thank you for your funding for that in the  

 

11          past.  We are now not just in New York City,  

 

12          we are working with a school in Albany.  And  

 

13          we are moving forward with our community  

 

14          school project.  This heavy-duty, intensive  

 

15          integration of services inside of our schools  

 

16          we believe is the future for all public  

 

17          education. 

 

18                 And our Positive Learning  

 

19          Collaborative, which we can now say -- and we  

 

20          thank you for your support last year --  

 

21          suspensions are dramatically down, the  

 

22          climate is up, and the parents are happy. 

 

23                 So all of those things have been very,  

 

24          very successful.  But let's get down to how  
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 1          do we move forward.  When are we, as a state,  

 

 2          finally going to make the decision to move to  

 

 3          a Foundation Aid formula?  It's been, oh, I  

 

 4          don't know, 15 years, 10 years, eight years,  

 

 5          seven years?  We keep going down and yet  

 

 6          every year we come up here and we hear about  

 

 7          inequality.  And inequality is horrible, but  

 

 8          when the budget gets done, we're still  

 

 9          playing the game with a portion going through  

 

10          Foundation Aid, and then we have the shares,  

 

11          which are basically cards at the table, and  

 

12          who gets to deal the cards. 

 

13                 So it really is time for us to tackle  

 

14          this situation.  If this requires a  

 

15          commitment and a plan over a couple of years,  

 

16          then so be it.  But we have to start  

 

17          signaling when we will do this.  Because we  

 

18          can no longer keep saying we have no control  

 

19          over the fact that there is inequality in  

 

20          New York State if it's us who keeps making  

 

21          the decision allowing it to keep going that  

 

22          way.  So we look forward to working with  

 

23          everyone to move forward. 

 

24                 And speaking of inequality, I know my  
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 1          brother here spoke about this, but I just  

 

 2          want to go at the proposed budget of the  

 

 3          Executive right now.  I will not add in all  

 

 4          the add-ons.  I do not understand -- and I  

 

 5          met with close to 90 parents in New York City  

 

 6          last night -- PTA leaders, CEC presidents --  

 

 7          and they came to me because they didn't  

 

 8          understand how in a proposed budget a student  

 

 9          in a charter school was getting $856, and a  

 

10          student in a public school was getting $240  

 

11          in a proposed budget.   

 

12                 They said, are you actually going  

 

13          to -- are we going to sit here and hear  

 

14          people tell us that our children are worth  

 

15          $200 and somebody else's are worth $800?  And  

 

16          that is what is in the proposed Executive  

 

17          Budget.   

 

18                 We've been very clear that we need  

 

19          transparency when it comes to the charter  

 

20          school sector.  Right now in New York City we  

 

21          hear about, oh, we've hit the cap.  Well, we  

 

22          have 25 charters that have been assigned, yet  

 

23          they're -- nobody knows when they're opening.   

 

24          So we believe they were just assigned so they  
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 1          could have a political point at this moment. 

 

 2                 And the piece about transparency, we  

 

 3          need -- it comes down to the percentage of  

 

 4          English language learners, the percentage of  

 

 5          children with IEPs, the percentage of  

 

 6          children in homeless shelters.  Those are  

 

 7          things that need to be addressed.  

 

 8                 And I want to be clear, every time you  

 

 9          issue a charter in New York City -- this was  

 

10          never supposed to be the way, but it has  

 

11          become this way -- you are actually issuing a  

 

12          charter for three separate schools.  Because  

 

13          they have been approved to expand from one  

 

14          school to three schools.  They all go from  

 

15          K-12 normally, and the piece is when they get  

 

16          up to 9, 10, 11, 12, there are no longer a  

 

17          hundred students in that class, there could  

 

18          be anywhere from 20 to 40.  So they're not  

 

19          backfilling and they're not serving the  

 

20          children of our community. 

 

21                 So we have a major issue when it comes  

 

22          to this, because we believe that a budget  

 

23          proposal is about principles, and it's clear  

 

24          to us that the budget proposal in front of us  
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 1          right now is saying that their principle is  

 

 2          that a set of students should be treated more  

 

 3          favorably than another set of students.  And  

 

 4          that is not something we are going to sit  

 

 5          idly by. 

 

 6                 And in terms of the zombies, it's  

 

 7          pretty clear, people don't like zombies.  I  

 

 8          watch "Fear of the Walking Dead."  This is  

 

 9          not something -- and if there's no  

 

10          transparency, there's nothing else here.  We  

 

11          have to stop playing these games. 

 

12                 But the most important thing I'd like  

 

13          to bring up is we have moved education  

 

14          despite difficult times.  We have challenges  

 

15          across this entire state.  We have seen  

 

16          education funding over the last nine years  

 

17          shift more from the state back down into the  

 

18          district levels. 

 

19                 We are asking, at this point in time,  

 

20          to move towards Foundation Aid and move to  

 

21          the fact that we have too many school  

 

22          districts who are now in jeopardy of severe  

 

23          hardship if we do not do something now. 

 

24                 Thank you very much. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

 2                 There are a number of members who have  

 

 3          questions.  First, our Education chair,  

 

 4          Assemblyman Benedetto. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you,  

 

 6          Madam Chair.   

 

 7                 Gentlemen, ladies, thank you very much  

 

 8          for being here.  We appreciate your  

 

 9          testimony.   

 

10                 First off, let me just say I applaud  

 

11          your professionals who you represent.  They  

 

12          have been oft-criticized, and I think wildly  

 

13          unjustly, over the last 15 years, with people  

 

14          getting up, making pronouncements about the  

 

15          poor education here in the State of New York,  

 

16          and it's terrible injustice that elected  

 

17          officials quite often run their campaigns  

 

18          attacking the fine professionals that you  

 

19          guys represent.  And I want you to know that  

 

20          many of us here -- most of us in the State  

 

21          Legislature -- know the good job that  

 

22          teachers do. 

 

23                 Having said that -- by the way, too, I  

 

24          just want to say how impressed I was with  
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 1          your initiative, and I forget the name of it,  

 

 2          but you've got Community Schools that are  

 

 3          working in New York City that you guys are  

 

 4          running, and you've come up to Albany and  

 

 5          you're assisting the Albany public schools in  

 

 6          doing that. 

 

 7                 MR. MULGREW:  Thank you. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  So could you  

 

 9          maybe just expand on that, on what you're  

 

10          doing and how it's working? 

 

11                 MR. MULGREW:  We believe that the  

 

12          answer in terms of the challenges that  

 

13          society faces -- because as we now know,  

 

14          schools are expected to deal with all of the  

 

15          challenges a society brings for all children. 

 

16                 So teachers have embraced this.  They  

 

17          know it's not fair, but the reality is if you  

 

18          want a child to learn, you have no choice but  

 

19          to remove those barriers to learning.  We  

 

20          believe the answer is in a rigorous community  

 

21          school program.   

 

22                 So ours is called the United Community  

 

23          Schools.  We do an intensive outreach to the  

 

24          community itself.  We do not -- we go to the  
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 1          school first, but then we do a complete  

 

 2          outreach to the community:  This is your  

 

 3          school, what can you bring to the table?  We  

 

 4          do a needs assessment.  We then say this is  

 

 5          what's already at the table from the  

 

 6          community, this is your needs assessment,  

 

 7          what program would you like to put together? 

 

 8                 We never tell people what to do, we  

 

 9          just help them with the process of gathering  

 

10          information.  And then we assist with what  

 

11          they're trying to do, because we have,  

 

12          thankfully, a lot of partners -- a lot of  

 

13          non-for-profit partners are out there,  

 

14          certain hospitals, clinics, we have a food  

 

15          bank, we have social and emotional services,  

 

16          we have mental health services that we can  

 

17          bring to bear on the schools themselves. 

 

18                 But the piece that people forget, it's  

 

19          not just about bringing the services, it's  

 

20          about first making sure that the school and  

 

21          the parents and the teachers work together to  

 

22          own what is going on inside that school in a  

 

23          real way.  And the only way they'll own it is  

 

24          when you give them real voice.  And that's  

 

 



                                                                   336 

 

 1          what has been missing for generations.  We  

 

 2          always said we want parents, but do we really  

 

 3          give them real voice in the decision-making?   

 

 4          In these schools, we do. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you for  

 

 6          your answer.  And I totally agree.  Continue  

 

 7          your good work. 

 

 8                 MR. MULGREW:  Thank you. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you,  

 

10          Madam Chair. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

12                 We go to Senate chair Senator Mayer. 

 

13                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.   

 

14                 Thank you both for being here.  Thank  

 

15          you for going around the state and making  

 

16          clear that the argument for full funding of  

 

17          Foundation Aid is not an Albany or New York  

 

18          City or Yonkers -- this is an argument in  

 

19          every district, suburban, rural, urban.  And  

 

20          your work, together with others, has really I  

 

21          think driven home the point.  I hope we have  

 

22          contributed to making that point very clear. 

 

23                 On page 4 of the NYSUT testimony, you  

 

24          have this interesting chart about unpaid  

 

 



                                                                   337 

 

 1          Foundation Aid and the districts to which it  

 

 2          is owed, and noting the district need  

 

 3          category.  And I would add these are  

 

 4          categories that were established under the  

 

 5          formula, and they are frankly out of date. 

 

 6                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Right. 

 

 7                 SENATOR MAYER:  They do not reflect  

 

 8          the current true needs of districts.  

 

 9                 But even accepting this as a given,  

 

10          which I do not accept, high-need districts  

 

11          you say are owed 68.1 percent of the  

 

12          remaining Foundation Aid that is owed.  And  

 

13          the argument that basically low-need  

 

14          districts are sort of raking it in at the  

 

15          expense of everyone else, and your pie can't  

 

16          be expanded, I think is disproven by this  

 

17          chart.  

 

18                 So I think if you could address your  

 

19          experience in going around the state,  

 

20          particularly in districts that are  

 

21          characterized as high or average need, what  

 

22          have you seen on the ground as the real  

 

23          evidence that this unpaid Foundation Aid is  

 

24          hurting students? 
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 1                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Well, one of the stops  

 

 2          that we made last Friday -- in the middle of  

 

 3          a snowstorm -- was in Niagara Falls, where  

 

 4          they had a line, like as if you were waiting  

 

 5          in a bus station, of students waiting to see  

 

 6          a guidance counselor.  This was first thing  

 

 7          in the morning, it was a beautiful school,  

 

 8          the tone in the school was great, the  

 

 9          superintendent met us and parents were there.   

 

10          And they just wanted to show, because they've  

 

11          had to not fund certain positions, what kind  

 

12          of situation the students are in, waiting to  

 

13          see a guidance counselor to get their program  

 

14          ready for the day. 

 

15                 So this is constant.  This is not just  

 

16          Niagara Falls, it's been throughout the  

 

17          state.  And we saw it especially in  

 

18          White Plains, where they used to have six  

 

19          guidance counselors, social workers -- now  

 

20          they have two.  

 

21                 So this -- between the tax cap and the  

 

22          state's 2 percent cap, they've not been able  

 

23          to fund the programs as they used to. 

 

24                 SENATOR MAYER:  And when you reference  

 

 



                                                                   339 

 

 1          the state's 2 percent cap, you're referencing  

 

 2          a spending cap that is not in statute but -- 

 

 3                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Right. 

 

 4                 SENATOR MAYER:  -- that has been a  

 

 5          prerogative that has been adopted here, but  

 

 6          it is not required by statute.  Is that  

 

 7          correct? 

 

 8                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Correct.  This is  

 

 9          something that has been created, we don't  

 

10          believe it has any place in a state which is  

 

11          very progressive and wants to do the best by  

 

12          all of its students throughout the state.  It  

 

13          needs to be broken, and part of that is  

 

14          funding Foundation Aid over the next three  

 

15          years. 

 

16                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  I'll come  

 

17          back to my other question. 

 

18                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Thank you. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Assembly. 

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

21          Assemblyman Bronson. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you, Madam  

 

23          Chair. 

 

24                 I'm going to address my questions to  
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 1          Andy Pallotta, if you don't mind. 

 

 2                 First of all, thank you for your tour,  

 

 3          thank you for mentioning the Rochester City  

 

 4          School District in your testimony and in your  

 

 5          written testimony.  You and I spent the good  

 

 6          part of a day in a number of schools in the  

 

 7          city school district.   

 

 8                 In RISE School we talked to them about  

 

 9          the funding.  And, you know, I get beat up by  

 

10          the media because I keep raising funding, but  

 

11          in that roundtable, this is what we heard  

 

12          from the teachers and the paraprofessionals  

 

13          in that school.  What does funding mean to  

 

14          you?  It means they could have more than just  

 

15          a part-time librarian come in two days a  

 

16          week.  It means that the culturally accurate  

 

17          and significant books that they have wouldn't  

 

18          have to be shared by the students; instead,  

 

19          the students could actually have their own  

 

20          books.  It meant that they could have mental  

 

21          health providers in the school, social  

 

22          workers in the school, that the  

 

23          paraprofessionals that had gotten laid off  

 

24          would be back in the classroom helping the  
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 1          teachers. 

 

 2                 Rochester City, 50 percent of its  

 

 3          children are living in poverty.  They have  

 

 4          needs.  Funding translates into need and, as  

 

 5          the one teacher said, "What funding means is  

 

 6          access and equity." 

 

 7                 My simple question to you is if  

 

 8          Rochester got the $86 million of Foundation  

 

 9          Aid money it's due, how could that translate  

 

10          into addressing the transformative needs we  

 

11          have, academically, in that school district? 

 

12                 MR. PALLOTTA:  We saw firsthand in the  

 

13          school that we visited what the needs were.   

 

14          Even the physical plant of the school -- when  

 

15          we saw openings in the wall and we said what  

 

16          is that, well, that's where the water  

 

17          fountains used to be.  So I don't know where  

 

18          they are now, but they aren't there anymore. 

 

19                 And we saw that there was a need for a  

 

20          social worker working in an intervention  

 

21          situation as we toured the school.  When we  

 

22          spoke to the staff that was meeting with us,  

 

23          they just were crying out for help.  And they  

 

24          said:  It's been year after year after year,  
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 1          and no help is coming to us.  No extra  

 

 2          intervention, nobody is asking for anything  

 

 3          special, anything in a luxurious way. 

 

 4                 So what we saw firsthand -- I think  

 

 5          you being there was tremendous, but also we  

 

 6          need to see this throughout the state, where  

 

 7          legislators are willing to come to the  

 

 8          classrooms and see firsthand what's going on,  

 

 9          and also the Governor.  It would be great if  

 

10          the Governor would take a ride out to  

 

11          Rochester and see the needs there. 

 

12                 We are never going to say let's take  

 

13          from Peter and pay Paul.  That is wrong.   

 

14          We're saying increase the amount of funding  

 

15          into the Foundation formula. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you. 

 

17                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Thank you. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator Liu. 

 

19                 SENATOR LIU:  Was that Little or Liu? 

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Liu. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Liu. 

 

22                 SENATOR LIU:  Liu, not Little? 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  No.  We didn't  

 

24          have Little. 
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 1                 (Conversation off the record.) 

 

 2                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

 3                 Thank you for joining us this  

 

 4          afternoon.   

 

 5                 I wanted to talk a little bit about  

 

 6          the Community Schools, because, you know,  

 

 7          they have shown to be highly successful in  

 

 8          other parts of the country, which is  

 

 9          precisely why we brought them to New York.   

 

10          And the Community Schools are effective at  

 

11          teaching kids because they realize that kids  

 

12          have lots of other challenges in many of our  

 

13          communities, and so the Community Schools try  

 

14          to address a whole host of issues, from  

 

15          nutrition to healthcare, because if a kid is  

 

16          hungry or a kid is not healthy, guess what?   

 

17          They're not going to be able to learn. 

 

18                 So we -- last year we tried to vastly  

 

19          increase the funding for Community Schools.   

 

20          I think we did a little bit.  I don't think  

 

21          you were necessarily happy with the amount  

 

22          that we did.  But I feel like this is an area  

 

23          where if we could just get a better  

 

24          accounting of the savings that these  
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 1          Community Schools actually achieve, that  

 

 2          would help us in our budget deliberations. 

 

 3                 Has there been any attempt to quantify  

 

 4          the amount of money that's actually been  

 

 5          saved from, say, other departments in  

 

 6          government? 

 

 7                 MR. MULGREW:  No, we have -- we  

 

 8          struggled with that decision because it was  

 

 9          did we want to take time and resources and  

 

10          prove that, when to us it's pretty much  

 

11          common sense that if there is a clinic inside  

 

12          of a school, that child is not going to the  

 

13          emergency room, that that child's parent  

 

14          doesn't have to miss a day of school, that  

 

15          it's pretty much common sense.  We didn't  

 

16          want to take the -- some of our funding and  

 

17          some of the work that goes into this and put  

 

18          it on there.   

 

19                 But I'm thinking that in the future  

 

20          we're going to have to do that.  As we know,  

 

21          as a state we're facing a Medicaid crisis,  

 

22          and this is one of the direct pieces that we  

 

23          have -- we have schools with health clinics  

 

24          inside of them, those children by and large,  
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 1          if they're having a medical issue, would be  

 

 2          in an emergency room.  Which we know is quite  

 

 3          expensive. 

 

 4                 The whole idea that there is a clinic  

 

 5          inside of their school and the child just  

 

 6          goes there as if it's a regular doctor visit,  

 

 7          it's a significant savings.   

 

 8                 And in terms of all of the different  

 

 9          social services that we save, the reason why  

 

10          we're now working with more organizations is  

 

11          New York City -- you know, every year for  

 

12          20 straight years our number of children  

 

13          in -- what is the correct term, which I  

 

14          really don't care for, shelter-challenged  

 

15          situations?  These children are homeless.   

 

16          They don't have a home.  So to me, that means  

 

17          I'm homeless.  I have a place to sleep  

 

18          tonight, maybe, but I'm basically -- I don't  

 

19          have my own home. 

 

20                 That number has gone up dramatically  

 

21          every year for 20 straight years.  So that  

 

22          just is the clearest piece of evidence to me  

 

23          that we are failing that student population.   

 

24          Those children, any services we can get them  

 

 



                                                                   346 

 

 1          clearly are saving us a lot of money.   

 

 2          Because if not, they're going to the agencies  

 

 3          and other things where it costs more. 

 

 4                 So we will look at this moving  

 

 5          forward, but at this point I would say that  

 

 6          we made a specific decision not to because we  

 

 7          pretty much thought common sense prevails,  

 

 8          that we are clearly saving money.  But I  

 

 9          know, it's government, I understand -- 

 

10                 SENATOR LIU:  It's a tall assumption  

 

11          you're making there. 

 

12                 MR. MULGREW:  I know. 

 

13                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you. 

 

14                 MR. MULGREW:  You have to assume there  

 

15          was pizza in the box, and not empty. 

 

16                 (Laughter.) 

 

17                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Next time we'll have  

 

18          pizza in the box and we'll sneak that in. 

 

19                 SENATOR LIU:  Next time text me in  

 

20          advance, I'll bring it down -- 

 

21                 MR. PALLOTTA:  We'll get it in the  

 

22          side door. 

 

23                 MR. MULGREW:  Yeah. 

 

24                 SENATOR LIU:  Pepperoni, okay? 

 

 



                                                                   347 

 

 1                 (Laughter.) 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblywoman  

 

 3          Seawright. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  Thank you. 

 

 5                 I'll direct my question to  

 

 6          Mr. Mulgrew. 

 

 7                 Where does social media training for  

 

 8          teachers fit into teacher needs to keep up  

 

 9          with how students are communicating with each  

 

10          other?  And is the state, city or the DOE  

 

11          doing enough providing opportunities for  

 

12          training, or is this necessary? 

 

13                 MR. MULGREW:  I will say that the  

 

14          union is doing a lot.  We have done a  

 

15          specific program last spring and all summer  

 

16          for UFT teachers with Google.  Google opened  

 

17          its training facility in Manhattan, downtown  

 

18          Manhattan, and there were numerous UFT days  

 

19          where New York City teachers had complete  

 

20          access to Google. 

 

21                 Google Classroom is probably the most  

 

22          widely used technology in terms of  

 

23          interaction with not just students but their  

 

24          parents in the city -- and probably the  
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 1          country, to tell you the truth, but I don't  

 

 2          empirically have that evidence.  But I'm  

 

 3          pretty sure it is.  So that's a beautiful  

 

 4          piece, and there should be more and more  

 

 5          using that. 

 

 6                 The challenge the school system  

 

 7          faces -- some of it is being met because of  

 

 8          the bond act that we passed, but we still  

 

 9          have schools who have wifi problems.  Which  

 

10          is almost unheard of in this day and age, but  

 

11          we do.  It's not like they don't -- they were  

 

12          3G and they want 5G, they have no G.  And  

 

13          that's a problem. 

 

14                 So -- and I want to get past some of  

 

15          the myths people will tell us, because they  

 

16          assume -- and there's a lack of  

 

17          understanding -- they think, well, parents  

 

18          don't have -- lack access to technology.   

 

19          It's very seldom that we ever come across a  

 

20          parent who doesn't have a smartphone, and  

 

21          that's all we need.  That's it.  We just need  

 

22          them to have a smartphone, and then we can  

 

23          interact with them and work with them.   

 

24                 But we've been doing a lot of training  
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 1          with teachers over the last eight years --  

 

 2          but specifically the last three years, we've  

 

 3          done heavy-duty, and Google has been a  

 

 4          great -- Google and Apple have both been  

 

 5          great partners for us.  Whenever we do a  

 

 6          training for any sort of technology at the  

 

 7          union, if we have 600 slots, it's full in an  

 

 8          hour.  It's always full in an hour. 

 

 9                 But I would say the Department of Ed  

 

10          is lacking somewhat on that.  But let's just  

 

11          get the wifi first. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SEAWRIGHT:  All right,  

 

13          thank you. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

15                 We go to Senator Jackson. 

 

16                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you. 

 

17                 And since I only have three minutes,  

 

18          I'm going to go pretty fast.  Thank you for  

 

19          coming. 

 

20                 MR. MULGREW:  Thank you for having us. 

 

21                 SENATOR JACKSON:  So my question to  

 

22          you is I've listened to what you both had to  

 

23          say, and I compliment both of you and your  

 

24          staff for your leadership -- extremely  
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 1          important, especially now.  Keep the pressure  

 

 2          on all of us, okay? 

 

 3                 But I want to know, considering  

 

 4          there's over 10,000 children with special  

 

 5          needs that have not got cleared away, and  

 

 6          over 6,000 that are being late, and  

 

 7          considering that the number of children  

 

 8          without a permanent home, and considering all  

 

 9          of the children that are English language  

 

10          learners, do you think that -- with the  

 

11          budget that we have, that we have enough to  

 

12          meet the necessity for the children to get a  

 

13          sound, basic education?   

 

14                 That's what -- my question to you. 

 

15                 MR. MULGREW:  I believe it is an  

 

16          extreme challenge for any school to meet the  

 

17          amount of need that they're being faced with  

 

18          right now.  I can only speak for New York  

 

19          City.   

 

20                 You can be in a classroom in New York  

 

21          City and there's certain districts that it's  

 

22          not a big deal to have anywhere between eight  

 

23          and 14 different languages spoken.  You will  

 

24          have students who have had no formal  
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 1          education, even though they just got to this  

 

 2          country and they're 13 years old.  You have  

 

 3          homeless children in that classroom at the  

 

 4          same time.  So clearly something else needs  

 

 5          to be done. 

 

 6                 What drives me nuts and you nuts is  

 

 7          like, oh, the school needs to do it.  Since  

 

 8          when was it -- the school needs to educate a  

 

 9          child.  Society is supposed to remove the  

 

10          barriers.  But now it's become more of a  

 

11          responsibility of the school, so therefore  

 

12          don't look at it just as an education budget,  

 

13          because it's much more than that.  

 

14                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And that's why I'm  

 

15          saying to the both of you, what do we need to  

 

16          do to raise revenues?  I mean, I was at a  

 

17          press conference yesterday with some of you  

 

18          and other legislators about taxing the  

 

19          wealthy, millionaires and billionaires, to  

 

20          help us provide our children with the  

 

21          education that they need. 

 

22                 Do you have any thoughts on that,  

 

23          Mr. Pallotta? 

 

24                 MR. PALLOTTA:  We talked yesterday  
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 1          about increasing taxes on ultra-millionaires,  

 

 2          so $5 million and up.  And the same question  

 

 3          that Michael spoke to as a New York City  

 

 4          question, this is throughout the state. 

 

 5                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Throughout the  

 

 6          state. 

 

 7                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Right.  And, you know,  

 

 8          there is extreme poverty throughout the  

 

 9          state, and I think that also needs to be  

 

10          plainly said. 

 

11                 So that would raise 2.2 billion --  

 

12          still not enough.  Right?  So a wealth tax on  

 

13          billionaires, 2 percent wealth tax, that  

 

14          would raise 10 billion.  So we know that not  

 

15          all revenue would go to education, but we're  

 

16          saying we're 3.4 billion behind in funding  

 

17          the Foundation formula, so we would expect  

 

18          that much, yes. 

 

19                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And finally -- I  

 

20          have 13 seconds left -- Michael Rebell, in  

 

21          the lawsuit that we filed in February 2014,  

 

22          goes to trial in the fall of this year in  

 

23          front of Supreme Court Justice Lucy Billings.   

 

24          I ask you to be there to support the fight to  
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 1          get the billions of dollars our children  

 

 2          rightfully deserve. 

 

 3                 MR. MULGREW:  We will be there to  

 

 4          support that. 

 

 5                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you, Madam  

 

 6          Chair. 

 

 7                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Thank you. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

 9                 Assembly. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

11          Assemblywoman Hyndman. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you,  

 

13          Madam Chair. 

 

14                 And thank you for your testimony, both  

 

15          of you. 

 

16                 Andrew, if you could answer this, and  

 

17          Michael, if you could answer this also:  How  

 

18          many teachers do you think are leaving the  

 

19          profession every year, compared with new  

 

20          teachers.   

 

21                 And then there's also -- that's the  

 

22          first question.  The second question is, how  

 

23          many teachers do you know the number or  

 

24          approximately how many teachers leave the  
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 1          charter schools and come into the traditional  

 

 2          public school sector? 

 

 3                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Well, I'll give you the  

 

 4          overview on the visits that we've made across  

 

 5          the state so far, from Long Island to the  

 

 6          Buffalo area.  And there's a lot of  

 

 7          frustration -- I will try and get you  

 

 8          specific numbers, but there is a frustration  

 

 9          and definitely a turnover.   

 

10                 And are young people coming into the  

 

11          profession?  That's a whole 'nother question.   

 

12          They are not going into the systems the way  

 

13          they used to be.  So we know, into the SUNY  

 

14          system, it's down over 50 percent.   

 

15                 So it's a very difficult profession.   

 

16          I did it for 24 years.  I loved it.  And, you  

 

17          know, being back on the bus tour has brought  

 

18          me back into the classroom.  So sometimes we  

 

19          look at it like you look at it as a  

 

20          legislator -- it's billions of dollars.  But  

 

21          when you're in the classroom and they have  

 

22          antiquated books and they have rain coming in  

 

23          on a rainy day, you know that it's really  

 

24          specific to that classroom and those  
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 1          students. 

 

 2                 MR. MULGREW:  So we're still losing  

 

 3          approximately close to 45 percent during the  

 

 4          probationary period, which is the first four  

 

 5          years.  That is our largest shift of people  

 

 6          leaving the profession.  The probationary  

 

 7          period is clearly a very important piece.  We  

 

 8          lose -- next September we will start with a  

 

 9          whole new group of brand-new teachers, and  

 

10          within the first couple of weeks some will  

 

11          leave on a Friday and never come back.  It  

 

12          happens every year.  The profession's not for  

 

13          them, and it's a very difficult profession.   

 

14          And when you're standing in front of that  

 

15          classroom and you have to manage that class  

 

16          and you have to make sure that you first have  

 

17          all those children in a place where they're  

 

18          ready to learn -- that's when you can first  

 

19          start teaching the lesson -- it's a very  

 

20          difficult thing. 

 

21                 We do have a large number of teachers  

 

22          who come from charter schools every year into  

 

23          our public school system.  I don't have the  

 

24          specific numbers for you.  In terms of their  

 

 



                                                                   356 

 

 1          own attrition, I've seen different things,  

 

 2          but you could get that from them. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  I'm asking  

 

 4          because I think, you know, for the five years  

 

 5          I've been in the Assembly, always asking for  

 

 6          more dollars when it comes to teacher  

 

 7          preparation and teacher -- the ongoing  

 

 8          education that teachers need, I think it's  

 

 9          paramount in making sure we keep teachers in  

 

10          the profession.  I think of Ms. Mela {ph},  

 

11          who just texted me to tell me my daughter  

 

12          forgot her lunch -- and she doesn't have to  

 

13          do that.  But those are the things that  

 

14          endear us to the teachers that are in our  

 

15          classrooms with our children.  So -- 

 

16                 MR. MULGREW:  The more you can prep a  

 

17          teacher in an actual classroom setting before  

 

18          they become a teacher, the higher our success  

 

19          rate is.  The more they spend time just in a  

 

20          college setting discussing pedagogical  

 

21          approach is great, they need that, but they  

 

22          need time -- a residency program just like  

 

23          other professions would go a long way. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Okay.  Thank  
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 1          you. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 3                 We go to Senator Krueger. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Hi.  Thank you  

 

 5          both for all the work you and your members do  

 

 6          for all the children of our state every day. 

 

 7                 So there was a lot of discussion  

 

 8          earlier with both the city chancellor and  

 

 9          with the acting commissioner for the state  

 

10          about the problems with young children who  

 

11          aren't diagnosed with reading disabilities,  

 

12          and dyslexia being the common example, though  

 

13          there are quite a few. 

 

14                 And I have to say I don't get what  

 

15          we're not doing right.  We know that if you  

 

16          can deal with a reading problem early and get  

 

17          that kid reading, it's changing their life  

 

18          forever.  We know that they may completely  

 

19          have to avoid any kind of follow-through in  

 

20          special education or being miscategorized or  

 

21          put in the wrong program or huge amounts of  

 

22          money spent, if we can just deal with this.   

 

23          And we know that there are models for  

 

24          evaluating and getting the kids help,  
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 1          mainstreamed in a classroom. 

 

 2                 So how come with all the questions all  

 

 3          of my colleagues asked, it was like, Oh, I  

 

 4          guess we ought to look at this?  What am I  

 

 5          missing, gentlemen?  I mean, we know about  

 

 6          this, and we're not doing it.  And I don't  

 

 7          know why we're not doing it. 

 

 8                 MR. MULGREW:  Neither do we. 

 

 9                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Well, just to say we  

 

10          visited a district called Canton, it's right  

 

11          near Canada -- that was last Friday -- and  

 

12          they had converted closets into reading  

 

13          rooms.  So you had a teacher sitting with  

 

14          several children in a closet.  So no window,  

 

15          just the hooks on the walls and books and  

 

16          everything.   

 

17                 So it's a matter of priority at this  

 

18          point.  Are we going to fund the schools in  

 

19          such a way that they can have actual  

 

20          classrooms to do this important work?  My  

 

21          master's degree is in reading.  We all know  

 

22          how important it is.  I just think that at  

 

23          this point we're failing to put the resources  

 

24          into it. 
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 1                 MR. MULGREW:  So anyone who is  

 

 2          responsible for a budget in a school system  

 

 3          is petrified of any sort of evaluation,  

 

 4          because once an evaluation proves that a  

 

 5          child has some sort of a disability, it then  

 

 6          becomes part of a litigious process.   

 

 7                 So I would say that common sense needs  

 

 8          to be brought back into this system.  A child  

 

 9          who is -- should we do basic dyslexia  

 

10          screening?  How much in resources would that  

 

11          count?  What then does that mean?  Once that  

 

12          child is diagnosed and has dyslexia, the  

 

13          child then has an IEP.  Then we have another  

 

14          industry that's connected with children with  

 

15          IEPs, people who advocate to get more  

 

16          services for all the children.  Are they  

 

17          needed or not?  There's brokers involved.   

 

18          And that's what school systems have to deal  

 

19          with on the ground. 

 

20                 So in the city where we work where the  

 

21          city rightfully was cited in a corrective  

 

22          action plan because of its lack of ability to  

 

23          do timely evaluations, that's not acceptable.   

 

24          But you're talking about a grander approach,  
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 1          you're saying can't we just do basic  

 

 2          screening.  And a lot of disabilities can be  

 

 3          dealt with the earlier we know, and therefore  

 

 4          the child will be in a much better place. 

 

 5                 But common sense has to prevail, and  

 

 6          the litigiousness of the system now is really  

 

 7          quite intimidating if I was an administrator  

 

 8          responsible for a budget. 

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  My time is up.   

 

10          But I guess I really feel we have to  

 

11          re-question how we're approaching this.  We  

 

12          have to take the litigiousness to the side,  

 

13          say:  I'm not discussing every child having  

 

14          an IEP when you do an evaluation of whether  

 

15          the problem they have with learning to read  

 

16          is -- you know, there are really standard  

 

17          models that you can use to train teachers how  

 

18          to work with the kids based on what their  

 

19          reading disability is.   

 

20                 And I just find it amazing that  

 

21          everyone is surprised, it seems, that we're  

 

22          not doing this. 

 

23                 MR. MULGREW:  I think what you just  

 

24          said had a lot of common sense to it. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.  Thank  

 

 2          you. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 4          Assemblyman Ra. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you. 

 

 6                 Thank you for your advocacy and for  

 

 7          being here today. 

 

 8                 I just want to talk a little bit about  

 

 9          public safety and school safety.  I know, you  

 

10          know, bail reform is a big topic of  

 

11          conversation up here, and we're talking about  

 

12          public safety in that regard a lot.  But  

 

13          school safety, what are your thoughts as it  

 

14          relates to this budget proposal and school  

 

15          safety and providing resources to local  

 

16          districts?   

 

17                 I know this was a big focus of yours  

 

18          at the end of last session in a number of  

 

19          different ways.  So what are your thoughts on  

 

20          this budget proposal with regard to that? 

 

21                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Again, this budget does  

 

22          not approach nearly what is necessary.  The  

 

23          teachers unions did support the Red Flag  

 

24          Bill, which provided for more oversight of  
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 1          safety in the schools.  It is our priority,  

 

 2          as NYSUT has always had, the students'  

 

 3          safety, the staff's safety. 

 

 4                 So this is something where we would  

 

 5          love to see more funding going into this.  We  

 

 6          know that -- I think the number was 600  

 

 7          million left in the bond act, that some of  

 

 8          that could be used for school safety.  So we  

 

 9          would love to see SED get that money out the  

 

10          door. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  And then I think a  

 

12          related topic, certainly, mental health and  

 

13          those resources in our schools.  I know you  

 

14          talked about some of the needs you saw as you  

 

15          went around the state in different districts.   

 

16          What about that aspect or perhaps lack of  

 

17          that aspect in this proposal? 

 

18                 MR. PALLOTTA:  There was not one  

 

19          school district that we visited, and we  

 

20          visited many, where that was not their  

 

21          priority.  They were saying we need more  

 

22          social workers.   

 

23                 And just the example of White Plains  

 

24          having six in that building and then down to  
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 1          two, it just shows you that they're  

 

 2          overwhelmed.  I think it was 640 to 1.  So  

 

 3          when you have those kind of odds, what -- we  

 

 4          all expect superheroes from teachers and  

 

 5          guidance counselors, but we should also make  

 

 6          sure that we fund the schools to make it a  

 

 7          little bit more effective and efficient,  

 

 8          rather than putting that kind of burden on  

 

 9          them. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

12          thank you both, or all four of you, really,  

 

13          for being here today -- 

 

14                 MR. PALLOTTA:  Thank you. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  -- and sharing  

 

16          your thoughts, and also thank you to all of  

 

17          your members -- 

 

18                 MR. MULGREW:  Thank you. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  -- who work so  

 

20          hard. 

 

21                 And take that box with you, it's a  

 

22          little tempting. 

 

23                 (Laughter.) 

 

24                 MR. PALLOTTA:  I was wondering.  We'll  
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 1          recycle this. 

 

 2                 (Laughter.) 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next we're  

 

 4          going to have a panel, the Conference of Big  

 

 5          5 School Districts:  Jennifer Pyle, the  

 

 6          executive director, along with superintendent  

 

 7          of the Syracuse School District,  

 

 8          superintendent of the Buffalo School  

 

 9          District, superintendent of the Rochester  

 

10          School District, superintendent of the  

 

11          Yonkers School District, and superintendent  

 

12          of the Albany School District.   

 

13                 So just a reminder, as you're taking  

 

14          your seats, as was discussed, there's  

 

15          10 minutes for all of you.  So the first  

 

16          couple of people who go, make sure -- make  

 

17          sure you leave some room for whoever is last,  

 

18          which if it's the order I read, would be  

 

19          Albany City School District.  You may not get  

 

20          out of Albany in one piece if you don't leave  

 

21          time for her. 

 

22                 (Laughter.) 

 

23                 MS. PYLE:  And just so you know,  

 

24          Dr. Cash was unable to be with us today, but  
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 1          Will Keresztes will be addressing you.  He  

 

 2          will be going last.  So that's the only  

 

 3          change to the agenda. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Okay. 

 

 5                 MS. PYLE:  Thank you. 

 

 6                 And thank you very much for having us  

 

 7          today.  I'm not going to take up any time --  

 

 8          you have our written comments -- so I will  

 

 9          move right on to our superintendents.  Thank  

 

10          you. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

12                 SUPERINTENDENT ALICEA:  Good  

 

13          afternoon, members of the Senate and the  

 

14          Assembly.  It is a pleasure for me to be here  

 

15          this afternoon and with members of the Big 5  

 

16          School Districts, and also with Albany.   

 

17                 Thank you for taking the time to  

 

18          listen to us this afternoon.  We have been  

 

19          working very hard to continue to improve the  

 

20          education of the students in the Big 5 School  

 

21          Districts and the City of Albany.   

 

22                 But first I would like to say thank  

 

23          you to Senator Mayer.  Thank you for bringing  

 

24          the roundtable to listen to the Foundation  
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 1          Aid to Syracuse, New York.  Not many people  

 

 2          come to Syracuse, but thank you for taking  

 

 3          the time to come to Syracuse and give us the  

 

 4          opportunity. 

 

 5                 The Syracuse City School District  

 

 6          provides services to 21,000 kids in the City  

 

 7          of Syracuse.  We have about 2,000 students in  

 

 8          pre-K education in the district, and we would  

 

 9          like to continue to increase the number of  

 

10          the students participating in pre-K programs  

 

11          in the district.  We have some programs that  

 

12          are half-days, and we would like to continue  

 

13          to move those programs to be full-time  

 

14          programs for our kids.  We know that if we  

 

15          get to the kids early, if we provide a  

 

16          quality program, quality education, we will  

 

17          see the result in our kids. 

 

18                 During the last few years, we have  

 

19          seen an increase in the ELA scores, the math  

 

20          scores in the Syracuse City School District.   

 

21          For the first time in 10 years, we reached a  

 

22          graduation rate of 64.5.  We know that we  

 

23          still have a lot of work to do, but we're  

 

24          proud of the work that our teachers, that our  
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 1          families and our staff is doing to support  

 

 2          our kids. 

 

 3                 When we talk about Career and  

 

 4          Technical Education, that's an area that we  

 

 5          would like to continue to provide services to  

 

 6          our students.  We want our students to be  

 

 7          able to graduate ready to go to college or to  

 

 8          join the workforce.  Our first CTE school in  

 

 9          Syracuse is a small school with 550 kids.   

 

10          This past year it had a -- time up? -- had a  

 

11          graduation rate of 95 percent.   

 

12                 So please, continue the support and to  

 

13          make sure that we get a financial support for  

 

14          the ninth-graders in the program.  Sorry. 

 

15                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  Good afternoon.   

 

16          My name is Terry Dade, the superintendent of  

 

17          the Rochester City School District. 

 

18                 It's no secret that we've been dealing  

 

19          with a massive budget deficit since September  

 

20          of 2019.  Shortly after arriving in  

 

21          Rochester, I learned that our combined  

 

22          '18-'19, '19-'20 budget deficit was  

 

23          $64.8 million.   

 

24                 We've taken immediate steps to close  

 

 



                                                                   368 

 

 1          this gap, with more than $30 million in  

 

 2          reductions this school year.  These cuts  

 

 3          included staff reductions mid-school year,  

 

 4          with many of our students returning from  

 

 5          winter break to a new teacher.  No  

 

 6          superintendent willingly takes such drastic  

 

 7          steps as these, but I felt I had no option.   

 

 8                 And it's important for our state  

 

 9          lawmakers to understand the significance of  

 

10          our financial crisis, and one which has  

 

11          already impacted our students.  There's no  

 

12          disputing that Rochester is one of the  

 

13          highest-needs districts in the State of  

 

14          New York and in the country.  More than  

 

15          50 percent of the children living in the City  

 

16          of Rochester live in poverty, one of the top  

 

17          three in the entire nation.  More than  

 

18          20 percent of our students are students with  

 

19          disabilities.  And according to a recent  

 

20          Youth Risk Survey, attempts at suicide are  

 

21          rising at alarming rates, and 89 percent of  

 

22          our students said that they had experienced  

 

23          violence in their neighborhood. 

 

24                 Rochester's Foundation Aid allocation  
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 1          for '20-'21 is 479.2 million, which is only a   

 

 2          1.5 percent increase over last year's aid.   

 

 3          With a projected deficit of 55 to $60 million  

 

 4          for the next school year, I need your  

 

 5          support.  It's crucial that we adopt a state  

 

 6          formula that recognizes the unique needs of  

 

 7          our students in the Rochester City School  

 

 8          District.   

 

 9                 Education is the only path that I  

 

10          believe will allow success to happen in our  

 

11          district, and it's a success that our  

 

12          students deserve.  Thank you for your time. 

 

13                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  Distinguished  

 

14          members of the committee, thank you for the  

 

15          opportunity to address you on behalf of the  

 

16          27,000 students of the Yonkers City School  

 

17          District.  I am Dr. Edwin Quezada, the proud  

 

18          superintendent of the Yonkers Public Schools. 

 

19                 Each of you has received a copy of my  

 

20          unabridged testimony, which I hope you make  

 

21          time to read.   

 

22                 In your budget deliberations, when you  

 

23          think about Yonkers -- and I hope you will --  

 

24          please keep two things in the forefront of  
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 1          your discussion.  One, the continuous  

 

 2          academic progress of Yonkers students, who  

 

 3          achieved an 88 percent on-time graduation  

 

 4          rate, which surpassed the statewide average.   

 

 5          And we have achieved 80 percent or higher  

 

 6          graduation rates consecutively for four  

 

 7          years.   

 

 8                 We achieved this and other outstanding  

 

 9          results in part due to the fiscal support of  

 

10          this body, especially our Yonkers delegation,  

 

11          has provided to the Yonkers Public Schools. 

 

12                 Secondly, Yonkers offers solutions for  

 

13          your consideration.  Rather than our annual  

 

14          plea to fill a budget gap, we looked at  

 

15          viable long-term solutions for dependable,  

 

16          sustainable recurring revenue that Yonkers  

 

17          students significantly need and deserve.  The  

 

18          goal this year must be to end Yonkers' fiscal  

 

19          structural challenges. 

 

20                 Unfortunately, my testimony outlines a  

 

21          $46.7 million shortfall once again looming  

 

22          over our community due to our fiscal  

 

23          structural constraints.  The Executive Budget  

 

24          provides Yonkers a $10.8 million increase in  
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 1          Foundation Aid.  We appreciate this increase,  

 

 2          but this still leaves Yonkers with a  

 

 3          $46.7 million gap. 

 

 4                 Please consider the following  

 

 5          solution:  Fully fund pre-K for Yonkers  

 

 6          schools.  Increase the host community Video  

 

 7          Lottery Terminal Allocation.  Consider a  

 

 8          mechanism to permanently include last year's  

 

 9          $12.6 million in Bullet Aid as a yearly  

 

10          appropriation.  Fully fund health services  

 

11          for Yonkers Public Schools and the nonpublic  

 

12          schools.  These increases will result in  

 

13          $37.7 million in recurring revenue for  

 

14          Yonkers Public Schools, and help end our  

 

15          decades of fiscal structural constraint. 

 

16                 And finally, let us rebuild Yonkers  

 

17          Public Schools.  Time is up for all of us.   

 

18          We must do it. 

 

19                 SUPERINTENDENT ADAMS:  Good afternoon,  

 

20          and thank you so very much for the  

 

21          opportunity to share with you the City School  

 

22          District of Albany's 2020-2021 legislative  

 

23          priorities.   

 

24                 You have our information in front of  
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 1          you, and I just wanted to share with you a  

 

 2          few highlights. 

 

 3                 First of all, equitable Foundation Aid  

 

 4          funding.  Over the past few years, the needs  

 

 5          of our students have increased.  However, in  

 

 6          Albany we have a unique situation where over  

 

 7          60 percent of our property is tax-exempt.  So  

 

 8          we are looking for maybe a new way to look at  

 

 9          some percentages that may be a little  

 

10          different with regard to the weighting of  

 

11          property that is tax-exempt. 

 

12                 We do appreciate the fact that we are  

 

13          now funded at 45 percent of our state aid,  

 

14          and we appreciate that increase.  However, we  

 

15          are still far below our counterparts with  

 

16          very similar demographics.  And so we would  

 

17          be asking for an increase to our unrestricted  

 

18          state aid to align with similar upstate  

 

19          New York school districts, in order to  

 

20          address the wraparound services, the mental  

 

21          health care services that our students need,  

 

22          reduction of class size, support to our  

 

23          teachers, teaching assistants, and all of  

 

24          those support staff individuals that help us  
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 1          meet the needs of our students. 

 

 2                 We also look to expand our child  

 

 3          safety zone for transportation criteria.   

 

 4          This matter has come to the fore already with  

 

 5          regard to the Assembly and Senate having  

 

 6          legislation, and we look for your support in  

 

 7          that legislation in both the Assembly and the  

 

 8          House. 

 

 9                 Equitable pre-K funding.  You've heard  

 

10          this before.  However, a couple of numbers  

 

11          that I'd like to bring to your attention.  In  

 

12          Albany we have almost our -- half of our  

 

13          seats, the 552 continue to be funded at the  

 

14          former UPK base of approximately $4,000.   

 

15          While the other PPK and EPK funding has  

 

16          increased, ours has not.  And so we would be  

 

17          looking for our funding to increase so that  

 

18          we are comparable with those other funding  

 

19          streams to support that base of 552 students  

 

20          at a higher rate. 

 

21                 Additional support to support the  

 

22          unintended consequences of Raise the Age.  We  

 

23          would be looking at an additional $500,000 to  

 

24          fund the wraparound services, looking at  
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 1          specifically school counselors, school  

 

 2          psychologists, and social workers. 

 

 3                 Thank you for your time.  We  

 

 4          appreciate you. 

 

 5                 DR. KENESZTES:  Madam Chair and  

 

 6          distinguished members of this joint  

 

 7          committee, greetings from Buffalo and from  

 

 8          Superintendent Dr. Kriner Cash. 

 

 9                 Our strategic transformation plan, the  

 

10          education bargain with students and parents,  

 

11          is yielding the results Dr. Cash previously  

 

12          assured this esteemed body.  Seventy-eight  

 

13          percent of our schools -- 47 of 60 -- are in  

 

14          good standing.  Graduation rates,  

 

15          particularly for students facing  

 

16          extraordinary challenges, are rising.   

 

17          Confidence in our school district is surging. 

 

18                 Governor Cuomo, in his recent State of  

 

19          the State address, committed to closing the  

 

20          funding gap between wealthy and less wealthy  

 

21          school districts.  Toward that end, to close  

 

22          the opportunity gap so clearly identified by  

 

23          the Governor, Buffalo respectfully asks for a  

 

24          $30 million Foundation Aid increase over last  
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 1          year.  That's $16 million over the Executive  

 

 2          Budget. 

 

 3                 We ask that the Legislature reject the  

 

 4          proposed cap on Transportation Aid and  

 

 5          reductions in Building Aid reimbursement.   

 

 6                 And an essential piece of our  

 

 7          legislative request this year is the granting  

 

 8          of veto authority to our Board of Education  

 

 9          in the approval of new charter schools.  This  

 

10          will ensure that new charters fulfill an  

 

11          unmet need in the district, as the charter  

 

12          school law originally intended, instead of  

 

13          what we have now, the saturation of general  

 

14          education elementary seats when 78 percent of  

 

15          our schools are in good standing. 

 

16                 The proliferation of charter schools  

 

17          and the current system of diverting district  

 

18          funds to pay for such schools are  

 

19          unsustainable without resulting in deep cuts  

 

20          to the instruction and services for our  

 

21          district students. 

 

22                 Thank you for embracing and sharing  

 

23          our mindset of excellence and high  

 

24          expectations for all of Buffalo's children.   
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 1          Governor Cuomo has often said the state with  

 

 2          the most skilled workforce wins.  We agree.   

 

 3          And you have Superintendent Cash's assurance  

 

 4          that in Buffalo we'll continue to deliver on  

 

 5          this essential New York State imperative on  

 

 6          behalf of every child in our school district. 

 

 7                 Thank you. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

 9                 Assemblyman Bronson. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you, Madam  

 

11          Chair. 

 

12                 And my questioning is going to go to  

 

13          Superintendent Dade.  Thank you for being  

 

14          here today, and also thank you for your  

 

15          willingness to be accessible, to have  

 

16          conversations about the very difficult  

 

17          challenge we have in transforming the school  

 

18          district.  I do appreciate it.   

 

19                 And, you know, sometimes the right  

 

20          person comes up at the right time.  I think  

 

21          you are that person.  Because, you know, we  

 

22          can talk about a lot of problems our school  

 

23          district has had, but there is an  

 

24          institutional culture that has to change in  
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 1          that district.  And it's going to take your  

 

 2          leadership to do that.  It's going to take  

 

 3          the partnership from all of the elected  

 

 4          officials in the area as well as SED and the  

 

 5          Board of Regents. 

 

 6                 I think we're up to the task, but it's  

 

 7          going to be hard.  It's going to be hard  

 

 8          because of this statement that one teacher  

 

 9          said to me:  "Students with an achievement  

 

10          gap also have an income gap, a healthcare  

 

11          gap, a housing gap, a family gap and a safety  

 

12          gap, just to name a few." 

 

13                 We have a situation where we have  

 

14          children coming to the school and they need  

 

15          help.  We can't only do it in the classroom;  

 

16          we have to do it as a community.  And what I  

 

17          ask you is you identified in your written  

 

18          testimony -- you identified roughly 50  

 

19          percent of the expense cuts on the ledger  

 

20          side that we need to turn the finances  

 

21          around.  But you need help from the state,  

 

22          and we need to be there for you. 

 

23                 What's going to happen if we do not  

 

24          get gap funding for the school district by  
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 1          the end of this budget cycle? 

 

 2                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  So thank you  

 

 3          again, Mr. Bronson, for your continued  

 

 4          support.  You've been a staunch advocate for  

 

 5          the children of Rochester. 

 

 6                 The 35 million that we're asking for  

 

 7          to secure the end-of-year gap that we have  

 

 8          for this year, would result in, just looking  

 

 9          at staffing, over 800 staff members let go  

 

10          because of the timing of this school year,  

 

11          which would absolutely devastate the  

 

12          district.  We would see payroll not being  

 

13          run, potentially, at the end of the year, so  

 

14          at least June with not being able to make  

 

15          payroll.  So an absolutely devastating impact  

 

16          on the children of Rochester. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  So,  

 

18          Superintendent, we need to get that gap  

 

19          funding, but we also need to have  

 

20          accountability and oversight in the school  

 

21          district, both when it comes to finances as  

 

22          well as the academic performance, to make  

 

23          sure that we fulfill your objectives and that  

 

24          of the Distinguished Educator. 
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 1                 I believe you're on board with an  

 

 2          independent monitor to be put in place? 

 

 3                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  Absolutely.  I  

 

 4          wouldn't expect anything less from this body  

 

 5          or the Governor himself, that with that type  

 

 6          of additional funding that I would expect  

 

 7          significant strings attached. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  And with that   

 

 9          monitor, which I also support -- I actually  

 

10          think there should be two, but I'll support  

 

11          one if we get there.  But that really is  

 

12          going to be the liaison and the connection to  

 

13          make sure that we're partnering with SED;  

 

14          correct? 

 

15                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  That's correct. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  All right.   

 

17          Thank you, Superintendent. 

 

18                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  Thank you. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

20                 Senator Shelley Mayer. 

 

21                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you to all of  

 

22          you.  Thank you for taking on some of the  

 

23          most challenging districts.   

 

24                 Because we have limited time, I do  
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 1          want to address Dr. Quezada, who's done a  

 

 2          fantastic job, I just would say, for our own  

 

 3          district.  And I appreciate you putting some  

 

 4          positive ideas on the table to deal with the  

 

 5          structural deficit that Yonkers Public  

 

 6          Schools has. 

 

 7                 One suggestion you have, increase the  

 

 8          host community VLT allocation.  The mayor was  

 

 9          here yesterday talking about if MGM should  

 

10          get full gaming, that would translate  

 

11          hopefully into additional funds.  This is  

 

12          supplementary to that, is that correct? 

 

13                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  That is  

 

14          correct, Senator Mayer. 

 

15                 And by the way, just thank you so very  

 

16          much for all the work that you have done on  

 

17          behalf of all of us this year.  You have done  

 

18          great work, and we appreciate that. 

 

19                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  Don't use  

 

20          up my time, though, saying nice things -- 

 

21                 (Laughter.) 

 

22                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  Sorry. 

 

23                 SENATOR MAYER:  -- because very little  

 

24          time. 

 

 



                                                                   381 

 

 1                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  We'll lend  

 

 2          you some. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  The other thing is I  

 

 4          do want to ask about -- you have a  

 

 5          $46.7 million budget shortfall that includes  

 

 6          calculation of the Executive's Foundation Aid  

 

 7          increase; correct? 

 

 8                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  That is  

 

 9          accurate. 

 

10                 SENATOR MAYER:  So I know the City of  

 

11          Yonkers has increased its share of education  

 

12          funding over the last several years, under  

 

13          the mayor's leadership.  Are you working, at  

 

14          the same time as you press us here in Albany,  

 

15          to get additional funds out of the  

 

16          City Council and the city side of the budget? 

 

17                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  Absolutely.   

 

18          We in the City of Yonkers, we have a motto  

 

19          that explains that we are all responsible for  

 

20          educating our students.  You have done  

 

21          incredible work, the mayor has done  

 

22          incredible work supporting our schools, as  

 

23          has the entire delegation of the City of  

 

24          Yonkers and all of your colleagues. 
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 1                 We must continue to work together.  We  

 

 2          must ask you to support us, and we must ask  

 

 3          the city to continue to do so as well.  The  

 

 4          city of Yonkers last year provided a  

 

 5          $12 million maintenance of effort increase,  

 

 6          which is an unprecedented number, and we were  

 

 7          very appreciative.  But you know the issues  

 

 8          that we are faced with in the City of  

 

 9          Yonkers, and we still sustain that the  

 

10          challenge for us is Foundation Aid. 

 

11                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  Now, briefly, I  

 

12          don't know who can address this, but what is  

 

13          the impact of the proposed increase in  

 

14          charter school tuition on the districts that  

 

15          have heavy saturation of charter schools?  I  

 

16          know Albany and I suspect Syracuse as well. 

 

17                 SUPERINTENDENT ALICEA:  For Syracuse  

 

18          it's going to be about $3 million more that  

 

19          will go from the city to the charter schools.   

 

20          And we know that they don't spend all the  

 

21          money that they get every year. 

 

22                 And another problem for us is that we  

 

23          have to borrow money in the months of July  

 

24          and August, and they get that money right on  
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 1          time.  So it will be great if we can  

 

 2          accelerate that payment also. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  Yes. 

 

 4                 SUPERINTENDENT ADAMS:  And Albany  

 

 5          would be in the same situation.  We have an  

 

 6          influx of charter schools, and it definitely  

 

 7          impacts our budget.  And so we would  

 

 8          absolutely look to separate that out. 

 

 9                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay. 

 

10                 DR. KENESZTES:  The increase in  

 

11          Buffalo would be $14 million, raising our  

 

12          total to $150 million in an annual outlay. 

 

13                 So the 14 million represents exactly  

 

14          what's in the Executive Budget proposal right  

 

15          now.  So it's basically that money coming in  

 

16          and then going out to pay the charter  

 

17          tuition. 

 

18                 SENATOR MAYER:  And your ultimate  

 

19          number would be $150 million of your  

 

20          operating funds would be spent on charter  

 

21          reimbursement? 

 

22                 DR. KENESZTES:  Yes. 

 

23                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  Thank you very  

 

24          much. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 3          Assemblyman Benedetto. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:   

 

 5          Superintendents, thank you very much for  

 

 6          being here.  You've traveled a long way for  

 

 7          what is rather limited time here, but we  

 

 8          appreciate your being here. 

 

 9                 Last year the Legislature in its  

 

10          wisdom included in the State Budget a little  

 

11          provision allowing teachers to take two hours  

 

12          to go vote, okay?  I understand it's had a  

 

13          bit of an impact negatively on your  

 

14          districts.  Can anybody maybe elaborate on  

 

15          that little item? 

 

16                 SUPERINTENDENT ADAMS:  So I'll start  

 

17          by saying that we absolutely support the  

 

18          right of our employees to be able to go and  

 

19          vote.  However, when we look at the fact that  

 

20          at least here in Albany just a typical day  

 

21          may be, say, 8:00 to 3:00, because we utilize  

 

22          a professional development day on that day,  

 

23          we have the polls will open at 6 o'clock.  We  

 

24          also have the polls open until 9 o'clock at  
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 1          night.  And we also have early voting  

 

 2          opportunities. 

 

 3                 And so we have advocated that school  

 

 4          districts be exempt from this.  Looking  

 

 5          forward for the next two primaries, we are  

 

 6          scheduling in half-days because if a  

 

 7          significant number of our employees are  

 

 8          calling in, we would not be able to cover  

 

 9          with substitutes, et cetera. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Have a  

 

11          significant number called in? 

 

12                 SUPERINTENDENT ADAMS:  In our last --  

 

13          on the last election day, November 5th, there  

 

14          were approximately 500 that called in. 

 

15                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  And for  

 

16          Yonkers it was 700 members of the staff that  

 

17          used the time. 

 

18                 Just understand that this legislation  

 

19          was passed -- and again, we also support time  

 

20          for individuals to vote.  Number one, there  

 

21          needs to be structures put in place, and  

 

22          guidance, as it relates to how this time  

 

23          should be allocated.  This legislation was  

 

24          passed, and zero guidance was provided to us. 
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 1                 So how we provided the time was  

 

 2          different from district to district.  This  

 

 3          is, you know, very unfortunate.  Schools  

 

 4          cannot run without teachers.  The next  

 

 5          primaries happen during testing day.  I don't  

 

 6          know how we're going to do that.  I asked my  

 

 7          state delegation to sign up to be volunteers  

 

 8          in my district, and I would ask you all to be  

 

 9          volunteers in my district, because we cannot  

 

10          run schools with our staff. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  So I heard  

 

12          500, I heard 900.  Do I hear a thousand?   

 

13          Anybody else? 

 

14                 (Laughter.) 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  So it was  

 

16          basically a terrible, terrible burden that  

 

17          you have to deal with. 

 

18                 MULTIPLE PANEL MEMBERS:  Yes, mm-hmm. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you very  

 

20          much. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblywoman  

 

22          Hyndman. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you,  

 

24          Superintendents.  And sometimes I know,  
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 1          coming from New York City, when you hear -- I  

 

 2          think you said 27,000 students?  And, you  

 

 3          know, 1.1 million -- 

 

 4                 SUPERINTENDENT QUEZADA:  In one of  

 

 5          your districts. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Yeah.   

 

 7          Actually, I think my district has more than  

 

 8          27 -- I have 36,000 students in my Assembly  

 

 9          district. 

 

10                 Just really quick -- and, you know,  

 

11          I've been reading about Rochester School  

 

12          District.  And, you know, the situation is  

 

13          really disheartening.  You said you had to  

 

14          cut teachers so when the new semester  

 

15          started, students came back to new  

 

16          professionals.  What other areas did you have  

 

17          to cut? 

 

18                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  So for staffing  

 

19          we really had to look at positions outside of  

 

20          the classroom, because we -- like my  

 

21          colleague said, we have to have teachers in  

 

22          every single classroom.  So it went to things  

 

23          like intervention teachers, reading teachers.   

 

24          The things that are critical to our school  
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 1          district and its progress were the ones  

 

 2          facing the layoffs. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  So one of the  

 

 4          things in Rochester we know is high poverty.   

 

 5          And I visited Rochester a couple of years ago  

 

 6          when we went and sat with the United Way and  

 

 7          he talked about all of the things that keep  

 

 8          children out of school and the violence that  

 

 9          a lot of these students are facing. 

 

10                 The SED, the commissioner did not say  

 

11          no, she didn't say no to Assemblyman  

 

12          Bronson's question about a state takeover.  I  

 

13          didn't hear her say no.  And you are open to  

 

14          an independent monitor.  Would you be open to  

 

15          a state takeover? 

 

16                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  So for me right  

 

17          now, I've really tried to stay under the  

 

18          radar with regards to governance pieces.   

 

19          What I really am concerned about are extra  

 

20          layers that are going to get in the way of  

 

21          progress.  So if all I'm responsible for is  

 

22          generating reports, following up on report  

 

23          after report, CAPs and the like, we won't see  

 

24          the progress that we need for the students. 
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 1                 So as a superintendent I don't need  

 

 2          layers that are going to get in the way of  

 

 3          what I was brought in to do, which was to be  

 

 4          the instructional leader and to build the  

 

 5          culture of Rochester.  So that's my caveat  

 

 6          with anything moving forward. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  If Rochester  

 

 8          is fully funded with Foundation Aid, is that  

 

 9          enough to bring -- I mean, would you bring  

 

10          back the teachers that you had to let go or  

 

11          would you start a new search?  I'm just  

 

12          wondering sometimes about expertise and  

 

13          people that are sometimes entrenched in the  

 

14          system, and sometimes it does take new ideas. 

 

15                 What would you do?  Would that be  

 

16          enough to fix the deficit and do what  

 

17          Rochester needs to do to bring back quality  

 

18          education? 

 

19                 SUPERINTENDENT DADE:  With the  

 

20          $86 million coming back to what the city is  

 

21          owed, it would not only close the deficit  

 

22          that we're facing for next year, which is 55  

 

23          to 60 million, but it would also allow me to  

 

24          bring back some of those very teachers who  
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 1          are the rock stars that pushed into our  

 

 2          schools, said yes to the schools of the most  

 

 3          poverty in the nation.  So it would do just  

 

 4          that. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you. 

 

 6                 Superintendent Adams, good to see you  

 

 7          again. 

 

 8                 SUPERINTENDENT ADAMS:  Good to see you  

 

 9          too. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

11          That's all the questions members have for  

 

12          this panel.  Thank you for being here today. 

 

13                 MULTIPLE PANEL MEMBERS:  Thank you. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next we have a  

 

15          panel with 4201 Schools Association,  

 

16          Dr. Bernadette Kappen and Tim Kelly;  

 

17          Interagency Council of Developmental  

 

18          Disabilities, Christopher Treiber; and  

 

19          New York Association on Independent Living,  

 

20          Lindsay Miller.   

 

21                 Thank you for being here.  We put  

 

22          together -- just for information purposes, we  

 

23          put together these panels -- it makes it  

 

24          easier for members to question people when  

 

 



                                                                   391 

 

 1          they're somewhat similar subjects.  It helps  

 

 2          make the hearing go along much smoother, and  

 

 3          we get to have the last people on the list  

 

 4          get an opportunity to speak before members. 

 

 5                 So it's five minutes for each of you.   

 

 6          Feel free to begin. 

 

 7                 DR. KAPPEN:  Thank you so much for  

 

 8          allowing us to be here today.  And Tim and I  

 

 9          are here to support the schools for children  

 

10          that are deaf, blind and -- 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Can you move the  

 

12          mic a little closer to your mouth?  Sorry. 

 

13                 DR. KAPPEN:  -- and children with  

 

14          severe physical disabilities. 

 

15                 First we'd like to thank you all for  

 

16          your long-standing support of our students.   

 

17          And thinking about coming here today, I was  

 

18          looking at something written by Oprah  

 

19          Winfrey, and she says, "Surround yourself  

 

20          with people who are going to take you  

 

21          higher."  And that's what we see, that you've  

 

22          helped us all these years with our funding  

 

23          struggles.  And we appreciate the $1 million  

 

24          increase that we received for our schools  
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 1          last year. 

 

 2                 We ask you to think about our  

 

 3          situation in relation to other special ed  

 

 4          schools as well as the regular school  

 

 5          districts, in that we still don't have parity  

 

 6          with the school districts in supporting the  

 

 7          needs of the children with special needs at  

 

 8          our schools. 

 

 9                 The Executive Budget has proposed  

 

10          level funding for our schools, and you see  

 

11          that in your papers that we gave to you a  

 

12          little while ago.  We've used our increase  

 

13          really to support our teachers and  

 

14          professional staff in their growth, and those  

 

15          combined increases that we've had over the  

 

16          years have really helped us, but it's really  

 

17          just brought us back to our 2008-2009 level  

 

18          of funding. 

 

19                 We're really grateful, and very  

 

20          grateful, for the $30 million that were  

 

21          allocated to us last year for our short-term  

 

22          capital needs.  And we just recently learned  

 

23          that the RFPs are out for us to begin working  

 

24          on that, and that should definitely help our  
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 1          schools improve in our security, in our  

 

 2          infrastructure, and in our accessibility  

 

 3          areas.  Those would be the primary areas that  

 

 4          we would focus on. 

 

 5                 An area that's really important to us  

 

 6          would be the specialized workforce.  Many of  

 

 7          our teachers are dually certified in working  

 

 8          with children that are visually impaired,  

 

 9          hearing impaired, and special education, in  

 

10          addition to their subject area.   

 

11                 Trying to find highly trained staff is  

 

12          increasingly more difficult, particularly  

 

13          when many of the teacher training programs  

 

14          are closing down, so we really need to  

 

15          support the people that are in our programs,  

 

16          the teachers, as well as the clinical  

 

17          professional staff.  They are truly  

 

18          specialized in working with the needs of  

 

19          children that have communication needs --  

 

20          that could be the children that are deaf or  

 

21          hard of hearing or children that are blind  

 

22          and visually impaired, and children with  

 

23          severe physical disabilities that need  

 

24          special augmentative communication. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  I just have a  

 

 2          question, because I just want to clarify.  Is  

 

 3          Mr. Kelly also going to speak?  Okay, so you  

 

 4          have five minutes between the two of you.  So  

 

 5          I just was stopping it now so you would just  

 

 6          be aware and make sure you leave him some  

 

 7          time. 

 

 8                 DR. KAPPEN:  Okay, terrific.   

 

 9          Terrific.  Thank you.   

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

11                 DR. KAPPEN:  Basically we need to see  

 

12          about improvements in the salaries for our  

 

13          staff, and we definitely know that this is  

 

14          going to a long-term area.  So we hope that  

 

15          this is something we can work on over the  

 

16          next several years to really improve that. 

 

17                 MR. KELLY:  And I would just say we're  

 

18          proud of our outcomes at our schools.  We  

 

19          need to continue to provide high-quality  

 

20          instruction through highly qualified staff  

 

21          who are dual-certified in both their areas. 

 

22                 We are also interested in any sort of  

 

23          DASNY opportunity.  Our schools are old, some  

 

24          of our schools date back to 1817.  So any  
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 1          sort of DASNY projects, we would request the  

 

 2          bond cap be raised to $100 million to allow  

 

 3          for another round of DASNY projects.  We did  

 

 4          benefit from DASNY projects in the turn of  

 

 5          the century in 2000, and we're hoping that,  

 

 6          again, DASNY would be addressed. 

 

 7                 But in the end here, we're grateful  

 

 8          for the Smart Schools Bond Act.  A couple of  

 

 9          years ago when we testified, we were put into  

 

10          Smart Schools.  All of our schools have taken  

 

11          advantage of that opportunity and, again,  

 

12          leads to our good outcomes. 

 

13                 And in conclusion, we are proud to be  

 

14          a partner with New York State to provide  

 

15          high-quality educational opportunities to our  

 

16          students.  We take very seriously our  

 

17          responsibility to provide each of our  

 

18          students in the schools of deaf, blind and  

 

19          physically disabled with a safe and healthy  

 

20          environment so they can grow and succeed and  

 

21          reach their full potential before, during,  

 

22          and after school.  Our schools are  

 

23          residential schools, some of them, and our  

 

24          IEP goals are before school, during school,  
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 1          and after school. 

 

 2                 DR. KAPPEN:  And I would say, to wrap  

 

 3          up, our outcomes are positive for our  

 

 4          students.  We're able to say that we have a  

 

 5          100 percent graduation rate for our students,  

 

 6          that our students are also leaving us  

 

 7          confident that they will be doing something  

 

 8          in the workforce.  And their success is in  

 

 9          college, work or, for those students with  

 

10          more severe disabilities, in their supported  

 

11          living or supported work.  So we thank you  

 

12          for your support. 

 

13                 MR. TREIBER:  Hi, good afternoon.  My  

 

14          name is Christopher Treiber.  I'm the  

 

15          associate executive director for children's  

 

16          services for the Interagency Council of  

 

17          Developmental Disability Agencies. 

 

18                 And my testimony here is on behalf of  

 

19          a statewide group of five associations:  The  

 

20          Alliance of Long Island Agencies, the  

 

21          Cerebral Palsy Association of New York State,  

 

22          the Developmental Disability Alliance of  

 

23          Western New York, and the New York  

 

24          Association of Emerging and Multicultural  
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 1          Providers.   

 

 2                 On behalf of IAC and the five  

 

 3          statewide associations of special ed  

 

 4          providers, I would like to thank the New York  

 

 5          State Legislature for holding this public  

 

 6          hearing and for the opportunity to testify  

 

 7          here today.  Our schools serve more than  

 

 8          15,000 children each day at hundreds of  

 

 9          school sites across the state.  Our children  

 

10          are children who are considered public school  

 

11          children -- they're children who live in your  

 

12          neighborhoods, the children who would attend  

 

13          a local elementary school or pre-K program if  

 

14          they didn't have a disability.  They're  

 

15          children of your constituents, and many of  

 

16          these children have been diagnosed with  

 

17          autism spectrum disorder, cerebral palsy, and  

 

18          other developmental disabilities.   

 

19                 They're placed in our schools only  

 

20          after a determination has been made by a  

 

21          Committee on Special Education or Preschool  

 

22          Special Education that there's no other  

 

23          appropriate public school.  So our schools  

 

24          are the only educational option for these  
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 1          kids, yet our schools have not been provided  

 

 2          with funding necessary to meet those  

 

 3          mandates. 

 

 4                 I'm happy to report, you know, in here  

 

 5          that today there was a lot of discussion  

 

 6          about looking at the funding issues.  But  

 

 7          since 2012, state aid to our schools has  

 

 8          increased by very little.  The state has  

 

 9          increased aid to school districts by  

 

10          46 percent, but our 853 programs have had  

 

11          increases of only 26 percent -- and our  

 

12          preschools, 10 percent -- in that time.   

 

13                 There's a chart in our testimony on  

 

14          page 3 that talks about the annual growth,  

 

15          and you can see that there's a bunch of red  

 

16          lines.  The red lines are six years without  

 

17          any tuition increases for our preschool  

 

18          programs, four years without for our  

 

19          school-age programs. 

 

20                 We're requesting that the 853 and  

 

21          4410 programs receive minimum tuition  

 

22          increases that are comparable to the local  

 

23          school districts. 

 

24                 The other issue that we're facing is a  
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 1          significant and dire staffing crisis in our  

 

 2          schools that's been mentioned already.   

 

 3          Turnover and vacancy rates are significant in  

 

 4          our schools.  We have a chart in our  

 

 5          testimony on page 6 that shows that the  

 

 6          vacancy rates for our certified teachers has  

 

 7          remained steady for two years at 28 percent.   

 

 8          And that is a very concerning number for us  

 

 9          in terms of the fact that we can no longer  

 

10          recruit and retain teachers. 

 

11                 We're happy to see that the Board of  

 

12          Regents -- and they have made recommendations  

 

13          that they've mentioned already, to support  

 

14          enhancing and trying to increase the teacher  

 

15          pool for our schools.  They're asking for  

 

16          $2 million for a teacher pipeline and  

 

17          $2 million for tuition loan forgiveness.  We  

 

18          support both of those specific  

 

19          recommendations. 

 

20                 The salary disparity issue across the  

 

21          state is a huge problem.  Our teachers are  

 

22          getting paid 40 percent less than what they  

 

23          get paid if they would work in a public  

 

24          school.  The teaching staff in our schools  
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 1          are deeply caring, committed professionals  

 

 2          who work every single day to ensure that  

 

 3          children get a free and appropriate public  

 

 4          education -- and they leave not because  

 

 5          they're unhappy, but because it's a better  

 

 6          economic life.   

 

 7                 We have a chart in there on page 8  

 

 8          that talks about a tale of two teachers, and  

 

 9          that specifically outlines this issue for  

 

10          you. 

 

11                 We're requesting that the Legislature  

 

12          help to address recruitment and retention by  

 

13          increasing the funding for the teacher  

 

14          recruitment and retention funds, and asking  

 

15          for a new separate fund to be created to  

 

16          support the recruitment and retention of  

 

17          certified teacher assistants.   

 

18                 That's very important.  In New York  

 

19          City it's been mentioned in regard to the  

 

20          salary parity issue -- a major  

 

21          accomplishment.  However, for our teachers,  

 

22          it's a nightmare because they're not  

 

23          included.  Our teachers for the most part now  

 

24          in New York City are probably the lowest-paid  
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 1          teachers in the city, and that is really  

 

 2          jeopardizing the operations of our schools. 

 

 3                 In conclusion, I would just basically  

 

 4          say that Advocates for Children produced a  

 

 5          report last week that identifies that the  

 

 6          regional needs in New York City are anywhere  

 

 7          between 1,000 and 2,000 preschool kids, and  

 

 8          that's really significant.   

 

 9                 I think the question that all of you  

 

10          are going to have to struggle with is if a  

 

11          parent, a mother of a child, a 3-year-old  

 

12          recently diagnosed with autism, comes to you  

 

13          and basically says "I can't get a preschool  

 

14          seat," what's going to happen to that child?   

 

15          We have providers that serve more than 500  

 

16          children, and those programs are in jeopardy  

 

17          of closing.  If one of those programs closed,  

 

18          in addition to the regional need, it would be  

 

19          a massive crisis in the city. 

 

20                 So we would like to know basically why  

 

21          children who attend preschool special  

 

22          education programs and 853 programs are not  

 

23          given the same financial resources as  

 

24          children who attend their local public  
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 1          schools when their parents pay the same  

 

 2          taxes.  Why are the children who attend our  

 

 3          schools not afforded the same rights as a  

 

 4          child in a public school to a certified  

 

 5          special education teacher?  We believe  

 

 6          New York State will be held accountable by  

 

 7          the children and families who depend on these  

 

 8          critical services, and will need to provide  

 

 9          answers to those questions.   

 

10                 Thank you, and I am available to  

 

11          answer any questions. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

13                 MS. MILLER:  Hello.  Thank you for the  

 

14          opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of  

 

15          the New York Association on Independent  

 

16          Living.  NYAIL is a statewide membership  

 

17          organization of Independent Living Centers  

 

18          across New York State.  ILCs are  

 

19          cross-disability, locally administered  

 

20          nonprofits run by people with disabilities  

 

21          for people with disabilities. 

 

22                 ILCs exist to ensure that people with  

 

23          disabilities have a chance at participating  

 

24          in community living and have assistance in  
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 1          removing communication, structural and  

 

 2          attitudinal barriers in all parts of the  

 

 3          state.  Our ILCs facilitate independent  

 

 4          living, engaging in education every day to  

 

 5          help people learn and grow as individuals,  

 

 6          serving people with all disabilities, of all  

 

 7          ages, as well as working within the  

 

 8          communities to educate local businesses,  

 

 9          community partners, et cetera. 

 

10                 One of our additional services, in  

 

11          recent years -- ILCs have always engaged in  

 

12          transition and diversion work, helping  

 

13          individuals with disabilities to transition  

 

14          out of institutions and back into the  

 

15          community.  Data collected from the State  

 

16          Education Department has shown that that has  

 

17          saved the state over $2 billion since 2001.   

 

18          That became a formal core service of  

 

19          Independent Living Centers in recent years,  

 

20          and included as part of that core transition  

 

21          service is also youth transition -- so  

 

22          working with younger people with disabilities  

 

23          to provide help transitioning from school to  

 

24          employment.   
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 1                 Obviously it coincides with ACCES-VR's  

 

 2          new requirement as part of WIOA to provide  

 

 3          youth services as well.  So we've been a  

 

 4          partner with ACCES-VR in helping meet those  

 

 5          new deliverables. 

 

 6                 Individuals also often come to ILCs  

 

 7          when they're in crisis, they come to us when  

 

 8          no other agency has been able to meet their  

 

 9          needs.  A huge part of what we do is helping  

 

10          people navigate the very complicated service  

 

11          system that exists, and helping them figure  

 

12          out where they need to go for assistance,  

 

13          what they're eligible for, et cetera.   

 

14                 Over the years we've seen a growing  

 

15          demand for our services, particularly in  

 

16          light of all the changes that have occurred  

 

17          in the Medicaid system with the Medicaid  

 

18          Redesign Team, and obviously now in this year  

 

19          we're anticipating even more changes to the  

 

20          Medicaid program, and likely more individuals  

 

21          left confused and in need. 

 

22                 People call us wanting an appointment  

 

23          as soon as possible because they're losing  

 

24          housing, they're being discharged from a  
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 1          hospital with a new disability, they need  

 

 2          help navigating the system to get  

 

 3          accommodations for their children, the list  

 

 4          goes on.  Benefits counseling is a huge part  

 

 5          of what we do as well.  

 

 6                 I've been saying recently that ILCs  

 

 7          have been doing and focusing on social  

 

 8          determinants of health before it was savvy to  

 

 9          talk about focusing on social determinants of  

 

10          health.  It's kind of what we were created to  

 

11          do and have been doing since inception. 

 

12                 The Independent Living Center network  

 

13          has been seeking a $5 million increase to our  

 

14          funding line for several years now.  The  

 

15          network of 41 Independent Living Centers have  

 

16          been level-funded for over 10 years now.   

 

17          Last year, in large part thanks to many of  

 

18          you up there, the Legislature, we were able  

 

19          to secure a $500,000 increase in the budget.   

 

20          However, the Executive did not include that  

 

21          in his Executive Budget this year, so now  

 

22          we're looking at facing another cut.   

 

23                 All of the centers have created  

 

24          budgets based on that very slight increase.   
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 1          Obviously a half-million dollars divided  

 

 2          among 41 centers is not a lot, but it's  

 

 3          something.  It helps cover the increase in  

 

 4          health insurance costs.  And now centers are  

 

 5          looking at having to, you know, reduce their  

 

 6          budgets yet again. 

 

 7                 So, you know, again, we thank you for  

 

 8          your support in the past and we urge you to  

 

 9          consider independent living and a $5 million  

 

10          increase to core funding.   

 

11                 Thank you. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

13                 We go to Assemblyman Benedetto. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you all  

 

15          for coming up here and giving your testimony.   

 

16          Certainly we up here at this panel know of  

 

17          the 853 schools and the 4201s and the great  

 

18          job you do teaching those kids.  And it's an  

 

19          embarrassment that we do not fund properly  

 

20          those schools, and so your teachers are now  

 

21          fleeing you and going to the public school  

 

22          sector.  And we will endeavor to try. 

 

23                 And Ms. Miller, as far as the  

 

24          Independent Living Centers, you know, it was  
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 1          a cruel joke last year when all we were able  

 

 2          to get was a half-million dollars, and a  

 

 3          crueler joke this year when the Governor has  

 

 4          taken it away.  We will try to do what we can  

 

 5          to restore that and give a little extra back  

 

 6          too, because you certainly have been deprived  

 

 7          over all these years. 

 

 8                 How many centers throughout the state,  

 

 9          41, 44? 

 

10                 MS. MILLER:  Forty-one. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Forty-one.   

 

12          You do a great job.  Continue it. 

 

13                 Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

15                 We were joined by -- we've been joined  

 

16          by Assemblyman O'Donnell. 

 

17                 We go to Senator Mayer. 

 

18                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you, Madam  

 

19          Chair.  Thank you all for being here. 

 

20                 I have questions for different people. 

 

21                 Dr. Kappen, on the $30 million  

 

22          capital, which I know you all really need,  

 

23          that does not -- what we did, we were unable  

 

24          to get that to be issued by DASNY, as I  
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 1          understand.   

 

 2                 And what is the advantage for the  

 

 3          schools in being able to get the bonds issued  

 

 4          by DASNY, as opposed to the process that we  

 

 5          established last year, which I think is  

 

 6          significantly more cumbersome. 

 

 7                 DR. KAPPEN:  We're hoping, with the  

 

 8          30 million, that the application process will  

 

 9          be simpler, maybe, than going through the  

 

10          full DASNY bond situation.  And it was for  

 

11          short-term capital, things that we needed to  

 

12          have done six months, 18 months. 

 

13                 And the DASNY would be for longer-term  

 

14          projects -- if you needed a bigger  

 

15          renovation.  And as you mentioned, it's a  

 

16          more sophisticated process, or elaborate, to  

 

17          go through that.   

 

18                 I mean, to get the DASNY project again  

 

19          for us again, the number needs to be raised  

 

20          to 100 million.  We've talked about it as a  

 

21          group, and it looks like that's about the  

 

22          number that the schools would need.  Right  

 

23          now we're at 65 million.  So that SED wants  

 

24          assurance that the number's up there before  

 

 



                                                                   409 

 

 1          they'll entertain any proposals for the DASNY  

 

 2          funding.   

 

 3                 So that's the difference that I would  

 

 4          see in the two. 

 

 5                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  I appreciate  

 

 6          that. 

 

 7                 With respect to the 853 -- the 4410  

 

 8          programs -- let me switch to you -- do you  

 

 9          know how many programs closed last year  

 

10          statewide? 

 

11                 MR. TREIBER:  I don't know how many  

 

12          closed last year.  I know 61 preschool  

 

13          programs have closed in the last five years,  

 

14          31 of them in New York City, and it affected  

 

15          thousands of kids. 

 

16                 SENATOR MAYER:  And from your  

 

17          perspective, that's primarily due to the  

 

18          failure to adequately reimburse these  

 

19          programs and to pay the staff adequately, I  

 

20          assume. 

 

21                 MR. TREIBER:  Yes.  The majority of  

 

22          programs have closed because either their  

 

23          funding just didn't provide enough support  

 

24          for them as children's needs increased, and  
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 1          they just couldn't afford it. 

 

 2                 And then too many programs right now  

 

 3          are struggling with staffing.  And when you  

 

 4          can't get enough teachers to operate the  

 

 5          classrooms, you have to make a professional  

 

 6          decision at some point about, you know, how  

 

 7          much longer you can continue to operate that  

 

 8          school. 

 

 9                 SENATOR MAYER:  In the 4410 programs,  

 

10          for example, downstate, do you know what the  

 

11          starting salary is for a teacher in a 4410  

 

12          preschool? 

 

13                 MR. TREIBER:  We are right now trying  

 

14          to get that information from our providers.   

 

15          And that's something that New York City's  

 

16          elected officials have asked us in terms of  

 

17          trying to do something about the salary  

 

18          parity issue.  So we can get back to you on  

 

19          that. 

 

20                 SENATOR MAYER:  Well, I would ask that  

 

21          it go beyond New York City, because it's an  

 

22          important component of our argument that  

 

23          these schools need to be adequately funded. 

 

24                 MR. TREIBER:  Yes, absolutely.  Thank  
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 1          you. 

 

 2                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

 4                 Assemblyman Ra. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.   

 

 6                 Always great to see you here  

 

 7          advocating on behalf of your students.   

 

 8                 So I just want to go back to what  

 

 9          Chair Mayer was talking about with the  

 

10          capital.  I had the opportunity to finally  

 

11          visit New York School for the Deaf in the  

 

12          fall; one of these days I'm going to make it  

 

13          out to Buffalo and see St. Mary's, but -- 

 

14                 MR. TREIBER:  You're more than  

 

15          welcome. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Maybe not in the  

 

17          winter.  I'll wait till it's warmer. 

 

18                 (Laughter.) 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  But, you know, those  

 

20          capital needs -- I mean, I saw on that  

 

21          campus -- it's a huge, beautiful campus, but  

 

22          there's buildings that either can't be used  

 

23          or really need to be refitted and refurbished  

 

24          so that they can be utilized, particularly  
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 1          with all of the technological needs that come  

 

 2          into play with serving your student  

 

 3          populations.   

 

 4                 You know, but the capital, I know you  

 

 5          talked about there's the short-term piece,  

 

 6          there's a long-term piece.  You know, what  

 

 7          about like the kind of equipment side of it  

 

 8          and those type of things that would need to  

 

 9          be incorporated in new buildings or  

 

10          refurbished buildings to accommodate your  

 

11          student populations?  Would that fit within  

 

12          the DASNY piece? 

 

13                 DR. KAPPEN:  I think that's a huge  

 

14          part of it, in that, as you mentioned, some  

 

15          of our buildings are -- campuses are 200  

 

16          years old, that the schools have been around.   

 

17                 So I think improving certainly the  

 

18          technology and those types of things are  

 

19          really critical.  The types of students that  

 

20          we have rely heavily on technology.  For  

 

21          children that are deaf, they need so many  

 

22          visual learning systems and other pieces of  

 

23          equipment.  Children that are blind will also  

 

24          need to have better access to the computers  
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 1          and technology.  So that's a huge part of it. 

 

 2                 And we did benefit a bit from the  

 

 3          Smart Schools, but it was just a small amount  

 

 4          for technology.  But I think the  

 

 5          infrastructure for technology going forward  

 

 6          is really critical for our children to be  

 

 7          competitive with the children in their --  

 

 8          their typical peers. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator John  

 

11          Liu. 

 

12                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair,  

 

13          for that introduction. 

 

14                 (Laughter.) 

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  But it turns out that  

 

16          between Chair Mayer and Assemblymember Ra,  

 

17          that I've got all my answers to my fiscal  

 

18          questions. 

 

19                 I want to commend all of you for  

 

20          continuing to do really very difficult but  

 

21          necessary work for our children.  Thank you. 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator  

 

23          Krueger. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Hi.  Thank you.   
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 1          Now that John Liu already had his questions  

 

 2          answered, it dawned on me I had a question, I  

 

 3          think primarily for the Interagency Council  

 

 4          of Developmental Disabilities Agencies. 

 

 5                 MR. TREIBER:  Sure. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  What happens to  

 

 7          the young people after they leave your  

 

 8          programs?  Where are they going? 

 

 9                 MR. TREIBER:  It kind of depends on  

 

10          what their needs are.  They usually go into  

 

11          the Office for People with Developmental  

 

12          Disabilities-based programs, if they  

 

13          transition out at school -- you know, end of  

 

14          school age.  Some of them go into day  

 

15          programs, day treatment programs.  Some of  

 

16          them go into what's called dayhab, in the  

 

17          community.   

 

18                 So it kind of depends on how the  

 

19          support services have been provided, what's  

 

20          available to them at the transition point.   

 

21          And our schools try to ensure that there are  

 

22          services available for all the kids when they  

 

23          leave. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  This is going to  
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 1          sound like a hard question, but I'm going to  

 

 2          ask it anyway. 

 

 3                 MR. TREIBER:  Sure. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Is it conceivable  

 

 5          that the state is evaluating in some way that  

 

 6          the educational programs you're trying to  

 

 7          provide with higher education professionals  

 

 8          isn't a good match, and hence they're  

 

 9          shifting to another model?   

 

10                 So that yes, you have vacancies and  

 

11          yes, you don't have adequate funding to  

 

12          provide for master's-degree teachers, but is  

 

13          it conceivable that there is some other  

 

14          universe within state government or even  

 

15          OPWDD who's saying, Times have changed and  

 

16          this isn't really the right model, or this is  

 

17          such an expensive model compared to other  

 

18          models that we are shifting and that you are  

 

19          unfortunately in a position where you're  

 

20          being, so to speak, shifted out?   

 

21                 So I just wanted to ask. 

 

22                 MR. TREIBER:  So you mean shifting in  

 

23          terms of the service model itself? 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Yeah.  The  
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 1          programs that they were offering kids and  

 

 2          then, as they age out, offering adults. 

 

 3                 MR. TREIBER:  I mean, I think -- I  

 

 4          think you have to look at it globally.  And  

 

 5          one of the concerns, seriously, that we  

 

 6          really have is that you have early  

 

 7          intervention programs that are no longer able  

 

 8          to provide services to kids -- there aren't  

 

 9          staff, there aren't enough teachers, there  

 

10          aren't enough experts.  Then you go to  

 

11          preschool and it's the same situation. 

 

12                 So when you get to school age, you see  

 

13          kids with higher levels of need.  Even the  

 

14          public schools are reporting it.  I was at a  

 

15          meeting with the commissioner for OPWDD about  

 

16          a week ago, and he reported that there are  

 

17          significant numbers of preschool students now  

 

18          applying for OPWDD services for the first  

 

19          time.  That is unheard of in terms of a  

 

20          volume of numbers. 

 

21                 So I think it's symptomatic of the  

 

22          fact that the programs, these early  

 

23          intervention programs, are not meeting the  

 

24          kids' needs.  And then when you get to school  
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 1          age and you know that -- even within New York  

 

 2          City, they're reporting that they can only  

 

 3          provide a complement of like 60-something-  

 

 4          percent of all the kids are getting all their  

 

 5          mandated services.   

 

 6                 So you're already giving kids the --  

 

 7          you know, giving kids opportunities -- you're  

 

 8          saying they need this stuff, then you're not  

 

 9          providing it anymore.  So by the time they  

 

10          leave, there's this gap of everything that  

 

11          they didn't get.  And so when they leave,  

 

12          there has to be an assessment about what's  

 

13          available to them.   

 

14                 So I don't think the system itself is  

 

15          not -- you know, not ready to serve the kids.   

 

16          I think the system needs to be funded  

 

17          properly so that the children can get the  

 

18          services they need.  Because I believe right  

 

19          now the system is not funded, and we have far  

 

20          too many kids that aren't getting the  

 

21          services they're legally entitled to. 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  And so -- 

 

23                 MR. TREIBER:  I don't know if that  

 

24          answers your question. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  I know my clock  

 

 2          is up, but maybe just think about it and we  

 

 3          can talk afterwards. 

 

 4                 So when there was the time in history  

 

 5          that you were adequately funded to serve  

 

 6          these kids, you were getting better outcomes  

 

 7          and they were going on to do other things in  

 

 8          their lives beyond the storyline now? 

 

 9                 MR. TREIBER:  I think that you had a  

 

10          different population of children.  I think  

 

11          that's part of it.   

 

12                 I mean, the reality in our schools was  

 

13          this, really.  We used to always take for  

 

14          granted that we would always have teachers.   

 

15          We would train the teachers, and they would  

 

16          obviously go to public schools.  We could  

 

17          never compete with them, right? 

 

18                 The problem is we don't even have  

 

19          teachers anymore to train.  They're not there  

 

20          anymore.  And then on top of it, we don't  

 

21          even have the master-level teachers because  

 

22          they've all been recruited away.  So we have  

 

23          a school, in many cases, that has brand-new,  

 

24          inexperienced teachers, and no one there to  
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 1          really support and mentor them.  And I think  

 

 2          that is really the recipe that is creating  

 

 3          the real significant challenge for the  

 

 4          schools to provide the quality services they  

 

 5          want to provide. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.  Thank  

 

 7          you. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 9          There are no more questions.  Thank you all  

 

10          for being here. 

 

11                 Next we have Alliance for Quality  

 

12          Education, Jasmine Gripper. 

 

13                 MS. GRIPPER:  Good afternoon. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Good afternoon. 

 

15                 MS. GRIPPER:  My name is Jasmine  

 

16          Gripper.  I'm the executive director for the  

 

17          Alliance for Quality Education.  And thank  

 

18          you for the opportunity to testify before you  

 

19          today. 

 

20                 I don't want to repeat a lot of the  

 

21          things that have been said.  You know AQE  

 

22          supports fully funding the Foundation Aid  

 

23          formula.  We agree with the recommendations  

 

24          for the State Education Department that we  
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 1          should fully fund the formula and then look  

 

 2          at making changes to the formula. 

 

 3                 I also want to bring up the issue  

 

 4          about Rochester School District.  We've been  

 

 5          very close with parents and students in  

 

 6          Rochester for a long time; it is a  

 

 7          high-priority area for us.  We support the  

 

 8          need for a fiscal monitor, but we would like  

 

 9          to model the fiscal monitor after what's  

 

10          happening in Long Island and East Ramapo.  In  

 

11          all those situations the mayor does not have  

 

12          any say-so over the fiscal monitor or  

 

13          choosing the fiscal monitor, it's simply up  

 

14          to SED, and we would like to continue that  

 

15          for the situation in Rochester. 

 

16                 I'm going to skip to the end of my  

 

17          testimony and focus on one thing that I think  

 

18          has not been said yet today.  The 2019  

 

19          enacted budget included monumental reforms to  

 

20          limit cash bail for most nonviolent offenses.   

 

21          And just days after the new bail laws went  

 

22          into effect, the law enforcement community,  

 

23          the GOP, district attorneys and centrist  

 

24          Democrats launched an aggressive campaign  
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 1          calling for the roll-back or reversal of the  

 

 2          new laws.  

 

 3                 But absent from these conversations on  

 

 4          rolling back bail is the high cost of mass  

 

 5          incarceration.  Year after year we tell the  

 

 6          children of New York State that we do not  

 

 7          have enough money for their education.  It's  

 

 8          been over a decade, and New York has still  

 

 9          not fulfilled the promise for the Campaign  

 

10          for Fiscal Equity.  We have yet to fulfill  

 

11          the promise of full-day universal pre-K for  

 

12          4-year-olds outside of New York City.  And  

 

13          childcare deserts exist across the state,  

 

14          denying working parents and children a safe  

 

15          and reliable place to learn. 

 

16                 All because state leaders claim there  

 

17          is not enough money to invest in educational  

 

18          opportunities for black, brown and low-income  

 

19          children.  Yet when it comes to holding  

 

20          people in New York's jails and prisons, the  

 

21          money seems endless.  While schools literally  

 

22          crumble from decay and outdated  

 

23          infrastructure, jails and prisons continue to  

 

24          be funded, constructed and expanded.   
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 1          community supervision and mass surveillance  

 

 2          continue to be instituted with  

 

 3          state-of-the-art technology, while New York  

 

 4          City students are literally using Windows 97  

 

 5          {sic} in some of their schools. 

 

 6                 Instead of spending billions of  

 

 7          dollars to maintain the prison industrial  

 

 8          complex and systems of oppression and  

 

 9          structural racism, we need to instead invest  

 

10          in our youth and their education.  In 2019,  

 

11          New York City spent $337,000 per inmate in  

 

12          jail annually.  On average, New York State  

 

13          spends $70,000 per prison bed.  Yet at no  

 

14          point in a child's educational career do we  

 

15          invest half as much in learning  

 

16          opportunities.  New York spends, on average,  

 

17          $22,000 for K-12 education, about $10,000 for  

 

18          full-day pre-K, and about $15,000 on  

 

19          childcare.   

 

20                 The hypocrisy from New York State's  

 

21          political leadership is glaring when you  

 

22          compare the lofty progressive rhetoric with  

 

23          excessive investments in incarceration over  

 

24          education.  We cannot continue to deny  
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 1          children access to the resources they need to  

 

 2          succeed.  New York State can't cry "broke"  

 

 3          when it comes to education while  

 

 4          simultaneously handing over a blank check to  

 

 5          jails and prisons. 

 

 6                 Budgets are about priorities.  Are we  

 

 7          going to be a state that prioritizes the  

 

 8          education of black, brown and poor children,  

 

 9          or will we continue to be a state that  

 

10          prioritizes filling our jails with black,  

 

11          brown and poor children?  The choice is  

 

12          simple.  It is time to end the decades of  

 

13          systemic racism, it is time to end mass  

 

14          incarceration, and it's time to fully fund  

 

15          our public schools.  The 2020 budget is your  

 

16          chance to make right decades of systemic  

 

17          racism and inequity.  Our children are  

 

18          depending on you, the members of the State  

 

19          Assembly and Senate, to prioritize their  

 

20          education in this year's enacted budget. 

 

21                 Thank you for your time. 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

23          Assemblyman O'Donnell. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL:  It's very nice  
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 1          to see you again, see you in your position  

 

 2          alone -- usually it took five men to do your  

 

 3          job, and you do it all by yourself.  I'm very  

 

 4          impressed. 

 

 5                 (Laughter.) 

 

 6                 MS. GRIPPER:  Thank you.   

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL:  I want to  

 

 8          thank you for your last comment.  I just want  

 

 9          to correct one small thing.  The army of the  

 

10          screams about the failure of bail reform did  

 

11          not begin in January, they started in  

 

12          October/November.  And I would regularly  

 

13          think, how do these people know the ability  

 

14          to tell the future? 

 

15                 So we really don't know what the  

 

16          impact would be.  But clearly the banging the  

 

17          drums started way before then.  So -- but I  

 

18          want to thank you for including it. 

 

19                 We're sitting here in this room with  

 

20          my personal hero, Robert Jackson, who was  

 

21          Mr. CFE for many, many years before he got  

 

22          here.  He likes to talk about walking back  

 

23          and forth to Albany -- I don't think I could  

 

24          do that.  But I'll walk to my car if he likes  
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 1          me to. 

 

 2                 So what I want to know is, it's been  

 

 3          so long, right -- and when I first got here,  

 

 4          it was the moment we thought we were finally  

 

 5          going to fix it.  And yet it's not fixed.  So  

 

 6          can you tell me how much it would cost to fix  

 

 7          it?  And anything you can share with us about  

 

 8          why you think it hasn't got fixed yet? 

 

 9                 MS. GRIPPER:  Well, the priority for  

 

10          Foundation Aid is fully funding schools that  

 

11          are highest-need.  And New York State has not  

 

12          prioritized meeting the needs of our  

 

13          high-need populations.   

 

14                 It's also mostly students of color who  

 

15          are owed the Foundation Aid money.  And so  

 

16          it's definitely a racial justice issue. 

 

17                 We know the state -- the schools need  

 

18          $3.8 billion to catch up to what the wealthy  

 

19          districts are spending and to provide a  

 

20          sound, basic education.  And we need that  

 

21          fast.  New York State has been trickling in  

 

22          adding money to Foundation Aid.  The formula  

 

23          was intended to have a billion dollars in it,  

 

24          and we have not done that since the first two  
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 1          years of the phase-in.  And we took away that  

 

 2          money immediately when the financial crisis  

 

 3          hit, and we've never gotten back on track to  

 

 4          fully funding the Foundation Aid. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL:  So I agree  

 

 6          with you.  And thank you for explaining it  

 

 7          better than I could.   

 

 8                 But there is frustration among us  

 

 9          New York City electeds because we send many,  

 

10          many dollars into Tweed, and nothing ever  

 

11          seems to happen.  One of my first years here  

 

12          we stayed till August to fight for the CFE,  

 

13          and we eventually the following year got $5.4  

 

14          billion to repair the public schools in  

 

15          New York City.  We sent the money, and the  

 

16          only way I could get a bathroom fixed in one  

 

17          of my elementary schools was by shaming Joel  

 

18          Klein at a public hearing. 

 

19                 So do you have any suggestion about  

 

20          how we can ensure that the money -- whatever  

 

21          money we give -- is going to the purpose that  

 

22          you want it to, which is the purpose that I  

 

23          want it to and I'm sure Senator Jackson wants  

 

24          it to as well? 
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 1                 MS. GRIPPER:  Yes.  We deeply believe  

 

 2          in the Contract for Excellence, which was  

 

 3          created at the same time as the Foundation  

 

 4          Aid formula, which tied the increases to  

 

 5          going to the neediest students and the  

 

 6          neediest schools, and for specific programs  

 

 7          that were proven to work, and not just to be  

 

 8          wasteful. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL:  Thank you very  

 

10          much.  I won't take up more time. 

 

11                 MS. GRIPPER:  Thank you. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

13                 Senator Shelley Mayer. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  Nice to see you.   

 

15          Thank you for being here. 

 

16                 One, I wanted to thank you for  

 

17          participating in our roundtables in a  

 

18          constructive way towards creating pressure to  

 

19          fully fund Foundation Aid statewide.  While  

 

20          we look at whether it is an accurate  

 

21          predictor of need, which should be the  

 

22          driving force of how the state's money goes  

 

23          out the door. 

 

24                 You basically indicated that you  
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 1          support the -- AQE supports the Regents'  

 

 2          proposal for the amount of funding for  

 

 3          Foundation Aid.  Does AQE support the balance  

 

 4          of the Regents' proposals?  For example,  

 

 5          setting aside money to ultimately examine  

 

 6          whether the Foundation Aid formula should be  

 

 7          updated with respect to, for example, the  

 

 8          regional cost index in the Hudson Valley,  

 

 9          which you note in your testimony is a real  

 

10          problem.   

 

11                 MS. GRIPPER:  We do.  We absolutely  

 

12          support the need, that SED needs the funding  

 

13          to look into the formula.  It's really hard  

 

14          to evaluate a formula that has not been used  

 

15          in over a decade.  Every year the State  

 

16          Legislature enacts a year-to-year so-called  

 

17          Foundation Aid formula, and so it's really  

 

18          hard to evaluate an actual formula that  

 

19          changes every year.   

 

20                 So if we fully fund Foundation Aid and  

 

21          then look into the formula, that is the  

 

22          appropriate course of action. 

 

23                 SENATOR MAYER:  Another question is  

 

24          there are districts throughout the state that  
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 1          have received more than a hundred percent of  

 

 2          Foundation Aid owed, in part because of the  

 

 3          hold-harmless provisions and in part because  

 

 4          they receive a fairly modest amount of state  

 

 5          aid compared to how much they raise through  

 

 6          local property tax. 

 

 7                 Is AQE, in the long run, interested in  

 

 8          a system by which we move from property tax  

 

 9          funding to greater funding through the state  

 

10          in order to achieve equity?  Because there  

 

11          are districts like Yonkers which are  

 

12          continually short-changed, whether the  

 

13          Foundation Aid was fully funded or not, which  

 

14          would still structurally be in a deficit. 

 

15                 MS. GRIPPER:  Absolutely.  The way we  

 

16          fund schools inherently creates inequality.   

 

17          As long as we have districts that are more  

 

18          wealthy than others, they're able to generate  

 

19          more school aid for their schools.   

 

20                 When we talk about that New York State  

 

21          is one of the top spenders, people forget  

 

22          that that is because our wealthy school  

 

23          districts are spending so much more.  And  

 

24          90 percent of what they spend is raised  
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 1          locally. 

 

 2                 And so, for example, a school district  

 

 3          like Utica spends about 16,000 per pupil --  

 

 4          the majority of that comes from the state --  

 

 5          where Scarsdale spends close to 30,000, and  

 

 6          almost all of that is raised in Scarsdale  

 

 7          locally. 

 

 8                 And so by raising money for schools  

 

 9          through property taxes, it has built in  

 

10          inequality, and we need to undo that. 

 

11                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  Thank you  

 

12          very much. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

14                 Senator Bronson -- or Assemblymember  

 

15          Bronson. 

 

16                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Well, thank you  

 

17          for that -- 

 

18                 (Laughter.) 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  -- but I'll stay  

 

20          in this house. 

 

21                 (Laughter.) 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Excuse me. 

 

23                 (Inaudible overtalk.) 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  With that being  
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 1          said, thank you for being here today.  And  

 

 2          you mentioned that you have been in  

 

 3          Rochester.  Thank you for all your advocacy  

 

 4          up in our City of Rochester on many issues,  

 

 5          but most importantly on the Rochester City  

 

 6          School District issue.   

 

 7                 And you mentioned talking to parents  

 

 8          and students, and I have as well.  And many  

 

 9          of them agree, as I do, we have to turn that  

 

10          school district around.  It is doing a  

 

11          disservice to our students and really is  

 

12          failing from the perspective of education is  

 

13          about providing opportunities, and with a  

 

14          quality education we have limitless  

 

15          opportunities.  Foundation Aid, all types of  

 

16          state aid for our schools is key to that. 

 

17                 In your conversations or otherwise,  

 

18          make the connection between making sure we  

 

19          fully fund the Rochester City School District  

 

20          and how that transforms in better academic  

 

21          performance and more opportunities for our  

 

22          students. 

 

23                 MS. GRIPPER:  Yeah.  Rochester is one  

 

24          of the poorest communities in the nation, and  
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 1          people often forget that when they're talking  

 

 2          about the needs and what's happening on the  

 

 3          ground in Rochester.   

 

 4                 Students who are coming to school have  

 

 5          experienced a lot of trauma as well as a lot  

 

 6          of instability in their home, especially  

 

 7          around housing.  And so when kids come to  

 

 8          school with all of that baggage, so to say,  

 

 9          the schools need to be able to help unpack  

 

10          that so kids are able to learn. 

 

11                 Rochester has been doing a good job of  

 

12          trying to meet the needs of students.  They  

 

13          opened Help Zones in a lot of their schools,  

 

14          they have counselors in their schools, and  

 

15          they've been moving in the right direction.   

 

16          So even when you look at the fiscal problem  

 

17          in Rochester and the overspending that has  

 

18          occurred, the overspending was spent on the  

 

19          students.  It actually wasn't because the  

 

20          district or the school board was corrupt,  

 

21          they just overspent on their students, who  

 

22          have a lot of need. 

 

23                 And so if Rochester was able to fully  

 

24          meet the needs of the students, one, there'll  
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 1          be more consistency in the district, that  

 

 2          programs that were started can continue to go  

 

 3          on, which are now all at risk because the  

 

 4          district is likely to continue to lay off  

 

 5          teachers and staff if they don't get their  

 

 6          full Foundation Aid amount in this year's  

 

 7          enacted budget. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Okay, thank you. 

 

 9                 So I think your point is well-taken.   

 

10          There is no indication that funds were  

 

11          misappropriated or embezzled in some way.  It  

 

12          really was overspending on programs to help  

 

13          the students and making sure that we provided  

 

14          for the staff there, correct? 

 

15                 MS. GRIPPER:  Correct.  For the  

 

16          students in a very high-need district. 

 

17                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you. 

 

18                 Senator Jackson. 

 

19                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you.  Thank  

 

20          you, Madam Chair.  And let me thank AQE for  

 

21          being the statewide leader that AQE is, and  

 

22          under your leadership, I thank you. 

 

23                 You know, we talk about Rochester.   

 

24          How much is Rochester owed under the  
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 1          Foundation Aid formula? 

 

 2                 MS. GRIPPER:  Rochester is owed about  

 

 3          $86 million in Foundation Aid. 

 

 4                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Eighty-six million  

 

 5          dollars. 

 

 6                 MS. GRIPPER:  Correct. 

 

 7                 SENATOR JACKSON:  They overspent  

 

 8          27 million; the mayor was here yesterday.   

 

 9          And you're saying that to the best of your  

 

10          knowledge, on whatever you've researched,  

 

11          none of that was like someone stealing money  

 

12          or anything like that, it was just they  

 

13          overspent in order to try to give their  

 

14          children the best education they can. 

 

15                 MS. GRIPPER:  That is correct. 

 

16                 SENATOR JACKSON:  It's a damn shame.   

 

17          Under the Foundation Aid formula, they would  

 

18          have had all of the resources that they  

 

19          needed -- $85 million, even if you say  

 

20          $75 million.  So that's the fight that we  

 

21          have. 

 

22                 Let me ask the question, there's a  

 

23          perception out there that we're taking from  

 

24          upstate to give to downstate.  How much is  
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 1          New York City owed compared to some of the  

 

 2          other high-needs districts in the State of  

 

 3          New York? 

 

 4                 MS. GRIPPER:  New York City is the  

 

 5          largest school district in the country, and  

 

 6          New York City is owed $1.1 billion in  

 

 7          Foundation Aid.  It is a large chunk of the  

 

 8          money, but again, it's in proportion to the  

 

 9          number of students that are in the city. 

 

10                 SENATOR JACKSON:  So it's about -- is  

 

11          it about $1500 per student, versus Rochester,  

 

12          like $2900, Syracuse, $2300, and other  

 

13          municipalities much more? 

 

14                 MS. GRIPPER:  That is correct.  All  

 

15          the Big 5 are owed significant money in  

 

16          Foundation Aid.  That would go a long way in  

 

17          meeting the needs of their students, as well  

 

18          as the high-need small cities across the  

 

19          state.  And we do know rural districts also  

 

20          have been underfunded and need a great deal  

 

21          of money as well. 

 

22                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And do you feel and  

 

23          AQE feel that the Foundation Aid formula  

 

24          needs to be updated?  And if it's updated,  
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 1          will the needs be less than what it was in  

 

 2          2007 or more -- 

 

 3                 MS. GRIPPER:  What we know is that  

 

 4          New York has more students who are homeless  

 

 5          now than ever before.  We have more children  

 

 6          in poverty now than ever before.  So the  

 

 7          needs across the state are absolutely  

 

 8          growing.  And that we need to fully fund the  

 

 9          Foundation Aid formula.   

 

10                 We believe that the formula could be  

 

11          updated, and we should look at updating the  

 

12          formula.  But again, how do we evaluate a  

 

13          formula that has not been used in over a  

 

14          decade? 

 

15                 SENATOR JACKSON:  So is the position  

 

16          of AQE fund it first, and let's evaluate it? 

 

17                 MS. GRIPPER:  Exactly.  Let's fund it,  

 

18          then fix it. 

 

19                 SENATOR JACKSON:  So my final question  

 

20          is, considering that the budget is 178 -- I  

 

21          think $178 billion, and there's enough money  

 

22          there to take care of our students'  

 

23          education, but if the Governor is not  

 

24          willing, is it AQE's position that we should  
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 1          raise revenues through an alternate means  

 

 2          other than the budget? 

 

 3                 MS. GRIPPER:  Absolutely.  We -- 

 

 4                 SENATOR JACKSON:  And what is that? 

 

 5                 MS. GRIPPER:  We have more  

 

 6          millionaires and billionaires in New York  

 

 7          than ever before.  People keep saying they're  

 

 8          leaving, but that is not true, they are  

 

 9          growing, and income inequality is at its  

 

10          all-time high.  We need to tax the wealthy  

 

11          and fully fund our schools, and we support  

 

12          your bill, Senator Jackson, that will do  

 

13          that. 

 

14                 SENATOR JACKSON:  Thank you.   

 

15                 Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

17                 We now go to Assemblywoman Hyndman. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you,  

 

19          Jasmine.  I know since I've been here, you've  

 

20          been here -- 

 

21                 MS. GRIPPER:  Yes. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  -- and you've  

 

23          moved up.  And you're always here before we  

 

24          get here and then after we leave at the end  
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 1          of conference.  And it just goes to show your  

 

 2          dedication; it's not just a job for you. 

 

 3                 So most of my questions have been  

 

 4          asked.  But I think it was interesting, when  

 

 5          I got here, I thought we would fully fund  

 

 6          Foundation Aid, and then I realize now --  

 

 7          when I got here, we talked about gap funding,  

 

 8          I think it was -- 

 

 9                 MS. GRIPPER:  The GEA. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  -- I didn't  

 

11          understand what it was until I got here.  

 

12                 Now, we fully corrected that. 

 

13                 MS. GRIPPER:  We paid back the GEA,  

 

14          that is correct. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  We paid it  

 

16          back.  And so now we're still left at a  

 

17          deficit with -- 

 

18                 MS. GRIPPER:  Foundation Aid. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  -- Foundation  

 

20          Aid.  And now you're saying that it needs to  

 

21          be updated because it's been so many years. 

 

22                 MS. GRIPPER:  Well, we want to say  

 

23          that there are 700 school districts across  

 

24          New York State.  Finding one formula that's  
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 1          going to meet the needs of every district is  

 

 2          really hard.  But it is the most equitable  

 

 3          formula we have on the books, and we should  

 

 4          use it and preserve its integrity. 

 

 5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Great.  I  

 

 6          always think it's interesting when I listen  

 

 7          to parents who have just entered our public  

 

 8          schools and they are frustrated because the  

 

 9          classrooms are crowded -- and they usually go  

 

10          to the PTA meetings, and sometimes they end  

 

11          up at our CEC meetings, but the frustration  

 

12          is in school districts around the state when  

 

13          they encounter public schools and they  

 

14          realize that there's an unequal distribution  

 

15          of resources. 

 

16                 So when the budget was in surplus, we  

 

17          couldn't fund, and now the budget is in a  

 

18          deficit, we can't fund.  But yet and still,  

 

19          the number goes up every year.  So I just  

 

20          think it's incumbent upon the Assembly to be  

 

21          steadfast in this time to make sure that we  

 

22          fully found Foundation Aid. 

 

23                 Thank you. 

 

24                 MS. GRIPPER:  Yes.  We thank you for  
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 1          your support.  As a proud product of the  

 

 2          New York City public school system from  

 

 3          kindergarten to CUNY, and a former Queens  

 

 4          resident, we thank you for your support in  

 

 5          education. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you. 

 

 7                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

 8                 One more.  We have Senator Little. 

 

 9                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Thank you.   

 

10                 Thank you for being here.   

 

11                 In your remarks, your written remarks,  

 

12          you talk about High Tax Aid as being for the  

 

13          very wealthy schools.  I represent 47 school  

 

14          districts, and this is in a 6800-square-  

 

15          mile area, larger than Connecticut and  

 

16          Rhode Island, lots of rural schools.   

 

17          Twenty-nine or 30 of those schools get  

 

18          High Tax Aid.  They're not wealthy.   

 

19                 What happens is they may have  

 

20          lakefront property within their school  

 

21          district which are -- give them a lot more  

 

22          property tax.  But their tax levy or their  

 

23          tax rate is not separate for those second  

 

24          homes to those who live there, and yet the  
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 1          income levels of the people living there are  

 

 2          much, much less. 

 

 3                 The City of Plattsburgh City School  

 

 4          District, which is contained within the city,  

 

 5          has a lot of tax-exempt property, not a lot  

 

 6          of wealth going on there -- they get over  

 

 7          $500,000 in High Tax Aid.  They would not be  

 

 8          able to function without it. 

 

 9                 So I would hope you would reconsider,  

 

10          because putting it into Foundation Aid,  

 

11          adding it in and keeping it there is okay as  

 

12          long as it goes along with it and doesn't get  

 

13          eliminated.  It would be devastating to rural  

 

14          schools.  And, you know, some of them that  

 

15          are much smaller than Plattsburgh that would  

 

16          be losing a substantial amount of money. 

 

17                 I have school districts that I should  

 

18          call and tell:  According to the state runs,  

 

19          you're going to get $1,250 more this year.   

 

20          Which is not going to help their health  

 

21          insurance increases, their payment, their  

 

22          cleaning supplies for the school might go up  

 

23          in cost.  It's almost impossible.  And yet  

 

24          the choices are few.  It's the distance.   
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 1          We've had a merger.  It's not easy for  

 

 2          everyone to do that. 

 

 3                 So I just ask you for consideration,  

 

 4          and maybe take that out of your remarks. 

 

 5                 MS. GRIPPER:  I appreciate hearing  

 

 6          your concerns.  And I do thank you for  

 

 7          bringing up a lot of remarks around students  

 

 8          and poverty and talking about rural poverty.   

 

 9          We are very aware that there are a lot of  

 

10          upstate areas where people are land-rich but  

 

11          cash-poor.  And we need to make distinctions  

 

12          for that. 

 

13                 SENATOR LITTLE:  That's my district. 

 

14                 Thank you. 

 

15                 MS. GRIPPER:  Yup.  Thank you. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

17          Thank you for your advocacy.   

 

18                 Next we have a panel:  New York State  

 

19          Council of School Superintendents, Robert  

 

20          Lowry; Council of School Supervisors and  

 

21          Administrators, Mark Cannizzaro; School  

 

22          Administrators Association of New York State,  

 

23          Cynthia Gallagher; and New York School Boards  

 

24          Association, Brian Fessler. 
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 1                 MR. LOWRY:  Chairwoman Krueger,  

 

 2          Chairwoman Weinstein, other members of the  

 

 3          Senate and Assembly, I'm Robert Lowry, deputy  

 

 4          director of the New York State Council of  

 

 5          School Superintendents.  Thank you for the  

 

 6          opportunity to testify today and for all your  

 

 7          past support of our public schools, in good  

 

 8          times and bad. 

 

 9                 You have our written testimony, and  

 

10          I'll use this time just to make five points. 

 

11                 First, the overall $826 million school  

 

12          aid increase in the Executive Budget is not  

 

13          adequate.  Together with our partners in the  

 

14          Educational Conference Board, we estimate  

 

15          that a state aid increase of $1.6 billion  

 

16          would enable schools to maintain current  

 

17          services.  That's based on simple,  

 

18          straightforward assumptions about costs and  

 

19          what districts could raise with staying  

 

20          within the property tax cap.   

 

21                 ECB also recommends $500 million for  

 

22          targeted initiatives to improve school  

 

23          climate, to improve services for English  

 

24          language learners, to expand college and  
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 1          career pathways and so forth. 

 

 2                 Second, the proposal to consolidate  

 

 3          10 expense-based aids into Foundation Aid is  

 

 4          alarming and should be rejected.  At the  

 

 5          Foundation Aid roundtables that the Senate  

 

 6          held over the fall, a common theme among  

 

 7          district leaders was a desire for greater  

 

 8          predictability in school funding.  The  

 

 9          proposed consolidation would be a drastic  

 

10          step in the opposite direction. 

 

11                 BOCES and Textbook Aid, for example,  

 

12          are among the formulas to be consolidated.   

 

13          Currently if a district purchases more BOCES  

 

14          services, it can generally expect to receive  

 

15          more BOCES Aid the next year.  And if it  

 

16          enrolls more students, it can expect to get  

 

17          more Textbook Aid.  The same can be said  

 

18          about some of the other formulas proposed for  

 

19          consolidation.   

 

20                 But each year a new collection of  

 

21          tiers is used to determine the increase in  

 

22          Foundation Aid.  Districts have no way of  

 

23          predicting from one year to the next what  

 

24          their increase in Foundation Aid might be.   
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 1                 We're especially concerned about the  

 

 2          potential impact of the proposal on Career  

 

 3          and Technical Education programs that are  

 

 4          supported by BOCES Aid and by Special  

 

 5          Services Aid in the Big 5 school districts.   

 

 6          And we worry about the long-term viability of  

 

 7          BOCES if that aid is consolidated, and the  

 

 8          harm that could fall upon small, poor  

 

 9          districts that rely on BOCES shared services  

 

10          to provide opportunities for their students  

 

11          that they could not afford on their own. 

 

12                 Third, the consolidation of the 10 aid  

 

13          categories into Foundation Aid would create  

 

14          artificial progress toward full funding of  

 

15          that formula.  Under current law, the state  

 

16          is $3.8 billion behind in funding the  

 

17          formula.  The Executive Budget would increase  

 

18          Foundation Aid by $504 million.  So the new  

 

19          gap should be $3.3 billion, right?  Wrong.   

 

20          Over $1.8 billion in expense-based aids would  

 

21          now be counted as Foundation Aid, appearing  

 

22          to reduce that full funding gap  

 

23          correspondingly. 

 

24                 Fourth, we recommend a two-stage  
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 1          process for considering how to proceed with  

 

 2          Foundation Aid.  One task is to decide  

 

 3          whether and how to fix the formula, affecting  

 

 4          how much districts will receive when the  

 

 5          formula is fully funded.  This can and should  

 

 6          be a longer-term project, begun by directing  

 

 7          and funding the State Education Department to  

 

 8          develop options over the next year to improve  

 

 9          our measures of student needs and the design  

 

10          of the regional cost index, for example.   

 

11                 The formula was a great achievement  

 

12          when it was enacted in 2007.  But more than  

 

13          10 years have passed, and facts have changed.   

 

14          Enrollment is down in many districts, but  

 

15          student needs are up in virtually all of  

 

16          them.  And there are new needs that districts  

 

17          are coping with -- mental health, for  

 

18          example.   

 

19                 My organization does surveys of  

 

20          superintendents every year.  One question we  

 

21          ask is if your district were to receive more  

 

22          revenue than what it needs to maintain  

 

23          current services, what would be your top  

 

24          three priorities?  Over the last three years,  
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 1          improving mental health services for students  

 

 2          has been the top priority.  And the  

 

 3          percentage picking that has almost doubled,  

 

 4          from 35 to 67 percent. 

 

 5                 The other task is immediate and  

 

 6          practical:  Decide how to phase in the  

 

 7          formula, and how much each district should  

 

 8          receive in the year ahead.  We recommend  

 

 9          continuing to accelerate progress toward full  

 

10          funding for the districts furthest from that  

 

11          goal.  But we also recommend adopting a  

 

12          larger guaranteed minimum increase for all  

 

13          districts than the 0.25 percent proposed in  

 

14          the Executive Budget.  The property tax cap  

 

15          is one of the things that we didn't have in  

 

16          2007 when the formula was enacted, and it's  

 

17          made all districts more dependent on state  

 

18          aid. 

 

19                 Last, proposed changes in Building Aid  

 

20          and transportation, and who pays for room and  

 

21          board costs for residential special education  

 

22          programs, would impose new costs on districts  

 

23          to absorb within the property tax cap.   

 

24          Changes to Building Aid would also make it  
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 1          impossible for district leaders to give their  

 

 2          voters any assurance that the state will  

 

 3          reimburse a consistent share of project costs  

 

 4          until debt is paid off.  And even though it  

 

 5          would be applied prospectively, the changes  

 

 6          to Building Aid could derail projects already  

 

 7          well underway. 

 

 8                 Capping increases in Transportation  

 

 9          Aid based on changes in enrollment and  

 

10          inflation will not always match the real cost  

 

11          increases that districts face as fuel prices  

 

12          spike and tight labor markets drive up  

 

13          compensation that districts have to pay in  

 

14          order to attract and retain bus drivers. 

 

15                 There's more in my written testimony,  

 

16          but I'll stop now so my colleagues can speak.   

 

17          And then I'd be happy to answer any questions  

 

18          that you might have. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

20                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Good afternoon,  

 

21          Assemblymember Weinstein, Senator Krueger,  

 

22          Assemblymember Benedetto, Senator Mayer and  

 

23          Senator Liu, and your esteemed colleagues in  

 

24          the Senate and Assembly.  Thank you for being  
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 1          here this afternoon.  And for those of you  

 

 2          that have been here all day, I commend you on  

 

 3          your endurance. 

 

 4                 You've heard many people speak the  

 

 5          same testimony regarding Foundation Aid over  

 

 6          and over again, and we certainly would like  

 

 7          to concur with the need for increased  

 

 8          Foundation Aid.  But the one thing I would  

 

 9          like to ask of this body as far as New York  

 

10          City is concerned is whatever increase in  

 

11          Foundation Aid you are able to secure through  

 

12          budget negotiations, as far as what is  

 

13          allocated to New York City, we ask that it  

 

14          goes directly to increase the Fair Student  

 

15          Funding formula in New York City.   

 

16                 You did hear from the chancellor's  

 

17          chief financial officer that several schools  

 

18          are at 90 percent Fair Student Funding in  

 

19          New York City, while some schools are at 100  

 

20          and over 100 percent.  So we'd respectfully  

 

21          request that whatever aid does get to  

 

22          New York City, additional Foundation Aid,  

 

23          goes directly to increase the Fair Student  

 

24          Funding formula for schools that are  
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 1          currently below 100 percent. 

 

 2                 We also would like to thank this body  

 

 3          for their tremendous support of our Executive  

 

 4          Leadership Institute over the years.  That's  

 

 5          a professional development body that we use  

 

 6          in New York City to help school leaders in  

 

 7          their own career development.   

 

 8                 Our ELI program has provided  

 

 9          professional development to thousands and  

 

10          thousands of educators over the last several  

 

11          years, and we are faced with what all  

 

12          accounts are indicating is going to be a very  

 

13          high turnover of school leaders in the next  

 

14          18 months.  That's predicted by the  

 

15          Department of Education as well as our own  

 

16          internal research. 

 

17                 One of our programs in ELI is our  

 

18          ALPAP program, which is a leadership program  

 

19          for assistant principals looking to become  

 

20          principals.  And we've had an outstanding  

 

21          track record with the ALPAP program.  Our  

 

22          folks, after five years -- after going  

 

23          through our program, folks that become  

 

24          principals, 80 percent of them are still  
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 1          principals after five years, while the rest  

 

 2          of the city is lower than 50 percent after  

 

 3          five years.  So we feel that that program has  

 

 4          been a tremendous success. 

 

 5                 And we are looking to expand that  

 

 6          program and therefore will be asking you for  

 

 7          a modest increase in the funding towards the  

 

 8          ALPAP program. 

 

 9                 I also heard several people speak  

 

10          about safety and security in schools during  

 

11          this day, and we are very concerned about  

 

12          safety and security in schools.  We are  

 

13          requesting from the Department of Education  

 

14          in the City of New York increased discretion  

 

15          on behalf of principals to make decisions  

 

16          that they think are in the best interest of  

 

17          the students.   

 

18                 And we're also looking to make sure  

 

19          that schools that do not currently have an  

 

20          assistant principal are able to hire an  

 

21          assistant principal.  In New York City, of  

 

22          about 1730 schools, 111 schools have a  

 

23          principal but no assistant principals.  When  

 

24          the principal is out of the building for  
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 1          professional development or other reasons,  

 

 2          there is no licensed administrator left to  

 

 3          lead the school. 

 

 4                 And finally, it's not in my written  

 

 5          testimony, but I did hear several people  

 

 6          today speak about the pay parity for early  

 

 7          childhood educators.   

 

 8                 The CSA in New York City represents  

 

 9          about 200 early childhood educators in  

 

10          New York City that are in community-based  

 

11          organizations, not Department of  

 

12          Education-based facilities, and those folks  

 

13          earn less than half of the directors of early  

 

14          childhood programs who work for the  

 

15          Department of Education.  And we have the  

 

16          same exact problem:  Recruiting and retaining  

 

17          these people in those programs has been a  

 

18          challenge, and we would like to be able to  

 

19          address that as soon as possible.   

 

20                 And I know that some of that was  

 

21          addressed for the teachers in these programs,  

 

22          but it has not yet been addressed for the  

 

23          directors in those programs. 

 

24                 Thank you, and I will take any  
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 1          questions after my colleagues have finished. 

 

 2                 MS. GALLAGHER:  Good afternoon.  And  

 

 3          thank you, Chairs Krueger, Weinstein, Mayer  

 

 4          and Benedetto, other honorable members of the  

 

 5          Legislature, and way back there, respected  

 

 6          staff, who we have the pleasure to work with  

 

 7          all year. 

 

 8                 Cindy Gallagher, from the School  

 

 9          Administrators Association, serving  

 

10          approximately 8,000 administrators  

 

11          rest-of-state.  Along with Mark's CSA and the  

 

12          Big 5, we have formed NYSSAC, a consortium  

 

13          where we often come together on mutual  

 

14          issues.  

 

15                 About a year ago the Pew Research  

 

16          Center released findings from a survey of  

 

17          10,600 respondents, of which the findings  

 

18          found that with over 85 percent of the  

 

19          respondents, it found that principals were  

 

20          the most trusted persons in their community.   

 

21          They were found more trusted than police  

 

22          officers, military personnel, and clergy. 

 

23                 Why were they trusted?  They were  

 

24          trusted, according to the survey, for the  
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 1          information that they provide to the public,  

 

 2          for the management of their resources, and  

 

 3          for their caring for people.  So through  

 

 4          their trusted eyes, we look at that -- we  

 

 5          look at the budget.   

 

 6                 And I want to give you a little bit of  

 

 7          a perspective just on the first few weeks of  

 

 8          their year for this current school year.   

 

 9          First of all, you've already heard  

 

10          immunization.  You know what a charged issue  

 

11          that was in their communities.  That meant  

 

12          additional resources, it meant staff being  

 

13          reallocated.  And unfortunately for our  

 

14          principals, some of our principals, it meant  

 

15          actually removing some students from their  

 

16          seats. 

 

17                 Number two, the Red Flag Law.  That  

 

18          has not been yet mentioned today, and yet  

 

19          that was a new bill as of August 28th where  

 

20          the professional judgment of our  

 

21          building-level administrators was asked to  

 

22          make the daunting decisions whether a student  

 

23          would be potentially of harm to themselves or  

 

24          others. 
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 1                 The first week of that, of  

 

 2          implementation of that new law, 14  

 

 3          applications were made to law enforcement on  

 

 4          Long Island.  I've tried to find recent data  

 

 5          on that but have been unable to. 

 

 6                 Thirdly, some of our building  

 

 7          administrators started the school year with  

 

 8          high numbers of vacancies.  And it's not for  

 

 9          a feeling this year that yes, we can fill  

 

10          them over Labor Day, or we'll probably fill  

 

11          them soon.  It was a depletion of the  

 

12          resumes, it was a depletion of the recruiting  

 

13          efforts.  So in our Northern Region, I spoke  

 

14          to one of our principals who had 12 vacancies  

 

15          on the first day of school. 

 

16                 Lastly, vaping, the high numbers of  

 

17          students coming into schools with vaping --  

 

18          increased vaping, as well as you've already  

 

19          heard today our increased numbers of students  

 

20          with mental health needs. 

 

21                 So through their eyes, I would ask  

 

22          much of what my colleagues have asked.   

 

23          Certainly I ask for state aid for education  

 

24          that rises to the level that we've asked our  
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 1          professionals to rise to.  Foundation Aid, I  

 

 2          concur with all of the fine gentlemen on this  

 

 3          panel, in that the Foundation Aid certainly  

 

 4          needs to be fully funded as well as revised  

 

 5          in terms of some of the components and taking  

 

 6          a renewed look at that.   

 

 7                 Senator Mayer, we thank you for the  

 

 8          Foundation roundtables.  They were  

 

 9          informative, and certainly we heard that  

 

10          consistency, constancy.  We are asking our  

 

11          building-level principals, administrators, to  

 

12          be more transparent in their reporting of  

 

13          data on finances at the local and state  

 

14          level.  We ask that that transparency be set  

 

15          at the beginning. 

 

16                 You've heard a lot about pre-K today.   

 

17          We would add our voice to that, but also look  

 

18          at it as kind of a fuller issue in terms of  

 

19          full-day K.  It is very difficult in many of  

 

20          our school districts where you have full-day  

 

21          pre-K and a half-day K.  Or you have no pre-K  

 

22          and you have half-day or full-day K at  

 

23          certain semesters of the year. 

 

24                 And then lastly, I would like to also  
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 1          thank you.  Last year we made a request for  

 

 2          $500,000 for professional development.  Our  

 

 3          New York City colleagues had gotten that for  

 

 4          many years, and we asked it for the first  

 

 5          time for our rest-of-the-state colleagues.   

 

 6          And thank you very much; $475,000 was put  

 

 7          into the budget for professional development  

 

 8          for our colleagues upstate.  As Mark said, we  

 

 9          will be coming back again this year and  

 

10          asking for that continued allocation. 

 

11                 So I thank you for your continued  

 

12          commitment. 

 

13                 MR. FESSLER:  Thank you very much. 

 

14                 Thank you, Chair Weinstein, Chair  

 

15          Krueger, Chair Benedetto and Chair Mayer.  My  

 

16          name is Brian Fessler.  I'm the director of  

 

17          governmental relations for the New York State  

 

18          School Boards Association. 

 

19                 And like Bob mentioned, I'm just going  

 

20          to go through some highlights of the written  

 

21          testimony that was submitted.  Bob's comments  

 

22          on the school aid package, and Foundation Aid  

 

23          in particular, from a high level -- we would  

 

24          echo those comments.   
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 1                 I think in conversations about  

 

 2          Foundation Aid when you're talking about, you  

 

 3          know, billions and tens of billions of  

 

 4          dollars, as you know, you tend to lose a  

 

 5          little bit of perspective on the impact of  

 

 6          those dollars, not just on a per-school  

 

 7          district basis but on a per-student basis. 

 

 8                 So drilling down, some numbers that I  

 

 9          wanted to pull out under the Governor's  

 

10          proposal for Foundation Aid in particular.   

 

11          Despite the additional proposed increase,  

 

12          which we're appreciative of -- we certainly  

 

13          hope you and your colleagues can provide, you  

 

14          know, a significant increase above that  

 

15          number.   

 

16                 But even under the Governor's  

 

17          proposal, there would still be about  

 

18          400 school districts statewide that would  

 

19          receive less than what the statutory  

 

20          Foundation Aid formula would provide.  Under  

 

21          the Governor's proposal, 100 school districts  

 

22          would receive no more than a quarter of a  

 

23          single percentage point increase in  

 

24          Foundation Aid.   
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 1                 And 150 districts, more than -- or  

 

 2          nearly a quarter of the districts in the  

 

 3          state, would receive less than $50,000 in  

 

 4          additional Foundation Aid.  I know Senator  

 

 5          Little talked about a district receiving, you  

 

 6          know, 1200, 1300 dollars in additional  

 

 7          Foundation Aid.  So, you know, nearly a  

 

 8          quarter of districts in the state, as I said,  

 

 9          would receive less than $50,000 in additional  

 

10          aid over the current year. 

 

11                 On the aid consolidation proposal,  

 

12          NYSSBA is staunchly opposed to that proposal  

 

13          for the variety of reasons that you've heard  

 

14          today.  It would, one, create a real  

 

15          possibility of a comparative reduction in  

 

16          aid.  If a district is in a situation with  

 

17          BOCES Aid, for example, where there's an  

 

18          increase in expenses and services for  

 

19          students that would drive an increase in  

 

20          BOCES Aid.  If we're under a consolidation  

 

21          situation and the district's Foundation Aid  

 

22          increase was 0.25 percent, like we see the  

 

23          Governor is proposing this year, that could  

 

24          lead to a real dollar-for-dollar reduction or  
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 1          comparative reduction in aid that the  

 

 2          district might receive. 

 

 3                 You know, this applies to Special  

 

 4          Services Aid as well for non-component  

 

 5          districts and Big 5 school districts,  

 

 6          supporting a lot of the Career and Technical  

 

 7          Education programs that our Big 5 and  

 

 8          non-component districts provide to their  

 

 9          students.   

 

10                 So BOCES Aid is certainly the big  

 

11          piece and affects the largest single number  

 

12          of districts, but we do want to highlight the  

 

13          impact it would have on Special Services Aid  

 

14          as well. 

 

15                 Again, trying to grab a specific  

 

16          number, this year, if this aid consolidation  

 

17          proposal went into place or was in place this  

 

18          year, that would lead to about $70 million in  

 

19          BOCES Aid that 450 districts are receiving  

 

20          this year over last year's number.  If the  

 

21          aid consolidation proposal, as I said, was in  

 

22          place right now, there is no guarantee that  

 

23          those 450 districts would receive any of  

 

24          those $70 million in additional funding. 
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 1                 We oppose the reductions and  

 

 2          adjustments to the Building Aid and  

 

 3          Transportation Aid formulas as well as the  

 

 4          proposed cost shift in CSE special education  

 

 5          placements. 

 

 6                 One item -- we talked about mental  

 

 7          health a little bit, I know, from some  

 

 8          speakers today.  Our advocacy conference was  

 

 9          this past couple of days, and we had a  

 

10          student leader from Long Island give a really  

 

11          passionate breakfast address.  And I wanted  

 

12          to pull out one quote.  You know, she kind of  

 

13          described some of the pressures that her and  

 

14          her students face -- or her and her friends,  

 

15          as students, face in school on a daily basis.   

 

16          And she ended with a quote, she said:  A  

 

17          student with a broken arm needs a cast, just  

 

18          like a student with depression needs support  

 

19          and guidance.   

 

20                 And that really struck me and I know a  

 

21          lot of our fellow attendees, and so I think  

 

22          that fits nicely with the survey data that  

 

23          Bob highlighted.  You know, that's really  

 

24          prevalent at an increasing level in our  
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 1          school districts.  And so the financial  

 

 2          supports that we are requesting would really  

 

 3          be helpful in those areas. 

 

 4                 I'll end with a quick positive and a  

 

 5          thank you, instead of always some  

 

 6          doom-and-gloom about what we don't like.   

 

 7          Like Cindy said, we are extremely supportive  

 

 8          of the Governor's vaping and e-cigarette  

 

 9          proposals.  We think that would go a long way  

 

10          to addressing some of the vaping and  

 

11          e-cigarette epidemics that we're seeing in  

 

12          our schools. 

 

13                 And then a few thanks.  Last year we  

 

14          were here talking about all the things that  

 

15          we want, and you did a lot of them --  

 

16          creation of the TRS reserve, update to the DS  

 

17          salary cap, staggering of building condition  

 

18          surveys, and authorization of transportation  

 

19          piggybacking to allow school districts to  

 

20          better share services. 

 

21                 So aid is always important, and we'll  

 

22          always talk about that, but we do recognize  

 

23          some of those other areas that you work on as  

 

24          well that really help us operate our school  
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 1          districts and provide education and supports  

 

 2          for our students on a daily basis.  So thank  

 

 3          you. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

 5                 We go to Assemblyman Benedetto. 

 

 6                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you all  

 

 7          for being here and lasting the day to be able  

 

 8          to testify at this late-in-the-afternoon  

 

 9          hour.   

 

10                 Mark, picking up on something that you  

 

11          said, a whole bunch of principals, assistant  

 

12          principals you're going to lose over the next  

 

13          18 months.  How many? 

 

14                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  The estimates that  

 

15          I'm hearing as far as principals are  

 

16          concerned, up to 400 of about 1700.  So over  

 

17          20 percent. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  And just  

 

19          retirements? 

 

20                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Yeah, mainly  

 

21          retirements.  You know, there's the normal  

 

22          attrition.   

 

23                 But we happen to have a contract that  

 

24          will be three years old, which is sort of the  

 

 



                                                                   464 

 

 1          magic number when a contract turns three  

 

 2          years old.  And there was a significant  

 

 3          increase at the end of that contract.  And  

 

 4          the thought is that some people were hanging  

 

 5          around to let that phase in fully.   

 

 6                 But yes, there is that expectation of  

 

 7          about 400 is the number I'm hearing. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  And is this a  

 

 9          normal amount of administrators to lose? 

 

10                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  That's -- no, it's  

 

11          significantly more, almost -- I would say  

 

12          it's about 40 percent more than you would  

 

13          normally get in that time. 

 

14                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  And which  

 

15          obviously, I would think, would increase the  

 

16          importance of your ELI program. 

 

17                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Yes, absolutely. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Yeah, you  

 

19          know, I never really thought about it before,  

 

20          but certainly as a former teacher myself, I  

 

21          realize the importance of extra training,  

 

22          particularly for new teachers.  And for new  

 

23          teachers -- well, the same would relate to  

 

24          new principals too, that they need that  
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 1          little extra help to get over the hump of the  

 

 2          first few years. 

 

 3                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Absolutely.   

 

 4          Traditionally, school leader professional  

 

 5          development is overlooked.  And that's why  

 

 6          SAANYS and the CSA together have been trying  

 

 7          to bring that here to New York State to make  

 

 8          sure that it's not overlooked. 

 

 9                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you very  

 

10          much for that. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Senator John Liu. 

 

12                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you for that more  

 

13          subdued introduction. 

 

14                 Thank you, I want to thank the panel  

 

15          for all of your expertise.   

 

16                 I have some questions for you, Mark,  

 

17          if you don't mind.  First of all, I  

 

18          appreciate your comments about the Executive  

 

19          Leadership Institute.  It's something that  

 

20          I've supported for many years, and I'll do  

 

21          whatever I can in our conference and in our  

 

22          budget. 

 

23                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Thank you. 

 

24                 SENATOR LIU:  As I'm sure many of my  
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 1          colleagues here will do. 

 

 2                 Do your members fully understand the  

 

 3          New York City Fair Student Funding formula?   

 

 4          I mean, it's fair --  

 

 5                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Many of them do, but  

 

 6          not at -- several of them do not, but many of  

 

 7          them do. 

 

 8                 SENATOR LIU:  Many of them do.  So  

 

 9          they understand how they get their  

 

10          allocation. 

 

11                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  They understand --  

 

12          well, they have a website to go to to  

 

13          understand how the dollars are driven.  And  

 

14          the schools that are well-funded probably are  

 

15          the ones that don't know it as well.  The  

 

16          schools that are poorly funded seem to know  

 

17          the formula, you know, a little bit better  

 

18          because -- because they understand the need. 

 

19                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  Actually, I have  

 

20          to refine my question.  So I think my  

 

21          question isn't just how they -- isn't just  

 

22          whether your members know how their FSF  

 

23          amount is calculated.  But do your members  

 

24          generally understand why some of them may be  
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 1          at 90 percent, some of them at 92, some at  

 

 2          100 percent, and some at 120 percent? 

 

 3                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  No, that they do not  

 

 4          know. 

 

 5                 SENATOR LIU:  That is like a huge  

 

 6          black hole, isn't it? 

 

 7                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Correct. 

 

 8                 SENATOR LIU:  So you would say none of  

 

 9          your members know. 

 

10                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  You know, they're --  

 

11          they know part of it.  The folks that have  

 

12          been around a long time know part of it,  

 

13          because prior to Fair Student Funding there  

 

14          was these allocations made that Fair Student  

 

15          Funding was supposed to correct.  And it was  

 

16          for people that were given additional funding  

 

17          or less funding based on whatever their  

 

18          relationship may have been with the  

 

19          superintendent at the time.  And that was  

 

20          something that was supposed to be corrected,  

 

21          but it was never corrected. 

 

22                 SENATOR LIU:  Well, that's a good  

 

23          point you bring up, because there were some  

 

24          schools where under the new FSF at the time  

 

 



                                                                   468 

 

 1          they would have gotten a reduction in  

 

 2          funding, and that was deemed to be unsound  

 

 3          for the school.  Which I can understand.  But  

 

 4          after the advent of the FSF, there are still  

 

 5          some schools that -- some schools got  

 

 6          increased, they got the percentage of the FSF  

 

 7          that they received increased, others didn't. 

 

 8                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Correct. 

 

 9                 SENATOR LIU:  And that's a huge  

 

10          question as to what the process is to  

 

11          determine what percentage you're going to be,  

 

12          whether you're at 90, 92, 95, 100 or even  

 

13          some schools have been raised beyond  

 

14          100 percent after the initial implementation  

 

15          of FSF. 

 

16                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Yes, that's correct. 

 

17                 SENATOR LIU:  I think that's a huge  

 

18          problem.  And I tried to ask the chancellor  

 

19          that, but he didn't have any answers for  

 

20          that. 

 

21                 My last question for you is, do  

 

22          principals feel secure in knowing how to deal  

 

23          with school discipline issues? 

 

24                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  No, that's -- that's  
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 1          become a problem at this point.  And we're  

 

 2          doing everything we can to address that.  But  

 

 3          they feel like their hands have been tied in  

 

 4          trying to deal with safety and security  

 

 5          issues in the schools.   

 

 6                 And what compounds that is the  

 

 7          teachers now feel unsupported when they look  

 

 8          to the school leaders to make decisions, and  

 

 9          the parents feel unsupported, and all fingers  

 

10          get pointed towards the principal's office. 

 

11                 SENATOR LIU:  Yeah, the principals are  

 

12          the ones caught between a rock and a hard  

 

13          place. 

 

14                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Yes. 

 

15                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you.  Thank you,  

 

16          Madam Chair. 

 

17                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

18                 We go to Assemblywoman Walsh. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Thank you.   

 

20                 And thank you all for being here and  

 

21          for your testimony today.   

 

22                 The Governor proposed to provide  

 

23          $50 million in various new grants this year,  

 

24          with specific criteria for each of them in  
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 1          mind.  Although it creates competition among  

 

 2          the schools that qualify, we've heard from  

 

 3          many school districts that they believe that  

 

 4          they're ineligible based on the parameters.   

 

 5                 Could the money allocated toward  

 

 6          competitive grants be better used, do you  

 

 7          think, for an increase in state school aid? 

 

 8                 MR. LOWRY:  There can be valid uses  

 

 9          for competitive grants, but as a general rule  

 

10          our organization would favor putting money  

 

11          through formulas.   

 

12                 Some of the districts which most need  

 

13          grant funding have the least capacity to  

 

14          apply for it.  You know, there's a small  

 

15          administrative staff, they strain to comply  

 

16          with existing mandates, let alone find the  

 

17          time to apply for competitive grants.   

 

18                 So we think similar to what I think  

 

19          Cindy said, the state needs some more  

 

20          coherent strategy for rolling out access to  

 

21          pre-K.  We should be increasing funding for  

 

22          Career and Technical Education through BOCES  

 

23          Aid and Special Services Aid for the Big 5  

 

24          districts through a formula process rather  
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 1          than grant programs. 

 

 2                 MS. GALLAGHER:  Similarly, also,  

 

 3          applying for a grant takes resources.  And  

 

 4          many of our school districts do not have a  

 

 5          full-time -- any time -- grant writer.  So  

 

 6          that's one aspect of it.   

 

 7                 And as Bob said, I think it's a  

 

 8          difficult situation where you have a  

 

 9          competitive grant being used as a continuous  

 

10          funding cycle for years and years.  UPK,  

 

11          1999, first competitive grant. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  And I would tend  

 

13          to agree.  I think that we've seen -- we've  

 

14          kind of derisively referred to the Hunger  

 

15          Games, you know, when it comes to local  

 

16          government grants and funding through that  

 

17          source too.  And very often smaller local  

 

18          governments don't have the capacity, either  

 

19          through grant writers or wherewithal, to be  

 

20          able to competitively, you know, get these  

 

21          grants.  So I do tend to agree with you. 

 

22                 And I think -- so I sat through last  

 

23          week the first round of Regents interviews,  

 

24          and it did seem like one of the buzzwords was  
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 1          educational equity.  You know.  So it seems  

 

 2          like to me that we're requiring schools to do  

 

 3          so much more than we used to, like decades  

 

 4          ago -- millions of years ago, like when I was  

 

 5          in school, it used to be focused more on  

 

 6          textbooks and the actual teachers' salaries  

 

 7          and education.  And now -- I mean, I just  

 

 8          started making a list today -- you know, it's  

 

 9          breakfast, lunch, backpack programs, closed  

 

10          closets, trauma-informed classrooms, mental  

 

11          health services, social workers, guidance  

 

12          counselors.   

 

13                 You know, somewhere along the way it  

 

14          just got so much bigger.  And I think that  

 

15          the schools are just so much more  

 

16          challenged -- and want to be able to provide  

 

17          these extra services, but I just think that  

 

18          we're just talking about such huge numbers  

 

19          here.  And I just feel that in some ways  

 

20          schools are perhaps being asked to do too  

 

21          much, and in doing so might be shortchanging  

 

22          other groups.  And my particular concern is  

 

23          the special education population. 

 

24                 So I guess that was more of a comment  
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 1          than a question.  But thank you very much for  

 

 2          being here. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Senator Jim  

 

 4          Seward. 

 

 5                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Thank you very much.   

 

 6          And very good panel.   

 

 7                 I had a couple of thoughts.  First of  

 

 8          all, Mr. Lowry, I really appreciated your  

 

 9          comments on the -- not only the need for  

 

10          Foundation Aid, but also the fact that we  

 

11          should be continuing the state's commitment  

 

12          to the expense-driven aids, particularly in  

 

13          the BOCES.   

 

14                 You know, certainly representing an  

 

15          upstate district, BOCES -- and I'm sure this  

 

16          is true all over the state, for that  

 

17          matter -- the BOCES is critically important  

 

18          to, you know, sharing of services.  And so we  

 

19          don't have to duplicate, in some of these  

 

20          districts that are hard-pressed, you know,  

 

21          financially.   

 

22                 So that's critically important that we  

 

23          maintain our commitment to BOCES as well as  

 

24          Building and Transportation Aid.  I mean,  
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 1          some years the district has to buy a bus,  

 

 2          their transportation expenses go way up and  

 

 3          they need that Transportation Aid.   

 

 4                 And to Ms. Gallagher, I would agree  

 

 5          with you.  I have I think two less school  

 

 6          districts than Senator Little.  I have 45  

 

 7          school districts in my Senate district.  And  

 

 8          whenever I'm in a school building, you can  

 

 9          tell right off the bat this is a good school  

 

10          because of the leader in that building, and  

 

11          that is the principal.  So I appreciate your  

 

12          mentioning that today. 

 

13                 I did have a question for Mr. Fessler.   

 

14          You mentioned, in terms of the Governor's  

 

15          proposal for state aid, that there are a  

 

16          number of districts that are .25, which is  

 

17          the minimum, many less than $50,000 in  

 

18          increased aid.   

 

19                 Can you describe just what kind of  

 

20          school districts we're talking about that  

 

21          fall into that category?   

 

22                 MR. FESSLER:  Yeah, I think -- I don't  

 

23          know if there is one specific answer -- 

 

24                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Yeah, is there a  
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 1          trend there? 

 

 2                 MR. FESSLER:  Yeah, I think -- you  

 

 3          know, we talked about some of the  

 

 4          hold-harmless districts, you know, a couple  

 

 5          of hundred across the state.  And I think the  

 

 6          easy perception is that, you know, if they're  

 

 7          on hold-harmless or they're at full funding,  

 

 8          that must suggest that they're flush in cash  

 

 9          or they're in a comfortable situation.   

 

10                 But we know a large portion of them --  

 

11          certainly not all, but a large portion of  

 

12          them are districts that may have seen some  

 

13          loss in enrollment whose local tax base may  

 

14          have, you know, lessened or become  

 

15          nonexistent.  And so there aren't a lot of  

 

16          other resources.  And so, you know, a formula  

 

17          may say they're on full funding, but they're  

 

18          still facing additional inflationary costs,  

 

19          additional health insurance costs, some  

 

20          pension cost increases, let alone the  

 

21          increase in student needs with special  

 

22          education students and ELL students.   

 

23                 But -- and so we know 80-plus percent  

 

24          of those districts are high- and average-need  
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 1          districts.  You know, so I think that's --  

 

 2          when we're talking about some thoughtful  

 

 3          improvements to the formula, that's how we  

 

 4          are able, you know -- and Senator Mayer, you  

 

 5          heard a lot of comments during your  

 

 6          roundtables -- that's how we're I think able  

 

 7          to know that some improvements and tweaks to  

 

 8          the formula should and could occur while  

 

 9          additional funding is being provided at the  

 

10          same time. 

 

11                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Thank you. 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblyman Ra. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.   

 

14                 I wanted to just get your experiences  

 

15          thus far with the voting-time-off mandate  

 

16          that was put in the budget last year.  As  

 

17          many of us know, there had been one  

 

18          previously, but if you had the adequate time  

 

19          outside of your work hours, it didn't  

 

20          basically apply.  Which one of the biggest  

 

21          sectors I think that's impacted by this new  

 

22          version of it would be the schools and  

 

23          obviously having to deal with, you know,  

 

24          substitutes and all of that.   
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 1                 So I'm just wondering if any of you  

 

 2          can address, you know, whether there were a  

 

 3          lot of staff taking advantage of that last  

 

 4          fall and what the impact was on running your  

 

 5          classrooms when staff was absent. 

 

 6                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  So I don't have  

 

 7          numbers, like I heard some folks before had  

 

 8          numbers.  But anecdotally, our principals  

 

 9          were adversely affected by that. 

 

10                 You know, folks had an unspecified  

 

11          period of time or unspecified time of the day  

 

12          that they could take this.  Some took it in  

 

13          the morning before, some took it in the  

 

14          afternoon.  And it is virtually impossible to  

 

15          cover the school building.   

 

16                 And like you said, our jobs and the  

 

17          teachers' jobs generally provide for some  

 

18          time before or after the school day for them  

 

19          to be able to get to the polling sites before  

 

20          they go to work or after they're headed home. 

 

21                 So it certainly is a disruption to the  

 

22          school day and to teaching and learning. 

 

23                 MS. GALLAGHER:  I think regardless of  

 

24          how the schools actually logistically dealt  
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 1          with it, it had -- the net result was a loss  

 

 2          of instructional time.   

 

 3                 And whether some of our districts in  

 

 4          rest of state -- not New York City -- but  

 

 5          sometimes the principal would manage the  

 

 6          classroom themselves.  Certainly there was  

 

 7          arrangement for substitute teachers.   

 

 8          Sometimes it was a half-day conference day.   

 

 9          So no matter how you slice it, it was a loss  

 

10          of instructional time. 

 

11                 MR. FESSLER:  I think one of the  

 

12          things we've been hearing a lot on the issue  

 

13          from our members -- and we've heard a lot  

 

14          about it -- is I think when you take a look  

 

15          at the time off, at the same time there's  

 

16          early voting now.  And I know I personally, I  

 

17          took advantage of early voting.  Instead of  

 

18          picking my 17-month-old up from daycare and  

 

19          rushing to the polls after work, I voted -- I  

 

20          think it was the weekend before Election Day.   

 

21                 So I think a lot of the conversations  

 

22          that I've heard is, you know, there are the  

 

23          logistical and operational pressures that  

 

24          Cindy mentioned, but especially compared or  
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 1          in the context of early voting, we want to  

 

 2          make sure that everyone -- encourage everyone  

 

 3          to be able to vote.  And so I think, as I  

 

 4          said, the responses are, that I've heard,  

 

 5          that we would be hopeful that, you know,  

 

 6          something could be addressed on that part,  

 

 7          like especially the context of early voting  

 

 8          now being available to everyone in the state. 

 

 9                 MR. LOWRY:  And I'd just say, you  

 

10          know, we haven't done a survey or anything to  

 

11          try and get systematic data on it, but we  

 

12          have heard reports of districts having, you  

 

13          know, 20 percent or more of teachers absent.   

 

14                 Fortunately, a lot of districts do use  

 

15          Election Day as a professional development  

 

16          day so you're not disrupting instruction.   

 

17          But it is detracting from the professional  

 

18          development.   

 

19                 This year we have two primaries, and  

 

20          the June one is of particular concern because  

 

21          it falls during Regent exam week. 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.   

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Shelley Mayer. 

 

24                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you all.  Thank  
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 1          you all for being here and for your advocacy. 

 

 2                 A few things that haven't been  

 

 3          mentioned yet today -- I just want to make  

 

 4          sure they get into the conversation -- is  

 

 5          Brian, in your remarks you talk about  

 

 6          Special Act school districts, which we had  

 

 7          plenty of opportunity but unfortunately we  

 

 8          didn't get to today. 

 

 9                 Special Acts are public schools, they  

 

10          serve public school students who a school  

 

11          refers to this Special Act school.  There are  

 

12          only a certain number of them left.  But  

 

13          their funding formula has just -- is not in  

 

14          sync with our -- the way we fund our  

 

15          traditional public schools. 

 

16                 Can you talk about the impact of our  

 

17          failure to really keep pace in the Special  

 

18          Act world on the schools and the people you  

 

19          represent? 

 

20                 MR. FESSLER:  Yeah, thank you very  

 

21          much for bringing that up.  We represent a  

 

22          number of the Special Act school districts.   

 

23          And to your point, they're public schools.   

 

24          They represent and serve some of the most  
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 1          vulnerable students in our state, I think the  

 

 2          last number that I heard, three, four, 5,000  

 

 3          students across the state.   

 

 4                 And the students, while there's 10,  

 

 5          11, 12 Special Act districts in the state,  

 

 6          students from all over the state attend these  

 

 7          schools.  And so I think some of the numbers  

 

 8          I just recently heard, 150 of you and your  

 

 9          colleagues have at least one Special Act  

 

10          student in one of the Special Act districts  

 

11          statewide. 

 

12                 They don't receive school aid like  

 

13          traditional public schools.  They don't have  

 

14          aid runs to look at.  Their funding is based  

 

15          on a rate that is set by the state, and that  

 

16          rate is generally based on data that is two  

 

17          or three years old.  And then even when that  

 

18          rate is approved, it has to be kind of  

 

19          finalized and authorized by the state before  

 

20          money comes out.  They don't have the ability  

 

21          to maintain a fund balance to meet costs at  

 

22          the end of the year and beginning of the  

 

23          year.  School districts have that 4 percent  

 

24          undesignated fund balance -- we wish it was a  
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 1          little bit higher -- for public schools, or  

 

 2          traditional public schools.  But the Special  

 

 3          Acts fund balance rate is zero percent.  And  

 

 4          so they're forced to issue RANs, revenue  

 

 5          anticipation notes, simply in order to meet  

 

 6          certain -- a lot of early-year costs. 

 

 7                 So, you know, it's kind of a targeted  

 

 8          group of districts, but they have some very,  

 

 9          very important needs and, as I said, serve  

 

10          some of the state's most vulnerable students.   

 

11                 So I appreciate you mentioning that.   

 

12          And, you know, I hope we can be a partner  

 

13          with you and your colleagues to finally  

 

14          address some of the basic kind of financial  

 

15          and operational concerns that they do have. 

 

16                 SENATOR MAYER:  And just briefly,  

 

17          Ms. Gallagher, you mentioned the Red Flag  

 

18          Laws.  Did any of your members or members of  

 

19          the CSA in New York City receive training on  

 

20          how to proceed when they have a potential Red  

 

21          Flag Law petition? 

 

22                 MS. GALLAGHER:  One of the first  

 

23          things that our districts -- at least when we  

 

24          talked with them -- was establishing any kind  
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 1          of policy that would be consistent across the  

 

 2          district.   

 

 3                 The Red Flag Law, as you know, allows  

 

 4          a specific principal to make that kind of  

 

 5          petition to the courts. 

 

 6                 SENATOR MAYER:  Right. 

 

 7                 MS. GALLAGHER:  Very difficult in a  

 

 8          district when you may have one principal  

 

 9          doing -- making judgments on one set of  

 

10          beliefs or criteria and another principal  

 

11          doing -- so I think we have a long way to go  

 

12          in terms of professional development on that  

 

13          particular implementation. 

 

14                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  I concur, yes. 

 

15                 SENATOR MAYER:  You concur. 

 

16                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  We did not receive  

 

17          formal training.  We received an outline of  

 

18          the law. 

 

19                 SENATOR MAYER:  I think that's  

 

20          something we need to repair.  We specifically  

 

21          authorized school officials to be able to be  

 

22          petitioners.  We ought to provide the  

 

23          training so your members know how to do it. 

 

24                 Thank you.   
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

 2                 Just to close, in the absence of  

 

 3          Senator Jackson, who had to run to a  

 

 4          different meeting, he asked me to ask you  

 

 5          each what is your position on increasing  

 

 6          taxes on the wealthy to pay for the education  

 

 7          budgets we know we need.  Anyone like to take  

 

 8          a stab at that? 

 

 9                 MR. LOWRY:  You know, frankly, as an  

 

10          organization we have not consulted with our  

 

11          leadership on, you know, revenue strategies  

 

12          to this point.   

 

13                 In years past, you know, during the  

 

14          depths of the Great Recession, we did support  

 

15          a millionaire's tax, but we haven't had those  

 

16          discussions more recently. 

 

17                 MR. CANNIZZARO:  Yeah, the same.  I  

 

18          think we would need a lot more information on  

 

19          what funds are currently available and where  

 

20          they are going, and be able to take a look at  

 

21          those things to make a determination on  

 

22          whether and how much additional revenue was  

 

23          necessary.   

 

24                 At the same time, we understand that  
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 1          whatever is spent on children now is going to  

 

 2          be a lot less than we have to spend on the  

 

 3          adults later.  So whatever it takes, we're  

 

 4          for.  But we did not take a deep enough dive  

 

 5          to tell you whether or not we think that's  

 

 6          the only way. 

 

 7                 MS. GALLAGHER:  And I would concur  

 

 8          with my esteemed colleagues. 

 

 9                 MR. FESSLER:  Yeah, we haven't taken  

 

10          any formal or specific position on that  

 

11          proposal.  I think I'll leave some of those  

 

12          really hard questions to the experts and the  

 

13          smart people up here in front of me. 

 

14                 (Laughter.) 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Great.  Thank you  

 

16          all for your participation today -- tonight. 

 

17                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

18          Next up, we have the New York Association of  

 

19          School Business Officials, Michael Borges,  

 

20          followed by the Rural Schools Association of  

 

21          New York State, David Little, to be followed  

 

22          by New York City Charter School Center, James  

 

23          Merriman.  These are all individual --  

 

24          individuals. 
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 1                 (Discussion off the record.) 

 

 2                 MR. BORGES:  Good evening, everyone.   

 

 3          Thank you again for allowing me to speak.   

 

 4          And I'm Mike Borges, with the Association of  

 

 5          School Business Professionals.   

 

 6                 You have our written testimony.  I  

 

 7          also have some five points I just want to go  

 

 8          over in brief.   

 

 9                 First, the Executive Budget, as you  

 

10          know, folded 10 categorical aids into  

 

11          Foundation Aid and artificially inflated the  

 

12          amount in the school aid runs that school  

 

13          districts, and particularly our members, used  

 

14          to build their 2021 school budgets.  This  

 

15          caused unnecessary confusion and  

 

16          consternation across the state and hopefully  

 

17          will not be repeated going forward. 

 

18                 The Foundation Aid increase proposed  

 

19          in the Executive Budget still leaves about  

 

20          428 school districts about $3.4 billion away  

 

21          from being fully funded under the Foundation  

 

22          Aid formula, with high-need urban/suburban  

 

23          school districts being the furthest away, at  

 

24          $3859 per pupil still due.  

 

 



                                                                   487 

 

 1                 Schools need a firm commitment from  

 

 2          state policymakers to fund the Foundation Aid  

 

 3          formula over a three-year period, and we're  

 

 4          hopeful that the Legislature will follow suit  

 

 5          at some point in making this commitment.   

 

 6                 In regard to Community Schools, over  

 

 7          the past three Executive Budgets about  

 

 8          13 percent of the total proposed Foundation  

 

 9          Aid increases have been composed of  

 

10          Community School set-asides.  Foundation Aid  

 

11          is supposed to be unrestricted aid for school  

 

12          district leaders to use to address the  

 

13          priorities of their communities and their  

 

14          voters. 

 

15                 Although we support the concept of   

 

16          Community Schools, the continued carve-out of  

 

17          Foundation Aid is a very troubling trend, and  

 

18          we recommend creating a separate categorical  

 

19          aid to fund Community School initiatives in  

 

20          all schools.   

 

21                 Regarding the Governor's proposals for  

 

22          Transportation and Building Aid, we urge the  

 

23          Legislature to again reject these proposals  

 

24          in the Executive Budget to cap or merge  
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 1          expense-based aids and instead work with us  

 

 2          to identify and adopt efficiency measures  

 

 3          that will save school districts and the state  

 

 4          money, like removing disincentives for  

 

 5          sharing bus transportation, clarifying the  

 

 6          ability of districts to bundle bids for  

 

 7          regular and summer school and extracurricular  

 

 8          bus runs, and allowing districts to hire one  

 

 9          person to fill two civil service titles to  

 

10          help alleviate the shortage of school bus  

 

11          drivers. 

 

12                 We also ask the Legislature to deal  

 

13          with the capital outlay threshold that hasn't  

 

14          been raised since 2003.  Currently it is  

 

15          $100,000, and we're asking it to be increased  

 

16          to at least $250,000.  Capital outlay  

 

17          projects cover projects like boiler  

 

18          replacements, roof repairs, minor kinds of  

 

19          work on a building, and allow school  

 

20          districts to do work that is necessary and in  

 

21          a timely manner. 

 

22                 The state and the school district  

 

23          could save potentially millions of dollars in  

 

24          borrowing costs if these smaller projects are  
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 1          paid for in cash instead of included in  

 

 2          larger capital projects that are financed  

 

 3          over 15 years.  The state and the school  

 

 4          district could save about $50,000 in  

 

 5          borrowing costs on one $250,000 capital  

 

 6          project if that project was then financed at  

 

 7          the current rate over a 15-year period. 

 

 8                 So we believe the capital outlay  

 

 9          should be raised from the $100,000 currently  

 

10          to about $250,000 today. 

 

11                 School transparency.  Again, we call  

 

12          upon the Legislature to end the state  

 

13          transparency reporting requirements now that  

 

14          the federal reporting requirements are going  

 

15          into effect for all districts this year.   

 

16          ESSA requires the reporting of actual  

 

17          expenditures as opposed to the state's budget  

 

18          amounts, and therefore provides more accurate  

 

19          information for state policymakers. 

 

20                 At a minimum, we urge the Legislature  

 

21          to end the state transparency reporting  

 

22          requirements for districts that only have one  

 

23          elementary school or one middle school, since  

 

24          there are no other buildings in the district  
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 1          to which to compare the information. 

 

 2                 I would also like to recommend that  

 

 3          the Legislature approve blanket amnesty for  

 

 4          all districts with late final cost reports  

 

 5          for their Building Aid projects.  And we also  

 

 6          ask the Legislature to fund SED and provide  

 

 7          the flexibility it needs to hire staff and  

 

 8          conduct a review of Foundation Aid that was  

 

 9          proposed in the Regents recommendations to  

 

10          the Legislature.   

 

11                 That concludes my statement, so I'm  

 

12          available for any questions.  

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

14                 Senator Mayer. 

 

15                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you very much,  

 

16          Mr. Borges.   

 

17                 A question on the transparency report.   

 

18          Is the focus of your recommendation that in  

 

19          districts that only have one school where  

 

20          this concept of the comparative cost per  

 

21          school within the district is not relevant,  

 

22          that that should be the focus of our work?   

 

23          Or are you going beyond that and saying get  

 

24          rid of it altogether?   
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 1                 MR. BORGES:  Well, ideally, since ESSA  

 

 2          came into play, ESSA will provide state and  

 

 3          federal governments more information than  

 

 4          what the state is requiring, and will provide  

 

 5          better information. 

 

 6                 Absent getting rid of the state  

 

 7          transparency reporting requirements, we would  

 

 8          say get rid of it for school districts that  

 

 9          only have those one elementary schools or  

 

10          those one middle schools.  It doesn't provide  

 

11          any information about how that one building  

 

12          compares to other buildings if there's no  

 

13          buildings left in that school district. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  Yeah, I understand. 

 

15                 The other is -- I don't know if you  

 

16          were here earlier for the SED's testimony on  

 

17          the CSE reimbursement for residential  

 

18          placements.  Has your organization done an  

 

19          analysis of the dollar-for-dollar impact in  

 

20          districts outside New York City?   

 

21                 MR. BORGES:  It's about $2.5 million,  

 

22          spread out among the school districts outside  

 

23          New York City. 

 

24                 SENATOR MAYER:  No, but do you have  
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 1          each district's -- like how many students  

 

 2          they place in residential placement and what  

 

 3          it would cost if they were to bear this  

 

 4          percentage of what the Executive is proposing  

 

 5          to reduce?   

 

 6                 MR. BORGES:  We are trying to get that  

 

 7          information currently. 

 

 8                 SENATOR MAYER:  That would be very  

 

 9          helpful.  Because I think, you know, it's  

 

10          very damaging to the districts, and we want  

 

11          to make the strongest case.  So if you have  

 

12          that, that would be helpful. 

 

13                 MR. BORGES:  Yes. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  No  

 

16          more questions. 

 

17                 MR. BORGES:  Thank you. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next, Rural  

 

19          Schools Association of New York State. 

 

20                 MR. LITTLE:  I've been sitting back  

 

21          there for some hours now and watching all of  

 

22          you.  And as I look at the composition of  

 

23          this particular panel, there's nobody in  

 

24          front of me right now to whom my members and  
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 1          I don't owe a debt of gratitude.   

 

 2                 So as I always say to our  

 

 3          servicemembers, thanks for being there for  

 

 4          us, some of you for a very long period of  

 

 5          dedicated service.  And we appreciate it  

 

 6          collectively, and I do individually.  So  

 

 7          thank you. 

 

 8                 Last month USA Today published a U.S.  

 

 9          Census report that said that New York State  

 

10          had had, in the last decade, the largest  

 

11          outmigration of residents of any state in the  

 

12          union. 

 

13                 In other states, rural residents move  

 

14          to the suburbs and to urban areas.  In  

 

15          New York State they left the state  

 

16          completely, in a Grapes of Wrath-like exodus,  

 

17          trying to find jobs.  We lose our  

 

18          college-educated kids; they don't come home  

 

19          as they do in other states because they don't  

 

20          have the economic opportunity.  And our  

 

21          residents who graduate from high school at  

 

22          tremendously high rates in rural areas never  

 

23          get a two-year degree -- statistically,  

 

24          75 percent of them never get a two-year  
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 1          degree after that. 

 

 2                 So our state leaders typically say if  

 

 3          we need to focus on something, it's the  

 

 4          crisis in our urban areas, where places like  

 

 5          Rochester and Buffalo legitimately struggle  

 

 6          to graduate half of their kids.  And that  

 

 7          truly is a crisis.  But when four years later  

 

 8          those children are in the same place, our  

 

 9          rural areas and our urban areas share many of  

 

10          the same problems and the lack of success  

 

11          later in life.   

 

12                 And our state has addressed that  

 

13          problem in, at best, a negligible way over  

 

14          the past 10 years as we've seen this outward  

 

15          migration.  I've heard people today talk  

 

16          about you need to fully fund the formula  

 

17          instead of fixing it.  Why would you fully  

 

18          fund a formula that fails to recognize a  

 

19          poverty level that can be twice what the  

 

20          formula recognizes?  Why would you fund a  

 

21          formula that half of your school districts  

 

22          aren't on?   

 

23                 What I don't understand is how we can  

 

24          ignore the tremendous trauma that's being  
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 1          experienced in our rural areas, vast amounts  

 

 2          of areas -- an area of New York State that a  

 

 3          generation ago had the financial resources to  

 

 4          bail New York City out of its financial  

 

 5          fiscal crisis, and now we're allowing it to  

 

 6          deteriorate to a point where it will not only  

 

 7          be unable to do that in the future, but  

 

 8          hopefully will experience New York City,  

 

 9          which is in fact now an economic engine,  

 

10          returning the favor to be able to preserve a  

 

11          way of life in our state. 

 

12                 When I look at the Governor's  

 

13          Executive Budget proposal specifically, I see  

 

14          a focus that virtually ignores our rural  

 

15          residents.  We have the same kind of need for  

 

16          early college programs, and yet rural areas  

 

17          are specifically excluded by the criteria.   

 

18                 The same for after-school programs.   

 

19          After-school programs are provided to areas  

 

20          that are prioritized by having gang activity.   

 

21          We don't have gangs in rural areas, okay, but  

 

22          we have the need for after-school programs  

 

23          because we don't have parental supervision  

 

24          during that time, and kids have exactly the  
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 1          same issues of drug use, alcohol abuse, teen  

 

 2          pregnancy in rural areas that they do in  

 

 3          urban areas when they are unsupervised and  

 

 4          don't have productive things to do.   

 

 5                 Early college we have a tremendous  

 

 6          need for.  Can't do it, because it's  

 

 7          prioritized for areas with low graduation  

 

 8          rates, and in rural areas we graduate those  

 

 9          kids.  Okay?  What's that worth later on in  

 

10          life is questionable now, because of the  

 

11          narrow breadth of the curriculum that we're  

 

12          able to provide, but we do graduate them.   

 

13          And so we're specifically excluded.   

 

14                 We don't have transportation for  

 

15          pre-K.  And so despite the fact that we know  

 

16          that that's tremendously beneficial, we don't  

 

17          have pre-K to any degree that urban areas  

 

18          have in New York State.  In fact, if we  

 

19          provide the transportation for it, it's  

 

20          counted against our Transportation Aid.   

 

21                 We see this over and over again in the  

 

22          consolidation of aids, which is extremely  

 

23          disruptive to the very things that you would  

 

24          think and that this administration has  
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 1          claimed are needed.  Shared services.  Why  

 

 2          can't these rural areas share services?   

 

 3                 Well, I will tell you, because we are  

 

 4          affiliated with Cornell University, which  

 

 5          specifically studies shared services  

 

 6          worldwide, that New York State is the  

 

 7          epicenter of shared services in the world.   

 

 8          And one of the reasons why is because we have  

 

 9          a financial incentive to do so for districts  

 

10          that can't afford to do it on their own, by  

 

11          using BOCES.  And now we have a proposal that  

 

12          would be extremely disruptive to BOCES  

 

13          programs. 

 

14                 And so we've seen an approach from a  

 

15          rhetorical standpoint where the Governor  

 

16          stood up when he presented his budget  

 

17          proposal to all of you, that he virtually  

 

18          shouted "We must raise the schools that are  

 

19          at the bottom."  Three times in a row he  

 

20          yelled it.  And then we have a proposal  

 

21          before us that does anything but. 

 

22                 He's teed it up for you, quite  

 

23          honestly.  There's a $1.1 billion inclusion  

 

24          of school aid in the state's fiscal plan.   
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 1          There's money in the state's fiscal plan to  

 

 2          be able to rectify what the Governor has  

 

 3          proposed.  And I would simply urge you to do  

 

 4          it.  And thank you for having done it in the  

 

 5          past. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 7                 We go to Senator Little. 

 

 8                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Thank you.   

 

 9                 I've talked with you many times.  And  

 

10          as you know, I think all of my schools  

 

11          qualify as a rural school, since they're all  

 

12          in rural counties. 

 

13                 MR. LITTLE:  Thank you for keeping my  

 

14          membership high. 

 

15                 SENATOR LITTLE:  There's not a lot of  

 

16          positive pluses coming from your discussion.   

 

17          But I know one of the things that's affecting  

 

18          the schools is the small group health  

 

19          insurance issue.  And I know that you've been  

 

20          advocating for a permanent solution.   

 

21                 Are you getting anyplace with that? 

 

22                 MR. LITTLE:  We have a difficult  

 

23          situation.  What the Senator is talking about  

 

24          is there was a federal requirement back  
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 1          several years ago that these small group  

 

 2          consortiums, healthcare consortiums in school  

 

 3          districts, that they switch over -- if they  

 

 4          had less than a hundred employees, that they  

 

 5          switch to a community rating rather than use  

 

 6          these consortiums that have been a tremendous  

 

 7          cost savings. 

 

 8                 I have school districts that don't  

 

 9          raise $30,000 under the tax cap who are  

 

10          facing a $300,000 increase for health  

 

11          insurance alone if they can't retain these  

 

12          consortium alliances. 

 

13                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Right.  But the big  

 

14          problem with this, for everyone to  

 

15          understand, is that in the group health  

 

16          insurance, only the member is counted -- not  

 

17          their family, not retired members, not so  

 

18          many other people that are in this program  

 

19          that are costing money.  But -- 

 

20                 MR. LITTLE:  And your bodies in the  

 

21          past have seen fit to write extenders to keep  

 

22          the consortia. 

 

23                 SENATOR LITTLE:  An extender is good,  

 

24          but a permanent one will be better.  We  
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 1          agree.   

 

 2                 But I have another question, and we're  

 

 3          running out of -- 

 

 4                 MR. LITTLE:  A permanent solution is  

 

 5          dramatically needed. 

 

 6                 SENATOR LITTLE:  We're running out of  

 

 7          time, Dave, so I'm going to go to the next  

 

 8          one.  

 

 9                 In Warrensburg you were quoted in the  

 

10          newspaper saying that rural school  

 

11          graduates -- which would be all the ones in  

 

12          my district -- who attend two- or four-year  

 

13          colleges fail to graduate from college,  

 

14          75 percent of them do. 

 

15                 And you also have it in your book that  

 

16          three out of four of those students never  

 

17          complete any degree program after high  

 

18          school.   

 

19                 Totally, I was shocked. 

 

20                 MR. LITTLE:  Yeah, I was too. 

 

21                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Where did you get the  

 

22          data from?  And how reliable is it?  Because  

 

23          I thought the newspaper had misquoted you --  

 

24          not that they ever do that, but --  
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 1                 MR. LITTLE:  They did not in this  

 

 2          case.  That's factual.  It's -- 

 

 3                 SENATOR LITTLE:  I find this hard to  

 

 4          believe.  I would like to see your data. 

 

 5                 MR. LITTLE:  Well, I did too.  I did  

 

 6          too.  Except that I also know that when you  

 

 7          study secondary sources, you look at the  

 

 8          program for free tuition within the state and  

 

 9          we know that the dropout rate for that is  

 

10          75 percent.  We know that the overall dropout  

 

11          rate in our community colleges is 75 percent.   

 

12          So when I started to look at the other  

 

13          things, I -- you know, I see -- 

 

14                 SENATOR LITTLE:  Yeah, I just can't  

 

15          believe it.  I mean, I have six kids, we're  

 

16          in a rural county, and they all graduated  

 

17          from college.  So that's six out of six.   

 

18                 So I know -- 

 

19                 MR. LITTLE:  That I understand -- 

 

20                 SENATOR LITTLE:  -- I know it's  

 

21          difficult.  But if I could see your data at  

 

22          some point, I'd love to -- 

 

23                 MR. LITTLE:  Sure. 

 

24                 SENATOR LITTLE:  -- just get into it  
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 1          and see how real that is, but what we can do  

 

 2          about it too.  Thank you.   

 

 3                 MR. LITTLE:  And I'd be remiss if I  

 

 4          just didn't point out the causes behind that.   

 

 5                 They're taking remedial courses to  

 

 6          make up for a lack of curriculum in high  

 

 7          school.  They're paying for those courses.   

 

 8          They have transportation issues.  And their  

 

 9          schools don't have the kind of social work or  

 

10          guidance counselors to help them with things  

 

11          like financial aid or career planning to be  

 

12          able to meet those challenges. 

 

13                 SENATOR LITTLE:  We're not doing a  

 

14          good job getting anybody to move to a rural  

 

15          area today, so I think we'd better quit here  

 

16          or we won't have any population in the  

 

17          North Country. 

 

18                 (Laughter.) 

 

19                 MR. LITTLE:  Well, having said that, I  

 

20          will say that they are phenomenal at  

 

21          collaborating, at being creative, and at  

 

22          innovating to try and meet the kind of  

 

23          challenges and issues that they face. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator Seward. 
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 1                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Yes, David, thank you  

 

 2          for being here.   

 

 3                 And now we're trying to attract people  

 

 4          to the rural areas, so we'd better not make  

 

 5          it sound too bad there. 

 

 6                 But unfortunately, you have described  

 

 7          pretty well the phenomenon that's going on in  

 

 8          the rural parts of our state.  I mean, I  

 

 9          represent, you know, vast portions of that,  

 

10          as does Senator Little.  And with the drain  

 

11          of population, it guts our local communities  

 

12          and it hurts our enrollment in our local  

 

13          schools. 

 

14                 And my question is -- I agree with  

 

15          you, I hear this often from my local school  

 

16          boards, administrators and so on, that --  

 

17          plus my own observations -- you know, we have  

 

18          gotten poorer in many of the rural areas, and  

 

19          that shows up in the students that come to  

 

20          local schools.  And so you mentioned we need  

 

21          to use more updated data in terms of poverty  

 

22          level.   

 

23                 Do you have concerns, if we throw open  

 

24          changes in the Foundation Aid formula, that  
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 1          with the loss of enrollment will that --  

 

 2          would that end up hurting our rural schools? 

 

 3                 MR. LITTLE:  If we continue to simply  

 

 4          use the existing formula on a per-pupil  

 

 5          basis, then I think you're absolutely right.   

 

 6          Then there would be tremendous losses in our  

 

 7          rural areas, because that's where the  

 

 8          population loss has occurred, and we've had  

 

 9          population gains in New York City. 

 

10                 I think that the adjustments to the  

 

11          formula need to be done according to degrees  

 

12          of poverty, numbers of English language  

 

13          learners.  We have problems of sparsity in  

 

14          rural areas that aren't experienced  

 

15          elsewhere. 

 

16                 So I think that, as you would expect  

 

17          the state to do, there needs to be some  

 

18          thoughtful analysis about how we address the  

 

19          fact that virtually the entire state has come  

 

20          out of the Great Recession poorer than they  

 

21          went into it.  We need to address  

 

22          educationally for the consequences of that  

 

23          irrespective of location. 

 

24                 SENATOR SEWARD:  Thank you.  And thank  
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 1          you for what you and your organization does  

 

 2          to speak up for these local schools. 

 

 3                 MR. LITTLE:  You bet.  Thank you. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

 5                 Next we have New York City Charter  

 

 6          School Center, James Merriman, to be followed  

 

 7          by the Association of Public Broadcasting, to  

 

 8          be followed by Advocates for Children of  

 

 9          New York. 

 

10                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Good afternoon.  I want  

 

11          to thank all the chairs and members for the  

 

12          opportunity to submit testimony and appear  

 

13          before you.   

 

14                 We've heard a lot about funding today,  

 

15          the lack thereof and the need for funding to  

 

16          be both adequate and equitable.  In that  

 

17          regard, I offer the following thoughts on  

 

18          charter schools in New York City.   

 

19                 However you look at it and however you  

 

20          cut the data, the fact is that charter  

 

21          schools in New York City are the worst-funded  

 

22          public schools in New York City.  First,  

 

23          let's look at how charter and district  

 

24          funding compares.  The Independent Budget  
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 1          office has got the data.  The last time it  

 

 2          did so, using data from '16-'17, charter  

 

 3          schools were underfunded between more than a  

 

 4          thousand dollars per student to $4800 a  

 

 5          student, depending on whether or not they are  

 

 6          collocated.  That's not my data, that's the  

 

 7          Independent Budget Office of the City of  

 

 8          New York. 

 

 9                 Given funding patterns, there is no  

 

10          evidence to suggest those gaps have narrowed.   

 

11          They have likely widened, and widened  

 

12          significantly, since than time.  This means  

 

13          that even the worst-funded New York City DOE  

 

14          school is funded at a higher per-pupil level  

 

15          than the highest-funded charter school.  If  

 

16          you look at an average-sized hypothetical  

 

17          charter school, say 500 students, that  

 

18          underfunding amount would equal $2.4 million  

 

19          in a year.   

 

20                 The IBO, the Independent Budget  

 

21          Office, has looked at how much and which  

 

22          New York City DOE schools are below their 700  

 

23          percent level of Fair Student Funding.  And  

 

24          if you look at that list, there are only  
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 1          eight out of 1700 schools in New York City  

 

 2          that have as large a disparity in their  

 

 3          funding under Fair Student Funding as that  

 

 4          total amount that the worst-funded charter  

 

 5          schools are funded at compared to the  

 

 6          district.  And of those eight district  

 

 7          schools, as folks in New York know, those are  

 

 8          all large comprehensive high schools like  

 

 9          Brooklyn Tech, which has the largest, I  

 

10          think, of all the schools, and they're four  

 

11          or five times larger.  That underlines how,  

 

12          on a per-pupil basis, charters are less  

 

13          well-funded and by a large amount. 

 

14                 Second, let's talk increases in  

 

15          funding from that lower base.  Under the  

 

16          Governor's proposed budget, charter schools  

 

17          are not -- I repeat, are not -- getting a  

 

18          bigger bump, as has been asserted.  They're  

 

19          getting the same bump as district schools in  

 

20          New York City have gotten.   

 

21                 By the time budget negotiations are  

 

22          done and the dust clears, it is pretty likely  

 

23          that both charter and district students will  

 

24          get around a $900 boost, on average.  Even  
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 1          with the special grant aid proposal of  

 

 2          24.9 million in the Governor's proposed  

 

 3          budget for charter school students in  

 

 4          New York City, which amounts to about $185 a  

 

 5          student, this will not bring charter schools  

 

 6          anywhere close to parity. 

 

 7                 Unfortunately, and maybe precisely  

 

 8          because the facts that charter schools are  

 

 9          underfunded are clear, some have chosen to  

 

10          muddy the waters by repeatedly making  

 

11          inappropriate comparisons about the funding  

 

12          increase between 2020 and 2021 -- namely, the  

 

13          comparison of an increase in state aid to  

 

14          districts with an increase in overall  

 

15          district funding and expenditure.  Two  

 

16          different concepts.   

 

17                 As you've heard today, city funding  

 

18          for New York City DOE has been increasing at  

 

19          a higher rate than state funding -- some  

 

20          years, much higher.  And charter school  

 

21          funding and increases to that funding are  

 

22          based off total city expenditure, not off of  

 

23          state aid.  That means charter funding  

 

24          increases in New York City at a faster rate  

 

 



                                                                   509 

 

 1          than state aid because district funding  

 

 2          increases at a faster rate.  And charter  

 

 3          school funding is tied to DOE funding. 

 

 4                 Thus, while the anti-charter advocates  

 

 5          may point that charters are getting 5.3  

 

 6          growth, while New York City district schools  

 

 7          are only getting 2.6 growth, it just isn't  

 

 8          true.  Ultimately, growth in charter payments  

 

 9          are driven by a growth in district  

 

10          expenditures.  They are by law in lockstep,  

 

11          and nothing in the Governor's budget proposal  

 

12          provides otherwise.  It was a fair way to  

 

13          figure out funding when negotiated in 2017,  

 

14          and increases; it remains fair today. 

 

15                 And that brings me to the last point  

 

16          around funding.  This funding isn't for  

 

17          schools, it goes to kids, just like district  

 

18          funding.  And the kids we have come with the  

 

19          same traumas, are homeless, come with the  

 

20          same challenges, and need the same things.   

 

21          And we need to provide teachers and guidance  

 

22          counselors and so forth to address that.  If  

 

23          a family chooses a charter school, their  

 

24          child shouldn't be valued any less than if  
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 1          they choose a district school. 

 

 2                 Thank you. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We go to  

 

 4          Senator Mayer. 

 

 5                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you,  

 

 6          Mr. Merriman, for being here. 

 

 7                 A question for you on the issue raised  

 

 8          on page 6 of your testimony where you say  

 

 9          charters are subject to rigorous  

 

10          accountability and transparency standards,  

 

11          and you go through some of the things that  

 

12          charters do need to comply with.  But they  

 

13          don't need to comply with the transparency  

 

14          and accountability forms that we just heard  

 

15          complaints about from the school business  

 

16          officials that apply to every other public  

 

17          school in the state, right?   

 

18                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Well, it depends.  I  

 

19          mean, they need to apply to a lot of them.  I  

 

20          mean, I'd have to look at a particular thing. 

 

21                 SENATOR MAYER:  No, I understand.   

 

22                 MR. MERRIMAN:  But they're subject to  

 

23          the transparency laws, the sunshine laws.   

 

24                 SENATOR MAYER:  But not this form  
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 1          requirement that is a detailed, extensive  

 

 2          accounting of the amount spent per school.   

 

 3          That was the intent of it when it was  

 

 4          originally passed. 

 

 5                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Well, that's because  

 

 6          they're -- they're -- it will be school by  

 

 7          school.  They're individual schools, by law.   

 

 8          So we don't have charter districts. 

 

 9                 SENATOR MAYER:  No, I understand.  I'm  

 

10          just saying you are saying here they're  

 

11          subject to rigorous accountability and  

 

12          transparency, but there is a very rigorous  

 

13          transparency and accountability standard  

 

14          applied to traditional public schools, which  

 

15          they find very burdensome, they have to  

 

16          comply with -- that that currently, under  

 

17          law, does not apply to charter schools. 

 

18                 MR. MERRIMAN:  And the whole idea was,  

 

19          behind charters, to not burden them with all  

 

20          of the requirements that were subject to  

 

21          traditional district schools and to see  

 

22          whether that made sense. 

 

23                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  With respect to  

 

24          the Governor's proposal on zombie charters,  
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 1          which you are supportive of, I see that -- 

 

 2                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Yes. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  But you're still  

 

 4          calling for a lift or elimination of the cap  

 

 5          or lifting of the geographical restrictions  

 

 6          in addition to the zombie charter provision.   

 

 7          Is that right?   

 

 8                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Yes, that's correct. 

 

 9                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  I had one other  

 

10          question for you.   

 

11                 The total number of students in the  

 

12          New York City charter school community is  

 

13          129,000, the current number?   

 

14                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Approximately, yes. 

 

15                 SENATOR MAYER:  And the number of  

 

16          staff altogether -- I see 10,500 public  

 

17          school teachers, but what is the total staff  

 

18          of the charter school community?   

 

19                 MR. MERRIMAN:  I'll get that to you.   

 

20          I don't have it in front of me. 

 

21                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  All right,  

 

22          thank you.   

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

24                 MR. MERRIMAN:  Thank you so much. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Association of  

 

 2          Public Broadcasting Stations of New York,  

 

 3          Christopher Goeken, to be followed by  

 

 4          Advocates for Children, to be followed by the  

 

 5          New York Library Association.   

 

 6                 MR. GOEKEN:  Good afternoon.  Thank  

 

 7          you.  So you have my testimony, so I'm not  

 

 8          going to read it.  But I'm just going to say  

 

 9          a couple of things real quick.   

 

10                 First I want to thank you all for  

 

11          being here this late.  And I want to thank  

 

12          the chairs, especially, for allowing me to  

 

13          testify and talk a little bit about public  

 

14          broadcasting.   

 

15                 So just by way of background, there  

 

16          are nine public television stations in  

 

17          New York State.  We are unique in that each  

 

18          station is owned by the local community as a  

 

19          nonprofit and governed by the local  

 

20          community.  So we are uniquely responsive to  

 

21          local communities throughout the state, and  

 

22          each station reflects the needs and desires  

 

23          and community that they serve, like the  

 

24          Adirondacks or New York City or Long Island  

 

 



                                                                   514 

 

 1          or what have you. 

 

 2                 So it is something that makes us very  

 

 3          unique.  That doesn't mean, though, we aren't  

 

 4          part of a larger family where we all have  

 

 5          Curious George and we have American  

 

 6          Experience or PBS NewsHour.  So we do those  

 

 7          big programs that you all know; we also do  

 

 8          local shows on education and New York State  

 

 9          history and civics.   

 

10                 What I want specifically to talk about  

 

11          today is something that we provide for  

 

12          New York's educators called PBS  

 

13          LearningMedia.  And PBS LearningMedia is a  

 

14          free tool, a teaching tool, that teachers can  

 

15          use in the classroom to provide digital  

 

16          content, lesson plans, interactive lessons  

 

17          for the students, all produced by PBS, so you  

 

18          know it's going to be top quality, and also  

 

19          in a safe environment -- you're not sending  

 

20          your kids onto YouTube or the internet in  

 

21          general to see a video of a famous speech or  

 

22          to see an interactive lesson plan. 

 

23                 The numbers that we've been able to --  

 

24          the usage over the past couple of years of  
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 1          PBS LearningMedia is tremendous.  About  

 

 2          42 percent of public school teachers are  

 

 3          using it now.  We've got about 30,000 video  

 

 4          lesson plans on there, and 8800 lesson plans  

 

 5          in general, meaning a teacher can just put in  

 

 6          a topic and it's plug-and-play.  There will  

 

 7          be a lesson plan for them, take-home  

 

 8          questions, interactive video, sometimes  

 

 9          source documentation, to make teaching using  

 

10          21st-century technology very easy for them. 

 

11                 And a few years ago the state voters  

 

12          had passed the Smart Schools Bond Act.  A lot  

 

13          of that money has been spent, a lot of  

 

14          schools now have laptops or iPads or what  

 

15          have you for the students.  I did say this  

 

16          last year:  We're providing the content for  

 

17          those teachers, and we want to do even more  

 

18          on New York State history, on New York State  

 

19          civics, on media literacy, on social studies.   

 

20                 We also want to provide more  

 

21          professional development for teachers using  

 

22          PBS LearningMedia.  We did one on LGBTQ  

 

23          identity so that teachers could learn how to  

 

24          make their classroom a safer environment.   
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 1          We're talking about doing some on mental  

 

 2          health issues so that teachers can spot  

 

 3          students who may be experiencing mental  

 

 4          health issues in their classroom, and those  

 

 5          sorts of things. 

 

 6                 Within the State Budget, last year we  

 

 7          received a little over $14 million.  The  

 

 8          Legislature last year -- and we thank you for  

 

 9          this -- put in an additional quarter of a  

 

10          million, and that money was used to continue  

 

11          to plug away at our PBS LearningMedia content  

 

12          and create more content for the classrooms  

 

13          throughout New York State.   

 

14                 We want to continue doing that, and we  

 

15          are requesting this year an additional  

 

16          $500,000 over the Executive Budget, so that  

 

17          would just be $250,000 over what was actually  

 

18          enacted last year.  And that additional  

 

19          $500,000 would allow us to continue to create  

 

20          that PBS LearningMedia content for teachers  

 

21          to use for free in the classroom.   

 

22                 I should also add that parents use it  

 

23          at home.  Home-schoolers use it as well in  

 

24          rural areas to provide their kids with  
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 1          21st-century teaching tools.   

 

 2                 So that's it for my prepared remarks,  

 

 3          and I want to say, once again, thank you for  

 

 4          your support of PBS and for allowing me to  

 

 5          come here and talk to you a little bit about  

 

 6          some of the things that you may not know that  

 

 7          we do besides what we put on the air. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 9                 Shelley Mayer.   

 

10                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you, Chris, and  

 

11          thank you for dressing up in a costume  

 

12          multiple times in my district to be one of  

 

13          the Sesame Street or other characters.  I  

 

14          would commend my colleagues to consider  

 

15          having the opportunity for young children in  

 

16          their district to actually meet one of the  

 

17          PBS characters and hear a story read.  It's  

 

18          been very, very effective.  Thank you for  

 

19          that.   

 

20                 On the PBS LearningMedia program, are  

 

21          you working with SED in terms of curriculum  

 

22          development that you're sharing with  

 

23          teachers, or is this an independent effort on  

 

24          behalf of PBS?   
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 1                 MR. GOEKEN:  Sure.  So we do work very  

 

 2          closely with SED.  We don't develop  

 

 3          curriculum, we develop classroom resources  

 

 4          based on that curriculum or based on the SED  

 

 5          framework.   

 

 6                 So as they are implementing the new  

 

 7          curriculum in different areas -- and there's  

 

 8          a lot of bills also that are here in the  

 

 9          Legislature about specific topic areas -- we  

 

10          will take a look at those and develop a  

 

11          curriculum, working with SED.   

 

12                 But we also have teachers in each of  

 

13          our communities that advise us.  We have a  

 

14          formalized process of parents and teachers  

 

15          that advise us at each of those TV stations  

 

16          throughout the state that are their own  

 

17          nonprofits.  We rely on local educators to  

 

18          tell us what they want to see on PBS  

 

19          LearningMedia and also on the air. 

 

20                 SENATOR MAYER:  I just would suggest  

 

21          that given, this year, the Governor's very  

 

22          thoughtful introduction of a curriculum based  

 

23          on hate, a stronger focus on that.  And I  

 

24          think the Regents concur that that would be a  
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 1          productive area where frankly we do need  

 

 2          greater attention, as well as civics, where I  

 

 3          think there's a consensus.  We have dropped  

 

 4          the ball for some number of years here in  

 

 5          having our students educated about civics  

 

 6          education, and I think you may provide a  

 

 7          resource that -- it's free, correct? 

 

 8                 MR. GOEKEN:  Yes, it is free. 

 

 9                 SENATOR MAYER:  It's free, and it's  

 

10          available to teachers.  And it might be a  

 

11          very useful tool to complement and maybe stop  

 

12          the Legislature from doing curriculum  

 

13          mandates that some members find challenging  

 

14          for us to adopt. 

 

15                 But thank you for being an advocate  

 

16          for PBS. 

 

17                 MR. GOEKEN:  Thank you very much.   

 

18                 And I will say that on the hate  

 

19          crimes -- because there has been an uptick,  

 

20          obviously, even nationally, of that issue --  

 

21          PBS NewsHour has covered that pretty  

 

22          extensively, and what we'll do is then take a  

 

23          segment that was on PBS NewsHour and create  

 

24          PBS LearningMedia content.  So teachers don't  
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 1          have to sit there with VCRs like they did  

 

 2          when I was a kid.  We're doing a lot of that  

 

 3          work for them, and we're doing the lesson  

 

 4          plans, take-home questions and projects for  

 

 5          the classroom based on those things that are  

 

 6          on the air on PBS NewsHour.   

 

 7                 Thanks. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you, Chris. 

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Hold on.   

 

10                 Assemblywoman Hyndman. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Briefly, I  

 

12          just wanted to say thank you for dressing up  

 

13          and coming to the Southeast Queens community,  

 

14          because the turnout is always tremendous.   

 

15          And the outreach that's going on to  

 

16          African-American homes when it comes to PBS  

 

17          and early childhood learning -- most of our  

 

18          daycare centers and pre-K schools definitely  

 

19          use you as a resource.   

 

20                 And when it comes to civics, a lot of  

 

21          our middle and high schools are not teaching  

 

22          civics anymore, we're finding out it's  

 

23          just -- they're touching the surface.  So  

 

24          I'll be glad to use the resources that you  
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 1          mentioned to make sure that our middle and  

 

 2          high schools are using this for their  

 

 3          elections.  We want a more informed community  

 

 4          when it comes to elected officials, so we  

 

 5          want to make sure that we're educating in the  

 

 6          right way.   

 

 7                 Thank you.   

 

 8                 MR. GOEKEN:  Thank you.   

 

 9                 I'm glad I'm not in a costume today.   

 

10          It's a little warm in here. 

 

11                 (Laughter.) 

 

12                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We could use a  

 

13          little entertainment. 

 

14                 Thank you. 

 

15                 MR. GOEKEN:  Thank you. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Advocates for  

 

17          Children, Randi Levine.  Then New York  

 

18          Library Association, New York State Parent  

 

19          Teacher Association, if people could make  

 

20          their way down. 

 

21                 Please. 

 

22                 MS. LEVINE:  Thank you for the  

 

23          opportunity to speak with you today about the  

 

24          state education budget proposal.  My name is  
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 1          Randi Levine, and I'm the policy director of  

 

 2          Advocates for Children of New York.   

 

 3                 For nearly 50 years, Advocates for  

 

 4          Children has worked to ensure a high-quality  

 

 5          education for New York students who face  

 

 6          barriers to academic success, focusing on  

 

 7          students from low-income backgrounds.   

 

 8                 You have our written testimony.  I'm  

 

 9          going to highlight several of the issues that  

 

10          it addresses.   

 

11                 First, every day Advocates for  

 

12          Children hears from parents struggling to get  

 

13          their children the educational services and  

 

14          supports that they need, including parents of  

 

15          students with disabilities, English language  

 

16          learners, and students who are homeless.   

 

17          Given these needs, we echo the call for the  

 

18          state to fully fund Foundation Aid. 

 

19                 Second, over the past year Advocates  

 

20          for Children has received dozens of calls  

 

21          from parents whose preschoolers had a legal  

 

22          right to a preschool special education class  

 

23          but were sitting at home due to a shortage of  

 

24          available seats.  Some of these children lost  

 

 



                                                                   523 

 

 1          the skills they had gained through the Early  

 

 2          Intervention Program due to a gap in  

 

 3          services.  Other children were being  

 

 4          identified as having a disability for the  

 

 5          first time but could not get the help they  

 

 6          needed.   

 

 7                 All of these children were missing a  

 

 8          critical opportunity to get the intervention,  

 

 9          instruction, and services they needed during  

 

10          the window of time when these services can  

 

11          have the greatest impact. 

 

12                 Now, New York City is projecting a  

 

13          significant shortfall in the seats needed for  

 

14          this spring.  We released a report this month  

 

15          showing that New York City will need between  

 

16          1,028 and 1,932 new preschool special  

 

17          education class seats as well as hundreds of  

 

18          additional bilingual preschool special  

 

19          education class seats this spring in order to  

 

20          serve the city's preschoolers with  

 

21          disabilities and uphold their legal rights. 

 

22                 This problem is not limited to  

 

23          New York City.  For example, Rochester's  

 

24          preschool special education class seats are  
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 1          currently full, with no seats available for  

 

 2          children identified as needing them over the  

 

 3          rest of the school year.   

 

 4                 Contributing to the shortage of  

 

 5          preschool special education class seats has  

 

 6          been the closures of classes by 4410  

 

 7          preschool special education programs run by  

 

 8          community-based organizations, which operate  

 

 9          the majority of preschool special education  

 

10          classes and are struggling to stay open and  

 

11          recruit and retain teachers and other staff  

 

12          under the current payment rates set by the  

 

13          state. 

 

14                 We appreciate that last year the  

 

15          Assembly one-house budget recommended an  

 

16          increase in reimbursement rates for preschool  

 

17          special education programs of at least  

 

18          5 percent, and the Senate one-house budget  

 

19          recommended an increase of at least  

 

20          4 percent.  However, the Division of Budget  

 

21          approved only a 2 percent increase. 

 

22                 Without a significant increase in  

 

23          reimbursement rates for preschool special  

 

24          classes and evaluations, we are deeply  
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 1          concerned that the shortage of preschool  

 

 2          special education programs will only grow and  

 

 3          that the state will continue violating the  

 

 4          civil rights of preschoolers with  

 

 5          disabilities.   

 

 6                 To make up for underinvestment in  

 

 7          prior years, stop additional programs from  

 

 8          closing, and address the shortage of seats in  

 

 9          these programs, we join with our partners in  

 

10          the Kids Can't Wait campaign and the  

 

11          Winning Beginning NY coalition to urge you to  

 

12          negotiate a budget that increases the  

 

13          reimbursement rates for preschool special  

 

14          education programs and evaluation sites by  

 

15          10 percent. 

 

16                 Third, we are very concerned about the  

 

17          special education waiver proposed in the  

 

18          Executive Budget that would allow school  

 

19          districts to seek waivers from important  

 

20          protections for students with disabilities.   

 

21          With the current political climate in  

 

22          Washington, we need the state to stand firm  

 

23          on rights for students with disabilities, not  

 

24          enact legislation that would erode these  
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 1          rights.  We're pleased that the Legislature  

 

 2          has rejected this proposal for at least the  

 

 3          past six years, and we urge you to reject it  

 

 4          once again. 

 

 5                 Fourth, statewide only 38.9 percent of  

 

 6          English language learners graduate within  

 

 7          four years.  And ELLs have the highest  

 

 8          dropout rate of any subgroup, at 27 percent.   

 

 9          To address the long-standing achievement and  

 

10          opportunity gaps and help ELLs reach their  

 

11          full potential, we join with New York  

 

12          Advocates for Fair and Inclusive Resources  

 

13          for Multilingual Learners, NY-AFFIRMs, in  

 

14          urging the Legislature to negotiate a budget  

 

15          that includes a number of investments  

 

16          recommended by the Board of Regents and  

 

17          outlined in my written testimony, including  

 

18          $15 million to increase districts' capacity  

 

19          to serve ELLs through grants to help them  

 

20          enhance curriculum and increase instructional  

 

21          support for ELLs, and $1 million to create a  

 

22          new English language proficiency assessment  

 

23          for ELLs with severe cognitive disabilities. 

 

24                 Fifth, New York needs to increase  
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 1          access to alternatives to school suspensions  

 

 2          that allow students to take responsibility  

 

 3          for their behaviors, learn to avoid such  

 

 4          behaviors in the future, and keep students  

 

 5          learning in the classroom.   

 

 6                 We're encouraged that for the second  

 

 7          year, Governor Cuomo has included in the  

 

 8          Executive Budget $3 million for alternative  

 

 9          approaches to suspensions, including  

 

10          restorative practices, therapeutic crisis  

 

11          interventions, staff training, and  

 

12          trauma-informed education.  We know that much  

 

13          more is needed. 

 

14                 This year, as a step toward the needed  

 

15          investment, we join our partners in the  

 

16          Solutions, Not Suspensions campaign in  

 

17          calling on the state to double the amount of  

 

18          funding in the Executive Budget and invest  

 

19          $6 million in alternatives to suspensions.   

 

20                 Our written testimony has a couple of  

 

21          additional recommendations.  We thank you for  

 

22          the opportunity to testify, and I'd be happy  

 

23          to answer any questions that you may have. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We do have a  
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 1          couple of questions.   

 

 2                 First, Assemblywoman Jo Anne Simon. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Thank you.  {Mic  

 

 4          off.}  Here we go.  Sorry.   

 

 5                 Good afternoon, and thank you for  

 

 6          staying here for so long today, Ms. Levine.   

 

 7          I have a question for you with regard to the  

 

 8          independent -- the impartial hearing officer  

 

 9          situation.  You know, I do think everybody  

 

10          has pretty much understood the real lack  

 

11          of -- the shortage of seats for preschool  

 

12          special ed.  And of course those are kids who  

 

13          we know early on need special education  

 

14          placement.  It's not even all the kids that  

 

15          will be in general ed that we don't yet know  

 

16          may have a disability because it hasn't been  

 

17          identified -- and their needs need to be met  

 

18          as well. 

 

19                 But because -- you know, I've done  

 

20          impartial hearings years ago, you guys do  

 

21          impartial hearings.  Do you have a view on  

 

22          what is causing the current crisis and how to  

 

23          resolve it?   

 

24                 So I will share with you a concern I  
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 1          have that if impartial hearing officers are  

 

 2          not attorneys, they have -- it's much more  

 

 3          difficult for them to keep up with the case  

 

 4          law and some of the nuance of the case law  

 

 5          and why the case law has gone the way it has.   

 

 6          Which is not to say I agree with all the case  

 

 7          law.   

 

 8                 But having done special ed hearings  

 

 9          before hearing officers that are former  

 

10          superintendents and those that were  

 

11          attorneys, there's a vast difference in the  

 

12          way that the hearing is run and the quality  

 

13          of the hearing.   

 

14                 So I don't know whether you agree with  

 

15          me, but I'm curious whether your organization  

 

16          has a view on that. 

 

17                 MS. LEVINE:  I want to thank you and  

 

18          the many other legislators who today  

 

19          highlighted both the crisis as far as the  

 

20          preschool special education class seat  

 

21          shortage and the crisis with the impartial  

 

22          hearing system.   

 

23                 We are seeing significant delays at  

 

24          every step of the process, from delays in  
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 1          assigning hearing officers in the first place  

 

 2          to delays in hearings moving forward, delays  

 

 3          in the settlement process, and then delays  

 

 4          implementing orders.  Once parents have made  

 

 5          it through the entire process and win, and a  

 

 6          a hearing officer has ordered the DOE to  

 

 7          provide a remedy, we're seeing delays there  

 

 8          as well.   

 

 9                 And so this is a significant problem  

 

10          that we need the city and the state to work  

 

11          together to address.  We are currently  

 

12          evaluating the proposals that have been  

 

13          brought forth from the city and the state.   

 

14          We do think that impartial hearing officers  

 

15          need to have an understanding of complex law.   

 

16                 You've done these cases, I've done  

 

17          these cases, and there are numerous  

 

18          regulations and laws and case law that an  

 

19          impartial hearing officer needs to  

 

20          understand.  We think that compensation  

 

21          policies need to be examined.  We know you  

 

22          heard today that a new compensation policy  

 

23          was released on Friday.  We've already heard  

 

24          concerns from impartial hearing officers that  
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 1          that compensation policy is only going to  

 

 2          make the situation worse. 

 

 3                 So we are very concerned.  Part of  

 

 4          this needs to be a shift in DOE culture to  

 

 5          helping children get the services they need  

 

 6          as quickly as possible, rather than fighting  

 

 7          children and parents to take services away  

 

 8          and not provide them with the services and  

 

 9          placements that they need. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON:  Thank you. 

 

11                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

12                 Assemblywoman Walsh. 

 

13                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Thank you.   

 

14                 And thank you, Ms. Levine, for being  

 

15          here today. 

 

16                 So I'm wondering if you could just  

 

17          give me your opinion as far as the direction  

 

18          that you see in the Governor's budget.  Do  

 

19          you see a greater investment in universal  

 

20          prekindergarten to be telegraphing less  

 

21          support for the 4410 classrooms and that  

 

22          model, and a shift to universal pre-K that's  

 

23          going to then have like a push-in or an  

 

24          aspect to it that would be trying to provide  
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 1          special education services under that  

 

 2          umbrella?  I'm just curious to hear your  

 

 3          thoughts on that. 

 

 4                 MS. LEVINE:  Advocates for Children  

 

 5          strongly supports the expansion of  

 

 6          prekindergarten.  We are delighted that the  

 

 7          Legislature and the Governor have invested in  

 

 8          pre-K and that in New York City now every  

 

 9          4-year-old has access to a universal pre-K  

 

10          class.   

 

11                 All of the research shows that those  

 

12          programs work, and many preschoolers with  

 

13          disabilities are able to get their services  

 

14          in prekindergarten classes.  And so we  

 

15          definitely support those programs.  At the  

 

16          same time, we know that there is a  

 

17          significant number of preschoolers with  

 

18          disabilities for whom pre-K is not  

 

19          appropriate.  They need a smaller class.   

 

20          They need a full-time special education  

 

21          teacher.  They need specialization.  And they  

 

22          may be able to move into a less restrictive  

 

23          environment later on as they go into  

 

24          kindergarten in their later years.  But they  
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 1          need that intensive support for preschool. 

 

 2                 Preschool special education is not an  

 

 3          option.  It's mandatory.  It's a right.  So  

 

 4          the state has a lot of choices when it comes  

 

 5          to expanding early childhood education.  The  

 

 6          state does not have a choice about whether or  

 

 7          not to provide a preschool special education  

 

 8          class to every child whose Individualized  

 

 9          Education Program requires one.  That's a  

 

10          matter of federal and state law, and the  

 

11          state is currently in violation. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  So it's really  

 

13          got to be you've got to have both options  

 

14          available.  And, you know, that -- that's the  

 

15          way I read it as well.  But I appreciate your  

 

16          perspective.  Thank you. 

 

17                 MS. LEVINE:  Thank you. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  I  

 

19          believe that's all the questions we have. 

 

20                 MS. LEVINE:  Thank you.   

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

22          being here.   

 

23                 Next we have New York Library  

 

24          Association, Briana Mc -- NcNee -- McMann --  
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 1          you correct me.  The light and the hours. 

 

 2                 Then followed by New York State Parent  

 

 3          Teacher Association, followed by New York  

 

 4          Association for Pupil Transportation. 

 

 5                 MS. McNAMEE:  Good evening, everyone.   

 

 6          I'm Briana McNamee, and I serve as the  

 

 7          director of government relations and advocacy  

 

 8          for the New York Library Association.   

 

 9                 I want to thank you all for providing  

 

10          me the opportunity today to testify on behalf  

 

11          of our state's local, public, school and  

 

12          academic libraries and library systems, and  

 

13          the more than 10 million New Yorkers who hold  

 

14          library cards.   

 

15                 I would like to also begin by  

 

16          recognizing you all in the Legislature for  

 

17          fighting back against Governor Cuomo's attack  

 

18          on library funding last year, and especially  

 

19          for your efforts in June to resecure the  

 

20          $34 million for the Public Library  

 

21          Construction Aid Program.  Your support for  

 

22          this program in particular is changing  

 

23          communities and neighborhoods where needs are  

 

24          greater than available economic resources,  
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 1          and we are incredibly appreciative of your  

 

 2          efforts.   

 

 3                 However, once again, the Governor's  

 

 4          Executive Budget aggressively attacks local  

 

 5          libraries and library services.  The  

 

 6          Executive Budget decreases funding for both  

 

 7          State Library Aid as well as the State  

 

 8          Library Construction Aid Program.  State aid  

 

 9          has been reduced to $91.6 million, which is  

 

10          equivalent to that of year 2000, and our  

 

11          construction program has been slashed by  

 

12          nearly 60 percent, bringing it once again  

 

13          down to $14 million.   

 

14                 This approach to library development  

 

15          is not just inequitable in relation to  

 

16          overall funding, it's reckless and it's out  

 

17          of touch with how New Yorkers view libraries.   

 

18          New York libraries are indispensable  

 

19          institutions within their communities. 

 

20                 What I am about to tell you is not  

 

21          new, nor is it anything that you have not  

 

22          heard from your own constituents.  Libraries  

 

23          are safe, welcoming spaces that foster  

 

24          community cohesion through diverse  
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 1          programming and access to community meeting  

 

 2          spaces and local services.  But this mission  

 

 3          is threatened by a lack of sustainable state  

 

 4          funding. 

 

 5                 State Library Aid is the primary  

 

 6          source of funding for our state's library  

 

 7          systems.  These systems go on to provide  

 

 8          services and resources to each library within  

 

 9          New York State, who then of course offer  

 

10          materials and services and resources to their  

 

11          patrons. 

 

12                 According to the State Education  

 

13          Department, each dollar invested within the  

 

14          State Library Aid Program returns $7 in local  

 

15          library services.  These services may not be  

 

16          what come to mind, such as resume building  

 

17          and the appropriate clothing for job  

 

18          interviews, or healthy cooking tutorials,  

 

19          including the supplies.   

 

20                 Today, the programs and services that  

 

21          libraries are being called upon to deliver  

 

22          are more expensive than ever.  From providing  

 

23          access to information technology and  

 

24          high-speed internet to supporting the  
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 1          upcoming 2020 Census, libraries are  

 

 2          struggling to supply the resources and  

 

 3          services that their users need and deserve.   

 

 4                 It's past time for a bold new  

 

 5          investment in not what libraries have always  

 

 6          been, but what they've become:  Information  

 

 7          access hubs and the educational and cultural  

 

 8          center of their communities.  We ask the  

 

 9          Legislature to reimagine libraries and  

 

10          reimagine their funding and invest  

 

11          $200 million in the New York State Aid to  

 

12          Libraries Program. 

 

13                 As for infrastructure, our state's  

 

14          libraries are rapidly aging.  After a decade  

 

15          of stagnant funding, appropriations to the  

 

16          State Library Construction Aid Program have  

 

17          increased, but there's a staggering need.  A  

 

18          recent report issued by the Division of  

 

19          Library Development details a $1.5 billion  

 

20          capital need for public libraries statewide.   

 

21          Of the 756 public libraries in New York  

 

22          State, nearly 400 are over 60 years old, and  

 

23          155 were built before 1900.   

 

24                 Recent attempts to address library  
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 1          infrastructure issues with increased state  

 

 2          funding are making a difference, and we  

 

 3          advocate for an even more aggressive  

 

 4          approach.  Funding for the Library  

 

 5          Construction Aid Program should be increased  

 

 6          to $75 million in fiscal year 2020.   

 

 7                 And while I know we are talking about  

 

 8          the State Budget, I would be remiss if I did  

 

 9          not mention that the White House released its  

 

10          fiscal year 2021 budget proposal yesterday.   

 

11          For the fourth time in a row, it intends to  

 

12          eliminate the Institute of Museum and Library  

 

13          Services, the IMLS, including all funds from  

 

14          the Library Services and Technology Act, the  

 

15          LSTA.  The administration's new budget not  

 

16          only strips funding from IMLS, it brushes  

 

17          aside funding for other library eligible  

 

18          education programs.   

 

19                 We need our state's support more than  

 

20          ever.  You have my full testimony before you,  

 

21          so I will not bog you down with data or  

 

22          additional figures, but I simply ask you to  

 

23          remember who libraries are.  They're  

 

24          communities.   
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 1                 Thank you. 

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblyman  

 

 3          Benedetto. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Ms. McNamee,  

 

 5          thank you very much for being here and your  

 

 6          testimony.  I can't speak for Washington,  

 

 7          D.C., but I think I have a pretty good idea  

 

 8          about the State of New York, and we love our  

 

 9          libraries in the State of New York. 

 

10                 MS. McNAMEE:  Thank you. 

 

11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  And we hear  

 

12          your plea.  And I know, as one, we will be  

 

13          supporting what you're urging us to do, not  

 

14          just for the libraries, but my daughter works  

 

15          for the Queens Library -- 

 

16                 (Laughter.) 

 

17                 MS. McNAMEE:  Ah, yay. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  -- and it  

 

19          takes her out of my hair -- 

 

20                 MS. McNAMEE:  That's great to hear.   

 

21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  -- and makes  

 

22          her a good taxpaying citizen of the State of  

 

23          New York.  So I'm with you on this.  Thank  

 

24          you for being here. 
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 1                 MS. McNAMEE:  Thank you.   

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  All those in  

 

 3          favor of helping his daughter.   

 

 4                 (Laughter.) 

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator Mayer. 

 

 6                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  Thank you  

 

 7          for making the case for libraries.  I do  

 

 8          think you have a wide base of support in the  

 

 9          Legislature on all sides of the aisle.   

 

10                 Last year we thought we put money in  

 

11          the budget for libraries to assist in the  

 

12          Census, because we believed that libraries  

 

13          were a place that people trusted to go and  

 

14          provide the information if they weren't going  

 

15          to do it at home, and/or if they needed  

 

16          online assistance. 

 

17                 What is the status of the libraries'  

 

18          involvement in the state's Census 2020  

 

19          activities?   

 

20                 MS. McNAMEE:  Sure.  So the Governor  

 

21          had placed forward $60 million to go towards  

 

22          Census efforts.  As nonprofits within library  

 

23          charters, they are eligible to apply for  

 

24          those funds.  However, they are distributed  
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 1          by the municipalities themselves.   

 

 2                 So while we will remain open and move  

 

 3          forward with any aid and help we can provide  

 

 4          our patrons, monetarily it's fairly limited.   

 

 5          We -- the most need is through technology and  

 

 6          equipment, and there is a pretty hefty  

 

 7          restriction on those dollars.  It's only  

 

 8          $500, up to $500 for equipment and $2500  

 

 9          total, in aggregate, for the municipality. 

 

10                 SENATOR MAYER:  So I believe some is  

 

11          by county, not municipality. 

 

12                 MS. McNAMEE:  Correct. 

 

13                 SENATOR MAYER:  So at the end of the  

 

14          day, the libraries are not benefiting by the  

 

15          funds that we allocated, presuming some  

 

16          amount of it would go to libraries because we  

 

17          believed they were effective tools in  

 

18          ensuring maximum Census participation. 

 

19                 MS. McNAMEE:  Minimally they are being  

 

20          benefited. 

 

21                 SENATOR MAYER:  And with respect to  

 

22          the capital needs of the libraries generally,  

 

23          of the funds that were allocated last year --  

 

24          and I think they're reduced this year -- do  
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 1          you know how many libraries actually applied  

 

 2          for and received capital for library  

 

 3          construction last year?   

 

 4                 MS. McNAMEE:  I don't have the exact  

 

 5          figure, but I can get it to you. 

 

 6                 SENATOR MAYER:  Is the money out the  

 

 7          door, or are we not there yet?   

 

 8                 MS. McNAMEE:  It's in both -- it's  

 

 9          been promised and out the door, I would say. 

 

10                 SENATOR MAYER:  A combination. 

 

11                 MS. McNAMEE:  Yes. 

 

12                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay, thank you. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.   

 

15                 MS. McNAMEE:  Thank you. 

 

16                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next, New York  

 

17          State Parent Teacher Association, Kyle  

 

18          Belokopitsky, Lorey A. Zaman, Roberto Rijos.   

 

19          To be followed by New York Association for  

 

20          Pupil Transportation and New York State  

 

21          School Facilities Association.  I encourage  

 

22          people to make their way down if you're a  

 

23          later speaker. 

 

24                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  I'm Kyle  
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 1          Belokopitsky, the executive director of the  

 

 2          New York State Parent Teacher Association -- 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Five minutes  

 

 4          for all of you.  Go ahead. 

 

 5                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  -- and we are proud  

 

 6          to represent our 300,000 members and our  

 

 7          2.6 million schoolchildren. 

 

 8                 With me today is our state president,  

 

 9          Lorey Zaman, and the Yonkers Council of PTAs  

 

10          president, Roberto Rijos. 

 

11                 We have submitted our testimony, and  

 

12          we'd like to thank you all for being here  

 

13          still.  We will only discuss three brief  

 

14          issues:  School aid, mental health supports  

 

15          for students, and vaping. 

 

16                 First we all know that our students'  

 

17          needs are changing.  Each and every day they  

 

18          face new obstacles to success --  

 

19          homelessness, poverty, mental health,  

 

20          language and learning barriers -- and yet our  

 

21          schools continue to support every child as  

 

22          they grow into successful citizens.  It is  

 

23          our job to ensure that every child, no matter  

 

24          their zip code, race, religion, ethnicity,  
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 1          socioeconomic status, sexual orientation or  

 

 2          gender identity, is fully supported. 

 

 3                 Lorey? 

 

 4                 MS. ZAMAN:  The state constitutional  

 

 5          obligation to fund high-quality education for  

 

 6          each and every New York student remains  

 

 7          unfilled.  Unfortunately, state aid, as  

 

 8          allocated in the Executive Budget proposal,  

 

 9          is insufficient to address student need.   

 

10          Alongside our ECB partners, we have asked for  

 

11          a 1.6 billion increase in Foundation Aid,  

 

12          which is a third of what is due to schools --  

 

13          this would put the state on course to fully  

 

14          fund the formula in three years -- and  

 

15          $500 million for five priority areas,  

 

16          including strengthening school safety,  

 

17          supporting struggling schools and English  

 

18          language learners, and investing in college  

 

19          and career pathways. 

 

20                 We strongly oppose any changes to  

 

21          expense-based aids and fully oppose the  

 

22          Executive's proposal to do such, which would  

 

23          lessen resources available to schools.   

 

24          Expense-based aids are a critical and  
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 1          necessary funding stream for many schools,  

 

 2          especially since many school buildings are  

 

 3          old and in dire need of repair.  Replacing  

 

 4          outdated school buses, repairing plumbing and  

 

 5          heating, and updating equipment is absolutely  

 

 6          necessary, as schools have deferred these and  

 

 7          other expenses to save programs and direct  

 

 8          services for students.   

 

 9                 These expenses are essential, not  

 

10          selective, and must continue to be fully  

 

11          funded.  Further, we must continue to hold  

 

12          harmless for school districts with declining  

 

13          enrollment and continue to oppose any cost  

 

14          shifts to school districts.   

 

15                 We also support increased funding for  

 

16          ELL students, support for homeless children,  

 

17          Community School expansion, and high-quality  

 

18          pre-K and after-school programs. 

 

19                 Further, we look for continued  

 

20          increased investments in Early College High  

 

21          Schools, P-TECH programs, and CTE and STEM  

 

22          programs, as more than 90 percent of CTE  

 

23          students graduate with a Regents diploma.  We  

 

24          also support investments in AP and IB  
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 1          programs for low-income students.  These  

 

 2          proposals will begin to level the playing  

 

 3          field and provide for appropriate assistance  

 

 4          to low-income families to support children. 

 

 5                 Rob? 

 

 6                 MR. RIJOS:  A recent New York State  

 

 7          Council of School Superintendents survey  

 

 8          found that two-thirds of our chief school  

 

 9          officers identify mental health services as a  

 

10          top funding priority.   

 

11                 Thankfully, last school year mental  

 

12          health was added to the current mandated  

 

13          health education curriculum.  New York State  

 

14          PTA proudly continues to serve on the Mental  

 

15          Health Advisory Council, who worked on  

 

16          guidance for implementation of this new  

 

17          mental health curriculum. 

 

18                 However, schools cannot accomplish  

 

19          this task alone.  Our students and educators  

 

20          need support, yet there is little direct  

 

21          support for student mental health in the  

 

22          Executive Budget.  Therefore, we call on our  

 

23          policymakers to include at least $5 million  

 

24          for direct support of school-based mental  
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 1          health programs in noncompetitive funding.   

 

 2          We also support the inclusion of funding for  

 

 3          noncompetitive student mental health services  

 

 4          in the $16 million block grant. 

 

 5                 Further, adequate increases in  

 

 6          Foundation Aid could support critical  

 

 7          personnel like school counselors, health  

 

 8          professionals such as school nurses, school  

 

 9          psychologists, and clinical licensed social  

 

10          workers, who all can be supportive in the  

 

11          academic setting, family and community. 

 

12                 We must support appropriate student  

 

13          education ratios for these critical areas.   

 

14          The ideal ratio is one school counselor for  

 

15          every 250 students.  Very few schools achieve  

 

16          this level of support, with ratings averaging  

 

17          one counselor for every 400 students.  Some  

 

18          of our schools in New York don't even have a  

 

19          guidance counselor, and in some districts --  

 

20          like mine -- ratios of one counselor for  

 

21          every 850 students is the norm. 

 

22                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  And lastly, we  

 

23          continue to support the whole child and fully  

 

24          support Section Q in Health and Mental  
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 1          Health, Article 7, and bills by Hoylman,  

 

 2          Rosenthal and Bichotte.  These proposals  

 

 3          would ban the sale of flavored e-cigarettes,  

 

 4          flavored e-liquids, flavored combustibles and  

 

 5          smokeless tobacco.  

 

 6                 According to DOH, alarmingly, nearly  

 

 7          40 percent of 12th-grade students and  

 

 8          20 percent of all New York State high school  

 

 9          students are now using e-cigarettes. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

11                 We go to Assemblymember Walsh. 

 

12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Thank you. 

 

13                 I think because your time expired, you  

 

14          didn't get a chance to get to the last point  

 

15          under "Support for the Whole Child."  What is  

 

16          the position of your organization regarding  

 

17          the legalization of recreational marijuana? 

 

18                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  We are opposed to  

 

19          that proposal. 

 

20                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  And could you  

 

21          please explain why that is? 

 

22                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  Sure.  We feel that  

 

23          the legalization of recreational marijuana  

 

24          would harm our children.  What we've seen in  
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 1          data from Washington and Colorado and other  

 

 2          states that have legalized shows that there  

 

 3          are increased rates of both driving under the  

 

 4          influence, fatalities, both increased rates  

 

 5          of children in urgent care and hospital  

 

 6          settings.  And the AAA study that just came  

 

 7          out on January 30th concluded the same. 

 

 8                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN WALSH:  Very good.   

 

 9          Thank you. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

11                 Senator Shelley Mayer. 

 

12                 SENATOR MAYER:  Well, thank you for  

 

13          staying so long, and thank you particularly  

 

14          to Rob, who was here on behalf of Yonkers all  

 

15          this time.  Thank you for your advocacy. 

 

16                 You mentioned that Yonkers has one  

 

17          school counselor for every 850 students, and  

 

18          the ideal ratio is one for every 250.  If the  

 

19          Foundation Aid formula was fully founded and  

 

20          if Yonkers could meet its funding shortfall,  

 

21          is it possible for it to get to the  

 

22          one-per-250 number? 

 

23                 MR. RIJOS:  If the Foundation Aid  

 

24          formula was fully funded at the request of  
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 1          2.1 billion, along with SED, I believe we can  

 

 2          achieve those ratios. 

 

 3                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay.  And the other  

 

 4          question I had is on the issue of cannabis,  

 

 5          where you oppose the legalization of  

 

 6          recreational marijuana.  Is that based  

 

 7          largely on the experience in Colorado from  

 

 8          the school community?  Or is that independent  

 

 9          of the school community's response there? 

 

10                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  So interestingly,  

 

11          that position has been a New York State PTA  

 

12          position since 1982.  So our membership had  

 

13          voted in 1982 to oppose that proposal, and we  

 

14          just renewed through our membership, at a  

 

15          vote in November, to continue that proposal.   

 

16          We review resolutions, as we call them, every  

 

17          seven years. 

 

18                 In review of this past November in  

 

19          current research, we've looked at all of the  

 

20          states that have legalized it, including  

 

21          Massachusetts and Washington.  Working with  

 

22          partners, we just met yesterday with the  

 

23          State Sheriffs Association, the Chiefs of  

 

24          Police, the Mental Health Association, the  
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 1          County Health Officials, the Rural Schools  

 

 2          Association, the Business Officials have all  

 

 3          come out in opposition because of the  

 

 4          concerns. 

 

 5                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblyman Ra. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you. 

 

 8                 So I think a lot of these things are  

 

 9          very related to -- I know there's been a  

 

10          focus on mental health, you know, the vaping,  

 

11          the recreational marijuana.  So can you talk  

 

12          a little bit about, you know, how funding  

 

13          that mental health -- which I think we all  

 

14          know is needed -- but also providing supports  

 

15          for those students who have started using  

 

16          vape or other substances, to help break that  

 

17          addiction to it, to improve their health. 

 

18                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  I'll share two  

 

19          brief stories.  I had testified before the  

 

20          Albany County Legislature a few months ago on  

 

21          their vaping ban that unfortunately failed.   

 

22          That afternoon, my office sent to my  

 

23          cellphone one of our members from a local  

 

24          school district here in Albany County.  She  
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 1          was crying on the phone, and she said, "Kyle,  

 

 2          I need your help."  And I said, "Of course.   

 

 3          What do you need?"  And she said, "I'm at  

 

 4          Albany Medical Center with my fourth-grade  

 

 5          child."  And I said, "What do you need, do  

 

 6          you need services, do you need someone to  

 

 7          go?"  And she said, "I just want to let you  

 

 8          know that my child, who is in fourth grade,  

 

 9          has pneumonia and lung illness, and his best  

 

10          friend, who just told his mother, it's  

 

11          because he's been vaping the whole year."   

 

12          This is a fourth-grade student. 

 

13                 Today we had students up from Yonkers  

 

14          City School District, and we talked a lot  

 

15          about school aid and mental health support.   

 

16          One student stood on the stairs and I think  

 

17          brought us all to tears -- as I tear up  

 

18          now -- as he talked about losing a friend  

 

19          recently to death by suicide.  And he said,  

 

20          "We couldn't provide that student and my  

 

21          friend the support he needed."   

 

22                 I had found out today that, as an  

 

23          example, the Yonkers ratio is one to 850 for  

 

24          school counselors.  For social workers, it's  
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 1          one to 1900.  And the average school  

 

 2          counselor is one to 400 in New York State.   

 

 3          We have some school districts with no school  

 

 4          counselors, no licensed social workers, and  

 

 5          no nurses. 

 

 6                 We are failing our students if we  

 

 7          don't really put mental health, and their  

 

 8          mental health, at the forefront.  We are so  

 

 9          thankful because we know each and every one  

 

10          of you believe the same thing.  We're so  

 

11          thankful and hopeful that we can add  

 

12          significant money to this budget, because  

 

13          there really is nothing for mental health of  

 

14          students. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you. 

 

16                 And again, thank you to all of you for  

 

17          the advocacy on behalf of New York's  

 

18          children. 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

20                 We go to Assemblywoman Hyndman. 

 

21                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Hi. 

 

22                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  How are you? 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  It's good to  

 

24          see you, Kyle. 
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 1                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  Good to see you  

 

 2          too. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  So correct me  

 

 4          if I'm wrong, you still aren't permitted to  

 

 5          be in New York City -- 

 

 6                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  Correct.  But I  

 

 7          promise we are working on that.  So that is  

 

 8          really the only city in New York State that  

 

 9          we are prohibited from working with their  

 

10          parents because of chancellor regulations.   

 

11                 We had a number of conversations with  

 

12          then-Chancellor Fariña and her senior staff,  

 

13          and we're transitioning that over to the new  

 

14          chancellor. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  And what are  

 

16          those conversations like with the new  

 

17          chancellor? 

 

18                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  I think they're  

 

19          beginning. 

 

20                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Okay. 

 

21                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  We will keep -- I  

 

22          promise to keep you in the loop, as your  

 

23          colleagues. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you. 
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 1                 Also, when you talk about -- like my  

 

 2          colleague just asked you about the  

 

 3          recreational marijuana.  Do you talk to your  

 

 4          colleagues downstate about that?  And what  

 

 5          are those conversations like? 

 

 6                 MS. BELOKOPITSKY:  We have.  I think  

 

 7          one thing that we felt strongly about last  

 

 8          year -- and we were very pleased that the  

 

 9          decriminalization occurred.  We knew that  

 

10          there were abhorrent social justice issues  

 

11          with criminalization of low-level marijuana  

 

12          offenses, so we were pleased to see that  

 

13          happen. 

 

14                 We've spoken with members from  

 

15          downstate, Long Island, Buffalo, the  

 

16          North Country.  We do have, you know, of  

 

17          course continued concerns about  

 

18          implementation in other states, what that's  

 

19          going to look like here, law enforcement  

 

20          concerns.  For instance, every single law  

 

21          enforcement dog would have to be retired  

 

22          immediately, and those types of concerns.   

 

23          There's not a good test for marijuana  

 

24          impairment now.  Law enforcement has to spend  
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 1          a significant amount of time training what  

 

 2          they call DR user -- drug resistant  

 

 3          enforcement officers.   

 

 4                 And more importantly, what we see  

 

 5          in -- just like tobacco, and just like  

 

 6          vaping -- in the other states, we're talking  

 

 7          about THC-infused lollipops and gummy bears  

 

 8          and flavors and things that are not marketed  

 

 9          towards adults.  We're very concerned about  

 

10          that.  

 

11                 We have -- you all know -- a heroin  

 

12          and opioid epidemic now.  We have a vaping  

 

13          epidemic now.  What we know our children  

 

14          are -- we have Tobacco 21, and  

 

15          congratulations to each of you, because that  

 

16          was a huge feat last year.  We're doing so  

 

17          many positive things to protect children.   

 

18          And we know children are vaping still, even  

 

19          though it's Tobacco 21.  We know children are  

 

20          drinking still, even though alcohol is 21. 

 

21                 I just cannot understand, from our  

 

22          association's perspective, on behalf of our  

 

23          members, that it's the way to go right now. 

 

24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN HYNDMAN:  Thank you. 
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 1                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 2          Thank you all for being here. 

 

 3                 PANELISTS:  Thank you very much. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Is David  

 

 5          Christopher in the room?  Perhaps not.   

 

 6          Because he has not checked in.  Unless you're  

 

 7          standing.  Oh, okay. 

 

 8                 MR. KOELBEL:  I'm the next. 

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  You get one  

 

10          demerit for not checking at the -- 

 

11                 MR. KOELBEL:  No, no, I'm not David.   

 

12          I'm Fred Koelbel. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Oh, okay.   

 

14          New York State Facilities Association, Fred  

 

15          Koelbel.  Thank you. 

 

16                 MR. KOELBEL:  Well, it's Fred Kel-bel. 

 

17                 Anyway, I thank you all for hanging  

 

18          in.  We've been hanging in all day too, and  

 

19          then it's a marathon.  I've spent my time  

 

20          wisely, I took all my written testimony and  

 

21          condensed it to a couple of notes here, so we  

 

22          can go through this. 

 

23                 First of all, I want to thank you for  

 

24          last year supporting and working with us,  
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 1          both the Senate and the Assembly, to pass  

 

 2          legislation that staggered the building  

 

 3          condition survey.  And I think the important  

 

 4          thing about that more than anything else is  

 

 5          it demonstrates how we can overcome some  

 

 6          unintended consequences in laws when we work  

 

 7          together and we talk to each other and we  

 

 8          advocate together.  And it's been -- it's  

 

 9          implemented now, it's going to happen, it's  

 

10          going to make some differences for all of us. 

 

11                 And we in the New York State School  

 

12          Facilities Association look forward to  

 

13          working with all of you in any school  

 

14          building issue, legislation.  You know, if we  

 

15          get it right the first time, it's a lot  

 

16          easier.   

 

17                 Second, expense-based aid.  You know,  

 

18          one of the things that's different -- I've  

 

19          done this for many years.  A lot of people  

 

20          talked about facilities today.  That's very  

 

21          unusual, you know.  But expense-based aid  

 

22          being consolidated -- you know, we've done  

 

23          this before.  As many of you -- well, some of  

 

24          you will remember, you know, back when we  
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 1          took minor maintenance aid, which was money  

 

 2          that came to school districts to do, you  

 

 3          know, repairs and things like that, and  

 

 4          rolled it into flex aid.  But don't worry,  

 

 5          it's still there, you know, but the school  

 

 6          board will know how to use it better.  Well,  

 

 7          we never saw that again.  You know?   

 

 8                 And then what happens, the buildings  

 

 9          start to deteriorate, then we do something  

 

10          like Excel Aid, and then we -- you know,  

 

11          something else.  So rolling it in is not a  

 

12          good thing. 

 

13                 The other thing is capping the  

 

14          expense-based aids at, you know, an arbitrary  

 

15          figure this year.  Well, how many people put  

 

16          in building plans this year?  How many people  

 

17          didn't?   

 

18                 And think about this.  You're a voter  

 

19          in the community and I go to you:  We want to  

 

20          do this bond issue, it's going to cost  

 

21          $20 million.  Nah, we don't know what our  

 

22          rate's going to be.  You know, try and pass  

 

23          that.   

 

24                 When somebody says to you in the  
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 1          Legislature "We've got this great bill, we'd  

 

 2          like you to pass it," and you say, "What's it  

 

 3          going to cost?"  "I don't know."  Would you  

 

 4          vote for that?  You know.   

 

 5                 So that's the other unintended  

 

 6          consequence of capping the aid.  We can no  

 

 7          longer tell our community what we're going to  

 

 8          be giving them. 

 

 9                 And, you know, the other thing to just  

 

10          realize is we're going to affect our children  

 

11          and their learning when we let the  

 

12          maintenance of buildings go down.  The last  

 

13          thing we heard Michael Borges outline in the  

 

14          financial aspects of it, by increasing the  

 

15          capital outlay to $250,000 for that one-year  

 

16          project -- seriously, what can you do for  

 

17          $100,000 when you're talking about  

 

18          architectural fees, when you're talking about  

 

19          prevailing wage, when you're talking about --  

 

20          particularly, I come from Long Island.  I  

 

21          mean, we pay a hundred-and-something dollars  

 

22          an hour for an electrician with prevailing  

 

23          wage.  It's just not -- statewide, I think,  

 

24          last year only 200 school districts were able  
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 1          to take advantage of this. 

 

 2                 We've heard about the savings  

 

 3          dollarwise, but it also, particularly for  

 

 4          lower-wealth, higher-aided districts, this  

 

 5          becomes a rolling fund for them.  Because  

 

 6          they get the money back the next year, they  

 

 7          did $250,000 and they get, you know,  

 

 8          75 percent of that back?  They've got the  

 

 9          basis to do it the next year. 

 

10                 So I thank you.  I didn't want to take  

 

11          too much of your time.  If you have any  

 

12          questions, I'd be happy to answer them. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator Mayer. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  One quick question. 

 

15                 On the proposal to increase the  

 

16          project cost from 100,000 to 250,000, can you  

 

17          quantify the number of projects that are sort  

 

18          of held up because we have this lower limit? 

 

19                 MR. KOELBEL:  I don't know how many  

 

20          are held up because they don't -- you know,  

 

21          let's face it, if it's over $100,000, it  

 

22          either becomes a bond issue or, worse, it  

 

23          doesn't get it done at all because people  

 

24          are -- a lot of areas are having difficulty  
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 1          passing bonds. 

 

 2                 I can tell you that statewide last  

 

 3          year it was just 200.  That's very few  

 

 4          projects. 

 

 5                 SENATOR MAYER:  A very small number. 

 

 6                 MR. KOELBEL:  I mean, I can remember  

 

 7          when I first started in this, my business  

 

 8          official and I, twenty-something years ago,  

 

 9          would sit down:  I need a project because I  

 

10          want to get this money.  We were a district  

 

11          that was aided at 70 percent, so she looked  

 

12          -- $100,000, I get $70,000 coming back next  

 

13          year, I'm -- you know, we're -- 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  Start the next one. 

 

15                 MR. KOELBEL:  -- from there, yeah. 

 

16                 SENATOR MAYER:  Okay, thank you. 

 

17                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  I  

 

18          believe that's all the questions we have.   

 

19          Thank you. 

 

20                 Next, New York State League of Women  

 

21          Voters along with Education Trust New York,  

 

22          together as a panel. 

 

23                 Hi. 

 

24                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  Good evening.   
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 1                 This was really a rare opportunity for  

 

 2          me to come back out of retirement for a brief  

 

 3          couple of hours.   

 

 4                 As you can see, I am not Dr. Marian  

 

 5          Bott.  She is the education specialist for  

 

 6          the League of Women Voters of New York State.   

 

 7          I am the former, now retired, legislative  

 

 8          director.  I offered to pinch-hit for her  

 

 9          today since she has a family obligation in  

 

10          New York City.  So what you see before you is  

 

11          her testimony.   

 

12                 And as you note, there are a lot of  

 

13          charts in there, none of which I am going  

 

14          to -- I'm going to let you go through them.   

 

15          All I will say is that she has done a great  

 

16          deal of research on this.   

 

17                 And the League, as you know, has a  

 

18          position on financing of education.  We fully  

 

19          support -- and actually, we're part of the  

 

20          amicus for CFI and fully support full  

 

21          Foundation funding.   

 

22                 As far as the categorical -- the  

 

23          10 categories that the Governor has submitted  

 

24          in his Executive Budget, we only have  
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 1          positions on two of them.  But what we would  

 

 2          really ask is that you, without -- until  

 

 3          you -- do not subsume them, I guess I would  

 

 4          say, without actually looking at them very  

 

 5          carefully.   

 

 6                 The two that Marian -- that we have  

 

 7          positions on that Marian has highlighted are  

 

 8          the Charter School Transitional Aid and the  

 

 9          High Tax Aid.   

 

10                 Now, on the Transitional Aid, what she  

 

11          really wanted me to convey to you is that  

 

12          New York City does not have any Charter  

 

13          School Transitional Aid.  It is somewhat  

 

14          like -- well, it's not like any other place  

 

15          in the state.  We note -- and it was spoken  

 

16          to here this afternoon, about Buffalo and  

 

17          what they are going through with very high  

 

18          numbers of Transition Aid in their school  

 

19          district, with a number of kids that are in  

 

20          charter schools there.  So I just ask you to  

 

21          look carefully at that. 

 

22                 The other issues that I just wanted to  

 

23          briefly address is the charter school  

 

24          renewal.  We need -- I was here 22 years ago  
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 1          when we did the charter school legislation.   

 

 2          I believe it was in exchange for a pay raise  

 

 3          for our legislators back in the dark of the  

 

 4          night back then.  Yes, Helene was here, she  

 

 5          knows.   

 

 6                 It is time to revisit that and to  

 

 7          propagate legislation that will look at the  

 

 8          skimming that goes on in the charter school  

 

 9          arena where -- particularly in these areas  

 

10          where there are a lot of public school  

 

11          students who go into the charter schools,  

 

12          they skim, and the students with disabilities  

 

13          or English language learners end up back in  

 

14          the public school district because they skim  

 

15          them. 

 

16                 I think it's time -- or the League  

 

17          really firmly believes it's time to readdress  

 

18          legislation to deal with that issue. 

 

19                 And the only other issue that I wanted  

 

20          to really just touch on is an issue that I  

 

21          started doing back in 1992 when we lobbied  

 

22          the Regents on public school vouchers.  That  

 

23          looks as though it may be raising its ugly  

 

24          head again at the national level.  And so  
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 1          here in New York, I think -- and the League  

 

 2          has a very set position on no classroom aid  

 

 3          to private schools.  And apparently this STEM  

 

 4          education is now being considered for an  

 

 5          increase in funding.  We consider that to be  

 

 6          classroom aid, and therefore it is a bright  

 

 7          line that we are drawing that would not --  

 

 8          would say that's a line you do not cross into  

 

 9          funding private schools with public funds.   

 

10                 So I just have one other thing to  

 

11          address, perhaps, something I heard from  

 

12          Mr. Benedetto this afternoon and Mr. Ra,  

 

13          dealing with -- which you will hear a lot  

 

14          more about tomorrow -- well, maybe not this  

 

15          panel.  But our deputy director will be  

 

16          addressing funding for early voting.   

 

17                 I would just tell you that if early  

 

18          voting, whether it's the presidential primary  

 

19          or any of the legislative primaries that will  

 

20          happen this year -- early voting should  

 

21          alleviate the problems with the  

 

22          schoolteachers taking all this time off.  The  

 

23          problem is going to come if these early  

 

24          voting sites are fully funded.  So I would --  
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 1          you can kill several birds with one stone,  

 

 2          increase the funding for early voting.  That  

 

 3          would certainly make a difference in many,  

 

 4          many different areas.  Whether they're nurses  

 

 5          or whether they're physicians or teachers,  

 

 6          being able to do early voting will alleviate  

 

 7          some of the workplace hardships that many  

 

 8          voters find. 

 

 9                 So with that said, just one more  

 

10          thing.  Oh, I'm out of time.  Just one more  

 

11          thing.  I sit here after probably 42 years,  

 

12          and for the first time I am addressing a  

 

13          chair of the Education Committee, Madam  

 

14          Chair; a chair of the Senate Finance, Madam  

 

15          Chair; and chair of the Assembly Ways and  

 

16          Means, Madam Chair -- in the hundredth year  

 

17          of women getting -- and Mr. Benedetto,  

 

18          who's -- yes, yes, yes.  You're the token.   

 

19          We've --    

 

20                 (Laughter.) 

 

21                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  -- often been told to  

 

22          be tokens, so you're the token.   

 

23                 But in the hundredth year of women  

 

24          getting the right to the vote, this is truly  
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 1          inspiring, that I get to sit before three  

 

 2          chairwomen.  So thank you very much. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you,  

 

 4          Barbara.   

 

 5                 Ian?   

 

 6                 MR. ROSENBLUM:  Good evening.  Thank  

 

 7          you, Chairpersons, and honorable members of  

 

 8          the Legislature, for the opportunity to offer  

 

 9          my testimony.   

 

10                 My name is Ian Rosenblum, and I serve  

 

11          as the executive director of The Education  

 

12          Trust-NY, a statewide policy and advocacy  

 

13          organization dedicated to educational equity.   

 

14          Our work is data-centered and conducted in  

 

15          close partnership with civil rights,  

 

16          education, parent and business groups. 

 

17                 The Legislature and Executive continue  

 

18          to make important strides in addressing  

 

19          educational equity, and we're grateful for  

 

20          your leadership and commitment.  In our  

 

21          written testimony, we highlight three of the  

 

22          Executive Budget proposals -- Early College  

 

23          High School funding increase, additional  

 

24          funding for prekindergarten in high-needs  
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 1          school districts, and transparency in  

 

 2          school-level funding -- all of which we think  

 

 3          are important, and I'd be happy to answer any  

 

 4          questions about. 

 

 5                 I wanted to take the limited time,  

 

 6          though, to focus on three additional issues  

 

 7          that we hope the Legislature chooses to  

 

 8          prioritize. 

 

 9                 First, improving equitable access to  

 

10          advanced courses.  Access to gatekeeper and  

 

11          advanced courses in middle and high school is  

 

12          essential to prepare all students for college  

 

13          careers and civic engagement.   

 

14                 Our data reveal that in a wide range  

 

15          of advanced courses like physics, calculus,  

 

16          Advanced Placement and International  

 

17          Baccalaureate courses, computer science,  

 

18          advanced foreign language and music,  

 

19          New York's education system is, on average,  

 

20          twice as likely to enroll white students and  

 

21          students who are not low-income as their  

 

22          black and Latino peers and their peers who  

 

23          are low-income. 

 

24                 This is both because students who are  
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 1          low-income and black and Latino students are  

 

 2          less likely to attend schools where these  

 

 3          courses are offered, and because even when  

 

 4          they do attend schools that have these  

 

 5          courses, they are less likely to be given  

 

 6          access. 

 

 7                 We and our partners in the New York  

 

 8          Equity Coalition have proposed four policy  

 

 9          solutions to address this crisis in 2020.  To  

 

10          focus on just one, our research found that  

 

11          school districts put in place unnecessary and  

 

12          inequitable barriers to advanced courses that  

 

13          disproportionately impact historically  

 

14          underserved groups of students.   

 

15                 To solve this, we believe the state  

 

16          should enable automatic enrollment in the  

 

17          next available advanced course for students  

 

18          who demonstrate readiness using one of  

 

19          multiple measures.  Families would always  

 

20          have the right to decline.  Other states have  

 

21          enacted their own automatic enrollment  

 

22          policies and are seeing powerful early  

 

23          results in both student participation and  

 

24          success. 
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 1                 Assembly Bill 9679 and Senate Bill  

 

 2          7600 include this provision as well as  

 

 3          another important provision on improved  

 

 4          information for parents and students, and it  

 

 5          would have a dramatic impact. 

 

 6                 Second, ending the overuse of  

 

 7          exclusionary discipline.  In 2017-2018,  

 

 8          schools suspended black students at more than  

 

 9          five times the rate of white students in  

 

10          New York City and more than four times the  

 

11          rate of white students outside of New York  

 

12          City.   

 

13                 Schools must take steps to support all  

 

14          students in the classroom, not push them out  

 

15          of it.  And we believe this is an important  

 

16          state policy and investment issue.  We  

 

17          strongly support the "Solutions, Not  

 

18          Suspensions" legislation. 

 

19                 And third, improving educator  

 

20          diversity.  All students should have access  

 

21          to educators who are well-prepared, supported  

 

22          and diverse.  In the 2018-2019 school year,  

 

23          56 percent of students in New York State were  

 

24          students of color, compared to 18 percent of  
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 1          teachers.  Nearly 10 percent of black and  

 

 2          Latino students were enrolled in schools with  

 

 3          no same-race or same-ethnicity teachers.  In  

 

 4          addition, nearly 350,000 white students  

 

 5          attended schools without a single teacher of  

 

 6          color.   

 

 7                 A comprehensive educator diversity  

 

 8          agenda should address preparation,  

 

 9          recruitment, and retention.  We strongly  

 

10          agree with the Board of Regents' request for  

 

11          an additional $3 million to expand the  

 

12          Teacher Opportunity Corps II program. 

 

13                 Thank you again for this opportunity  

 

14          to appear before you. 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

16                 We go to Assemblyman Benedetto for a  

 

17          question. 

 

18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you,  

 

19          Madam Chairman.   

 

20                 Miss Bartoletti, thank you for your  

 

21          testimony.  You mentioned in your testimony  

 

22          about us relooking at the whole authorization  

 

23          of charter schools, and you said in  

 

24          particular about the skimming. 
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 1                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  Yes. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Okay.  Well,  

 

 3          over the years -- and I am certainly no  

 

 4          cheerleader for the charter schools.  But  

 

 5          over the years, I've heard this charge but  

 

 6          I've never seen evidence that it does happen.   

 

 7          You make a charge here.  Do you have evidence  

 

 8          that this is indeed happening? 

 

 9                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  I think probably I  

 

10          could refer you to Mrs. Bott, who would love  

 

11          to come and spend some time with you.  We --  

 

12          she has seen this.  And I'm just looking here  

 

13          to see if in her testimony it actually does  

 

14          talk about it.   

 

15                 But we have -- we have an instrument  

 

16          that unfortunately we didn't have the  

 

17          resources to use.  It was developed probably  

 

18          18 years ago, shortly after the charter  

 

19          school bill went into effect, or law went  

 

20          into effect.  And we just -- it's an  

 

21          extensive monitoring instrument that would  

 

22          have looked at what goes on in the individual  

 

23          charter schools in the individual communities  

 

24          that our leagues are in.   
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 1                 We have had several evidence from --  

 

 2          and Marian I'm sure would be able to document  

 

 3          that for you -- from our local leagues that  

 

 4          talk about students that particularly, I  

 

 5          believe from Marian you would hear, in  

 

 6          New York City that there are numbers of  

 

 7          students that actually go into the charter  

 

 8          schools and for one reason or another they  

 

 9          are sent back to the public school because  

 

10          there aren't the resources, particularly if  

 

11          they're not language -- English language  

 

12          ready or if they have some disability, could  

 

13          be a -- and I shouldn't say simple -- could  

 

14          be as noted as dyslexia or any other learning  

 

15          disabilities.   

 

16                 But these children get -- as Marian, I  

 

17          think, actually quoted to me, they become  

 

18          tug-of-wars.  It's no, we don't -- we can't  

 

19          do this, no, you've got to go back here, no,  

 

20          we don't have the resources so you've got to  

 

21          go back here.  So these children often -- 

 

22                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  So it's not so  

 

23          much a skimming, a taking away children -- 

 

24                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  Well, that too. 
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 1                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  -- before. 

 

 2                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  There is that also. 

 

 3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  That's a  

 

 4          filtering you're telling me about. 

 

 5                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  Yes.  Yes.  And I  

 

 6          think there's a word that I think the  

 

 7          Governor used, I think Marian says in her  

 

 8          testimony -- the Governor used a different  

 

 9          word, but these kids get shuffled around  

 

10          because the charter has to keep up certain  

 

11          scores, test scores.  And so in order to do  

 

12          that, they do not seem -- appear, I should  

 

13          use the word appear -- to want children who  

 

14          are not proficient. 

 

15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Please.  I'll  

 

16          be very interested in seeing that. 

 

17                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  Yes, I will --  

 

18          Mrs. Bott will come see you. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you.   

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

21                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  You're very welcome.  

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Always good to  

 

23          see you, Barbara.  Thank you for being here. 

 

24                 MS. BARTOLETTI:  Good to see you too.   
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 1          Thank you.   

 

 2                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next we have  

 

 3          New York Immigration Coalition, Gamileh  

 

 4          Jamil, to be followed by Dyslexia Advocacy  

 

 5          Action Group, Helen Roussel, followed by  

 

 6          New York Association of School Psychologists. 

 

 7                 MS. JAMIL:  Hello, everyone.  Good  

 

 8          evening.  Thank you so much for this  

 

 9          opportunity.   

 

10                 My name is Gamileh Jamil.  I am the  

 

11          director of upstate advocacy for the New York  

 

12          Immigration Coalition.  And we are a  

 

13          coalition of over 200 organizations  

 

14          throughout New York State.   

 

15                 I've had the privilege of growing up  

 

16          and living in Western New York, and taking on  

 

17          this role, I've really seen the myriad  

 

18          disparities in education that also affect  

 

19          everything else in our upstate region and  

 

20          across the state. 

 

21                 New York Immigration Coalition, we  

 

22          held roundtables throughout the state, and  

 

23          Foundation Aid came up as one of the top five  

 

24          campaigns and concerns of immigrant  
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 1          communities throughout the state.  We held  

 

 2          roundtables in the North Country, to Long  

 

 3          Island, to Buffalo, to Rochester, et cetera.   

 

 4                 So just to highlight today, I really  

 

 5          wanted to highlight ELL, English language  

 

 6          learners and multi-language learners.  And  

 

 7          it's been really amazing stepping back and  

 

 8          listening to the conversations.  There's a  

 

 9          complex issue across the board, mental health  

 

10          to everything from our communities and  

 

11          graduation rates, et cetera.  And these  

 

12          disparities hit multiple communities just in  

 

13          different ways.   

 

14                 I really appreciated Mr. Little from  

 

15          the Rural Schools Association highlighting  

 

16          rural areas, because they mirror a lot of  

 

17          urban areas also.  And these are the  

 

18          communities that we directly work with.  And  

 

19          I just wanted to really highlight that this  

 

20          is a statewide concern and issue. 

 

21                 So New York Immigration Coalition has  

 

22          a long-standing history of convening  

 

23          community leaders from across New York State.   

 

24          A lot of our members work directly with  
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 1          marginalized immigrant communities.  So I  

 

 2          come today not just to represent New York  

 

 3          Immigration coalition, but I come here to  

 

 4          really represent the parents and the  

 

 5          students -- I've been working in healthcare  

 

 6          as a nurse -- from newborn and then across  

 

 7          the span of developing ESL and community  

 

 8          organizations and individuals. 

 

 9                 What I've seen is that education is  

 

10          the core for health, core for our communities  

 

11          to have good economic development, so  

 

12          actually when we do invest, people are  

 

13          prepared.  And the rise in the upstate Rust  

 

14          Belt specifically and alongside -- across the  

 

15          state, when we have ELL and MLL learners not  

 

16          having the adequate services and the  

 

17          education, it really impacts us all, but also  

 

18          impacts the families that have came here.   

 

19          Because in their mind, they're here for  

 

20          survival.  I've survived, I got here, I found  

 

21          a home, but now it's time to thrive.  And  

 

22          when you're in survival mode, it's really  

 

23          hard to shift into thriving.  So they don't  

 

24          have the capacity to come here to be  
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 1          advocates.   

 

 2                 And so I just want to really  

 

 3          acknowledge that I'm here today more so to  

 

 4          represent all those voices that do not have  

 

 5          the English language capacity to come here  

 

 6          and speak.  So I just really wanted to echo  

 

 7          that. 

 

 8                 New York Immigration Coalition leads  

 

 9          NY-AFFIRMs.  We wanted to find solutions.   

 

10          It's not about coming here and saying we need  

 

11          more money, we need to really fund Foundation  

 

12          Aid.  We understand that the voices also need  

 

13          to be part of the solution.   

 

14                 So part of NY-AFFIRMs, it's a recently  

 

15          formed coalition that brings New York State  

 

16          advocates alongside educators and  

 

17          administrators.  And to -- we meet, and this  

 

18          is -- again, we've highlighted key things.   

 

19          As active and committed immigrant rights  

 

20          groups and community-based organizations  

 

21          serving immigrant learners and their families  

 

22          in New York, we urge state leaders to fully  

 

23          fund the original Foundation Aid formula.  We  

 

24          are greatly worried about educational  
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 1          resource disparities because we know  

 

 2          firsthand how inadequate resources have  

 

 3          shortchanged our ELL communities.   

 

 4                 Collectively, we implore the state to  

 

 5          stop shortchanging our immigrant communities  

 

 6          and ELL learners, students who speak a  

 

 7          language other than English at home and  

 

 8          qualify to receive assistance to learn  

 

 9          English.  You only know what you know.  And  

 

10          when you have parents who do not speak the  

 

11          English language, it limits them to even  

 

12          knowing what resources are out there for  

 

13          their students.  They don't know how to  

 

14          advocate.  They don't how to fill out  

 

15          applications for their own children.  And  

 

16          this is really why you see the disparity in  

 

17          the dropout rates. 

 

18                 Failure to properly use the Foundation  

 

19          Aid formula has deprived New York's public  

 

20          schools of $3.8 billion.  That's what's owed  

 

21          in Foundation Aid.  While the Foundation Aid  

 

22          formula was created to address resource  

 

23          disparities, 71 percent of the money owed is  

 

24          to school districts with 40 percent or more  
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 1          black and Latinx, hamstringing districts in  

 

 2          meeting their educational obligations to  

 

 3          serve all students. 

 

 4                 The Foundation Aid is not only  

 

 5          important to comprehensively serve New York  

 

 6          ELLs, but to capture the holistic needs of  

 

 7          our immigrant communities.  According to the  

 

 8          Migrant Policy Institute, nearly one in four  

 

 9          New Yorkers is an immigrant -- one in four --  

 

10          and two out of five school-aged children have  

 

11          at least one or more foreign-born parents.   

 

12          Moreover, immigrant families and ELLs are  

 

13          racially, economically and academically  

 

14          diverse, representing 10 percent of New York  

 

15          State's student population. 

 

16                 (Time clock sounding.) 

 

17                 MS. JAMIL:  I'm done.  Thank you.   

 

18                 (Laughter.) 

 

19                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator Mayer. 

 

20                 SENATOR MAYER:  One, thank you very  

 

21          much for staying and making sure the voice of  

 

22          the immigrant community is heard in this  

 

23          conversation.  I appreciate that. 

 

24                 I also am very happy that you raised  
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 1          the issue of adult literacy education, which  

 

 2          has not been discussed today.  The Executive  

 

 3          Budget reduces the amount allocated to it.   

 

 4          You point out that it's the only source of  

 

 5          funding that requires at least 50 percent of  

 

 6          students in community-based English classes  

 

 7          be at the beginning level of English  

 

 8          literacy.   

 

 9                 And my experience is that this is --  

 

10          these programs are the programs of choice for  

 

11          new immigrants, who are super-anxious to  

 

12          learn English. 

 

13                 MS. JAMIL:  Yes. 

 

14                 SENATOR MAYER:  And that if we cut  

 

15          this funding, it really impairs their ability  

 

16          to get jobs, because they don't speak enough  

 

17          English to work outside of the home. 

 

18                 MS. JAMIL:  More so.  Even more -- I  

 

19          worked with developing an ELL program at a  

 

20          community organization, and the biggest thing  

 

21          was I want to learn English so I can go to  

 

22          the doctor's and take my children to school.   

 

23          Like they just wanted to communicate. 

 

24                 Part B is there's a huge fear of those  
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 1          who are immigrants that live in our nation  

 

 2          generally, within our state even more so.   

 

 3          It's in your face 24 hours a day that you are  

 

 4          not wanted, that you're not a citizen.  If  

 

 5          you do not speak the language, then you are  

 

 6          something that people should fear.   

 

 7                 And that is something of -- that's so  

 

 8          ingrained in the immigrant communities that  

 

 9          it doesn't allow them.   

 

10                 So being able to speak the language  

 

11          effectively allows you to participate in the  

 

12          community.  And I just wanted to really echo  

 

13          that it's more than just economic  

 

14          development, it's the essence of who we are  

 

15          as New Yorkers, that we empower people.  We  

 

16          don't want to be sitting here anymore.  We  

 

17          won't have the amount of advocacy that has to  

 

18          happen.  It surprises me that we are all  

 

19          intellectual individuals, we have the  

 

20          capacity, we have the money.  The solution is  

 

21          empowering people, and education is the  

 

22          empowerment. 

 

23                 SENATOR MAYER:  No, I totally agree.   

 

24          I think -- no, point well-taken.  But I just  
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 1          would encourage you to ensure there are other  

 

 2          voices on this adult literacy education  

 

 3          funding besides yours.  Because we went  

 

 4          through a whole day today, and it may have  

 

 5          been in people's written testimony, but no  

 

 6          one brought it up.  And it's absolutely  

 

 7          critical that we fight hard for this funding.   

 

 8                 So thank you for doing that. 

 

 9                 MS. JAMIL:  Thank you. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  I also just want  

 

11          to thank you, and highlight the point that  

 

12          you were bringing to us this late in the day  

 

13          is the entire history of the State of  

 

14          New York and much of this country, where  

 

15          our -- my grandparents came, they didn't  

 

16          speak any English.  The fact that they were  

 

17          able to learn English as they were raising  

 

18          their children meant they not only could  

 

19          participate in the community, they could go  

 

20          to school, participate as parents for their  

 

21          children, and participate in the economic  

 

22          opportunities that of course almost everyone  

 

23          who's here comes here for. 

 

24                 So you are making a plea that  
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 1          shouldn't have to be made, because if we  

 

 2          remember history, we remember that's exactly  

 

 3          the basis for the success of every community  

 

 4          who has ever come to this country. 

 

 5                 So thank you for being here with us  

 

 6          tonight. 

 

 7                 MS. JAMIL:  Thank you.  Thank you all. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

 9          Thank you for being here.     

 

10                 So next -- thank you.  Next we have  

 

11          Dyslexia Advocacy Action Group, Helen  

 

12          Roussel, followed by New York Association of  

 

13          School Psychologists, followed by a panel,  

 

14          New York State Council of Catholic School  

 

15          Superintendents and Agudath Israel of  

 

16          America. 

 

17                 MS. ROUSSEL:  Hello.  Hi.  My name's  

 

18          Helen Roussel.  And thank you all so much for  

 

19          your service.  And it's really great to be  

 

20          here.  I'm really nervous. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Don't be  

 

22          nervous. 

 

23                 MS. ROUSSEL:  And I'm representing  

 

24          Dyslexia Advocacy Action Group, which is a  
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 1          501(c)(3) organization.  What we do is we run  

 

 2          support groups for parents.  We organize  

 

 3          teacher training and support schools to  

 

 4          implement the science of reading in their  

 

 5          schools so that children actually have the  

 

 6          tools to learn how to read. 

 

 7                 Thirty-three states have literacy  

 

 8          legislations already, but New York doesn't  

 

 9          have any laws.  And states like Mississippi  

 

10          and Louisiana, just two years later, just two  

 

11          years after their legislations have been  

 

12          written into law, are seeing huge amounts of  

 

13          progress.   

 

14                 So they have the science of reading  

 

15          literacy laws, and two years later they are  

 

16          already seeing huge amounts of progress.   

 

17          More children in these states, whether they  

 

18          have dyslexia or not, are learning how to  

 

19          read as a result. 

 

20                 In New York in 2019, according in the  

 

21          Department of Education, more than half of  

 

22          general education students in eighth grade --  

 

23          that's 52 percent of young teenagers -- who  

 

24          speak English as a first language, struggle  
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 1          to read.  Of those, nearly a quarter are  

 

 2          functionally illiterate.  Functionally  

 

 3          illiterate means that they can't read medical  

 

 4          direction, they can't read street signs,  

 

 5          websites or newspapers.  These are children  

 

 6          with English as a first language. 

 

 7                 Spoken language is part of our  

 

 8          evolution.  Our brains evolved with the  

 

 9          ability to learn how to talk.  Speech is  

 

10          wired into our brains at a cellular level.   

 

11          Written language, however, the process of  

 

12          connecting a sound to a symbol, is very  

 

13          recent.   

 

14                 From MRI images and well-documented  

 

15          evidence, a bipartisan Congress agreed in  

 

16          2000 that in order to read, students need  

 

17          instruction that is phonics-based, explicit,  

 

18          and sequential to develop the cognitive  

 

19          skills they need to decode the patterns and  

 

20          nuances within our written language.  But the  

 

21          science is not making it into the classrooms.   

 

22                 It is not the fault of the teachers;  

 

23          they work so hard.  They are trained in a  

 

24          pedagogy that is based on unscientific  
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 1          theory.  Like most of them, the majority of  

 

 2          teachers are based -- have a reading theory  

 

 3          that isn't scientific at all.  They base  

 

 4          their theories on -- that children learn how  

 

 5          to read the same way they learn how to speak,  

 

 6          which as we know from science is incorrect.   

 

 7          That is not how children learn how to read. 

 

 8                 They think that reading can be  

 

 9          self-taught.  They instruct -- it's the  

 

10          colleges and universities that promote this  

 

11          kind of pedagogy.  And it's just -- we can  

 

12          see from the results that it just isn't  

 

13          working.  And there's no -- there's no kind  

 

14          of -- you know, there's no responsibility.   

 

15          No one takes responsibility for that, for the  

 

16          courses that the teachers are taught, which  

 

17          is really unfair for the teachers as well. 

 

18                 So basically, they're instructed to  

 

19          guess unknown vocabulary by looking at  

 

20          pictures, guessing the clues in the context  

 

21          and stuff like that.  But this falls over,  

 

22          though, this kind of methodology falls over  

 

23          when passages becomes more complex and there  

 

24          are no picture clues.   
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 1                 So not teaching reading explicitly is  

 

 2          the root of the problem.  And unfortunately,  

 

 3          a lot of really -- many, many schools have  

 

 4          these programs in their schools.  So teachers  

 

 5          actually aren't taught how to teach reading  

 

 6          in science-based way, so they just can't  

 

 7          teach it.   

 

 8                 And it's very frustrating, as I've  

 

 9          seen in a lot of my workshops.  I have  

 

10          administrators come, I have teachers -- they  

 

11          ask me, So how do they learn?  And they're  

 

12          writing notes, you know, they're taking  

 

13          notes.  I mean, this can't be happening.   

 

14                 And I heard about all the money and  

 

15          funding and everything, and it's all -- the  

 

16          root of the problem is in our teacher  

 

17          training universities and colleges.   

 

18                 Through advocacy, I've helped children  

 

19          and teenagers who have suffered untreated  

 

20          dyslexia for years at their public schools.   

 

21          Most have never received any explicit  

 

22          instruction.  The majority have been in  

 

23          crisis with derailed confidence and years of  

 

24          lost education impacting their mental health  
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 1          and self-esteem.  It's a huge mental health  

 

 2          issue. 

 

 3                 And some of them, when they finally  

 

 4          get remediation, they ask, Well, why didn't  

 

 5          somebody just tell me that?  Why didn't  

 

 6          somebody tell me that years ago?   

 

 7                 So I've only got through half of it,  

 

 8          but I have loads of data.  Let me just give  

 

 9          you the data, which you may not know, and  

 

10          it's pretty shocking.  Eighty percent of  

 

11          school dropouts can't read.  Eighty percent  

 

12          of youths before courts can't read.  Seventy  

 

13          to 85 percent of people in prison can't read.   

 

14          Forty-eight percent of people in prison have  

 

15          dyslexia.  And three out of four people on  

 

16          welfare can't read.   

 

17                 And I know you guys really want to  

 

18          help the situation, and I'm saying there is a  

 

19          huge crisis in New York -- and actually  

 

20          nationally.  But some states have already  

 

21          adopted legislations.  But it's a big  

 

22          cultural issue. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  We  

 

24          have a question for you, so maybe some  
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 1          more -- Assemblyman Benedetto. 

 

 2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you for  

 

 3          being here.  And thank you for your  

 

 4          testimony.   

 

 5                 And I think you've come here at the  

 

 6          right time in history, if you want to put it  

 

 7          a little dramatically, because I think the  

 

 8          realization of dyslexia and what it is --  

 

 9          dyslexia and the early diagnosis of dyslexia  

 

10          is so important in the education process.   

 

11                 Your group, I know you have a  

 

12          proposal, a rather detailed proposal of how  

 

13          to get it.  It has crossed our desks.  And it  

 

14          has, before you entered this chamber here  

 

15          today, piqued our interest in it.   

 

16                 I don't know how long you've been here  

 

17          today, but if you heard some of the questions  

 

18          that were put before Chancellor Carranza  

 

19          today, many of them focused in on dyslexia,  

 

20          early diagnosis, how to come up with a  

 

21          program to do it, laws in other states.   

 

22                 We are getting there.  And I am very  

 

23          interested in your proposal and would like  

 

24          sometime in the future to sit down and  
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 1          discuss it, as we are trying to move ahead in  

 

 2          this particular area for the benefit of all  

 

 3          the kids and all the challenges that dyslexia  

 

 4          has. 

 

 5                 MS. ROUSSEL:  Great.  Because what it  

 

 6          will do -- what I was going to say, actually,  

 

 7          is the way to save money on this as well,  

 

 8          because there's a ridiculous amount of money  

 

 9          that gets spent -- and the bureaucracy of  

 

10          getting a child into special education.   

 

11                 And on the second, I think, or third  

 

12          page, there's actually a policy that  

 

13          New York -- that schools use to stop children  

 

14          from getting evaluated.  So if they are  

 

15          underprivileged children, you actually don't  

 

16          even have to evaluate them.  So then there's  

 

17          thousands and thousands of children out there  

 

18          that haven't been evaluated.   

 

19                 And I saw this.  I kept seeing parents  

 

20          coming to our workshops saying, no, they're  

 

21          refusing to evaluate my child and they can't  

 

22          read, they're in ninth grade, they're reading  

 

23          at a first-grade level.  And, you know, they  

 

24          won't go to school now, now they're shut down  
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 1          and they're refusing to go to school, what do  

 

 2          I do?   

 

 3                 And I say, Hang on a minute.  They  

 

 4          have to be evaluated.  And they say, No, they  

 

 5          don't.  And then there's the policy right  

 

 6          there.  They don't even have to be evaluated.   

 

 7          You can just let a child just sit there until  

 

 8          their behavior spirals out of control, and  

 

 9          now they're in front of the social worker,  

 

10          now they get into trouble and now they've  

 

11          dropped out.   

 

12                 And there's a way -- I mean, if you --  

 

13          just like all this screening stuff.  If  

 

14          you -- all you have to do is ask the parent:   

 

15          Has anyone had any reading issues in your  

 

16          family?  I mean, there's a screener right  

 

17          there, free.  It's just a question.   

 

18                 And you can see almost pretty much  

 

19          straightaway when a child is going to  

 

20          struggle if you start teaching phonics in  

 

21          your classroom.  And then you can get those  

 

22          children into a small group and just  

 

23          remediate them in small groups.  You don't  

 

24          have to refer them to special education.  you  
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 1          know, they can just be remediated right there  

 

 2          in small groups.  And then they'll never need  

 

 3          an IEP. 

 

 4                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you.   

 

 5                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

 6          being here and staying here to this point.   

 

 7          Thank you. 

 

 8                 Next we have the New York Association  

 

 9          of School Psychologists, Kelly Caci, followed  

 

10          by New York State Council of Catholic School  

 

11          Superintendents and Agudath Israel, followed  

 

12          by Westchester Putnam School Boards  

 

13          Association. 

 

14                 Please. 

 

15                 MS. CACI:  Good evening.  I appreciate  

 

16          the opportunity to join you tonight to  

 

17          provide testimony. 

 

18                 My name is Kelly Caci.  I am a New  

 

19          York State certified school psychologist.  I  

 

20          serve on the executive board of the New York  

 

21          Association of School Psychologists.  I'm  

 

22          also a practitioner.  I work in the Newburgh  

 

23          Enlarged City School District, and I provide  

 

24          services on a daily basis to 500 elementary  
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 1          students. 

 

 2                 I wanted to join you tonight to talk  

 

 3          about the important work of school  

 

 4          psychologists.  Each day I work with students  

 

 5          providing mental health services, conducting  

 

 6          evaluations, responding to crisis, and  

 

 7          consulting with teachers and parents.  My  

 

 8          typical day might include providing  

 

 9          counseling services, assessing for suicidal  

 

10          ideation and risk, helping parents access  

 

11          community supports, taking part in developing  

 

12          intervention plans for students, and  

 

13          consulting with teachers on how to better  

 

14          meet student needs. 

 

15                 In addition, I facilitate  

 

16          building-wide supportive programs for my  

 

17          students such as positive behavior  

 

18          interventions and support programs, a  

 

19          weekend-food backpack program, and I also  

 

20          conduct push-in social skills lessons in  

 

21          classrooms. 

 

22                 School psychologists are uniquely  

 

23          trained in both education and psychology, and  

 

24          our work is important in the educational and  
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 1          emotional social functioning and outcomes of  

 

 2          our students, where we focus on both  

 

 3          prevention and intervention.  Our training  

 

 4          not only includes expertise in assessment,  

 

 5          but also in providing therapy to students, in  

 

 6          consultation with teachers and parents.   

 

 7          Additionally, we also have training in  

 

 8          program evaluation.   

 

 9                 All these skills are necessary in  

 

10          providing comprehensive educational and  

 

11          mental health services to our students, as  

 

12          well as collaborating with various  

 

13          stakeholders both in and outside of schools. 

 

14                 As Senator Mayer said earlier today,  

 

15          we need more direct mental health services in  

 

16          our schools.  More funding directed to  

 

17          school-employed clinicians such as school  

 

18          psychologists would allow more service  

 

19          provision to students outside the special  

 

20          education system. 

 

21                 Given the specific skill set of school  

 

22          psychologists, I believe we are an invaluable  

 

23          resource who can provide significant  

 

24          contributions in establishing mental health  

 

 



                                                                   597 

 

 1          professional learning communities in our  

 

 2          schools.  I also believe that given our  

 

 3          specific training and skills, school  

 

 4          psychologists should be included in the  

 

 5          Master Teacher and Counselor Awards.   

 

 6                 While it is laudable to encourage high  

 

 7          schoolers to pursue professions in the mental  

 

 8          health field, direct services are necessary  

 

 9          now to meet immediate needs.  The licensure  

 

10          of school psychologists would also enable us  

 

11          to work outside of schools and infuse trained  

 

12          and experienced practitioners to provide  

 

13          needed mental health services in the  

 

14          community. 

 

15                 Schools have become the de facto  

 

16          mental health providers for children, and  

 

17          school psychologists interface daily with  

 

18          students who require support through therapy  

 

19          and crisis response.  Additionally, we also  

 

20          provide training and consultation to both  

 

21          teachers and parents in relation to student  

 

22          mental health needs.   

 

23                 Given the fact that we provide these  

 

24          necessary services on a daily basis, I  
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 1          request that the Executive and the  

 

 2          Legislature recognize school psychologists as  

 

 3          mental health providers and include us as key  

 

 4          players in the state plans to address the  

 

 5          mental health crisis in New York State. 

 

 6                 Thank you. 

 

 7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BENEDETTO:  Thank you.   

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We don't have  

 

11          any questions at this time.  Thank you for  

 

12          being here. 

 

13                 MS. CACI:  Thank you. 

 

14                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  We have your  

 

15          written testimony. 

 

16                 Next we have James Cultrara, New York  

 

17          State Council of Catholic School  

 

18          Superintendents, and Rabbi Yeruchim Silber,  

 

19          Agudath Israel of America, as a panel.   

 

20                 And a reminder, as we remind  

 

21          everybody, we have your written testimony, so  

 

22          summarize the key points.   

 

23                 I think Jim, you're first. 

 

24                 MR. CULTRARA:  Thank you very much.   
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 1                 On behalf of the New York State  

 

 2          Council of Catholic School Superintendents, I  

 

 3          cannot overstate our gratitude on behalf of  

 

 4          the Catholic school community to each of you,  

 

 5          not only in your roles as chair and members  

 

 6          of these education and fiscal committees, but  

 

 7          as individual elected members, for your  

 

 8          support of the numerous state-funded programs  

 

 9          that benefit our Catholic schools and all  

 

10          religious and independent schools, and for  

 

11          your ongoing attention to the increasing  

 

12          needs that we face. 

 

13                 I want to highlight just six of those  

 

14          needs. 

 

15                 Again, thank you for Chapter 347,  

 

16          enacted two years ago, that helped to  

 

17          stabilize the Mandated Services Aid program  

 

18          and would have, if it were implemented,  

 

19          averted a cut in reimbursement rate to our  

 

20          schools.  However, it's not being  

 

21          implemented, because the State Education  

 

22          Department expresses a need for clarification  

 

23          or a technical amendment, so our schools have  

 

24          endured a cut in their reimbursement rate.   
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 1                 And we're urging you to work with the  

 

 2          State Education Department to implement that  

 

 3          technical amendment. 

 

 4                 Health, safety and security funds.   

 

 5          We're enormously grateful.  Unfortunately, we  

 

 6          have a need for ongoing health, safety and  

 

 7          security.  And more schools have -- or some  

 

 8          schools have more of a need to continue to  

 

 9          harden, quote, unquote, harden their schools.   

 

10          But I want to reflect on what Chancellor  

 

11          Carranza said this morning.  Some schools can  

 

12          do all the hardening they want, and until you  

 

13          address the student climate, you're not  

 

14          getting at some of the critical needs.   

 

15                 So the Council of Catholic School  

 

16          Superintendents is urging additional  

 

17          flexibility for the use of those funds for  

 

18          pupil health and mental health needs, as Bob  

 

19          Lowry of the Superintendents Council said --  

 

20          their superintendents and our  

 

21          superintendents are seeing increased need for  

 

22          mental health workers -- as well as to use  

 

23          those funds for criminal history checks of  

 

24          prospective employees and the remediation of  
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 1          health and safety hazards.   

 

 2                 For instance, we can use those funds  

 

 3          to test our water supply to see if the  

 

 4          drinking fountain has a lead-based fixture,  

 

 5          but we can't remediate and purchase a new  

 

 6          drinking fountain with those funds.   

 

 7                 So increased flexibility.  We're  

 

 8          seeking the doubling of those funds as well. 

 

 9                 The STEM program, an enormous shot in  

 

10          the arm for our schools.  We are grateful for  

 

11          the STEM investment in STEM instruction in  

 

12          our schools.  The Catholic schools received  

 

13          approximately half of those funds.  We're  

 

14          enormously grateful, enormously grateful to  

 

15          the Governor for proposing another increase. 

 

16                 It should be noted that out of the  

 

17          current level of 30 million, of the 5 million  

 

18          that was there in the first year, $90 million  

 

19          in applications came.  So ultimately we're  

 

20          hoping for a $100 million program to meet the  

 

21          demands of that program. 

 

22                 Capital needs and energy efficiency.   

 

23          Unlike our public school counterparts, our  

 

24          schools don't have access to Building Aid,  
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 1          tax levy authority, or being able to issue  

 

 2          bonds, yet we still have the same capital and  

 

 3          energy efficiency needs that our public  

 

 4          school counterparts have.   

 

 5                 The Trinity Lutheran case before the  

 

 6          Supreme Court several years ago opens the  

 

 7          door for secular support of religious  

 

 8          institutions.  We're asking for some funding  

 

 9          for critical capital needs such as roof  

 

10          repairs, boiler replacements, some structural  

 

11          repairs -- without which our schools will  

 

12          close, because they can't raise the money to  

 

13          meet those capital needs.   

 

14                 Likewise, energy efficiency projects  

 

15          not only will reduce the cost of running  

 

16          those facilities, but when we implement  

 

17          energy efficiency, it actually reduces the  

 

18          overall burden on all ratepayers.  So it  

 

19          helps all ratepayers in general.   

 

20                 And the last point is on  

 

21          transportation.  Because of the significant  

 

22          closure of Catholic schools around the state,  

 

23          some of our dioceses are now paying for their  

 

24          own buses to provide transportation beyond  
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 1          the 15 miles that would have been provided by  

 

 2          the local public school.  In other words, we  

 

 3          have more and more parents who are living  

 

 4          beyond the 15 miles because we have Catholic  

 

 5          schools that have closed.  They're paying for  

 

 6          transportation.   

 

 7                 Our dioceses, however, as you know,  

 

 8          are facing numerous lawsuits and they won't  

 

 9          be able to afford to pay for those buses.   

 

10          And those few buses that they're paying for,  

 

11          it will be very cheap for you to help support  

 

12          those buses.  If these buses aren't there,  

 

13          those parents are going to have to send their  

 

14          kids to public school, and you'll be paying  

 

15          so much more to educate those kids.   

 

16                 So we're asking for a pilot program  

 

17          for transportation-grants reimbursement to  

 

18          our schools. 

 

19                 One last thing.  Senator Mayer, thank  

 

20          you for acknowledging the need for training  

 

21          of our administrators to implement the Red  

 

22          Flag Law.  We need that as well. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

24                 Yeruchim? 
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 1                 RABBI SILBER:  Good evening.  I must  

 

 2          say I admire all of your perseverance being  

 

 3          here long hours.   

 

 4                 My name is Yeruchim Silber.  I  

 

 5          represent Agudath Israel of America,  

 

 6          obviously advocating for the nonpublic  

 

 7          schools.   

 

 8                 As I indicated in my written  

 

 9          testimony, nonpublic schools save the state  

 

10          about $9 billion annually, and the Jewish  

 

11          schools portion approximately about  

 

12          $3.5 billion.   

 

13                 In my testimony last year I discussed  

 

14          the guidelines that had been introduced by  

 

15          former SED Commissioner Elia in November  

 

16          2018.  Those guidelines were extremely rigid  

 

17          in their one-size-fits-all approach to  

 

18          equivalency.  In March 2019, a consortium of  

 

19          school groups filed suit in State Supreme  

 

20          Court challenging these guidelines.  Then  

 

21          last April, the court declared the guidelines  

 

22          null and void as a violation of SAPA, ruling  

 

23          that the guidelines were actually  

 

24          regulations, which according to SAPA require  
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 1          a formal comment period.   

 

 2                 Last July, SED proposed new  

 

 3          regulations which call for a 60-day comment  

 

 4          period.  During that period the state  

 

 5          received over 140,000 comments, almost all in  

 

 6          opposition, an unprecedented amount for state  

 

 7          regulations.  Comments came from parents,  

 

 8          yeshiva graduates, and many other  

 

 9          individuals.   

 

10                 Besides the comments from individuals,  

 

11          the department also received a substantial  

 

12          number of comments from official  

 

13          organizations as well as elected officials,  

 

14          which I've highlighted in my written  

 

15          testimony.   

 

16                 This review was originally prompted by  

 

17          a group alleging, to the New York City DOE,  

 

18          that 39 schools did not offer education that  

 

19          was substantially equivalent to public  

 

20          schools.  The group has claimed to represent  

 

21          a silent majority of yeshiva parents and  

 

22          graduates, but during the comment period the  

 

23          silent majority had their opportunity to  

 

24          speak and were barely able to muster 2,000  
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 1          comments, in contrast to the over 140,000  

 

 2          comments in opposition.   

 

 3                 Nevertheless, based upon the original  

 

 4          complaint, DOE did investigate, and this past  

 

 5          December Schools Chancellor Carranza  

 

 6          summarized the DOE findings in a letter to  

 

 7          Interim SED Commissioner Tahoe.  Of the  

 

 8          original 39 schools, 11 were out of the scope  

 

 9          of inquiry, including one that was actually a  

 

10          butcher shop.  For the remaining 28 schools,  

 

11          the DOE report found that 23 of the 28 were  

 

12          substantially equivalent, well-developed or  

 

13          on the way to developing substantial  

 

14          equivalency.   

 

15                 The letter acknowledges that a strong  

 

16          argument has been made that Judaic studies  

 

17          can be a powerful context in which to  

 

18          cultivate critical thinking and textual  

 

19          analysis skills.  The chancellor also praised  

 

20          the development of secular curriculum made  

 

21          available to yeshivas, and he strongly  

 

22          encouraged these efforts to continue.   

 

23                 The are approximately 275 yeshivas in  

 

24          New York City.  The complainants identified  
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 1          presumably the weakest 39, of which only 28  

 

 2          were actually schools that fell into that  

 

 3          category.  And out of those 28, only five of  

 

 4          them were found to be underdeveloped in  

 

 5          demonstrating or providing evidence of  

 

 6          substantial equivalence.   

 

 7                 And so, honored members of the  

 

 8          committees, I ask you, if the available data  

 

 9          shows that less than 2 percent of the  

 

10          yeshivas in New York City aren't developed,  

 

11          is there a need to completely overhaul 1800  

 

12          private schools across New York State?   

 

13                 Yesterday the Board of Regents agreed  

 

14          to reengage with stakeholders to find a  

 

15          common ground on this issue.  We agree with  

 

16          that approach and stand ready to work with  

 

17          the Regents and members of the Legislature to  

 

18          find pathways that focus on real educational  

 

19          results.   

 

20                 Please see my written testimony for  

 

21          details on this.   

 

22                 On the issue of funding, really Jim  

 

23          covered most of it, so I'm not going to  

 

24          really reiterate.  I basically agree with  
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 1          everything he said.   

 

 2                 But let me say, contrary to what many  

 

 3          imply, nonpublic schools receive virtually no  

 

 4          funding for direct education, except for the  

 

 5          small STEM grant.  The vast majority is for  

 

 6          mandated services or other ancillary services  

 

 7          like security, school lunches, transportation  

 

 8          and the like.   

 

 9                 In my written testimony I enumerate  

 

10          the funding request, which our main asks this  

 

11          year include increased security funding and  

 

12          restoration of the immunization  

 

13          record-keeping mandate.   

 

14                 Thank you again for this opportunity  

 

15          to testify, and we hope we can together  

 

16          achieve positive results for all  

 

17          schoolchildren across the state.   

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Senate John Liu. 

 

19                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you, Madam Chair.   

 

20                 Thank you, Rabbi Silber, for your  

 

21          testimony, as always. 

 

22                 Do you remain dissatisfied with what  

 

23          the SED is doing? 

 

24                 RABBI SILBER:  I'm sorry?  I didn't  
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 1          get that.   

 

 2                 SENATOR LIU:  Do you remain  

 

 3          dissatisfied with what the State Education  

 

 4          Department is doing?   

 

 5                 RABBI SILBER:  Well, right now we  

 

 6          don't know what they're doing.  They  

 

 7          announced yesterday they're going to  

 

 8          reengage, they called it.  We're willing and  

 

 9          able to reengage, and we'll see where the  

 

10          process goes.  But we hope we can get  

 

11          together our educators, their educators, and  

 

12          really come to common grounds to find results  

 

13          that work for all. 

 

14                 SENATOR LIU:  So you're not really  

 

15          happy where they are right now, because  

 

16          you're looking for common ground. 

 

17                 RABBI SILBER:  Well, right now  

 

18          they're -- they're -- no, they proposed  

 

19          regulations.  The regulations will not be  

 

20          implemented as proposed.  And they're looking  

 

21          to reengage with stakeholders.  So we don't  

 

22          know where they are right now.  We're  

 

23          hoping -- again, we're hoping to work with  

 

24          them, to engage with them, to be part of the  
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 1          process and come to an agreement that we can  

 

 2          all be satisfied with, both our schools, SED,  

 

 3          members of the Legislature, the Board of  

 

 4          Regents.  That's our goal. 

 

 5                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  Thank you, Rabbi. 

 

 6                 Mr. Cultrara, I don't think you  

 

 7          testified about the substantial equivalency  

 

 8          issue, did you? 

 

 9                 MR. CULTRARA:  I included it briefly  

 

10          in the written testimony under the title of  

 

11          SORIS, the State Office of Religious and  

 

12          Independent Schools.   

 

13                 We believe that the authority for  

 

14          oversight of religious and independent  

 

15          schools rests solely with the State Education  

 

16          Department, not local school authorities.   

 

17          And the increased funding that we're asking  

 

18          for the SORIS office would help to allow them  

 

19          to carry out additional responsibilities,  

 

20          including the need for any substantial  

 

21          equivalency review that may be necessary. 

 

22                 The Council of Catholic School  

 

23          Superintendents is grateful to the Board of  

 

24          Regents and the department in what appears to  
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 1          be a rejection of the department's earlier  

 

 2          proposal.  And we think they're going to  

 

 3          change direction on those regulations.  And  

 

 4          we're glad that they're going to reengage all  

 

 5          stakeholders for the sake of not only the  

 

 6          academic needs of all kids, but in respect of  

 

 7          the independence of our schools. 

 

 8                 SENATOR LIU:  And so your council was  

 

 9          also not particularly pleased with the  

 

10          initial draft? 

 

11                 MR. CULTRARA:  "Not particularly  

 

12          pleased" is an understatement. 

 

13                 (Laughter.) 

 

14                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay.  Really ticked  

 

15          off. 

 

16                 MR. CULTRARA:  It was a significant  

 

17          overreach, and is why our council filed a  

 

18          lawsuit. 

 

19                 SENATOR LIU:  Okay, thank you. 

 

20                 Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

22                 Assemblyman Otis. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Briefly, and you  

 

24          actually maybe don't even need to comment on  
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 1          this.   

 

 2                 On the substantial equivalency  

 

 3          original proposal, the perspective of the  

 

 4          public school school superintendents that I'm  

 

 5          in contact with were uniformly against the  

 

 6          program that had those superintendents going  

 

 7          into private and parochial schools and  

 

 8          providing an oversight function.   

 

 9                 And Jim, I would agree with your  

 

10          comment, it really -- if there's something to  

 

11          be done, it's the job of SED, not getting  

 

12          local public school superintendents involved  

 

13          in this process. 

 

14                 So you agree, you don't need to  

 

15          comment, but I wanted to get that on the  

 

16          record.   

 

17                 Thank you.   

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

19                 Senator Krueger. 

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Hi.  Good  

 

21          evening.   

 

22                 Rabbi, last year you testified that  

 

23          the yeshiva schools had a higher Regents exam  

 

24          score than others.  So this year I'm looking  
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 1          at your testimony -- 

 

 2                 RABBI SILBER:  It's in there again. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Sorry? 

 

 4                 RABBI SILBER:  It's in there again  

 

 5          this year. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  So there are  

 

 7          700 -- there are a total of 400 high schools  

 

 8          that are yeshivas in New York State? 

 

 9                 RABBI SILBER:  Yes, I believe so. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  I'm reading that  

 

11          it's 275 in the city, 400 in the state.   

 

12                 How many of them actually do Regents  

 

13          tests?   

 

14                 RABBI SILBER:  I don't have the exact  

 

15          amount.  But a significant number do the  

 

16          Regents.  I had a group today, for example,  

 

17          of -- I don't think there are any of them  

 

18          here.  I had a group of 23 school  

 

19          representatives, 23 schools in the  

 

20          Long Island area.  All -- they all provide  

 

21          Regents, almost all of them.  So again, I  

 

22          don't have the exact number.  I can provide  

 

23          that if you like, I can get that number. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Yes, if you could  

 

 



                                                                   614 

 

 1          get me the number of Regents tests that your  

 

 2          schools provide and the scores on those  

 

 3          tests, that would be very appreciated. 

 

 4                 RABBI SILBER:  Okay.  It may -- I  

 

 5          mean, I don't have -- it may take a while for  

 

 6          a FOIL request, but I will try to get it for  

 

 7          you.  We will try and get that information. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

 9                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

10          Thank you both for staying here so late. 

 

11                 MR. CULTRARA:  Thanks to you as well. 

 

12                 RABBI SILBER:  Thank you. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next we have  

 

14          the Westchester Putnam School Boards  

 

15          Association and Administrators and Lower  

 

16          Hudson Education Coalition, all contained by  

 

17          Karen Belanger. 

 

18                 MS. BELANGER:  Yes, thank you very  

 

19          much, Madam Chairwoman.   

 

20                 I'm Karen Belanger.  I am -- my day  

 

21          job, shall we say, is the executive director  

 

22          of Westchester Putnam School Boards  

 

23          Association.  I am actually here on behalf of  

 

24          the Lower Hudson Education Coalition, which  
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 1          is a joint project of the Westchester Putnam  

 

 2          School Boards Association, the Rockland  

 

 3          County School Boards Association, the  

 

 4          Dutchess County School Boards Association,  

 

 5          and the Lower Hudson Council of School  

 

 6          Superintendents.   

 

 7                 So on behalf of the LHEC, we do  

 

 8          greatly appreciate New York State's steadfast  

 

 9          support of public education.  Our schools  

 

10          play a critical role in the academic, arts,  

 

11          athletics, social-emotional, and civics  

 

12          learning of the young people throughout the  

 

13          state.   

 

14                 We'd just like to bring your attention  

 

15          to some key public education issues related  

 

16          to the Executive Budget.   

 

17                 So I will not repeat what many of my  

 

18          compatriots have said during the day about  

 

19          the lack of adequacy of funding in the state  

 

20          aid formula, both in Foundation Aid and in  

 

21          the total aid package that has been provided.   

 

22                 I would just like you to note that  

 

23          this is -- we are now living in an era where  

 

24          tax cap increases are limited.  Especially  
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 1          with the CPI base rate this year  

 

 2          calculating -- starting the calculation of  

 

 3          the formula at only 1.81 percent, it is very  

 

 4          difficult for school districts to add funds  

 

 5          from the tax levy.  So the combination of low  

 

 6          state aid and a tight tax levy cap will put  

 

 7          school districts in a very difficult bind.   

 

 8                 Let me tell you a little bit about how  

 

 9          in particular this is likely to affect our  

 

10          districts.  Once again, we found that our  

 

11          region is targeted with limited increases.   

 

12          Fifty-five percent of LHEC districts -- I  

 

13          represent 77 school districts -- receive the  

 

14          minimum increase of .25 percent in Foundation  

 

15          Aid.  That was once the package of  

 

16          expense-based aids was added into the  

 

17          Foundation Aid bucket, which we absolutely  

 

18          oppose as well, for many of the reasons  

 

19          you've heard today. 

 

20                 I just want to make it clear that once  

 

21          we removed those expense-based aids from the  

 

22          Foundation Aid projections for next year, our  

 

23          region also continues to lag the state in the  

 

24          full funding of Foundation Aid.  Over half of  
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 1          the Lower Hudson districts are expected to  

 

 2          receive less than 80 percent of full funding,  

 

 3          whereas only 27 percent of New York State  

 

 4          districts will be in that category. 

 

 5                 Only 9 percent of districts in  

 

 6          New York State will be funded at less than  

 

 7          60 percent of the original formula, whereas  

 

 8          30 percent of LHEC districts will receive  

 

 9          less than 60 percent of what the formula  

 

10          requires. 

 

11                 So we do strongly urge you to update  

 

12          the data used in the Foundation Aid formula,  

 

13          including the updated cost factors, the  

 

14          inadequate poverty measure, and of course  

 

15          properly reflecting the changing student  

 

16          demographics and the actual expense of  

 

17          operating in a high-cost region adjacent to  

 

18          New York City.   

 

19                 We were very appreciative of the work  

 

20          that was done this year in terms of the  

 

21          Foundation Aid roundtables and bringing this  

 

22          issue to the forefront of everybody's mind.   

 

23          And we absolutely call for the revision of  

 

24          the formula, but at the very least updating  
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 1          the data points in there and, of course,  

 

 2          fully funding Foundation Aid. 

 

 3                 We are -- again, similar to many of  

 

 4          the reasons you've heard today -- not happy  

 

 5          about the proposals regarding Building and  

 

 6          Transportation Aid, so I will leave that one  

 

 7          aside for you to read about.   

 

 8                 The -- we also -- I just want to bring  

 

 9          up that I found the proposal to push back  

 

10          18.42 percent of the state share of CSE costs  

 

11          for residential placements back onto local  

 

12          school districts to be a particularly  

 

13          not-nice, I'm sorry, attack on our most  

 

14          neediest students. 

 

15                 Speaking of our most neediest  

 

16          students, I represent six out of the 10  

 

17          statewide Special Acts school districts.  And  

 

18          Senator Mayer brought it up with the New York  

 

19          State School Boards Association earlier, but  

 

20          they are very much advocating to have some  

 

21          better sensible -- more sensible rate-setting  

 

22          process, to be allowed to have reserve funds  

 

23          and a greater flexibility in the use of their  

 

24          funds.   
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 1                 There are bills in front of you from  

 

 2          Senator Mayer and Assemblyman Benedetto on  

 

 3          both the issues of reserve funds and the use  

 

 4          of interim plus rates, plus a bill that is in  

 

 5          front of you from Senator Harckham and  

 

 6          Assemblyman Abinanti on the cost screens, the  

 

 7          use of flexibility in the use of funds.   

 

 8                 I would urge you to look at them.  I  

 

 9          would urge you to pass them.  And I would  

 

10          also note that they actually have no impact  

 

11          on the New York State budget, so you can  

 

12          absolutely vote for those with a clear  

 

13          conscience, knowing that it will cost you no  

 

14          additional funds. 

 

15                 On behalf of all of our taxpayers, who  

 

16          very heavily fund the districts in our area,  

 

17          I also want to say we are still suffering  

 

18          from the lack of a SALT deduction.  We're not  

 

19          crazy about the changes in STAR.  And we  

 

20          desperately need help with mental health  

 

21          funding for our student needs. 

 

22                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblyman Ra. 

 

23                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Good evening.  Thank  

 

24          you.  I -- just quickly, you mentioned it  
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 1          here about the BOCES Aid, and one of my big  

 

 2          concerns.  Our conference had done something  

 

 3          called the Learn for Work Task force during  

 

 4          the fall, and we had some members who  

 

 5          traveled around the state and heard from  

 

 6          different BOCES superintendents.  And they  

 

 7          heard on Long Island something I've heard a  

 

 8          number of times on Long Island about, you  

 

 9          know, frustrations from BOCES that not every  

 

10          kid who should go there necessarily gets to  

 

11          because of the cost.   

 

12                 And I feel like that is going to be an  

 

13          increasing problem if this goes through,  

 

14          because would you agree that rolling this  

 

15          into the Foundation formula has the potential  

 

16          to create really a disincentive for districts  

 

17          to send students to BOCES, even though that  

 

18          may be the best place for them to go? 

 

19                 MS. BELANGER:  Absolutely.  I think  

 

20          that we really have to look -- you know, in  

 

21          our area we have everything from very small  

 

22          K-8 districts right through the City of  

 

23          Yonkers.  And so we find that not only do we  

 

24          have districts that send special needs  
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 1          students to the BOCES, they send kids to the  

 

 2          BOCES for career and technical education, but  

 

 3          we also extensively -- many of our districts  

 

 4          use the Regional Information Centers for  

 

 5          technology support, a lot of professional  

 

 6          development services that they provide for  

 

 7          our members.  And some of our smaller  

 

 8          districts even use them for management  

 

 9          services and operational services as well. 

 

10                 So yes, this would be something that  

 

11          is absolutely devastating to our districts.   

 

12          And as I noted, given so many of our  

 

13          districts only receive a minimum increase in  

 

14          Foundation Aid, as soon as those aids are  

 

15          kind of plopped in there into that one  

 

16          bucket, if that bucket doesn't continue to  

 

17          grow along with the expenses of BOCES, it's  

 

18          going to make it very difficult. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you. 

 

20                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Senator Mayer. 

 

21                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you, Karen, for  

 

22          waiting so long.   

 

23                 And thank you for forming a new group  

 

24          that represents a broader geographic range of  
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 1          the school community.  I think it's very  

 

 2          effective. 

 

 3                 You're one of the few people today,  

 

 4          again, to talk about the changes in the SALT  

 

 5          deduction, which greatly affects our  

 

 6          district -- our county the highest-taxed  

 

 7          county in the country, I believe, in terms of  

 

 8          property tax. 

 

 9                 In light of the fact that that  

 

10          requires a federal change, it's not likely  

 

11          with this current U.S. Senate we're going to  

 

12          get that done.  Is there an argument to be  

 

13          made that, as you say, districts that receive  

 

14          a minimal amount of Foundation Aid under the  

 

15          Governor's proposals are in a worse position  

 

16          than they would have been prior to this  

 

17          change, because they really cannot charge  

 

18          people that have homes any more who thought  

 

19          they were going to be able to deduct their  

 

20          property tax?   

 

21                 MS. BELANGER:  I think that's  

 

22          absolutely correct.   

 

23                 We've been very worried.  Fortunately,  

 

24          we managed to pass all of our budgets last  

 

 



                                                                   623 

 

 1          year.  But given the taxpayers only have the  

 

 2          opportunity to vote on one budget, and it's  

 

 3          their school district budget, we've been  

 

 4          extremely worried about that.   

 

 5                 We took a look at the property taxes  

 

 6          in Westchester County at the time in 2017  

 

 7          when the Federal Jobs Act was passed, and we  

 

 8          discovered then the median property tax in  

 

 9          Westchester County was already over $10,000.   

 

10          Of course that doesn't include the fact that  

 

11          most people pay state income tax as well,  

 

12          that they're losing the deduction on in  

 

13          addition.   

 

14                 So we have been very worried about a  

 

15          blowback from taxpayers on our school  

 

16          budgets.  It's definitely becoming harder and  

 

17          harder to pass bond proposals.  Which, given  

 

18          our crumbling school buildings, is a very big  

 

19          issue.  And we have -- if you just look at  

 

20          Westchester and Putnam Counties, the school  

 

21          districts within that area, the median number  

 

22          is 82 percent of our school spending is local  

 

23          property tax levy.  So that is enormously  

 

24          important to our districts. 
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 1                 SENATOR MAYER:  Thank you.  Thank you  

 

 2          very much. 

 

 3                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you. 

 

 4                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Hold on one  

 

 5          second. 

 

 6                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Don't go  

 

 7          anywhere. 

 

 8                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Assemblyman  

 

 9          Otis. 

 

10                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Hey, Karen, very  

 

11          nice job.  And I think your testimony hit the  

 

12          key points of things that we have to address  

 

13          in the budget process. 

 

14                 Earlier in the day I raised one issue  

 

15          that is particular to some of our districts  

 

16          in our region with the SED commissioner,  

 

17          which is when we changed the rules on  

 

18          Building Aids and you have school districts  

 

19          that have already passed referendums, now the  

 

20          math is going to change, that presents a  

 

21          problem for their budgets.   

 

22                 Can you give a little more detail on  

 

23          that phenomenon that I'm hearing from some of  

 

24          our school board members and superintendents?   
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 1                 MS. BELANGER:  It is an enormous  

 

 2          problem in our area.  Once again, we sort of  

 

 3          are hit with a double whammy when it comes to  

 

 4          this.   

 

 5                 First of all, there's the we don't  

 

 6          know what we're going to wind up paying, we  

 

 7          can't tell or explain to our taxpayers  

 

 8          exactly what we're going to get back. 

 

 9                 Not only that, we have obviously the  

 

10          problem of some fairly old buildings.  We  

 

11          have a lot of security needs and a lot of  

 

12          need to upgrade our buildings to make sure  

 

13          that we have vestibule entrances, all the  

 

14          safe and secure things that we want to make  

 

15          sure our kids have, and proper wiring to be  

 

16          able to allow computers. 

 

17                 The part of it that particularly is  

 

18          going to hit our region, because very much --  

 

19          many of our districts, I would say the  

 

20          majority of our districts are going to be at  

 

21          or close to the minimum Building Aid ratio.   

 

22          So the reduction of a minimum Building Aid  

 

23          ratio down from 10 percent down to 5 percent  

 

24          is going to absolutely hit quite a number of  
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 1          districts in the Lower Hudson area.   

 

 2                 We're considered -- you know, even  

 

 3          districts that are in many ways, I would say,  

 

 4          you know, very needy can still be considered  

 

 5          to be at least of average needs when it comes  

 

 6          to the formula, because we have a lot of  

 

 7          property wealth.  It's not necessarily that  

 

 8          our taxpayers are able to pay more out of  

 

 9          their growth in income, which may not be  

 

10          there.  But we're considered to be  

 

11          low-to-average needs pretty much throughout  

 

12          the area because of the property wealth that  

 

13          we're sitting on. 

 

14                 But that doesn't really help our  

 

15          taxpayers in terms of paying the bills and in  

 

16          terms of, you know, all of a sudden ponying  

 

17          up 95 percent of a building project as  

 

18          opposed to 90 or somewhat less. 

 

19                 ASSEMBLYMAN OTIS:  Thank you.  Thank  

 

20          you, Karen.  Good job. 

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

22          being here. 

 

23                 MS. BELANGER:  Thank you very much. 

 

24                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Next we have  
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 1          New York State Community Schools Network,  

 

 2          followed by Teach My Kid to Read, followed by  

 

 3          YAFFED. 

 

 4                 MS. LIDIE:  Good evening, and thank  

 

 5          you for the opportunity to provide testimony  

 

 6          and for sticking around this long.   

 

 7                 I'm Alli Lidie.  I'm the associate  

 

 8          executive director at the New York State  

 

 9          Network for Youth Success, and we are the  

 

10          backbone organization for the New York State  

 

11          Community Schools Network. 

 

12                 Community Schools are making a  

 

13          difference for students, families, and  

 

14          communities across New York State, and  

 

15          they're seeing results from their efforts.   

 

16          The chancellor already spoke about the study  

 

17          by the Rand Corporation of the New York City  

 

18          Community Schools.  The New York State  

 

19          Community Schools Network also did a survey  

 

20          of some of our members, so I wanted to  

 

21          highlight a few results that we've seen from  

 

22          them.   

 

23                 JHS 292 in Brooklyn has seen decreases  

 

24          in suspensions.  In 2016 they had 65, and in  
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 1          2017 they had only seven.  That was after  

 

 2          implementing a restorative justice program  

 

 3          and working intentionally with the whole  

 

 4          school leadership team on improving school  

 

 5          culture. 

 

 6                 East EPO upper and lower schools in  

 

 7          Rochester have also seen decreases in  

 

 8          suspensions.  In 2014-2015, they had over  

 

 9          2,000.  In 2018-2019, they had only 330.  And  

 

10          they have also seen improvement in chronic  

 

11          absenteeism rates.  In 2014-2015, they had a  

 

12          chronic absenteeism rate of around  

 

13          21 percent, which has now decreased to  

 

14          15 percent. 

 

15                 Port Richmond High School in  

 

16          Staten Island has seen a recent reduction in  

 

17          suspensions and has seen an 81 percent  

 

18          improvement in chronic absence rates in their  

 

19          seniors.  They have also seen a decrease in  

 

20          their crisis events and attribute that to  

 

21          their mental health counseling program.   

 

22                 And the list goes on.  And there are  

 

23          many other highlights in my written testimony  

 

24          as well.   
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 1                 We are asking that the state increase  

 

 2          investments in the Community Schools strategy  

 

 3          to maintain the $250 million in existing  

 

 4          Community School funding and support the  

 

 5          additional $50 million in Community Schools  

 

 6          set-aside, and to add an additional  

 

 7          $100 million in a new Community Schools  

 

 8          Categorical Aid to adequately fund and  

 

 9          sustain Community Schools statewide. 

 

10                 These new funds will allow school  

 

11          districts to develop quality Community  

 

12          Schools, to strengthen and enhance their  

 

13          work, and to sustain successful Community  

 

14          Schools.  The Community Schools strategy has  

 

15          been shown to be effective for increasing  

 

16          student achievement in New York, and we  

 

17          should increase the investment in this  

 

18          strategy. 

 

19                 Furthermore, the vast majority of  

 

20          educators didn't actually have an opportunity  

 

21          to study the Community Schools strategy when  

 

22          they were in formal education, so we need to  

 

23          make sure to support them in implementing  

 

24          this strategy as effectively as possible.   
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 1          Even though that's the case, the State  

 

 2          Education Department has less than one  

 

 3          full-time equivalent dedicated to Community  

 

 4          Schools.   

 

 5                 Outside of that, we have three  

 

 6          Technical Assistance Centers, which each are  

 

 7          only funded for two staff members for the  

 

 8          wide regions of the state that they cover.  A  

 

 9          small investment of only $650,000 to increase  

 

10          the Technical Assistance Center funding would  

 

11          go a long way in meeting the current need.   

 

12          That would allow each Technical Assistance  

 

13          Center to hire another dedicated staff member  

 

14          to enhance existing capacity for on-site  

 

15          technical assistance and coaching, and allow  

 

16          for additional -- one additional statewide  

 

17          convening for all Community School directors  

 

18          or district representatives to come together  

 

19          across the state and network and learn from  

 

20          each other.   

 

21                 This will also provide principals,  

 

22          superintendents and district administrators  

 

23          with vital on-site technical assistance and  

 

24          capacity building support, which will be more  
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 1          effective and efficient to ensure that  

 

 2          districts are successful in their Community  

 

 3          Schools' efforts. 

 

 4                 Finally, increasing this funding would  

 

 5          allow for the creation of an 8.5 percent  

 

 6          set-aside for department administration, to  

 

 7          increase staff capacity and support. 

 

 8                 And there are highlights in the  

 

 9          written testimony that I've provided of the  

 

10          work that the Technical Assistance Centers  

 

11          have done thus far throughout the state. 

 

12                 Finally, the Community Schools  

 

13          strategy relies on integration of needed  

 

14          supports such as after-school and summer  

 

15          programs, pre-K, and school-based health  

 

16          centers.  And I've highlighted asks for each  

 

17          of those things, in collaboration with our  

 

18          partners at the Network for Youth Success,  

 

19          Winning Beginning New York, and the New York  

 

20          School-Based Health Alliance in the written  

 

21          testimony.   

 

22                 Thank you. 

 

23                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.   

 

24                 There are no questions from the  
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 1          members.  Thank you for your testimony here  

 

 2          today. 

 

 3                 Teach My Kid to Read, Marion Waldman,  

 

 4          executive director. 

 

 5                 MS. WALDMAN:  Thank you,  

 

 6          Assemblymembers, Senate members, and chairs  

 

 7          who are still here.   

 

 8                 I'm here with a couple of different  

 

 9          hats as well.  We also work in coalition with  

 

10          Decoding Dyslexia New York and the Dyslexia  

 

11          Initiative New York. 

 

12                 Like many of the stories that you've  

 

13          heard all day long, our story is one of many  

 

14          New York families I talk with regularly.  We  

 

15          struggled for years to find out why our  

 

16          daughter couldn't learn to read, and then we  

 

17          struggled for years to find that place and  

 

18          person that knew how to teach her to read the  

 

19          way she needed to learn.  We learned quickly  

 

20          we weren't alone.  And in New York today I  

 

21          have a petition here signed by 1,800 families  

 

22          who are looking for hope for their children,  

 

23          looking for early identification, and looking  

 

24          for teachers who know how to teach them so  
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 1          they can become skilled readers. 

 

 2                 As you see in my testimonial, the  

 

 3          statistics are dramatic.  For kids with  

 

 4          learning disabilities, of which dyslexia is  

 

 5          the most common, only 14 percent in New York  

 

 6          were reading proficiently.  Yet with the  

 

 7          right instruction intervention, 95 percent of  

 

 8          all children have the cognitive ability to  

 

 9          become skilled readers.   

 

10                 My journey is a little bit different,  

 

11          in that I took a turn and started a 501(c)(3)  

 

12          so that I could come up with strategic  

 

13          widespread community literacy initiatives,  

 

14          working primarily through the public  

 

15          libraries to provide parents, librarians and  

 

16          anyone interested in literacy education with  

 

17          professional development and tools to help  

 

18          all children, including those with dyslexia,  

 

19          learn the foundational skills essential for  

 

20          all children to learn to read.   

 

21                 We offer families and caregivers  

 

22          options when school can't help and the  

 

23          expense of tutors is out of the question.   

 

24          And quite frankly, we offer a bit of joy and  
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 1          hope in a very sobering area.   

 

 2                 There are six bills introduced this  

 

 3          session that strive to tackle ways to help  

 

 4          more children at risk of reading issues get  

 

 5          identified early and to require teachers to  

 

 6          receive training in ways that help all  

 

 7          children, especially children with dyslexia,  

 

 8          learn to read.   

 

 9                 For more children to get the help they  

 

10          need before they struggle, please support  

 

11          legislation put forth by Simon, Brooks and  

 

12          Carroll.  Children must be identified  

 

13          early -- we've heard that over and over  

 

14          today -- when the instruction and  

 

15          interventions have the most impact, and maybe  

 

16          they won't go into special education, and  

 

17          before they miss critical instruction and  

 

18          begin to lose pace with their peers. 

 

19                 School districts are currently  

 

20          required to universally screen all children  

 

21          at risk for not meeting grade-level  

 

22          expectations in reading.  These same  

 

23          screeners can be analyzed to look for and  

 

24          identify the risk factors commonly found in  
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 1          dyslexic children.  The same programs that  

 

 2          work best for dyslexic children also prove  

 

 3          successful for all struggling and beginning  

 

 4          readers. 

 

 5                 Unfortunately, as we heard, some  

 

 6          teacher education programs provide few  

 

 7          opportunities for future teachers to learn  

 

 8          the science of reading or receive training in  

 

 9          evidence-based strategies that adequately  

 

10          prepare them to teach reading, especially to  

 

11          struggling readers.   

 

12                 To improve opportunities for teacher  

 

13          training and provide more options for  

 

14          specialized interventions, we request support  

 

15          for legislation put forth by Brooks, Carroll  

 

16          and Jackson, and Carroll, to provide children  

 

17          with reading issues like dyslexia who are not  

 

18          demonstrating progress in a traditional  

 

19          school setting, with opportunity to access  

 

20          specialized schools that cater to children  

 

21          with reading issues. 

 

22                 I'm going to jump ahead.  You have my  

 

23          testimonial about some of the statistics in  

 

24          New York City.  But what I want to say,  
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 1          probably the most important, that ties into  

 

 2          all the mental health discussions we've been  

 

 3          hearing, is I am here to speak on behalf of  

 

 4          all families, educators, and especially all  

 

 5          the children whose -- children and adults  

 

 6          whose lives have been irrevocably affected in  

 

 7          the quest to learn to read.   

 

 8                 Children with dyslexia often feel deep  

 

 9          frustration and embarrassment, which can lead  

 

10          to anxiety and withdrawal from social  

 

11          activities.  One out of four Americans suffer  

 

12          from mental health issues each year.   

 

13          However, adults and young people with  

 

14          learning disabilities such as dyslexia are  

 

15          46 percent more likely to attempt suicide. 

 

16                 Those of us who started advocating for  

 

17          stronger policies for children with reading  

 

18          issues like dyslexia when our children were  

 

19          young now have older children with emotional  

 

20          and mental health issues, based on the shame,  

 

21          anxiety and stress of not learning to  

 

22          read and -- I'll say it over and over,  

 

23          probably the most heartbreaking -- the loss  

 

24          of joy.   
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 1                 The time to act is now.  With New York  

 

 2          City poised to implement sound evidence-based  

 

 3          literacy instruction and support in early  

 

 4          grades, it's time to take the next step and  

 

 5          provide interventions and support for all  

 

 6          students.   

 

 7                 I'll just jump ahead.  Let's take  

 

 8          action quickly on behalf of all families and  

 

 9          teach our kids to read. 

 

10                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for  

 

11          being here and staying till almost -- almost  

 

12          the end.  We've just about hit the 10-hour  

 

13          mark.  Actually, I think we have. 

 

14                 Our final witness, from YAFFED,  

 

15          Naftuli Moster. 

 

16                 MR. MOSTER:  Good evening.  And I'm  

 

17          happy to perform the grand finale.   

 

18                 Honorable members, since 1894 New York  

 

19          State has mandated that all nonpublic schools  

 

20          provide an education that is, quote, at least  

 

21          substantially equivalent to that of public  

 

22          schools.  But for many decades the State  

 

23          Education Department neglected to adequately  

 

24          enforce this law.  Unfortunately, this was a  
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 1          costly oversight that resulted in tens of  

 

 2          thousands of children being denied their  

 

 3          human right to an education.   

 

 4                 While it is true that most private  

 

 5          schools, including many yeshivas and Jewish  

 

 6          day schools, meet or exceed the minimum  

 

 7          threshold of substantial equivalency, this is  

 

 8          not the case for many ultra-Orthodox and  

 

 9          Hasidic yeshivas, especially in Hasidic boys  

 

10          schools.   

 

11                 Most Hasidic boys schools offer just  

 

12          90 minutes of secular instruction to their  

 

13          students per day, only four days a week, and  

 

14          only for a few of the elementary and middle  

 

15          school grades.  The secular education usually  

 

16          consists of just English and arithmetic.  In  

 

17          most Hasidic boys high schools, students are  

 

18          completely deprived of a secular education.   

 

19          Instead, they spend between 12 to 14 hours a  

 

20          day studying exclusively Judaic studies, none  

 

21          of which is taught in English, and they  

 

22          receive zero instruction in subjects such as  

 

23          English, math, science and social studies, or  

 

24          any other subject required to be taught by  
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 1          law.   

 

 2                 This assessment has now been confirmed  

 

 3          by the New York City Department of Education  

 

 4          in their December 2019 report stating that 26  

 

 5          out of 28 yeshivas that were investigated did  

 

 6          not meet the lowest threshold needed to  

 

 7          constitute a school.  That is, they did not  

 

 8          meet substantial equivalency.   

 

 9                 The truth is we didn't need for the  

 

10          DOE to take four and a half years to tell us  

 

11          this.  It's been alleged for decades.   

 

12          Reporters, academics, documentarians,  

 

13          autobiographers have all confirmed the same  

 

14          exact thing for many years.  And this isn't  

 

15          some small group of underperforming schools,  

 

16          and it isn't affecting an insignificant  

 

17          number of children.  On the contrary, there  

 

18          are over 100 Hasidic schools across the  

 

19          state, a majority of which do not meet the  

 

20          minimum standards.   

 

21                 The consequences of this lack of  

 

22          education is palpable.  Poverty rates in the  

 

23          Hasidic community are high, as is dependence  

 

24          on government assistance.   
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 1                 I want to stress that expressing this  

 

 2          should in no way be seen as a criticism or a  

 

 3          mockery of people who genuinely must rely on  

 

 4          government assistance to get by.  What I do  

 

 5          want to stress is that it is unfair to  

 

 6          preordain a life of dependence on government  

 

 7          assistance onto the children.   

 

 8                 Defenders of the status quo often  

 

 9          point to the, quote, failing public schools  

 

10          as a way of telling the public and  

 

11          policymakers to clean up their house first,  

 

12          so to speak.  But one crucial difference is  

 

13          that even the worst failing public school in  

 

14          this entire state offers instruction in  

 

15          English and math and science and in social  

 

16          studies.  Yet we have dozens of Hasidic and  

 

17          ultra-Orthodox yeshivas right here that offer  

 

18          zero secular education, including in the  

 

19          above-mentioned subjects.   

 

20                 So how is that a credible comparison?   

 

21          In addition to misinformation, yeshiva  

 

22          leaders have used connections they have  

 

23          gained in good faith from members of this  

 

24          body and elsewhere in the government to  
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 1          persuade and strong-arm officials to delay  

 

 2          action and to stonewall progress.  You may  

 

 3          recall when Senator Simcha Felder held up the  

 

 4          entire state budget in 2018 until he got what  

 

 5          he wanted, a budget amendment seeking to  

 

 6          weaken standards for yeshivas on behalf of  

 

 7          Agudath Israel and other yeshiva  

 

 8          representatives.   

 

 9                 More recently we learned from a  

 

10          New York City Department of Investigation  

 

11          report that Mayor Bill de Blasio delayed an  

 

12          interim report that was due in the summer of  

 

13          2017 until August of 2018 because somehow  

 

14          yeshiva leaders managed to hold mayoral  

 

15          control hostage unless his administration  

 

16          delayed that report, that damning report.   

 

17                 In November of 2018, SED rolled out  

 

18          new guidelines to enforce substantial  

 

19          equivalency requirements across the state.   

 

20          The guidelines were subsequently and  

 

21          successfully challenged in court on the  

 

22          grounds that the state needed to release new  

 

23          regulations first.  These regulations were  

 

24          announced in May, and a public comment period  
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 1          was held over the summer.   

 

 2                 Yesterday the Board of Regents once  

 

 3          again kicked the can down the road, citing  

 

 4          the extraordinary number of comments,  

 

 5          140,000, received in opposition.  It's  

 

 6          important to stress that yeshiva leaders and  

 

 7          elite private schools lobbied their parent  

 

 8          body, often with misinformation about the  

 

 9          regulations, to submit comments en masse to  

 

10          oppose it. 

 

11                 We can't allow an organized campaign  

 

12          of fear and misinformation to strong-arm the  

 

13          SED into indefinitely delaying enforcement of  

 

14          the law.  Honorable members, this is an issue  

 

15          impacting every New Yorker regardless of  

 

16          whether they're personally affected by  

 

17          educational neglect or not.  The consequences  

 

18          of allowing the status quo to continue are  

 

19          enormous.  It will perpetuate injustice and  

 

20          inequality in our communities.   

 

21                 We can't talk about the importance of  

 

22          equity and fairness and continue to ignore  

 

23          this issue.  We respectfully ask that the  

 

24          State Legislature ensure that all students  
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 1          receive a proper education by providing SED  

 

 2          with adequate funding to implement the  

 

 3          substantial equivalency regulations.  Without  

 

 4          that, the law remains meaningless.  It is  

 

 5          like setting speed limits but having no  

 

 6          mechanism at all to enforce the limit.   

 

 7                 I promise I won't be more than 60 more  

 

 8          seconds.  

 

 9                 The second is working to strengthen  

 

10          the law so that we don't encounter continuous  

 

11          evaders and lawbreakers who find increasingly  

 

12          creative ways to deprive kids of an  

 

13          education.   

 

14                 Finally, enacting legislation to  

 

15          require that all schools receiving any  

 

16          funding, no matter how much or how little,  

 

17          and no matter for what program, must certify  

 

18          that they are substantially equivalent.  SED  

 

19          should then be empowered to deny funding from  

 

20          any school that cannot confidently state that  

 

21          they are meeting the extremely modest  

 

22          requirement of the substantial equivalency  

 

23          law.   

 

24                 This is the most impactful action you  
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 1          could take right now.  If any other interest  

 

 2          group came before you and demanded funding  

 

 3          with no oversight whatsoever, they would be  

 

 4          laughed out of the room, and rightly so.   

 

 5          There's no reason the nonpublic school sector  

 

 6          should be able to both take advantage of  

 

 7          taxpayer resources while at the same time  

 

 8          evade basic oversight to ensure their  

 

 9          compliance with the state laws and  

 

10          regulations.   

 

11                 I respectfully ask the honorable  

 

12          members to consider --  

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

14                 MR. MOSTER:  -- these proposals -- 

 

15                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you.  We  

 

16          gave you a minute four seconds extra. 

 

17                 MR. MOSTER:  Fantastic.  Okay, thanks. 

 

18                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Any questions  

 

19          from members?  No.  And we have your written  

 

20          testimony.   

 

21                 Wait.  Senator Liu. 

 

22                 SENATOR LIU:  Sorry to delay the  

 

23          hearing {mic off; inaudible}.   

 

24                 I appreciate your testimony.  Where do  
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 1          you think SED stands on this? 

 

 2                 MR. MOSTER:  I think SED, if they're  

 

 3          empowered to do so, they would once and for  

 

 4          all enforce the law.   

 

 5                 But as I said, there are lots of  

 

 6          special interests out there that are seeking  

 

 7          every single way to undermine it.   

 

 8                 I overheard a little bit of the  

 

 9          previous -- 

 

10                 SENATOR LIU:  What did you think about  

 

11          their initial proposal?   

 

12                 MR. MOSTER:  The initial proposal as  

 

13          guidelines or as regulations?  Initially they  

 

14          released it as guidelines, and then they  

 

15          basically transferred the same thing into  

 

16          regulations.   

 

17                 I personally believe they're fine.   

 

18          And I know there's a lot of rhetoric against  

 

19          it.  But I should point out this intrusive  

 

20          measure involves once every five years going  

 

21          in to see if schools are compliant and  

 

22          requiring that they provide documentation.   

 

23                 How any other sector -- 

 

24                 SENATOR LIU:  So you didn't have any  
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 1          issues with their first proposal. 

 

 2                 MR. MOSTER:  We had some minor issues  

 

 3          which could have been worked out within  

 

 4          minutes.   

 

 5                 But that wasn't the big issue here.   

 

 6          The main reason for this delay has to do with  

 

 7          the fact that they were trying to appease  

 

 8          Catholic schools, private elite schools and,  

 

 9          more recently, the 150 -- the 140,000  

 

10          comments. 

 

11                 SENATOR LIU:  Thank you.   

 

12                 Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 

13                 CHAIRWOMAN WEINSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 

14                 So this concludes the Education  

 

15          hearing.  Tomorrow at 9:30 we will be  

 

16          reconvening for the Public Protection hearing  

 

17          and hopefully we won't be breaking, so far,  

 

18          our record time.  So look forward to seeing  

 

19          people tomorrow morning at 9:30.   

 

20                 Senator Krueger?   

 

21                 CHAIRWOMAN KRUEGER:  Thank you.  Thank  

 

22          you very much, Senators, Assemblymembers. 

 

23                 (Whereupon, the budget hearing concluded  

 

24          at 7:40 p.m.) 

 

 



 


